
 

Cabinet 
 

Tuesday 12 February 2013 
4.00 pm 

Ground Floor Meeting Room GO2A, 160 Tooley Street, London  
SE1 2QH 

 
Membership 
 

Portfolio 

Councillor Peter John Leader of the Council 
Councillor Ian Wingfield Deputy Leader and Housing Management 
Councillor Fiona Colley Regeneration and Corporate Strategy 
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle Children's Services 
Councillor Barrie Hargrove Transport, Environment and Recycling 
Councillor Claire Hickson Communities and Economic Wellbeing 
Councillor Richard Livingstone Finance, Resources and Community Safety 
Councillor Catherine McDonald Health and Adult Social Care 
Councillor Veronica Ward Culture, Leisure, Sport and Olympic Legacy 
 
 
INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 
Access to information 

You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda as well 
as the background documents used in the preparation of these reports. 

Babysitting/Carers allowances 

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, an 
elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this meeting, you 
may claim an allowance from the council.  Please collect a claim form at the meeting. 

Access 

The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  Further details on building 
access, translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s web site: 
www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below. 

Contact 
Paula Thornton 020 7525 4395 or Everton Roberts 020 7525 7221 
Or email: paula.thornton@southwark.gov.uk; everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk  
Webpage: http://www.southwark.gov.uk  
 
 
Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting 
 
Councillor Peter John 
Leader of the Council 
Date: 4 February 2013 
 

 

 

Open Agenda



 

Cabinet 
 

Tuesday 12 February 2013 
4.00 pm 

Ground Floor Meeting Room GO2A, 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH 
 
 

Order of Business 
 
 

Item No. Title Page No. 
 

 PART A - OPEN BUSINESS 
 

 

 MOBILE PHONES 
 

 

 Mobile phones should be turned off or put on silent during the course of 
the meeting. 
 

 

1. APOLOGIES 
  

 

 To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR 
DEEMS URGENT 

  

 

 In special circumstances, an item of business may be added to an agenda 
within five clear working days of the meeting.  
 

 

3. NOTICE OF INTENTION TO CONDUCT BUSINESS IN A CLOSED 
MEETING, AND ANY REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED 

  

 

 No closed items are scheduled for consideration at this meeting. 
 

 

4. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS 
  

 

 Members to declare any interests and dispensation in respect of any item 
of business to be considered at this meeting.  
 

 

5. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (15 MINUTES) 
  

 

 To receive any questions from members of the public which have been 
submitted in advance of the meeting in accordance with the cabinet 
procedure rules. 
 

 



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Page No. 
 
 

6. MINUTES 
  

1 - 13 

 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the open section of the 
meetings held on 29 January 2013. 
 

 

7. DEPUTATION REQUESTS 
  

 

 To consider any deputation requests. 
 

 

8. POLICY AND RESOURCES 2013/14 TO 2015/16 
  

14 - 71 

 To recommend a balanced budget for 2013/14 to council assembly in 
February 2013. 
 

 

9. REPORT FROM THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 
POLICY AND RESOURCES 2013/14 TO 2015/16 

  

To follow 

 To consider the report from the overview and scrutiny committee on the 
policy and resources strategy 2013/14 to 2015/16.  
 

 

10. REVENUE MONITORING REPORT QUARTER 3,  2012/13 INCLUDING 
TREASURY MANAGEMENT 

  

72 - 92 

 To note the general fund outturn forecast for 2012/13m, the forecast 
council tax and business rates collection fund balance as at 31 March 
2013 and to approve the  general fund budget movements during quarter 
3 that exceed £250,000. 
 

 

11. QUARTERLY CAPITAL MONITORING REPORT QUARTER 3 
  

93 - 121 

 To note the general fund capital programme 2012/13–2021/22 and the 
housing investment programme 2012/13–2021/22 at quarter 3 and to 
agree the virements and funded variations for this quarter as detailed in 
the report.  
 

 

12. AUTHORISATION OF DEBT WRITE-OFFS OVER £50,000 FOR 
NATIONAL NON DOMESTIC RATES - REVENUES AND BENEFITS 
SERVICE 

  

122 - 134 

 To seek approval for the write-off of the debt of £98,031.81 for one debt 
which is irrecoverable.  
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Page No. 
 
 

13. LEATHERMARKET JOINT MANAGEMENT BOARD - SELF FINANCING 
OF HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 

  

135 - 152 

 To note the progress made towards the proposal of ‘self financing’ of the 
Leathermarket  Joint Management Board (JMB) and agree to enter into a 
new modular management agreement.  
 

 

14. PROGRESS REPORT ON ABBEYFIELD ESTATE REGENERATION 
SCHEME AND UPDATE ON DELIVERY OF FOUR SQUARES AND 
HAWKSTONE ESTATE 

  

153 - 160 

 To note the progress made on the Abbeyfield Estate regeneration scheme 
and progress of the Hawkstone and Four Squares Estates.  
 

 

15. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL) DRAFT CHARGING 
SCHEDULE 

  

161 - 184 

 To agree to publish and invite representations on the community 
infrastructure levy (CIL) draft charging schedule and the draft “Regulation 
123 List”.  
 

 

16. ESTABLISHMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH LEADERSHIP AND 
COMMISSIONING IN SOUTHWARK COUNCIL 

  

185 - 203 

 To agree arrangements for the local authority to take on public health 
accountabilities and responsibilities from April 2013.  
 

 

17. ESTABLISHING SOUTHWARK'S HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
AS A COMMITTEE OF THE COUNCIL 

  

204 - 213 

 To agree to recommend that council assembly establish Southwark’s 
Health and Wellbeing Board as a committee of the council from 1 April 
2013.  
 

 

 DISCUSSION OF ANY OTHER OPEN ITEMS AS NOTIFIED AT THE 
START OF THE MEETING 
 

 

 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

 

 The following items are included on the closed section of the agenda. The 
Proper Officer has decided that the papers should not be circulated to the 
press and public since they reveal confidential or exempt information as 
specified in paragraphs 1-7, Access to Information Procedure Rules of the 
Constitution. The specific paragraph is indicated in the case of exempt 
information. 
 
The following motion should be moved, seconded and approved if the 
cabinet wishes to exclude the press and public to deal with reports 
revealing exempt information: 

 



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Page No. 
 
 

 
“That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following 
items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1-7, 
Access to Information Procedure Rules of the Constitution.“ 

 

 PART B - CLOSED BUSINESS 
 

 

18. MINUTES 
  

 

 To approve as a correct record the closed minutes of the meeting held on 
29 January 2013. 
 

 

 DISCUSSION OF ANY OTHER CLOSED ITEMS AS NOTIFIED AT THE 
START OF THE MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS 
URGENT 
 

 

  
 

 

 
Date:  4 February 2013 
 
 



1 
 
 

Cabinet - Tuesday 29 January 2013 
 

 
 
 
 

Cabinet 
 
MINUTES of the OPEN section of the Cabinet held on Tuesday 29 January 2013 at 
4.00 pm at the Council Offices, 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH  
 
 
PRESENT: Councillor Peter John (Chair) 

Councillor Ian Wingfield 
Councillor Fiona Colley 
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle 
Councillor Barrie Hargrove 
Councillor Claire Hickson 
Councillor Richard Livingstone 
Councillor Catherine McDonald 
Councillor Veronica Ward 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
 

 All members were present.  The Leader reported that Eleanor Kelly, Chief Executive had 
given her apologies. 
 

2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT  
 

 The chair gave notice that the following late item would be considered for the reasons of 
urgency, to be specified in the relevant minute: 
 
Item 22 – Policy and Resources Strategy 2013/14 – 2015/16: Revenue Budget 
 

3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS  
 

 There were no disclosures of interests or dispensations. 
 

4. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (15 MINUTES)  
 

 There were no public questions. 
 
 

Agenda Item 6
1



2 
 
 

Cabinet - Tuesday 29 January 2013 
 

5. MINUTES  
 

 RESOLVED: 
 

That the open minutes of the meeting held on 11 December 2012 be approved as 
a correct record and signed by the chair. 

 

6. DEPUTATION REQUESTS  
 

 There were no deputation requests. 
 

7. NOTICE OF INTENTION TO CONDUCT BUSINESS IN A CLOSED MEETING, AND 
ANY REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED  

 

 No represensations were received in respect of the items listed as closed business for the 
meeting. 
 

8. FAIRER FUTURE INTERIM PERFORMANCE REPORT  
 

 RESOLVED: 
 

That the progress in the first half of 2012/13 against the ten fairer future promises 
and portfolio performance objectives in the council plan be noted. 

 

9. HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT - FINAL RENT-SETTING AND BUDGET REPORT 
2013/14  

 

 Feedback from consultation meetings including Tenants Council was circulated at the 
cabinet meeting. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
1. That an average rent increase of 4.85% in accordance with the government’s 

required formula rent guidance be applied to all housing revenue account (HRA) 
dwellings as set out in paragraphs 25 to 28 of the report.  This is equivalent to an 
increase of £4.46 per week on average for tenanted properties, with effect from 1 
April 2013.  This percentage increase is also to be applied to estate void and hostel 
properties from 1 April 2013.  The average budgeted dwelling rent for 2013/14 will 
be £96.40 per week. 

 
2. That the ongoing consultation regarding the council’s letting policy, and the options 

put forward regarding setting rents for new-build and new-let tenancies at formula 
rent levels, and the budget implications of this (paragraphs 31 to 33) be noted. 

 
3. That tenant service charges be set at the same level as 2012/13 as laid out in 

paragraph 34 of the report with effect from 1 April 2013. 
 

2



3 
 
 

Cabinet - Tuesday 29 January 2013 
 

4. That the standard charge for non-residential property (garages etc.) be set at the 
same level as 2012/13, as laid out in paragraphs 35 and 36 of the report with effect 
from 1 April 2013. 

 
5. That approval be given to a further standstill in heating and hot water charges for 

2013/14 such that each charge remains at the rate determined for 2009/10 onward 
(as set out in paragraph 37 of the report). 

 
6. That the revised HRA budget for 2013/14 be noted (paragraph 17 refers, with details 

set out in Appendices G and H of the report). 
 

10. RESPONSE TO RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE HOUSING AND COMMUNITY 
SAFETY SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE ON THE REVIEW OF SERVICES RELATING 
TO DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AND ABUSE IN SOUTHWARK  

 

 The cabinet received comments from Councillor Gavin Edwards, chair of the housing, 
environment, transport and community safety scrutiny sub-committee in relation to the 
response to the scrutiny recommendations.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
1. That the measures the council has in place to respond to the scrutiny 

recommendations be noted and agreed. 
 
2. That the information contained in the report about the impact of alcohol in respect of 

domestic violence and abuse be noted. 
 

11. THE SOUTHWARK LOCAL BIODIVERSITY ACTION PLAN  
 

 RESOLVED: 
 

That the Local Biodiversity Action Plan (BAP) for the planning and management of 
biodiversity in the borough be approved. 

 

12. BOROUGH WIDE TREE MANAGEMENT STRATEGY  
 

 RESOLVED: 
 
1. That the consultation process and subsequent revisions to the Tree Management 

Strategy be noted. 
 
2. That the revised Tree Management Strategy and the approach for adoption of the 

strategy be approved. 
 
3. That officers explore options for communication of the strategy to the public, 

including placing an article in ‘Southwark Life’. 
 

3



4 
 
 

Cabinet - Tuesday 29 January 2013 
 

13. SOUTHWARK OPEN SPACE STRATEGY  
 

 RESOLVED: 
 
1. That the revised open space strategy (Appendix A of the report) be adopted with the 

inclusion of the following amendment: 
 
“Elephant & Castle sub-area strategy, map on page 29, OS76 

 
Amend label to read 

 
Recommended boundary change to the area of protected open space and 
potential site for biodiversity improvements at Nursery Row Park 

 
Amend the map to show the extension to the north of the open space (which is 
consistent with the adopted Elephant & Castle SPD 2012)”. 
 

Note: (Visual representation of this amendment is available on the council website 
alongside Appendix A of the report). 

 
2. That the consultation report (Appendix B), equalities analysis (Appendix C) and the 

sustainability appraisal (Appendix D) be noted. 
 

14. CONSULTATION RESPONSES (KEY THEMES) ON A DRAFT VISION FOR 
SOUTHWARK DAY OPPORTUNITIES FOR ADULTS WITH LEARNING DISABILITIES  

 

 RESOLVED: 
 
Decisions of the cabinet 
 
1. That the key themes, issues and concerns raised by users and carers in the 

consultation on the draft vision for adult learning disability day opportunities be 
noted. 

 
2. That council officers develop the final vision on the basis of the consultation 

feedback and work with users and carers, providers and community services to 
transform the way day opportunities for adults with learning disabilities are provided. 

 
3. That officers work across all departments to ensure the final vision is reflected in 

departmental priorities and corporate strategies. 
 
Decision of the leader of the council 
 
4. That approval of the final vision be delegated to the cabinet member for health and 

adult social care. 
 
 
 

4



5 
 
 

Cabinet - Tuesday 29 January 2013 
 

15. REQUEST FOR DOOR ENTRY AT KINGLAKE ESTATE  
 

 RESOLVED: 
 
1. That it be noted that the installation of door entry systems on the Kinglake Estate will 

be considered along with other priorities within the potential housing revenue 
account (HRA) funding increase. 

 
2. That the officers’ recommendation for Option C (installation of full specification door 

entry systems to blocks with particular anti-social behaviour problems) as set out in 
paragraph 14 of the report be noted.  

 
3. The it be noted that officers will engage all residents in an estate-wide pre-emptive 

consultation process relating to Option C, and will carefully consider all comments 
and suggestions put forward. 

 

16. VOLUNTARY AND COMMUNITY SECTOR: PROPOSAL FOR SETTING UP AN 
APPROVED LIST  

 

 RESOLVED: 
 

That agreement be given for the setting up of a Southwark Approved List for the 
Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS). 

 

17. NEW CONDITIONS OF GRANT FUNDING (FORMERLY THE CONDITIONS OF GRANT 
AID)  

 

 RESOLVED: 
 
1. That the new conditions of grant funding (COGF), formerly conditions of grant aid 

(COGA) attached as Appendix 1 to the report be approved. 
 
2. That periodic reviews of the conditions of grant funding (COGF), delegated to the 

chief officer, be undertaken to take account of changes in legislation and to reflect 
corporate changes. 

 

18. RELOCATION OF CROSSWAY CHURCH: NEW KENT ROAD TO HAMPTON STREET  
 

 RESOLVED: 
 
That cabinet agrees: 
 
1. To meet the cost in full for constructing a replacement church at the former Castle 

Day Centre, Hampton Street and transferring the completed property to the United 
Reformed Church as compensation for the council’s acquisition of the Crossway 
Church at New Kent Road in accordance with the statutory provisions of the Land 
Compensation Act 1961. 

 

5



6 
 
 

Cabinet - Tuesday 29 January 2013 
 

2. To fund the construction of four affordable council house units from the Affordable 
Housing Fund.  

 
3. To delegate to the director of regeneration authority to enter into appropriate 

contracts to implement the recommendations. 
 

19. DISPOSAL OF CAR POUND AT MANDELA WAY, LONDON SE1  
 

 This item was withdrawn. 
 

20. DISPOSAL OF 161 DENMARK HILL, LONDON SE5 8EF  
 

 RESOLVED: 
 
1. That the disposal of the council’s freehold interest in 161 Denmark Hill, London SE5 

8EF (“the Property”), as shown on the plan attached to the report, to the bidder 
identified and on terms set out in the accompanying closed agenda report, subject to 
any further negotiations considered necessary by the head of property be approved. 

 
2. That should the sale not proceed to completion within a reasonable time as 

determined by the head of property, the Property be offered to the under-bidder or 
re-offered for sale on the open market and then sold on terms to be approved by the 
head of property for a consideration not less than market value. 

 

21. MOTIONS REFERRED FROM COUNCIL ASSEMBLY  
 

 RESOLVED: 
 
Supporting cycling in Southwark 
 
That the motion referred from council assembly as a recommendation to cabinet, set 
out below be noted and agreed. 
 
1. That council assembly believes a lot more should be done to encourage cycling 

throughout Southwark, including making bicycles more accessible to residents, 
encouraging the take up of cycling and improving road safety for cyclists. 

 
2. That council assembly therefore welcomes the fact that: 
 

• The current administration has spent or allocated £2.677 million on cycling in 
the last two years and plans to spend nearly another £4 million on cycling 
infrastructure. One third of the money allocated from TfL to Southwark gets 
spent on cycling. 

• Southwark has installed 174 cycle lockers on housing estates and created 
over 1500 new spaces for on street cycle parking. 

• Southwark is the first London borough to install life-saving Trixi mirrors at 
dangerous junctions throughout the borough and welcomes the news that a 
further eight mirrors will be installed by March 2013. 

6



7 
 
 

Cabinet - Tuesday 29 January 2013 
 

• Proposals for 25 cut-throughs, shared use footways and contra-flow schemes 
across the borough are currently under consideration and that this will help to 
improve cycle permeability by improving access and reducing travel times. 

• The council’s transport plan also proposes: 20mph streets to help make 
Southwark roads safer for everyone by reducing speeds, developing 'green 
links' to encourage local cycle trips for less confident cyclists and families, 
school travel plan initiatives and cycle parking on and off street. 

• Southwark Council’s bike loan scheme allows employees to take out an 
interest free loan of up to £1,000 to buy a bike to use to cycle to work. 

• Despite the fact that Transport for London has reduced the overall budget for 
cycle training from £163,000 to £156,000, the council continues to offer free 
cyclist training to anyone that lives, works or is educated in the borough. 
Around 900 children and 600 adults receiving training each year. 

 
3. That council assembly therefore calls on cabinet to: 
 

• Continue to work with organisations such as Southwark Cyclists to explore 
how Southwark can realise its ambition of becoming the most cycle friendly 
London borough. 

• Continue to lobby Transport for London to extend the London cycle hire 
scheme throughout the borough. 

• Take a serious and sensible approach to increasing the number of people who 
cycle in the borough and make good on its commitment to review the target for 
people cycling in Southwark which is in line with the London target and based 
on key developments such as the introduction of cycle hire, and the existing 
and planned cycle superhighways. The current target translates into a 33% 
increase (from 3-4%) in current cycling levels or 4,700 new trips by bike every 
day. 

 
Road Safety 
 
That the motion referred from council assembly as a recommendation to cabinet, set out 
below be noted and agreed, and the comments of the strategic director of environment 
and leisure, contained in the report be noted. 
 
1. That council assembly expresses condolences for the tragic deaths of Hichame 

Bouadimi, Ellie Carey and many other cyclists and pedestrians who have been killed 
in road accidents in recent years in Southwark.  

 
2. That council assembly notes that the number of people killed on Britain’s roads 

increased by 3% in 2011 to 1,901 – the first increase since 2003. It also notes that 
the number of pedestrians killed jumped by 12% to 453.  

 
3. That council assembly regrets the then Conservative Transport Secretary, Phillip 

Hammond’s pledge to “end the war on the motorist” in 2010 which has led to the 
removal of speed cameras, the abolition of national casualty-reduction targets, the 
proposal of 80mph speed limits and the reduction in the number of charges for death 
by dangerous driving. 

 
 
 

7



8 
 
 

Cabinet - Tuesday 29 January 2013 
 

4. That council assembly also regrets the decision by Transport for London (TfL) to 
change the phasing of London’s traffic lights, ostensibly to improve traffic flow, which 
has made roads less safe for cyclists and pedestrians. 

 
5. That council assembly welcomes measures introduced by the council to promote 

cycling and to improve road safety including:  
 

• Becoming the first London council to install Trixi mirrors at four junctions in 
Southwark, with eight more junctions earmarked 

 
• Carrying out spot checks on cyclists and drivers breaching traffic enforcement 

laws in order to crackdown on dangerous driving 
 
• A comprehensive road safety education, training and publicity programme – 

including for lorry drivers - and a safer routes to school programme (SRTS), 
which aims to encourage and enable children to walk or cycle to and from 
school through the introduction of targeted traffic calming and the creation of 
safer walking and cycling routes. 

 
6. That council assembly believes that the biggest cause in road deaths is speeding 

and therefore calls on the cabinet:  
 

• For Southwark to become a 20mph borough 
 
• To call on the Association of Chief Police Officers (ACPO) to ensure police 

enforce 20mph speed limits 
 
• To call on TfL to give greater flexibility and support for the use of average 

speed cameras. 
 

And also for: 
 

More to be done to make TfL operated roads safer and calls for greater 
transparency for TfL’s review of dangerous junctions in Southwark. 

 
Bus services in the south of the borough 
 
That the motion referred from council assembly as a recommendation to cabinet, set out 
below be noted and agreed. 
 
That council assembly believes that improvements are needed by TfL to bus services in 
the south of the borough, and in particular requests the cabinet to report on: 
 
1. Further work lobbying the Mayor of London and Transport for London (TfL) to secure 

an extension of bus route 42 to Sainsbury’s Dog Kennel Hill via North Dulwich 
station. 

 
2. Continuing complaints about the reliability and frequency of the 37 and 3 bus 

services, as well as the frequency of the 12 during the rush hour. 
 

8



9 
 
 

Cabinet - Tuesday 29 January 2013 
 

3. The feasibility of TfL extending the 201 bus service eastwards from Herne Hill to 
provide better east/west services through Dulwich. 

 
4. Support and working with TfL on extending the 63 bus service onto Honor Oak Park 

station to provide connection with London Overground services following the 
excellent campaign by Peckham Rye’s Labour councillors and Val Shawcross, 
Assembly Member, to extend the number 63 route. Council assembly notes that the 
extension of the 63 route was a key pledge from Ken Livingstone at the last election 
but was opposed by Boris Johnson and is concerned whether there is the political 
will from the current Mayor of London to deliver this extension. 

 
5. Options for new buses on the 12 route that represent an effective use of public 

money. 
 
6. TfL improving bus links to the Kingswood estate, one of the most geographically 

isolated parts of Southwark, where many residents can not afford to use the nearby 
Sydenham Hill train station. 

 
7. TfL providing a direct bus service from the south of the borough to Kings College 

Hospital. 
 
Social housing in mixed communities 
 
That the motion referred from council assembly as a recommendation to cabinet, set out 
below be noted and agreed. 
 
1. That council notes that not only is the current administration investing £326 million to 

ensure every council home in Southwark is warm, dry and safe by 2016, it is also 
building 1000 new council homes in Southwark over the next eight years - more than 
have been built in all of London in the last 10 years. It regrets that the previous 
administration failed to build enough council housing, had an unworkable and 
unfunded decent homes programme which left many Southwark residents without 
decent homes and by the end of their time in office left Southwark with 7,800 fewer 
council homes. 

 
2. That council notes the publication of the ‘Ending Expensive Tenancies’ report by 

Policy Exchange in August 2012, which called on councils to sell off higher valued 
social homes and replace them with others in cheaper areas. 

 
3. That council also notes the reaction of the leader to the report on his blog: “the 

blanket policy proposed by the paper of selling-off all council properties above a 
certain value is flawed and would undoubtedly lead to the removal of genuinely 
affordable social housing from certain areas.” 

 
4. That council recognises that there is a need for affordable housing in all parts of the 

borough, and that many key workers and other residents in lower pay brackets live 
in social homes in those parts of the borough where land values are highest. That is 
why this council opposes the government’s housing benefit cap, opposes the 
introduction of affordable rent at 80% of market rent, opposes the ending of secure 
tenancies, opposes the slashing of the social housing budget by £3.9 billion and is 
building 1000 new council homes in Southwark over the next 8 years. 

9



10 
 
 

Cabinet - Tuesday 29 January 2013 
 

 
5. That council is concerned that the government’s housing benefit cap will further 

social segregation in the borough and agrees with the comments of Simon Hughes 
MP when he told the BBC in January “As it currently stands, the benefits cap will 
break up families…there are bottom lines in politics and that one is making sure that 
those with least finances and the most mouths to feed, and the most needy are 
protected.”  However it regrets that only five months later Simon Hughes ignored his 
own warning and voted to cap housing benefit for families in Southwark. 

 
6. That council welcomes Southwark Council’s plans to build more council homes, 

which has been made possible by the council’s decision to accept "in lieu" payments 
from developers rather than requiring them to deliver on-site "affordable housing" 
where that "affordable housing" is anything but affordable. It is perplexed that the 
Liberal Democrats claim to support Labour’s plan to deliver 1000 new council homes 
but do not support the proposed means of delivering them and would encourage 
Southwark Liberal Democrats to explain how they would pay for new council homes. 

 
7. That council notes and regrets that Simon Hughes MP recently voted to allow 

developers to deliver 0% affordable housing on new developments. Council 
therefore calls on cabinet to write to the government and call on them to drop the 
proposal in the Growth and Infrastructure Bill that lets developers wriggle out of their 
affordable housing requirements. 

 

22. POLICY AND RESOURCES STRATEGY 2013/14 - 2015/16: REVENUE BUDGET  
 

 This item had not been circulated five clear days in advance of the meeting.  The chair 
agreed to accept the item as urgent as the council is committed to publishing budget 
proposals at the earliest possible opportunity to ensure they are available to the public for 
comments and questions.  Under the council’s constitution there is a requirement for the 
overview and scrutiny committee to review and challenge budget proposals.  Presenting 
the report to this cabinet meeting gives the opportunity for debate prior to presentation of 
final budget figures at council assembly on 27 February 2013. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
1. That it be noted that the Autumn Statement was published on 5 December 2012 with 

details of the provisional settlement for local government for 2013/14 and 2014/15 
received on 20 December 2012. 

 
2. That the initial analysis of the implications for the council of the Autumn Statement 

and the provisional settlement be noted. 
 
3. That the new funding arrangements for local government be noted, particularly the 

arrangements for the localisation of business rates and the risks and opportunities 
that this creates. 

 
4. That the response to the provisional statement made to the Department for 

Communities & Local Government (DCLG) by the cabinet member for finance, 
resources and community safety, including specific references to the timing of the 
settlement and related information be noted. 

10



11 
 
 

Cabinet - Tuesday 29 January 2013 
 

 
5. That the loss of Early Intervention Grant (EIG) of £6.1m in 2013/14 and a further 

provisional loss of £918k in 2014/15 be noted. 
 

6. That the 2013/14 budget proposals contained within the report to achieve a 
balanced budget for consideration by cabinet with particular reference to the notional 
2013/14 budget approved by council assembly in February 2011 be noted. 

 
7. That the strategic director of finance and corporate services prepare a further report 

setting out a balanced budget for 2013/14 for approval by cabinet on 12 February 
2013 for recommendation to council assembly on 27 February 2013, including: 

 
• the intention to freeze Council Tax at current levels and to accept the 

government’s freeze grant arising from this decision. 
 
• the commitment to new growth and commitments of £11.8m per annum, 

including new commitments to support welfare provision of approximately 
£3.5m, in addition to the creation of a welfare hardship fund (as in paragraph 
8). 

 
• the target to save approximately £24.9m per annum arising from efficiencies, 

income generation and other savings. 
 
• the provision of contributions from council balances of £6.7m in consideration 

of the need to make best use of these balances during a period of significant 
reductions in government funding. 

 
• the inclusion of ring fenced Public Health funding consistent with the 

announcement by DCLG for the council and note that this function will be 
included within the council budget statements moving forward. 

 
• the transfer from the Department of Works and Pensions of Social Grant 

funding for small grants, crisis loans and administration and the intention to 
allocate this grant in full to support a council scheme that will be developed to 
support the most vulnerable residents in Southwark. 

 
8. That the setting aside from balances and reserves the specific sum of £800k in 

2013/14 created by the proceeds generated as a consequence of Council Tax 
reforms approved by council assembly for the purposes of a Welfare Hardship Fund 
be noted. 

 
9. That the strategic director of finance and corporate services and strategic director of 

housing and community services make recommendations on how the Welfare 
Hardship Fund may be managed and administered to target the most vulnerable 
residents and groups in Southwark. 

 
10. That it be noted that performance reports are being prepared for both the Youth and 

Community Restoration Funds and the commitment that will be made to the Youth 
Fund for a further three years to 2016/17 also be noted. 

 

11



12 
 
 

Cabinet - Tuesday 29 January 2013 
 

11. That the provisional settlement for 2014/15 be noted and the strategic director of 
finance and corporate services prepare detailed budget options for consideration by 
cabinet in the spring of 2013 for wider consultation with residents and other 
stakeholders. 

 

 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
It was moved, seconded and 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business 
on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
category 3 of paragraph 10.4 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of the 
Southwark Constitution. 
 
The following is a summary of the closed part of the meeting. 
 

23. MINUTES  
 

 The closed minutes of the meeting held on 11 December 2012 were approved as a correct 
record and signed by the chair. 
 

24. RELOCATION OF CROSSWAY CHURCH: NEW KENT ROAD TO HAMPTON STREET  
 

 The cabinet considered the closed information relating to this item.  See item 18 for 
decision. 
 

25. DISPOSAL OF CAR POUND AT MANDELA WAY, LONDON SE1  
 

 This item was withdrawn. 
 

26. DISPOSAL OF 161 DENMARK HILL, LONDON SE5 8EF  
 

 The cabinet considered the closed information relating to this item.  See item 20 for 
decision. 
 

 The meeting ended at 6.13pm. 
 
 
 CHAIR:  
 
 
 DATED:  
 
 

12



13 
 
 

Cabinet - Tuesday 29 January 2013 
 

 DEADLINE FOR NOTIFICATION OF CALL-IN UNDER SECTION 21 OF THE 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PROCEDURE RULES IS MIDNIGHT, WEDNESDAY 6 
FEBRUARY 2013. 
 
THE ABOVE DECISIONS WILL NOT BE IMPLEMENTABLE UNTIL AFTER THAT 
DATE.  SHOULD A DECISION OF THE CABINET BE CALLED-IN FOR SCRUTINY, 
THEN THE RELEVANT DECISION WILL BE HELD IN ABEYANCE PENDING THE 
OUTCOME OF SCRUTINY CONSIDERATION. 
 

 
 

13



       
 

Item No.  
8. 

 

Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
12 February 2013 
 

Meeting Name: 
Cabinet 
 

Report title: 
 

Policy and Resources 2013/14 to 2015/16  

Ward(s) or groups 
affected: 

All 

Cabinet Member: 
 

Councillor Richard Livingstone, Finance Resources and 
Community Safety 
 

 
 
FOREWORD – COUNCILLOR RICHARD LIVINGSTONE, FINANCE, RESOURCES 
AND COMMUNITY SAFETY 
 
This is the third budget in a row where government has cut significantly the support it 
gives to Southwark Council: an unprecedented pressure on this borough's finances.  In 
particular, the Early Intervention Grant, that supports some of our most vulnerable 
children, has been cut by 30% this year.  More concerning still is the £24.5m cut overall in 
our spending power indicated by government for 2014/15. 
 
There are also new funding pressures to address this year.  We have had a significant 
increase during the year on how much we have needed to spend on Special Guardianship 
Orders for children.  We are having to replace funding cut by government for community 
safety programmes to protect our residents from violent crime.  We need to address a 
shortfall in our pension fund.  We will need to pick up the Youth Justice Board's tab for 
young people placed in secure accommodation.  The government's welfare reforms will 
add a £1.2m bill to our temporary accommodation costs. 
 
We are also putting aside money for a 1% increase in pay for our staff. 
 
Despite this, the budget put forward is delivering on this council's promises.  If agreed, it 
will ensure that we are able to pay those who work for Southwark, including people that 
work for our contractors, the London Living Wage.  Every child at a Southwark primary 
school will be eligible for a free, healthy school meal from September.  We will continue to 
support young people in going to college, sixth form, university or training through our 
Youth Fund.  We will spend more on the maintenance of highways and fund an improved 
CCTV service to keep our residents safe.  We will be doubling the money each ward 
receives for the Cleaner Greener Safer revenue fund we introduced last year. 
 
The 2013/14 budget process has been made more complicated by government's late 
notification of its funding settlement with us for the year: we would normally expect to 
receive this in early November but had to wait until 20 December.  Significant changes to 
local authority funding arrangements have also made the job of setting a budget more 
complex this year. 
 

Agenda Item 8
14



       
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That cabinet:  
 
1. Note that the Autumn Statement was published on 5 December 2012 with details of 

the provisional settlement for local government for 2013/14 and 2014/15 received by 
the council on 20 December 2012.  

 
2. Note the analysis of the implications for the council of the Autumn Statement and the 

provisional settlement and that the final settlement is not now due until 13 February 
2013. 

 
3. Note the new funding arrangements for local government and particularly the 

arrangements for the localisation of business rates and the risks and opportunities 
that this creates for the council. 

 
4. Note the response to the provisional statement made to the Department for 

Communities & Local Government (DCLG) by the Cabinet Member for Finance, 
Resources and Community Safety, including specific references to the timing of the 
release of the settlement and related information. 

 
5. Note that the government has announced a spending review for spring 2013 and the 

potential for further changes to the 2014/15 provisional settlement. 
 
6. Note the loss to the council of Early Intervention Grant (EIG) of £6.1m in 2013/14 

and a further provisional loss of £918k in 2014/15. 
 

7. Note the 2013/14 budget proposals contained within this report to achieve a 
balanced budget for consideration by cabinet with particular reference to the notional 
2013/14 budget approved by Council Assembly in February 2011. 

 
8. Note that the balanced for 2013/14 for recommendation to Council Assembly on 27 

February 2013, includes: 
 

• the intention to freeze Council Tax at current levels and to accept the 
government’s freeze grant arising from this decision. 

 
• the commitment to new growth and commitments of £11.8m per annum, 

including new commitments to support welfare provision of approximately 
£3.5m, in addition to the creation of a welfare hardship fund (as in paragraph 
9). 

 
• the target to save approximately £24.9m per annum arising from efficiencies, 

income generation and other savings. 
 
• the provision of contributions from council balances of £6.7m in consideration 

of the need to make best use of these balances during a period of significant 
reductions in government funding. 

 
• the inclusion of ring fenced Public Health funding consistent with the 

15



       
 

announcement by DCLG for the council and note that this function will be 
included within the council budget statements moving forward. 

 
• the transfer from the Department of Works and Pensions of Social Grant 

funding for small grants, crisis loans and administration and the intention to 
allocate this grant in full to support a council scheme that will be developed to 
support the most vulnerable residents in Southwark. 

 
9. Note the setting aside from balances and reserves the specific sum of £800k in 

2013/14 created by the proceeds generated as a consequence of Council Tax 
reforms approved by Council Assembly for the purposes of a Welfare Hardship 
Fund. 

 
10. Request that the Strategic Director of Finance and Corporate Services and Strategic 

Director of Housing and Community Services make recommendations on how the 
Welfare Hardship Fund may be managed and administered to target the most 
vulnerable residents and groups in Southwark. 

 
11. Note the progress report for both the Youth and Community Restoration Funds and 

confirm the commitment to provide resources for the Youth Fund for a further three 
years to 2016/17. 

 
12. Request that the Strategic Director of Finance and Corporate Services set aside 

provision from earmarked reserves of up to £1m for the Business Support Fund to 
be allocated over a period of up to three years and the Director of Corporate 
Strategy be asked to draw up appropriate criteria for the fund 

 
13. Note the provisional settlement for 2014/15 and request that the Strategic Director of 

Finance and Corporate Services prepare detailed budget options for consideration 
by cabinet in the spring of 2013 for wider consultation with residents and other 
stakeholders. 

 
14. Note that the recommendations from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee of 28 

January 2013 will be circulated separately. 
 
15. Agree the proposals in this report for a balanced budget based on a nil council tax 

increase for 2013/14 for recommendation to Council Assembly on 27 February 
2013.  Budget schedules are set out in Appendices A-E. 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
16. During 2010 and in response especially to the global and national economic climate, 

the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced significant reductions in public sector 
spending over the next three years. In line with this spending review, a two year 
grant settlement for local government was announced in December 2010. This gave 
details of the extent of reductions in funding for 2011/12 and 2012/13. 

 
17. The government has announced a spending review 2013 before summer recess 

with potential further changes for 2014/15. This review is likely to have a similar 
direction of travel to CSR10, and will probably not extend beyond 2015/16. 

 

16



       
 

18. It was also confirmed that the settlement for 2013/14 would be based upon a new 
funding regime including the localisation of business rates, to be finalised in 2012 
following full consultation. 

 
19. At that time, government also confirmed the end of a number of streams of specific 

grant funding (e.g. Working Neighbourhoods Fund) and the absorption of a number 
of other specific funding streams within general grant (e.g. supporting people grant).  

 
20. In the light of these announcements and following a period of consultation and 

agreement by cabinet, the council prepared a notional three year budget, ending in 
2013/14, three years being the duration of the spending review. This notional three 
year budget was approved by Council Assembly in February 2011 and included 
indicative budgets for 2012/13 and 2013/14.  In February 2012, Council Assembly 
approved an updated budget for 2012/13, based upon the notional targets set the 
previous year.  

 
21. In the context of both reductions in government funding and a range of demand 

pressures on council services, both 2011/12 and 2012/13 budgets represented a 
substantial delivery challenge to the council.  Savings of approximately £34m per 
annum were agreed by Council Assembly in February 2011 for 2011/12 and a 
further £28m in February 2012 for 2012/13.. These savings were achieved in 
2011/12 and are generally on target for 2012/13. Council tax has been frozen over 
the same period and the council has received Council Tax freeze grant as a 
consequence. 

 
22. The achievement of these budget plans places the council in a sound position to 

address further budget pressures in 2013/14 and beyond.  The budget process for 
2013/14 will build on that platform and use the indicative budget set in February 
2011 as a base point, but with additional understanding of future funding now 
provided within the government’s provisional settlement for 2013/14. 

 
23. The council received details of the provisional settlement on 20 December 2012. 

The settlement also included details of funding for 2014/15. 
 
24. Given the timing of the settlement, this report concentrates on a number of 

proposals for budget options to achieve a balanced budget in 2013/14. Further time 
will be necessary to assess alternative budget options for 2014/15 in the context of 
reduced spending power of £21.4m over 2013/14 as reported by DCLG and in 
consideration of the actual impact of the localisation of business rates on the 
council’s finances.  

 
25. However, the report does outline a process to be followed to prepare budget options 

for 2014/15 for consultation with residents and stakeholders through this year and in 
advance of Council Assembly in February 2014. 

 
26. On 29 January 2013 the cabinet considered the Policy and resources Strategy 

2013/14-2015/16: revenue budget which included draft proposals and officer 
recommendations on the budget for 2012/13.  That report contained background 
information and reviewed the effect of detailed information issued by government on 
20 December 2012 regarding the provisional local government settlement and its 
effect on Southwark’s general fund budget. 

17



       
 

 
27. The Policy and Resources Strategy 2013/14-2015/16 has been prepared in line with 

the delivery of the council plan and the fairer future vision. 
 
28. The purpose of this report is to set out the headline content of the budget for 

2013/14, which represents the final year of a three year budget programme as per 
the reports to Council Assembly on 22 February 2011, and to seek formal approval 
of the recommendations in respect of the budget as set out in paragraphs 1 to 15. 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT FUNDING  
 
29. On 20 November 2012 cabinet received the Policy and Resources Strategy 2013/14 

- 2015/16 scene setting report. This provided in particular an indication of the 
changes and risks to council funding in 2013/14.   

 
30. This report included an outline of some fundamental changes and issues which 

would affect the resources available to the council within the provisional settlement 
for 2013/14 and beyond, including : 

 
• Changes to the local government financing system, including localisation of 

business rates 
• Changes to formula funding that affects the calculation of the council’s baseline 

spending 
• Changes to the treatment of specific grants, such as the Early Intervention Grant 

(EIG) 
• Welfare reform including localisation of Council Tax benefit and the introduction 

of Universal Credit 
• Council Tax reform including changes to exemptions and discounts such as that 

for second homes 
• Council Tax freeze grant for 2013/14 
• The impact of the census and mid year population estimates. 

 
31. On 5 December 2012, the Chancellor made his Autumn Statement setting out 

additional savings for local government of around 2% in 2014/15, over and above 
those funding reductions announced since December 2010. 

 
32. On 19 December 2012, the government announced the provisional settlement for 

2013/14 and 2014/15. These figures were published by DCLG on 20 December 
2012, although some information was not available until after this time. 

 
33. On 15 January 2013, both London Councils and the Cabinet Member for Finance, 

Resources and Community Safety responded to DCLG on issues relating to the 
provisional statement. Both responses referred specifically to the late timing of the 
settlement not least given the complexity of the changes and the limited amount of 
data and analysis to support the settlement including the detail underlying changes 
in spending power. 

 
 
 
 

18



       
 

Revenue spending power  
 
34. As part of the 2013/14 finance settlement the government announced for all councils 

reductions in their spending power when compared to the previous year. According 
to DCLG analysis, Southwark have incurred a £4.7m reduction (1.3%). This 
compares with a reduction for Inner London of £42.9m (1.2%) and £99.9m (1.2%) 
for all London authorities. At a national level the reduction is £923.4m (1.7%). 

 
35. The table below shows the spending power for Southwark, London and England 

since 2011/12, it can be seen that over the four year period Southwark and London 
have borne a disproportionate share of the reductions. 

 
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15  
£m % £m % £m % £m % 

Southwark 33.7 8.4 16.9 4.6 4.7 1.3 21.4 5.9 
Inner London 303.3 7.8 175.1 4.9 42.9 1.2 206.4 5.9 
London 514.8 5.9 325.3 4.0 99.9 1.2 398.7 4.9 
England 2,578.5 4.7 1,742.9 3.3 923.4 1.7 1,966.8 3.8 

 
36. The analysis of movements from 2012/13 to 2013/14 is extremely complex as new 

funding arrangements are introduced. In total, reductions for 2013/14 are as 
predicted in February 2011 and in many respects as expected from the 2010 
spending review which was only for two years. The major variation relates to the 
significant loss of EIG funding in 2013/14. Furthermore, although the Department of 
Health reablement funding is included as an element which increases spending 
power it is ring-fenced and needs approval from the health sector. 

 
37. These reductions for Southwark follow on from the loss of £33.7m (8.4%) in 2011/12 

and £16.7m (4.6%) in 2012/13. For all years, the assessment is in cash terms and 
takes no account of inflation, albeit that pay awards have been frozen through the 
period. The real terms analysis of these reductions in spending power would clearly 
worsen the overall loss. 

 
38. The government have also published initial spending power reductions for 2014/15. 

For Southwark this reduction was shown as £21.4m (5.9%). The detailed analysis 
behind these figures has not yet been made available by DCLG. 

 
39. However, it is clear that Council Tax Benefit funding will be included within general 

grant in 2014/15 and beyond in line with the general move to incorporate previously 
specific grants within general grant (e.g. previous Council Tax Freeze Grant). While 
initial guidance from government has indicated that Council Tax Funding Grant is 
protected at 2013/14 levels, the de-ring fencing of the general grant indicates that 
protection of any element will result in proportionately greater pressures on other 
Council services. 

 
Start-up funding assessments and damping 

40. The government had previously announced that for 2013/14, no local authority 
would be better or worse off than they would have been under the current formula 
grant system. To ensure that local authorities have a stable starting point at the 

19



       
 

outset of the new funding business rates retention scheme the government has 
calculated a start up allocation based on 2012/13 formula and current data. 

 
41. For 2013/14 and 2014/15, each council has been assigned a Start-Up Funding 

Assessment. This combines formula funding (what formula grant would have been 
had it continued) and rolled-in grants (previously specific grants now deringfenced 
and included in the single assessment).  

 
42. The formula funding element has been calculated on a similar basis to formula grant 

in 2012/13. This calculation has been adjusted for technical changes that were part 
of the July 2012 consultation on the data components.  

 
43. Among other issues, adjustments arising from technical changes may have 

implications from census and revised mid year estimates of population that may 
impact on future needs assessments and damping. Southwark incurred a net 
reduction in mid year estimates following on from the census and imputation of 
population numbers. The council remains in discussion with the Office for national 
Statistics (ONS) on this matter. 

 
44. As with previous settlements, funding will be subject to damping, applied in bands.   
 
45. Grant dependency is defined as the proportion of each council’s budget requirement 

that was funded through the 2010/11 formula grant.  The floor level for the bands in 
the damping group with education and social services responsibilities is shown 
below: 

  
Floor band Social 

Services 
authorities 

Shire 
district 
councils 

Fire & 
rescue 

authorities 

No. of 
London 
boroughs 

Band 1 (most 
dependent) 

(2.70%) (5.40%) (8.70%) 17 

Band 2 (4.70%) (7.40%) (9.20%) 3 
Band 3 (6.70%) (9.40%) (11.70%) 9 
Band 4 (least 
dependent) 

(8.70%) (11.40%)   4 

 

46. Southwark is a Band 1 authority in that it is one of those councils most dependent on 
start up funding, with 82% of the council’s net budget funded through the start up 
funding.  Nationally, there are 38 single-tier councils in this band, 17 of which are in 
London.  In London, the figures suggest there will be 16 floor authorities.  The floors 
are self-financing.  This means that those councils within a particular band above the 
floor will have the resources from their formula grant scaled back.  The resources 
made available are then used to bring the councils which are below the floor up to 
their ‘band’ levels. 

 
47. To enable the government to begin the new funding regime with local authorities 

starting with the same settlement than they would have received through current 
funding mechanism, each authorities allocation for 2013/14 was calculated. 

 

20



       
 

48. For Southwark, the government’s calculation of start up funding comprises of the 
following: 

 

 

2013/14 
Start up 
Funding 

2014/15 
Indicative 
Funding 

  £m £m 
     
Grants Rolled In Using Tailored Distributions 18.43  
Relative Needs Amount 164.13  
Relative Resource Amount (32.74)  
Central Allocation 41.83  
Floor Damping 19.16  
Central Education Functions within LACSEG (5.24)  
Formula Funding  205.57 200.38 
Add Grants rolled in   

2011/12 Council Tax Freeze Compensation 2.26 2.26 
Council Tax Support Funding 18.57 - 
Early Intervention Funding 14.42 13.50 
Homelessness Prevention Funding 1.54 1.54 
Lead Local Flood Authority Funding 0.18 0.18 
Learning Disability and Health Reform Funding 10.83 11.10 

Total Grants rolled in 47.80 28.58 
Total Start Up Funding  253.37 228.96 

 
49. For the transition to the business rates retention system, the government have 

calculated for each local authority a baseline funding level. For Southwark this is 
£101.222m.  

 
50. Each local authority a business rates base line is also calculated, for Southwark this 

is 96.572b representing 0.0089% (rounded) of a national retained shared total of 
£10.899bn. 40% of Southwark’s baseline amount is passed on to the GLA, leaving 
£57.945m, see below. 

 

 
51. This figure is deducted from the baseline funding to determine the top-up or tariff, 

Southwark will receive a top-up of £43.279m 
 
52. The baseline funding of £101.222m is then deducted from the start up funding 

£253.373m to determine the amount of revenue support grant, for Southwark this 
will be £152.152m. the total of each of the above element of the retained business 

 2013/14 
£m 

2014/15 
£ 

Net forecast rate yield  193.14 199.06 
Less: amount to be paid to central government (50%) (96.57) (99.53) 
Business rate baseline 96.57 99.53 

Less amount to be passed on to the GLA (40% of 
business rates baseline, 20% of net rate yield) 

(38.63) (39.81) 

RBR income for Southwark Council (30%) 57.94 59.72 

21



       
 

rates system matches the start up funding as can be seen below. For 2014/15 the 
government have assumed a 3.0% inflation rate for the uplift of the baseline funding 
amount. 

 
  2013/14 

£m 
2014/15 
£m 

Change 
% 

Retained Business Rates (RBR)  Variable 57.94 59.72 3.0% 
RBR top up from government Fixed 43.28 44.61 3.0% 
Baseline funding level  101.22 104.33 3.0% 
Revenue Support Grant (RSG) Fixed 152.15 124.63 (18.1%) 
Total Funding  253.37 228.96 (9.6%) 

 
53. Actual retained business rates income for 2013/14 will be dependent on the 

assessed rateable values, effect of appeals and collection rates.  An NNDR1 return 
to estimate this was submitted by the council to DCLG. The net rate yield from the 
NNDR1 report is then adjusted to take account of the central government (50%) and 
Greater London Authority (GLA) share (20%): 

 
54. As for any new scheme of this material significance, there is much uncertainty over 

the operation of the business rate retention scheme. This presents significant risk to 
the council but also some opportunity in the event of an increase in business rate 
yield that surpasses government targets. Any uncollected business rates, or 
unfavourable variation from government estimates of rateable values, will impact 
directly on council resource available and therefore on resources available to fund 
and to provide services.  

 
55. Although the business rates retention scheme will include a safety net at 7.5% to 

protect local authorities from significant reductions in business rates, this means that 
shortfalls from 0-7.5% will not be protected and will have to be borne by the local 
authority.  It would be possible for a local authority to lose just below 7.5% for a 
number of years and never receive any safety net payment. In addition, the council 
has to estimate for the impact of appeals, of which there are 1,400 outstanding at 
present.  The government based business rates estimates on a two year average, 
rather than five years as initially proposed, and this presents a more buoyant figure 
for Southwark than would otherwise have been the case.  Business rates are clearly 
very significantly influenced by the overall economic climate. 

 
56. The Strategic Director of Finance and Corporate Services and acting as S151 

Officer will be earmarking part of the Financial Risk Reserve to help protect the 
council from the risks and variations inherent in the new funding system and 
especially risks underlying business rate retention.  

 
2012/13 revenue monitoring position 
 
57. The detailed revenue monitoring as at quarter 3 is set out in a report on this agenda.  

It is important to consider these pressures as part of the budget setting process 
moving forward. 

 
 
 

22



       
 

Overview and scrutiny committee recommendations 
 
58. On 28 January 2013 the Overview and Scrutiny committee of the council met to 

consider the draft revenue budget as set out in the report to cabinet on 29 January 
2013.  The committee held discussions with each cabinet member on the draft 
budget proposals.  The committee was to meet on 4 February 2013 to make a 
number of recommendations for the cabinet to consider as part of budget setting 
and implementation.  These will be circulated at the cabinet meeting. 

 
2013/14 PROPOSED BUDGET 
 
59. When setting the revenue budget the S151 officer is required under section 43(4) of 

the Local Government Finance Act 1992 on behalf of their local authorities, to 
assess the “revenue budget requirement” for the forthcoming financial year.  The 
revenue budget requirement is a statutory definition of expenditure to be met from all 
sources including government grant, council tax income and other sources.  The 
current estimates are for a revenue budget requirement of £334.0m in 2013/14. 

 
2012/13 budget and proposed budget for 2013/14  
 
  2012/13 2013/14  

  £m £m 
      
Revised previous year budget 323.0 308.2 
Inflation     
Pay award: 0% in 2012/13, now 1% for 2013/14 assumed 
in line with 2011 Autumn statement. 

0 1.6 

Inflation based on contractual commitments (linked to 
industry specific rates) 

3.6 2.4 

      
Commitments, Savings & Growth 1     

Commitments and Growth 10.8 11.7 

Efficiencies and improved use of resources -17.2 -18.6 

Income generation -1.0 -0.2 

Savings impacting on service delivery  -10.1 -6.1 

      
Other adjustments     
Reversal of one-off items from 2012/13   -2.0 

Net movement of council tax freeze grant  -0.1 1.4 

Reduced NHS funding to support social care and benefit 
health 

0.2   

Social fund   -1.7 

Fall out of contribution from balances 3.4 4.4 

Total Budget (before rolled in grants) 312.6 301.1 

Rolled in specific grants   32.9 

Total Budget  312.6 334.0 

23



       
 

  2012/13 2013/14  

  £m £m 
  2012/13 2013/14  
  £m £m 
Funded by     
Government Grants 2     

Formula grant -217.1 -234.1 
Council tax support grant 0.0 -18.6 
Net Public Health Funding (Ringfenced) 0.0 0.0 
      
Council Tax     
Council tax 3 -91.1 -74.3 

Collection fund surplus 0.0 -0.9 
Funding available -308.2 -327.9 
Funding shortfall 4.4 6.1 
Contributions from balances -4.4 -6.1 
      

Balance 0 0 
 

Note 1 - As detailed in the Budget Setting report appendices (Council Assembly 22 February 2011) 
Note 2 - 2013/14 specific grants are reduced by £6.1m to reflect the loss of Early Intervention Grant 
Note 3 - Revised 2013/14 takes account of reduced tax base due to discounts for council tax 
support, funded through council tax relief grant. This does not include the any potential increase in 
collection from changes to local discounts. 

 
Inflation and pay award 
 
60. Current estimates include 1% for the 2013/14 pay award at £1.6m, as outlined in the 

November 2012 scene setting report, subject to national agreements. 
 
61. No provision has been made for general inflation in 2013/14 and budgets are 

considered to be cash limited in line with reduced government funding and the 
proposal to freeze council tax. The current estimates do include alternative inflation 
in respect primarily of contractual commitments at £2.4m for 2013/14, again as set 
out in the November report. 

 
Use of balances and contingency 
 
62. Current in order to fully fund the proposed budget a contribution of £6.1m will be 

required from balances. This compares with £4.4m in 2012/13. The Strategic 
Director of Finance and Corporate Services recognises and accepts  that it is 
necessary to make some prudent use of balances through the period of introduction 
of new funding arrangements for local government and the general cutbacks in 
public expenditure. He recognises also that this expedient can only be short term 
and that year on year the council target must be to remove any dependency on 
reserves and balances order to reconcile resources with spending needs.  

 

24



       
 

63. The council has been fortunate, like many other local authorities, that reserves and 
balances have been maintained throughout what has been a very challenging two 
years. This makes prudent access to these resources more appropriate, especially 
when considering the retention of a reasonable, albeit lower, level of contingency 
within the base budget. 

 
64. For 2013/14, contingency will reduce by £500k to £5m. This is less than half of the 

indicative estimate (£12.5m) from February 2011 and reflects the reduction in risk 
following the achievement of 2011/12 and 2012/13 budget targets and the allocation 
of contingency to offset some of the impacts in government funding. 

 
Commitments and growth 
 
65. The proposed budget for 2013/14 will fund new commitments and growth of £11.6m. 

These are detailed in Appendix A and include £1.2m for Housing as a result of 
welfare reforms and £1.65m for the transfer of Social Fund responsibilities from the 
Department of Work & Pensions to the council. The proposals also include a further 
£1m to support the council’s commitment to London Living Wages in contracts as 
they are awarded or extended.  

 
66. The budget also includes provision for £2.3m, including £800k following the 

cessation of Youth Justice Board funding to meet the costs of placing children 
remanded to local authority secure accommodation where this has been ordered by 
the court. Childrens Services also require an additional £600k to meet the increasing 
costs of the council's obligations under the Childrens Act, as a result of welfare 
reforms.  

 
Savings, efficiencies and income generation 
 
67. Proposed efficiencies £18.6m and savings of £6.1m are detailed in Appendices B 

and D and include the initial benefits arising from the purchase of the council’s head 
offices at Tooley Street, which is expected to deliver additional savings as reported 
in December 2012 cabinet reports.   

 
68. There are significant savings proposed in Children’s Services as a result of the 

£6.1m loss of Early Intervention Grant, which are detailed later in this report. 
 
Early intervention grant 
 
69. Early Intervention Grant (EIG) was paid to councils in 2011/12 and 2012/13 as a 

separate un-ringfenced grant. The EIG was paid at 32% less than the combination 
of previous grants it replaced (Area Based Grants and Surestart Grants). 

 
70. In 2012/13 Southwark’s EIG is £20.5m and funds core, high priority Children’s 

Services including Children’s Centres, provision of support to get young people in 
education, employment and training, early intervention services, statutory specialist 
services and voluntary sector commissioning. The EIG also includes funding for the 
Two Year Old pilot offer which facilitates vulnerable families accessing free part-time 
early education places. This grant is un-ringfenced and the DfE guidance states that 
this grant can be used flexibly to meet local priorities. 

 

25



       
 

71. For the 2013/14 settlement, EIG has merged into the council’s formula grant.  As it 
falls into formula grant, government has advised that the allocation to the council 
reduces by £6.1m or 29.6%, arising from top slicing of the national provision and the 
transfer of funding for two year olds into the ring-fenced Dedicated Schools Grant in 
excess of the current spend on two year placements.   

 
Council tax freeze grant for 2013/14 
 
72. As part of the 2011/12 local government grant settlement the government 

announced the council tax freeze grant, which was given to all authorities which set 
a zero percent increase in council tax, for the equivalent of a 2.5% increase in 
council tax. Southwark received £2.2m. This grant will be paid throughout the four 
years of the spending review, although it has now been subsumed into formula 
grant, for which itemised detail is not easily available. 

 
73. In February 2011, council assembly agreed an indicative budget for 2012/13 and 

2013/14 with provisional council tax increases of 2.5% in each year.  
 
74. In October 2011 the government announced a new council tax freeze grant for 

2012/13 only, for those authorities who agree to set a zero percent council tax 
increase.  The grant is equivalent to a 2.5% increase in council tax (some £2.3m). 
This grant was for one year only and will cease in 2013/14.  In any event Council 
Tax in 2012/13 remained frozen. 

 
75. On 8 October 2012 the government announced that it would be making £228m 

available to English councils to fund a council tax freeze in 2013/14, equivalent to a 
1% increase in council tax. For Southwark this grant will be £929k.  The amount of 
council tax freeze grant takes account of the reduced yield caused by the 
introduction of a discount to administer council tax support. Local authorities taking 
this grant will also receive the same amount in 2014/15 to avoid a ‘cliff edge’.  

 
76. This report assumes that there will be a further Council Tax freeze in 2013/14 and 

that the freeze grant will be accepted by the council. While the freezing of Council 
Tax remains positive for those paying, when set against the loss of equivalent grants 
it creates a financial shortfall in resources once those grants cease or become 
absorbed as part of a generally declining general grant. 

 
Public health grant 
 
77. The Health and Social Care Bill proposed that responsibility for public health will 

transfer from the NHS to local government on 1 April 2013. This obtained royal 
assent on 27 March 2012. 

 
78. Local authorities will receive a ring fenced grant for public health to meet the cost of 

these new responsibilities, however it is unclear whether the resources allocated to 
fund these new responsibilities will be sufficient to meet the costs. London Councils 
have been lobbying on this issue, and a report was presented to London Councils 
Leaders Committee on 16  October 2012. 

 
79. The proposed budget includes provision of £21.8m as a result of the transfer of 

responsibility for Public Health to the council. It is assumed and expected that all 

26



       
 

costs of the new service will be met from within the ring fenced public health grant 
recently confirmed by government. 

 
80. A major risk remains that the public health targets have yet to be announced in full. 

Any unfunded pressures arising from this will become apparent during 2013/14 
revenue monitoring. 

 
Other core grants 
 
81. The 2011/12 local government settlement heralded a major change in grant funding. 

From a position of some £103.5m in specific grants in 2010/11, this fell to £38.5m in 
2011/12. Some grants transferred into formula grant and DSG, some formed the 
new core grants and others ceased to exist.   

 
82. In 2012/13 the council received £37.5m of core grant funding. Government 

proposals for 2013/14 will move a further £27.5m into formula funding. 2012/13 and 
provisional 2013/14 core grants are shown below. 

 
2012/13 and Provisional 2013/14 Core Grants  
 

 2012/13 2012/13 
value of 
grants 
rolling 
in 

(Note 1) 

Grants 
included 

in 
2013/14 
start up 
funding 
(Note 2) 

2013/14 
Specific 
Grants 

Total 
2013/14 
Funding 

Change in funding 

 £m £m £m £m £m £m % 

Early Intervention 
Grant 

20.48 20.48 14.42 0.00 14.42 (6.06) (29.6%) 

Learning Disabilities 
and Health Reform 
Grant 

10.57 10.57 10.83 0.00 10.83 0.26 2.5% 

Homelessness Grant 
(Note 3) 

1.72 1.72 1.54 0.00 1.54 (0.18) (10.5%) 

Lead Local Flood 
Authority Grant  
(Note 3) 

0.44 0.18 0.18 0.26 0.44 0.00 (0.0%) 

Housing and Council 
Tax Benefit Subsidy 
Administration grant 

4.24 0.00 0.00 3.75 3.75 (0.49) (11.6%) 

Total 37.45 32.95 26.97 4.01 30.98 (6.47) (17.3%) 

 
Note 1 This is the 2012/13 value of current specific grants that will cease to exist in 2013/14, and will be 

transferred in to overall funding 
Note 2   This is the value of these grants as part of 2013/14 start up funding. 
Note 3:  These grants currently form part of the Local Services Support Grant (LSSG) 
  
 

Social fund  
 

27



       
 

83. As part of its welfare reforms the government are transferring some of the elements 
included in the social fund, currently administered by the Department of Work and 
Pensions (DWP) to local government.  

 
84. The current scheme contains Crisis Loans (for items, living expenses and 

alignments), Budgeting Loans and Community Care Grants. The new scheme has 
Crisis Loans (for items and alignments only) and Community Care Grants. 

 
85. Southwark will receive £1.65m (£1.36m programme funding and £288k for 

administration) in 2013/14. The administration element will reduce the following year 
to £264k, giving an overall 2014/15 allocation of £1.63m. 

 
86. Although the government does not want or expect local authorities to replicate the 

current scheme, it is their intention that funding should be concentrated on those 
facing greatest difficulty in managing their income. The council is undertaking an 
options appraisal around the social fund, to be considered by cabinet. 

 
Welfare hardship fund 
 
87. A welfare hardship fund of £800k is proposed to mitigate some of the impact of the 

benefits changes to protect the most vulnerable in the community. This fund will sit 
separately from the Social Fund. Subject to approval of the creation of this fund, the 
Strategic Directors of Finance and Corporate Services and Housing and  Community 
Services will present options for its use to cabinet in the coming months. 

 
Concessionary fares  
 
88. Concessionary fares is the name given to scheme for the London Freedom Pass 

which is issued to all older and disabled Londoners to give free travel on almost all 
public transport in London. The Freedom Pass scheme is administered by the 
organisation London Councils and costs are recharged to individual London 
boroughs on the basis of journeys travelled. 

 
89. In recent years there have been significant changes impacting on the cost of 

concessionary fares, changes in grant funding to London Councils and a phased 
transfer from passes issued to passes used has now resulted in a fairly stable base. 

 
90. The main element of this increase is inflation.  The largest operator charging London 

Councils is Transport for London (TfL), is currently increasing their charges by July 
2012 RPI + 1% (4.2%).  Provision for this increase is included in the budget options.  

 
91. The concessionary fares charge to London Boroughs for 2013/14 was discussed at 

London Councils’ Transport and Environment Committee on 13 December 2012, 
and the increase to Southwark in 2013/14 will be some £500k. This has been 
included in the budget figures. 

 
Superannuation fund contributions 
 
92. The actuarial review published in March 2011 identified the funding required over 

the period 2011/12 to 2013/14 to cover the pension fund deficit. 
 

28



       
 

93. To enable the deficit to be funded, additional contributions of £1m were made for 
2012/13.  This requirement will continue into 2013/14 and 2014/15 at £1.5m. The 
position will be revised when the next actuarial review is published in 2014. 

 
Youth fund and community restoration fund 
 
94. The Youth Fund was announced as part of the February 2011 budget setting 

process. It was established as a three year (2011/12-2013/14) programme 
established in response to rising numbers of young people claiming out of work 
benefits, increased university tuition fees and the withdrawal of the national 
Education Maintenance Allowance scheme.  It aims to help young people in 
Southwark improve their long term employment prospects. 

 
95. The Community Restoration Fund (CRF) was announced, as part of the February 

2012 budget setting process, in response to the civil unrest experienced in areas of 
Southwark in August 2011. It is a one off annual fund (2012/13) and aimed to 
restore community pride and deliver longer term solutions to support business 
growth and young people across the borough.  

 
96. Attached as Appendix F is a progress report on the delivery of the two funding 

streams to date. In noting progress and particularly given the need to offer 
assurance for those schemes within the Youth Fund that run beyond 2013/14, 
cabinet are asked to note the extension of the Fund for a further three year period. 

 
Business support fund 
 
97. In November 2012 the council agreed a new economic well-being strategy with four 

simple goals: to get more people into work; to attract new businesses and offer 
smarter support to those already here; to encourage thriving town centres; and to 
help residents to be able to look after their own finances (particularly as the welfare 
reform agenda in implemented). Having agreed the strategy, the council is now 
developing sustainable implementation plans for delivery. 

 
98. The council’s priority is to make Southwark a place where business wants to invest 

and to enable those businesses already here to thrive and prosper.  By doing so, 
this creates local employment opportunities for local residents. Much work is already 
in place, for example through the 2012/13 CRF. There is much still to be learned 
from these projects and activities. Appendix F sets out progress on delivery of the 
CRF. 

 
99. The council understands that local businesses continue to experience difficult times. 

Economic conditions across the country remain uncertain and Southwark business 
is not immune from these conditions. The council is therefore proposing to put in 
place a Business Support Fund to assist business through challenging times. The 
purpose of the fund is to create assistance to local business (both existing and new) 
and business networks to develop activities that help sustain and to stimulate local 
economic growth. 

 
100. The intended outcomes of the business support fund would be: 
 

• more innovative business growth opportunities across the borough; 

29



       
 

• a clear, well defined and common understanding of local business needs, 
including the barriers to business development and opportunities that exist or 
may be created; 

• business to business support to encourage a stronger business voice and role 
within the community; and 

• successful town centres and high streets, supported through better 
engagement between the council and local business networks. 

 
101. The council will be open to fresh thinking for the business support fund. The size 

and scale of activities will of course vary over time. The council will therefore be 
flexible on fund distribution, use and timing. Examples projects could include: 
encouraging new business networks to support local business innovation; 
investment to help encourage new or niche markets and services; making flexible 
use of land and property to grow and develop existing small and medium size 
businesses; and initiatives for giving local young people better access to 
opportunities from new and expanding businesses in the borough. At the same time 
the council will continue to review its decision-making processes so that they take 
full account of business needs, interests and opportunities. 

 
102. Following approval of the council's 2013/14 budget, the cabinet members for 

communities and economic well-being and finance, resources and community safety 
will begin the process of seeking ideas and views of local business. The Strategic 
Director of Finance and Corporate Services will be requested to set aside provision 
from earmarked reserves of up to £1m for this fund, to be allocated over a period of 
up to three years. The experience of and learning from projects currently being 
supported through the CRF  will be used to help determine the distribution of funds 
to achieve best value for money and fund objectives. The Director of Corporate 
Strategy  will be asked to draw up appropriate criteria for the fund. 

 
SERVICE BUDGETS 
 
103. Budget proposals are in line with local policy priorities as set out in the fairer future 

for all vision and Council Plan. The table below summarises the budgets for council 
service areas for 2012/13 and 2013/14. These are known as “control totals”. 

 
104. To enable like for like comparisons to be made between 2012/13 and 2013/14, 

2012/13 budgets have been restated for specific grants rolling into start up funding. 
 
 Table 5: Service area budgets for 2012/13 and 2013/14  
 

Service area 2012/13 
Budget 

2012/13 
Budget 

adjusted to 
allow 

comparison 
with 2013/14 

2013/14 
Budget  

  £m £m £m 

Children’s Services 85.0 105.5 102.3 
Adult Services (was Health & 
Community Services) 

107.6 118.1 112.0 

Chief Executive 18.8 18.8 18.5 

30



       
 

Service area 2012/13 
Budget 

2012/13 
Budget 

adjusted to 
allow 

comparison 
with 2013/14 

2013/14 
Budget  

  £m £m £m 

Environment & Leisure 70.1 70.1 69.4 
Finance & Corporate Services 46.2 46.2 44.5 
Housing and Community Services 40.3 

 
40.3 41.6 

Total Service Budgets 368.0 399.0 388.3 
Corporate Budgets (55.4) (53.4) (54.3) 
Total Budgets 312.6 345.6 334.0 

 
105. High level schedules of draft budget proposals for 2013/14 are attached as 

Appendices A – E  
 
CHILDREN’S & ADULTS SERVICES 
 
106. The Children’s and Adults department budget represents two thirds of the council’s 

total net revenue expenditure.  In 2013/14 the department is proposing savings of 
£15.39m against the previous year’s base budget, growth requests of £1.35m and 
further commitments of £3.10m. The department provides universal services as well 
as those targeted at more vulnerable families, children and adults delivered through 
four divisions; children’s social care, education, strategy and commissioning, and 
adult social care. 

 
107. The Children’s Social Care Division supports delivery of statutory social care 

functions, including protecting vulnerable children and those at risk of harm, 
providing services for looked after children, foster care, adoption, youth offending 
and children with disabilities.  

 
108. The Education Division supports the delivery of universal services, including early 

years (0-5 years), school improvement, admissions, after school play and youth 
services, alongside more specialist services for children and young people with 
additional needs such as SEN or those excluded from school. It is also responsible 
for the Post 16 phase of learning to ensure Southwark young people are engaged in 
employment or training, in school or with other providers.   

 
109. The Strategy and Commissioning Division provides data to support targeted service 

delivery, manages the multiple inspection processes, and commissions a range of 
placements and other services for vulnerable children and adults. In addition the 
division leads on specialist parenting services, compliance and departmental 
governance and project support for the free healthy school meal programme.   

 
110. The Adult Social Care Division provides support for the vulnerable adults in our 

community. These are frail older people, including those with dementia, disabled 
people of all ages, people with a learning disability and people with mental health 
problems. This includes residential and nursing home placements, services to allow 
people to maintain independence and support them living in their own homes, home 

31



       
 

care, day care, intermediate care, advocacy and support, equipment to aid daily life, 
transport and meals on wheels. People who are eligible for social care increasingly 
have personal budgets, including direct payments, where they self-direct the support 
they need to meet agreed outcomes.  

 
111. In delivering these savings we have sought to minimise the impact on statutory 

social care functions for the most vulnerable children, young people and adults and 
so maintain the council’s responsibility to keep vulnerable children and adults safe.  

 
112. The key drivers to achieving the reductions are to: 

• Maximise service effectiveness, drive down costs and ensure high quality, 
sustainable provision within the available remaining resources; 

• Protect front line services by reducing back office costs, flattening the 
management structure and increasing productivity; 

• Reshape our retained services around the council’s core statutory duties for 
education and social care; 

• Reduce subsidies to non-statutory, discretionary services; 
• Further improve commissioning and procurement to increase value for money; 
• Further reduce duplication in supplies and services and ensures we focus on 

priorities services to vulnerable groups. 
 
113. Further, the overall aim is to deliver a fairer future for older and disabled people by 

creating a sustainable system that continues to support the most vulnerable and 
deliver value for money. This requires a change in the way the council works across 
the whole system of adult social care. It will mean different relationships between the 
council and the community, where families and older and disabled people will be 
expected to do more for themselves, with less reliance on the council. It means 
moving to a model where older and disabled people can contribute and exercise 
greater control over their own lives, improving their health and well being. This will 
also mean containing growth in demand, focussing council support to the most 
vulnerable, providing services differently but always with an aim to maintain and 
improve quality.  

 
Children’s Social Care 
 

114. There are £1.25m of efficiency savings are planned to be made through 
• increasing use of direct payments for short breaks for families with Children 

with disabilities; 
• framework agreements in place to reduce costs of procurement of placements; 
• reducing agency fostering spend and increasing use of in house provision.   

 
115. In addition, £350k of savings are planned through the ongoing transformation of the 

Children’s Social Care teams in line Munro recommendations and the need to 
improve the service user experience by reducing the number of moves between 
teams, and social workers.  This is a highly regulated and inspected area of council 
activity, therefore, it is planned to minimise the impact on front line staff to ensure 
the council meets its statutory obligation to keep children safe.   

 

32



       
 

116. In 2013/14, two new growth bids have arisen:  £750k of growth is required to meet 
the costs of placement of young people on remand, resulting from the cessation of 
the Youth Justice Board contribution of two thirds of the costs.   

 
117. In addition, the council is obliged to support destitute people from abroad who are 

subject to immigration control and have no entitlement to welfare benefits, Home 
Office support for asylum seekers or public housing.  The number of families seeking 
this assistance of last resort has increased by more than half during 2012/13, 
resulting in a cost pressure of £600k.  These are in addition to the ongoing 
commitment of £125k for increased number of Special Guardianship Orders arising 
from our high volume of care proceedings.  

 
Education 
 

118. The significant decrease in the council’s funding from the previous ring-fenced Early 
Intervention Grant has meant that the services funded from this grant have been 
rigorously reviewed to identify efficiencies and possible savings.  This has included 
Children’s Centres budgets and BookStart, as well as the staffing structures 
including re-engineering Connexions Services and the Early Years Advisers Team 
and Workforce Training.  Further staffing restructures within Education include Early 
Years Centres, and the restructure of the Early Help offer and the Specialist 
Services Teams.  Wherever possible the aim is to maintain front line services and 
ensure services are targeted at the most vulnerable. 

 
119. Both the Youth and Play Services have been subject to review over the last three 

years, and 2013/14 is the final stage of this process. The Dedicated Schools Grant 
(DSG) is now funded for eligible two year old education and therefore these costs 
will, in future, be met by the DSG.  

 
120. These savings in the council’s budget also need to be seen in the context to national 

reforms to the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) which funds schools and some of the 
centrally retained education services.  Key changes during 2013/14 include a 
reduction over the next two years of £2.9m resulting in the ending of full-time 
nursery provision from September 2013, increased scrutiny of all centrally retained 
budgets, and significant changes to the funding of all nursery, mainstream and 
special school budgets.    

 
Strategy and Commissioning 
 

121. The key savings include back-office staffing restructure of the newly joined children’s 
and adults staff under this service area and wider business support teams, 
continued efficiency savings in commissioned services and utilisation of external 
grant.  

 
122. Commitments of  £1.976m is planned for the roll out of the Free Healthy School 

Meal for Southwark Primary aged children, which from September 2013, will be 
available to all year groups.  Increasing pupil numbers and take up means that this 
growth bid is higher than the original estimate.  

 
Adult Social Care 
 

33



       
 

123. Key savings areas for 2013/14 are detailed below. 
 
124. A reduction in supporting people grant through efficiencies, service redesign and 

supporting services for the most vulnerable adults to deliver savings of £1.8m, 
including efficiencies through shared procurement with other boroughs and 
reconfiguration of support services.  
 

125. Savings of £1m will be delivered by redesigning mental health services including 
arrangements with South London & Maudsley Trust (SLaM), reviewing the adult 
social care role within mental health services in partnership with other Boroughs and 
working more closely together.  This includes 
• Efficiency savings by renegotiating consistent prices for placements across the 

four boroughs. 
• Developing an accommodation strategy to set out a revised pathway for 

people with mental health needs that will seek to reduce our reliance on high 
cost residential placements and provide more community based housing 
options for people.  Our benchmarking suggests we are the second highest in 
London on the proportion of our money that goes on residential provision 
hence we see opportunity to achieve better outcomes for people at lower cost.  

• Changing management arrangements so that the Head of Mental Health 
Services has stronger accountability within the council and council staff are 
managed directly by the council as well as continuing to operate in teams 
integrated with SLaM. 

 
126. Redesigning day opportunities for people with learning disabilities which will deliver 

savings of £1.7m.  This includes; 
• Continuing to roll out personal budgets enabling people to choose the right 

social care to meet their needs. 
• Working with providers to make the changes required by the personalisation 

agenda to reduce block contracting arrangements and put the money into 
personal budgets.   

• Savings will come from across the system of community based support as the 
programme of individual reviews moving people on to personal budgets is 
undertaken: 
o Looking at opportunities for people with less complex needs to access 

mainstream opportunities to engage in leisure, education, training and 
support for employment; 

o Reduction in block funding in 2013/14 of £800k. 
 
Children’s Services (incorporating both Education and Children’s Social Care) - 
summary equalities impact 
 
127. One of the key aspects of the work of children’s services will be to minimise the 

impact of the budget reductions proposed, particularly with regard to groups covered 
within the council’s Approach to Equality. Southwark is one of ten local authorities 
nationally with the highest percentage of children in need, and yet has suffered one 
of the highest reductions in central government core funding. In addition, the 
reduction of or loss of a considerable number of targeted grants focused on the most 
vulnerable groups will significantly add to the potential negative impact. Children’s 

34



       
 

services will need to manage these reductions in light of its continuing statutory 
duties. 

 
128. Safeguarding children and young people is our highest priority and any service 

reductions here or in related areas will need to be very carefully considered in 
relation to children at risk of harm in the community, and for the potential impact on 
vulnerable groups. Because of the downturn in the economy and welfare reform 
changes, we are starting to see in specialist children’s services an increased 
demand for services to families in difficulty. Effective support for schools to meet a 
wider range of lower-level needs and so prevent problems escalating will be 
required, particularly with the high level of need that our young people have in 
Southwark and the vulnerability of some schools. The potential growth of academies 
is a challenge to central services due to the potentially destabilising effect on income 
to maintain these services. 

 
129. Actions to mitigate the impact of budget reductions will be considered very carefully 

following the council’s decision. This will include looking at efficiency savings 
including streamlining back-office processes and reducing the number of support 
staff, reviewing management structures to reduce the number of managers and 
protect front-line service delivery, smarter procurement to drive down the costs of 
purchased services and stripping out any funding duplication. Contracts with 
external providers will be scrutinised for potential savings without impacting on key 
groups. In addition, other mitigating actions will be put in place, including exploring 
alternative delivery models, such as working in partnership with schools and other 
partners to deliver services in a different way, as well as understanding the local 
impact of initiatives or actions taken at a national level. This process has already 
started and has been a critical aspect of developing the initial budget proposals. 

 
130. A further more detailed report will be produced on the potential impact of the 

proposed budget reductions for specific groups so these can be fully considered 
before any decisions are taken. This will include detailed equality analysis for each 
service affected by the Council’s decision, which will underpin individual service 
development and reconfiguration. 

 
Adult Social Care - summary equalities impact 
 
131. Budget proposals for adult social care are in the context of work to develop a system 

that supports people to live independently and well for as long as possible, 
accessing care and support services that are personalised and based on their 
choices and moves away from a model of dependency. The system needs to 
consider redesign and reconfiguration across all client groups to be sustainable, 
continue to support the most vulnerable and deliver value for money. 

 
132. The two equality strands that will experience major impact from proposals are older 

people and disabled adults with eligible care needs as outlined through Fair Access 
to Care Services (FACS) criteria. Older and disabled adults without eligible needs 
may also experience an impact from proposals to re-shape open access services in 
the borough. 

 
133. The key impact is around services not continuing to exist or being offered in a 

different way. We are going to focus resources on time-limited interventions that help 

35



       
 

people, such as re-ablement services, and supporting them to understand how they 
can best help themselves and make key contributions to the wider community.  In 
addition, changes to services will potentially have an impact on carers, the majority 
of whom are women. 

 
134. We propose a range of mitigating actions to try and minimise any potential negative 

impact. These include: 
• Continue progress with development of personal budgets (including direct 

payments in cash) so that people understand how much is to be spent on their 
care and support and can then make decisions about the ways they wish to 
use their money; 

• Focus on how we can support the development of a diverse provider market in 
Southwark so there are appropriate services available on which people can 
spend their personal budgets; 

• Develop and improve partnerships involving individuals, communities, 
voluntary and private sectors, the NHS and the council’s wider services to best 
implement proposals; 

• Improve procurement and commissioning processes, and streamlining back 
office functions thereby focusing resources on frontline services; 

• For open access services, explore models where a small injection of cash to 
'pump-prime' services could support organisations to become financially self-
sustaining, and promote community cohesion, in line with the wider corporate 
approach to the voluntary sector; 

• Develop proposals for effective, targeted interventions that can provide help 
and support for carers, recognising the key role that they play, both in 
delivering care and in preventing people’s care needs from increasing. 

 
135. The overall approach for adult social care services in Southwark will have a positive 

impact on equality strands: 
• Personal budgets offer an opportunity for people to access personalised 

support services that take account of cultural preferences, e.g. being able to 
choose a carer of your own gender – evidence suggests this is particularly true 
for BME communities, lesbian, gay and bisexual communities and for 
transgender people 

• Moving away from residential provision and to supported living in the 
community is designed to support people to live independently at home and 
connected with their communities  for as long as possible 

• A single point of informed contact supports better use of resources and 
targeted information and advice for people at an early stage, regardless of 
whether they receive state support for care. 

 
136. However, this also needs to consider: 

• Developments in the local provider market so culturally specific services are 
available 

• Particular support that some groups, such as older people or those with mental 
health needs, may require to access the benefits of personal budgets 

• Particular support for people who may have spent a considerable time in 
residential care 

• Appropriate support for those who continue to need respite services 
• People who need to access information in different ways (e.g. website, email, 

36



       
 

telephone) and those who may not have English as a first language. 
 
137. We recognise that we will need to work closely with partner across the council, 

particularly in areas like housing and employment, to understand the cross-cutting 
impacts of the need to reduce spend in these areas and our desired outcome of 
helping more people to live independently and well at home and in the community. 

 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S OFFICE 
 
138. The Chief Executive (CE) department is made up of human resources, corporate 

strategy, regeneration and planning.   
 
139. The department will continue to deliver on the fairer future vision by having a 

relentless focus on rationalising support services so more money is protected at the 
frontline and working alongside others to provide the organisation with the tools to 
innovate and modernise service delivery.  It will also be focused on delivering 
functions that help achieve local strategic priorities.  This will mean working to 
ensure the benefits of regeneration can spread across the borough including in 
strategic areas such as Elephant and Castle and the Aylesbury but also within 
Peckham, Nunhead and Camberwell. 

 
140. The proposed indicative budget for the department in 2013/14 is £19m. It is 

proposed to deliver savings of £500k through service re-configuration, review and 
management restructuring.  Savings were front loaded into 2011/12 and 2012/13 
meaning an overall saving of 27% over a three year period.  

 
141. Significant savings are also being achieved across the council through the 

reorganisation of top tier management (£1m) and the acquisition of Tooley Street 
offices (£1.5m). 

 
Chief Executive – summary equalities impact 
 
142. Although the services provided by the CE department are largely back office, these 

enable a consistent approach to equality across the whole Council, ensuring equality 
is taken into account in all decision making processes where relevant. The CE 
department also ensures that effective policy and robust performance measures are 
in place to evidence the Council’s compliance with the public sector equality duty in 
both it role as employer and service provider. In terms of direct customer contact, 
Southwark’s significant regeneration schemes and planning services provide a 
platform for addressing strategic equality priorities, with regard to community 
development, improvements in the built environmental and in maximising economic 
growth opportunities.  

 
143. Savings are proposed to be realised through service reconfiguration and reducing 

support costs.  Therefore any impacts would fall primarily on staff rather than service 
users.  As specific proposals are put forward, and at each stage of implementation 
thereafter, the different impacts on different categories of staff will be assessed.  
Service heads are committed to deliver savings as far as possible to maintain the 
level of service. 

 

37



       
 

144. As part of the communication savings, there is a proposed move to greater use of 
electronic communications and social media so there may be potential impacts on 
those with limited or no access to a computer.  This will be assessed in the ongoing 
evaluation of all communications activities and further mitigated through supporting 
access though other publications or formats for example face to face 
communications. 

 
145. Residents across all housing tenures, visitors and businesses in the borough are all 

beneficiaries of regeneration schemes. Regeneration activity is targeted towards the 
more deprived areas and disadvantaged groups in the borough.  There is a risk that 
proposals could disproportionately impact on the most disadvantaged and 
vulnerable groups and geographical areas in the borough and mitigating action has 
been identified. Where external funding has been reduced, the mitigating action is to 
retarget available budgets to schemes that support people with the highest level of 
need as far as possible.  The department also proposes to maximise income on 
commercial properties and through restructuring planning application fees. As with 
all proposals equality impacts will continue to be assessed through out. 

 
ENVIRONMENT AND LEISURE 
 
146. Environment & Leisure department delivers services that make a real difference to 

the everyday lives of all residents and visitors. The majority of our operations are 
frontline service: they physically improve the environment, they provide opportunities 
for health and enjoyment or they help improve safety and confidence. The Director is 
the Electoral Registration Officer and Returning Officer, so the department includes 
the electoral services team. The other services can be can be broadly grouped into: 
• Public Realm, covering  parks and open spaces, parking, highways, transport 

planning, cleaner greener safer initiatives, cemeteries and crematorium 
• Sustainable services, such as waste management and refuse collection, street 

cleaning and recycling, carbon reduction and energy projects 
• Community safety covering: Safer Southwark Partnership, drug and alcohol 

teams, emergency planning, environmental health, the community wardens, 
antisocial behaviour unit, environmental enforcement, private sector housing 
renewals, noise teams and CCTV 

• Culture, Libraries, Leisure and Learning covering: arts, heritage, leisure 
centres, sports outreach, libraries and adult learning. 

 
147. The overall vision for these services is to make Southwark’s neighbourhoods great 

places to live, that are clean, safe and vibrant and where activities and opportunities 
are accessible to all. The department’s approach to achieving the savings has been 
in accordance with the budget principles to focus on a core provision of quality 
services, efficiency savings, smarter procurement and tougher contract 
management; reducing optional services and using data and intelligence to target 
services to places or people where they will be more effective. 

 
148. The budget for environment and leisure services in 2012/13 is £70m. The 

department has already achieved £7.3m savings during 2011/12 and is on target to 
achieve £5.5m savings for 2012/13. For 2013/14 savings of £2.5m are proposed.  
When the significant reductions in government grants are taken into account, around 
£19m will be taken out of the budget over the three year period. 

38



       
 

 
149. The budget proposals include commitments of £430k for: 

• estimated increase in rents and service charges for Sandgate Industrial Estate 
for the relocated services from Manor Place Depot; and  

• Statutory provision of stray dogs service. 
 

150. In addition, growth bids of £950k have been submitted. This is made up of £380k for 
maintenance costs of Housing CCTV cameras that are being replaced during 
2013/14, £215k for retaining some of the critical community safety programmes that 
would otherwise be threatened due to loss of government grants, £80k for 
maintaining and improving the environment for the users of cemeteries and 
crematoria, £200k to invest in proactive maintenance of highways and a £75k 
reduction in the income target set for Canada Water Library, which proved to be too 
ambitious.   

 
151. It is proposed to make some £1.3m efficiency savings in public realm. This includes 

£500k return of budget no longer required for risk on parking income. Savings will be 
made through two major contracts that will start in 2013 for parking (£600k) and 
highways (£200k). There will also be savings from the grounds maintenance 
contracts from better contract management.  

 
152. In sustainable services, £115k efficiency savings have been negotiated with the 

waste contractor including some specification changes and a further saving of £35k 
can be achieved by rationalising divisional management structures.  

 
153. Community safety budget is proposed to reduce by £300k through more efficient 

commissioning of drugs and alcohol services. In addition, £60k of efficiency savings 
is proposed to be achieved by re-organising some of the services within the division. 

 
154. Total efficiency savings of £640k are proposed within culture, libraries, leisure and 

learning. These will be achieved by restructuring and re-organising management 
and support services as well as making contract savings from the new leisure 
management agreement. It is proposed to take the opportunity of bringing public 
health functions into the council to support health and wellbeing aspects of 
community sports through the public health programme. In addition, the proposals 
for the division also include a further £105k for second phase of savings arising from 
the review of the library, which will continue to be achieved without closing any 
libraries.  

 
155. There are plans to generate additional income of some £100k for 2013/14 through 

increasing charges across a range of services.  This is in line with local policy to 
increase discretionary fees and charges to a level, at a minimum, that is equal to the 
most appropriate London average (e.g. inner London, family, groupings etc) as set 
out in the MTRS.  

 
156. In delivering these savings and income generation, the department has sought to 

minimise the impact on service delivery.  The budget proposals have been 
developed in line with the cabinet’s budget principles. They will deliver the best 
value for money possible and maximise the use of existing assets, as well as 
exploring alternative methods of provision with our partners, neighbouring boroughs 
and the voluntary sector. The department’s proposals are based on service need 

39



       
 

and demand with the aim of protecting front-line services and supporting the needs 
of our residents.   

 
Environment and Leisure – summary equalities impact 
 
157. Our approach to achieving savings across the Environment, Culture and Community 

Safety portfolios is in line with the cabinet’s budget principles, and we have sought 
to do all we can to protect front line services and offer continuity of services to our 
most vulnerable residents. 

 
158. However the majority of our services in this area are front line and directly delivered 

to all residents and changes and reductions to delivery are inevitable in order to 
meet the scale of savings required. 

 
159. In order to minimise front line reductions and impact on the wider community and 

equalities groups we have sought to make savings through efficiency, back office 
reductions and processes, leaner staffing structures and negotiating better value 
from our contractors. 

 
160. Wherever possible we have sought to share resources and work with partner 

organisations to identify new ways of working that may deliver efficiencies and 
improved value for money, as well as maximising opportunities for increasing 
income. 

 
161. The following proposals have been assessed as having the highest community and 

equalities impact: 
• The review of the Libraries Service. 
• The proposed increases in fees and charges. 

 
162. The proposals have been designed to minimise any adverse equality impact. In 

particular, the change to library opening hours under the review is being closely 
monitored and shows no overall adverse impact. The individual fees and charges 
proposals will be subject to specific equality analysis 

 
FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES 
 
163. Finance and Corporate Services provides the support service functions of finance (in 

direct support of the council’s section 151 statutory function), facilities management, 
information and data services, corporate procurement, legal and the revenues and 
benefits service. 

  
164. The indicative budget for Finance and Corporate Services in 2013/14 is £44.5m after 

the proposed savings of £3.8m. In total and since April 2011, this represents a 
reduction of 27% and has been achieved primarily through new and enhanced 
contract arrangements and reduced staff numbers.  This is consistent with the plan 
proposed in February 2011. 

 
165. Savings in 2013/14 will be delivered through further management restructuring, 

rationalised back office support and new contractual arrangements for facilities 
management, information and data services.  This will also include a review of audit, 
anti-fraud and risk services to refocus priorities and reduce running costs.   

40



       
 

 
Finance and Corporate Services – summary equalities impact 
 
166. The department is committed to achieving the required level of savings. The impact 

of implementing these will fall largely on staff as numbers are reduced. The 
management team is committed to assessing the impact on staff to ensure fairness 
and equality. As budget reductions are implemented the impact on staff will be 
considered in detail throughout the implementation of each proposal. 

 
HOUSING & COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
167. The housing and community services department (H&CS) delivers a range of council 

services funded from both the general fund and more specifically through the ring-
fenced housing revenue account (HRA) for those services of a landlord nature. 
Since the department’s inception in January 2011, functions such as community 
engagement, registrars and coroners have transferred to housing and community 
services.  Following recent internal departmental restructuring, the functions formerly 
provided within the community housing services division have been reconfigured 
and subsumed within the customer experience and special housing services 
divisions, and the environment and leisure department. 

 
168. The HRA is part of a separate budget consultation process and cabinet received an 

initial scene-setting report on 11 December 2012. Following consultation with 
tenants and council homeowners during January, decisions on rent and service 
charge levels were made at cabinet on 29 January 2013.  

 
169. The departmental vision for H&CS is to make Southwark homes great places to live 

where good quality services are delivered right first time. To achieve this, the 
department aims to improve performance in all of the core service areas by working 
with residents to deliver consistently high quality services, better value for money 
and continuing to support the most vulnerable residents. Savings derived from 
further efficiencies total £275k at this point, whereas there are a number of savings 
proposals relating to temporary accommodation and the voluntary sector that cannot 
be delivered without some service detriment (£270k). 

 
170. The decision to bring the customer service contract in-house from June 2013 

provides the opportunity to reconfigure and improve customer access and service 
delivery and drive out substantial savings over the medium term by moving towards 
more cost effective transaction routes and operational efficiencies. Savings arising 
from this are shown corporately given the strategic and cross-cutting nature of the 
service.   

 
171. One of the biggest financial risks for the council is the cost of temporary 

accommodation provision, particularly bed & breakfast. Whilst Southwark ranks 
highly in terms of homelessness prevention, the demand-led nature of responding to 
homelessness places a disproportionate financial burden on the budget, requiring 
stringent control and diversion into more financially neutral forms of accommodation, 
e.g. estate voids and hostels in the HRA. The impending welfare reforms and 
housing benefit changes is likely to exacerbate the situation and have a detrimental 
impact on the council’s ability to prevent homelessness as use of the private rented 
sector becomes less affordable and the cost of Private Sector Leasing (PSL) 

41



       
 

provision will no longer be cost neutral. The financial impact is difficult to predict at 
this stage, but best estimates show an increased base budget commitment of 
£1.230m for 2013/14. 

 
Housing & community services– summary equalities impact 
 
172. In developing budget proposals, we are committed to delivering savings which as far 

as possible protect and maintain front line provision. In the main this is achieved 
through revised and more efficient working within housing services and across 
departments through streamlining back-office processes and management 
structures. Other mitigating actions such as exploring alternative delivery models, 
partnership working and smarter procurement and rigorous contract management 
provide opportunities to maximise value and deliver the same or equivalent service 
benefits at reduced cost. This is already embedded in the development of budget 
options and specific equality impact assessments are undertaken as part of on-
going considerations around the implementation of the budget decisions.  

 
A strong and stable resource base  
 
173. In setting out the draft budget proposals for 2013/14 the Strategic Director of 

Finance and Corporate Services, as the statutory section 151 officer, is assured that 
the range of spending commitments and proposed savings are being set within the 
resources available that meet local priorities. The draft budget proposed for 2013/14 
is therefore robust. 

 
174. In addition to ensuring that sufficient funds are available to finance the ongoing 

management of the council services, the Strategic Director of Finance and 
Corporate Services needs to be assured that there is an appropriate level of 
reserves and balances available.  The Local Government Act 2003 requires the 
chief finance officer to report on the adequacy of reserves held, and requires 
members to have regard to that report in setting the budget.  The Act also gives 
powers to the Secretary of State to specify a minimum of reserves to be held, but 
those powers have not yet been applied.  

 
175. Reserves are funds set aside from underspends or proposed budget contributions, 

to meet contractual commitments or future expenditure plans, including meeting 
risks or liabilities that may arise at a later date.  For example, the council has a 
number of pressures which fluctuate over time and are unpredictable in nature.  
These could include winter maintenance (such as pot holes and road gritting for 
highways) or meeting the upkeep of older buildings that the council operate from.  
Reserves are the most effective way in which to mitigate these pressures, subject to 
appropriate criteria.  Another example is one-off redundancy costs arising from 
restructuring, where it may be that these costs cannot be met from existing revenue 
budget provision.  Therefore and, subject to an appropriate business case, reserves 
may be used to support these costs. 

 
176.  The council has a number of reserves.  The most significant of which are: 
 

• Modernisation, service and operational improvement reserve.  This is for one-off 
expenditure and multi-year projects that are designed to modernise and improve 
service levels and operational efficiency of Southwark’s activities. Schemes will 

42



       
 

include accommodation pressures, shared services, customer service 
improvements and information services. The use of the reserve is subject to 
protocols in accordance with the Council’s MTRS. 

 
• Regeneration and development reserve.   This reserve is to fund one-off 

expenditure and multi-year projects to facilitate the significant regeneration and 
development taking place in the borough. Projects include the Elephant & 
Castle, Canada Water, Southwark Schools for the Future, and land acquisitions 
associated with these projects. 

 
• Financial risk reserve.  This reserve is set aside against future financial risks that 

may arise. For example, taxation risk, legislative changes including actions 
involving the Greater London Authority, major projects, risks as a result of 
unavoidable changes in accounting practice, risks arising from retention of 
business rates arrangements.      

 
177. Due to the size, scale and complexity of projects and services across the borough 

the council is required to maintain a general level of balances to meet future 
unpredictable expenditure demands.  Securing outcomes around key priorities of 
regeneration, recognising key operational risks attached to the unique size of our 
housing stock and more generally the levels of deprivation across the borough and 
associated factors, means that it is essential the council maintains a robust 
approach to both reserves and balances.  Maintaining an adequate level of reserves 
and balances are therefore key factors in the Strategic Director of Finance and 
Corporate Services’ assessment of the robustness of the budget. 

 
178. The council's General Fund reserves and balances at the end of 2011/12 totalled 

£102.6m, made up of £84.5m earmarked reserves and £18.1m General Fund 
balance. In total this represents some 10.5% of the General Fund spend in 2011/12. 

 
179. The earmarked reserves, by their nature, are reserves set aside and earmarked for 

spending plans. Many of those spending plans were already in progress as at the 
end of 2012/13, especially around the council's modernisation agenda and major 
capital projects. The reserves also include balances that the council cannot freely 
reallocate, for example Dedicated Schools Grant unspent or PFI credits received in 
advance to meet future years' costs on the waste PFI scheme; or are balances that 
the council would not wish to redirect, for example the council's self insurance 
reserve.   

 
180. In setting the budget the council needs to be mindful of the continued uncertainty 

with regards future funding particularly beyond 2013/14. The use of the Financial 
Risk Reserve in respect of Business Rates risks identified in paragraph 56 forms 
part of the mitigation strategy.  The risks identified strengthen the importance of 
maintaining a robust MTRS within which to plan council business and sustain 
delivery of essential frontline services.  

 
Community impact statement 
 
181.  Transparency and fairness form part of the seven budget principles and are an 

underlying principle in the Council Plan.  As with last year’s budget, each 
department will undertake equality analysis on its budget proposals.  

43



       
 

 
182. Undertaking equality analysis will help the council to understand the potential effects 

that the budget proposals may have on different groups. The analysis will also 
consider if there may be any unintended consequences and about how these issues 
can be mitigated. Analysis will also be undertaken to consider any cross-cutting and 
organisation-wide impacts.   

 
183. The equality analysis undertaken will build on previous analysis including the 

equality impact assessments carried out as part of 2012/13 budget setting and the 
equality analysis undertaken on decisions to implement the budget this year. The 
development of equality analysis will continue to ensure that it informs decision 
making at each stage of the budget process.  

 
Equalities 

 
184. The council is subject to the Equality Act 2010 and the public sector Equality Duty.  

This means the council must have due regard to the need to: eliminate unlawful 
discrimination, harassment and victimisation; advance equality of opportunity 
between different groups; and foster good relations between different groups. 
Guidance on the implications of the Equality Act 2010 and the duties it imposes on 
the council is available to officers and members. 

 
185. In September 2010, the cabinet agreed seven principles that will guide its decision 

making on the budget. One of these principles is to limit the impact of its budget on 
the most vulnerable and to being transparent with any specific group or groups of 
users who may be affected by any cut or reduction in service provision, and to 
conduct an equalities impact assessment of budget proposals. These budget 
principles are consistent with the Approach to Equality, the council’s overarching 
policy on equality and human rights.  The equality analysis prepared as part of the 
2012/13 budget setting process will be refreshed during the current budget cycle  

 
Consultation 
 
186. This report is the second report to inform cabinet on the planning for the third year of 

a three year budget framework, agreed in February 2011. The budget agreed in 
February 2011 was supported by an exhaustive consultation undertaken in the 
autumn of 2010. 

  
Greater London Authority 
 
187. The Mayor published his 2013/14 draft consolidated budget on 31 January 2013.  

This will be considered by the London Assembly at its meeting on Friday 8 February. 
The draft budget confirmed the Mayor's intention to lower the GLA council tax 
precept for residents of the 32 London boroughs in 2013/14 by a proposed 1% 
reduction in the precept, reducing a band D property from £306.72 to £303.00 

 
188. The final budget proposals are scheduled to be considered at the Assembly plenary 

meeting planned for 25 February 2013. The London Assembly has the power to 
amend the Mayor's budget if they secure a two thirds majority for an alternative so 
the final budget will not be confirmed until after the 12 February meeting. The 

44



       
 

confirmed precept will be presented to Southwark’s Council Assembly on 27 
February 2013. 

  
Next steps 
 
189. Following consideration and agreement at this meeting, the budget will be 

recommended to council assembly on 27 February 2013. 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS 
 
Director of Legal Services  
 
190. The constitution determines that cabinet consider decisions regarding the strategic 

aspects of the regulation and control of the council's finances. The council has an 
obligation under Section 32 of the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 to 
calculate and agree an annual budget. The issues contained in this report will assist 
in the future discharge of that obligation. 

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
Background Papers Held At Contact 
Provisional Local Government 
Settlement 2013/14 

Department of 
Communities and Local 
Government 

http://www.local.com
munities.gov.uk/finan
ce/1314/settle.htm 
 
 

Mayor’s budget proposals Greater London Authority http://www.london.go
v.uk/mayor-
assembly/gla/budget
-expenditure-
charges/budget-
2013-14 
  

 
 
APPENDICES 
 

No. Title 

Appendices 
A-F 

Draft high level descriptions of budget proposals:  

A: Commitments and Growth 

B: Efficiencies and Improved Use of Resources 

C: Income Generation  

D: Savings impacting on service delivery 

E: Reversal of one-off items from 2012/13 
F: Progress report on the Community Restoration Fund and Youth 

Fund 

45



       
 

AUDIT TRAIL 
 
Cabinet member Councillor Richard Livingstone, Finance, Resources and 

Community Safety 
Lead officer Duncan Whitfield, Strategic Director of Finance and Corporate 

Services 
Report author Jennifer Seeley, Deputy Finance Director 

Version Final 
Dated 1 February 2013 

Key Decision? Yes 
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 

MEMBER 
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included 
Director of Legal Services Yes Yes 
Strategic Director of Finance and 
Corporate Services  

Yes Yes 

Cabinet Member Yes Yes 
Date final report sent to constitutional team 1 February 2013 
 
 
 

46



C
o

m
m

it
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 G

ro
w

th
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 A

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

20
13

/1
4

£'
00

0

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
er

vi
ce

s

S
tr

at
eg

y,
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g,
 B

us
in

es
s 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t

T
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f f
re

e 
he

al
th

y 
sc

ho
ol

 m
ea

ls
 fo

r 
pr

im
ar

y 
ag

ed
 p

up
ils

 in
 s

ch
oo

ls
 in

 
S

ou
th

w
ar

k;
 p

ha
se

d 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

ov
er

 a
ca

de
m

ic
 y

ea
rs

 2
01

1-
14

; i
nc

lu
de

s 
im

pa
ct

 
of

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
pu

pi
l n

um
be

rs
 a

nd
 h

ig
he

r 
ta

ke
 u

p 
th

an
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
.

1,
98

0

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e

C
ou

nc
il 

sp
en

di
ng

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
ce

ss
at

io
n 

of
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

B
oa

rd
 fu

nd
in

g 
to

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
co

st
s 

of
 p

la
ci

ng
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

re
m

an
de

d 
to

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
se

cu
re

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

w
he

re
 th

is
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

or
de

re
d 

by
 th

e 
co

ur
t.

75
0 

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e

W
el

fa
re

 R
ef

or
m

 Im
pa

ct
 -

 m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 c

os
ts

 o
f t

he
 c

ou
nc

il'
s 

ob
lig

at
io

ns
 

un
de

r 
th

e 
C

hi
ld

re
ns

 A
ct

.
60

0 

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

S
pe

ci
al

 G
ua

rd
ia

ns
hi

p 
O

rd
er

s 
(S

G
O

s)
 a

re
 fi

na
nc

ia
lly

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 p

la
ce

m
en

t o
rd

er
s 

m
ad

e 
by

 th
e 

co
ur

ts
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

ly
 r

ep
la

ce
d 

ad
op

tio
n 

as
 a

 p
er

m
an

en
t 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

to
 c

ar
e 

fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n.

 O
n 

av
er

ag
e 

an
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 2
0-

30
 a

 y
ea

r 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

m
ad

e 
in

 S
ou

th
w

ar
k.

  

12
5

T
o

ta
l C

h
ild

re
n

's
 S

er
vi

ce
s

3,
45

5
A

d
u

lt
 S

o
ci

al
 C

ar
e

Le
ar

ni
ng

 D
is

ab
ili

tie
s

Le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 tr

an
si

tio
n 

fr
om

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
to

 a
du

lts
.

1,
00

0

T
o

ta
l A

d
u

lt
 S

o
ci

al
 C

ar
e

1,
00

0

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
it

m
en

ts

47



C
o

m
m

it
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 G

ro
w

th
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 A

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

20
13

/1
4

£'
00

0

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
it

m
en

ts

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

an
d

 L
ei

su
re

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
- 

H
yg

ie
ne

 
S

er
vi

ce
s/

F
le

et
E

st
im

at
ed

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 r

en
t/s

er
vi

ce
 c

ha
rg

es
 fo

r 
S

an
dg

at
e 

In
du

st
ria

l E
st

at
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
re

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

fr
om

 M
an

or
 P

la
ce

 D
ep

ot
 to

 S
an

dg
at

e.
  

15
0

P
ub

lic
 R

ea
lm

 -
 P

ar
ks

T
o 

m
ee

t t
he

 c
em

et
er

ie
s 

an
d 

cr
em

at
or

ia
's

 n
ee

d 
fo

r 
gr

ea
te

r 
in

ve
st

m
en

t t
o 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t f
or

 th
ei

r 
us

er
s.

 
80

 

P
ub

lic
 R

ea
lm

 -
 A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

In
ve

st
 in

 p
ro

ac
tiv

e 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f h
ig

hw
ay

s 
to

 r
ed

uc
e 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
re

pa
irs

 w
hi

ch
 

ar
e 

of
te

n 
m

or
e 

ex
pe

ns
iv

e
20

0 

C
LL

L 
- 

Li
br

ar
ie

s
T

he
re

 is
 p

re
ss

ur
e 

on
 in

co
m

e 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t a
t C

an
ad

a 
W

at
er

 L
ib

ra
ry

. W
hi

ls
t t

he
 

in
co

m
e 

ta
rg

et
 fo

r 
th

e 
lib

ra
ry

 is
 £

16
0k

, t
he

 fo
re

ca
st

 a
fte

r 
9 

m
on

th
s 

of
 th

e 
ye

ar
 is

 fo
r 

ac
tu

al
 a

nn
ua

l i
nc

om
e 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
t t

o 
be

 o
nl

y 
ab

ou
t £

85
k.

75
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y 
&

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t
R

et
ai

n 
cr

iti
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
 s

af
et

y 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 d

ue
 to

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t g

ra
nt

 
fu

nd
in

g:
 S

ou
th

w
ar

k'
s 

Y
ou

ng
 P

er
so

ns
 S

ub
st

an
ce

 M
is

us
e 

S
er

vi
ce

 £
95

k 
an

d 
S

ou
th

w
ar

k 
A

nt
i-V

io
le

nc
e 

U
ni

t &
 S

ou
th

w
ar

k 
E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
R

e-
ho

us
in

g 
S

ch
em

e 
£1

20
k.

21
5 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y 
&

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t
H

ou
si

ng
  C

C
T

V
 c

am
er

as
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 r
ep

la
ce

d 
in

 2
01

3/
14

, a
nd

 th
er

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
an

 
on

go
in

g 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 c

os
t i

n 
or

de
r 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 g

re
at

er
 s

ec
ur

ity
 o

n 
ou

r 
es

ta
te

s.
 

38
0 

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
- 

P
es

t C
on

tr
ol

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f S

tr
ay

 D
og

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
un

de
r 

S
68

 o
f t

he
 C

le
an

 N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

an
d 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t A

ct
 2

00
5.

  
80

T
o

ta
l E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
an

d
 L

ei
su

re
1,

18
0

48



C
o

m
m

it
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 G

ro
w

th
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 A

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

20
13

/1
4

£'
00

0

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
it

m
en

ts

H
o

u
si

n
g

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s

S
pe

ci
al

is
t H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
T

em
po

ra
ry

 A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n

W
el

fa
re

 r
ef

or
m

 -
 B

ed
 &

 B
re

ak
fa

st
 L

an
dl

or
ds

33
0

S
H

S
 -

 T
em

po
ra

ry
 A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n
W

el
fa

re
 r

ef
or

m
 -

 th
ird

 p
ar

ty
 p

ro
vi

de
r 

co
st

s 
(u

nd
er

oc
cu

pa
tio

n)
14

0

S
H

S
 -

 T
em

po
ra

ry
 A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n
W

el
fa

re
 r

ef
or

m
 -

 th
ird

 p
ar

ty
 p

ro
vi

de
r 

co
st

s 
(p

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 la
nd

lo
rd

s)
10

0

S
H

S
 -

 T
em

po
ra

ry
 A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n
W

el
fa

re
 r

ef
or

m
 -

 th
ird

 p
ar

ty
 p

ro
vi

de
r 

co
st

s 
(b

en
ef

it 
ca

ps
)

35
5

S
H

S
 -

 T
em

po
ra

ry
 A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n
W

el
fa

re
 r

ef
or

m
 -

 th
ird

 p
ar

ty
 p

ro
vi

de
r 

co
st

s 
(s

el
f-

co
nt

ai
ne

d)
75

S
H

S
 -

 T
em

po
ra

ry
 A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n
W

el
fa

re
 r

ef
or

m
 -

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t A

dv
ic

e 
st

af
f

55

S
H

S
 -

 T
em

po
ra

ry
 A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n
W

el
fa

re
 r

ef
or

m
 -

 c
re

di
t u

ni
on

 a
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

fe
e

30

S
H

S
 -

 T
em

po
ra

ry
 A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n
W

el
fa

re
 r

ef
or

m
 -

 c
as

ew
or

k,
 h

ou
si

ng
 o

ffi
ce

r 
an

d 
pl

ac
em

en
t s

ta
ff

14
5

T
o

ta
l H

o
u

si
n

g
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s
1,

23
0

F
in

an
ce

 a
n

d
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s

S
oc

ia
l F

un
d 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

- 
G

ra
nt

 tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

to
 S

ou
th

w
ar

k 
C

ou
nc

il 
fr

om
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f W

or
k 

&
 P

en
si

on
s 

fo
r 

is
su

in
g 

cr
is

is
 lo

an
s 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
 c

ar
e 

gr
an

ts
. T

hi
s 

in
cl

ud
es

 £
28

8k
 fo

r 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

gr
an

t.

1,
65

1

T
o

ta
l F

in
an

ce
 a

n
d

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 S
er

vi
ce

s
1,

65
1

49



C
o

m
m

it
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 G

ro
w

th
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 A

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

20
13

/1
4

£'
00

0

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
it

m
en

ts

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 B
u

d
g

et
s

C
or

po
ra

te
Im

pa
ct

 o
f 2

01
0/

11
 tr

ie
nn

ia
l r

ev
ie

w
 o

f p
en

si
on

s.
 In

 o
rd

er
 to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

pl
an

ne
d 

re
co

ve
ry

 o
f t

he
 fu

nd
 d

ef
ic

it 
in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

st
ra

te
gy

 th
er

e 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

in
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s'
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 o
f c

irc
a 

3%
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 
to

 2
01

3/
14

.

1,
50

0

C
or

po
ra

te
A

dd
iti

on
al

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 L
on

do
n 

Li
vi

ng
 W

ag
e 

in
 c

ou
nc

il 
co

nt
ra

ct
s 

as
 th

ey
 

ar
e 

re
-le

t.
1,

00
0

C
or

po
ra

te
In

cr
ea

se
 in

 c
ha

rg
e 

fr
om

 L
on

do
n 

C
ou

nc
ils

 fo
r 

co
nc

es
si

on
ar

y 
fa

re
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 c
ur

re
nt

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 u

sa
ge

 a
nd

 fa
re

 in
cr

ea
se

s.
50

0

C
or

po
ra

te
A

ut
o 

en
ro

lm
en

t i
nt

o 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
30

0

C
or

po
ra

te
In

cr
ea

se
 o

f 2
.2

%
 in

 th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 P

en
si

on
s 

F
un

d 
A

ut
ho

rit
y'

s 
Le

vy
32

C
or

po
ra

te
T

o 
in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 C
le

an
er

, G
re

en
er

, S
af

er
 r

ev
en

ue
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

to
 e

ac
h 

w
ar

d 
by

 £
10

k 
pe

r 
an

nu
m

 o
ve

r 
an

d 
ab

ov
e 

£1
0k

 a
lre

ad
y 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
ba

se
 b

ud
ge

t.
21

0

C
or

po
ra

te
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 le

ve
l o

f g
en

er
al

 c
on

tin
ge

nc
y,

 to
 r

ef
le

ct
 a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t o

f b
ud

ge
t t

ar
ge

ts
 

fo
r 

20
11

/1
2 

&
 2

01
2/

13
(5

00
)

T
o

ta
l C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 B

u
d

g
et

s
3,

04
2

T
o

ta
l C

o
m

m
it

m
en

ts
 a

n
d

 G
ro

w
th

11
,5

58

50



E
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

es
 a

n
d

 im
p

ro
ve

d
 u

se
 o

f 
re

so
u

rc
es

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 B

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

20
13

/1
4

£'
00

0 

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
er

vi
ce

s
E

du
ca

tio
n

G
ra

nt
 u

til
is

at
io

n:
 fu

nd
in

g 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r 

el
ig

ib
le

 tw
o 

ye
ar

 o
ld

s 
en

tit
le

m
en

t t
o 

fr
ee

 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

to
 th

e 
D

S
G

. (
E

IG
)

(1
,2

10
)

S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g
O

ng
oi

ng
 r

at
io

na
lis

at
io

n 
of

 IT
 s

ys
te

m
s.

(7
5)

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t/p
la

ce
m

en
t s

av
in

gs
 g

en
er

at
ed

 v
ia

 im
pr

ov
ed

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
ag

re
em

en
ts

. 
(5

00
)

A
cr

os
s 

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s
O

ng
oi

ng
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 r

at
io

na
lis

at
io

n 
of

 a
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

su
pp

or
t p

ro
vi

de
d.

(3
40

)

E
du

ca
tio

n
R

es
tr

uc
tu

re
 o

f E
ar

ly
 H

el
p 

O
ffe

r;
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

ta
rg

et
in

g 
of

 s
up

po
rt

.
(3

75
)

E
du

ca
tio

n
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 E

IG
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

O
th

er
 th

an
 A

t S
ch

oo
l a

nd
 P

up
il 

R
ef

er
ra

l U
ni

t (
S

IL
S

) 
an

d 
S

pe
ec

h 
an

d 
La

ng
ua

ge
 T

he
ra

py
; t

o 
be

 fu
nd

ed
 in

 p
ar

t 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ed
ic

at
ed

 S
ch

oo
ls

 G
ra

nt
. 

(1
90

)

E
du

ca
tio

n
R

ea
lig

ni
ng

 th
e 

S
pe

ci
al

is
t E

du
ca

tio
n 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
te

am
. A

llo
ca

tin
g 

st
at

ut
or

y 
fu

nc
tio

ns
 

w
ith

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

st
ru

ct
ur

e.
 

(3
95

)

S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

te
am

 s
ta

ffi
ng

 b
ud

ge
ts

 in
co

rp
or

at
in

g 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f C

hi
ld

re
ns

 a
nd

 A
du

lt'
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
te

am
s 

m
er

gi
ng

 w
ith

in
 th

is
 D

iv
is

io
n.

 
(3

50
)

S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g
U

til
is

at
io

n 
of

 g
ra

nt
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 e
xi

st
in

g 
el

ig
ib

le
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
. 

(1
60

)

T
o

ta
l C

h
ild

re
n

's
 S

er
vi

ce
s

(3
,5

95
)

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

av
in

g
s

51



E
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

es
 a

n
d

 im
p

ro
ve

d
 u

se
 o

f 
re

so
u

rc
es

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 B

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

20
13

/1
4

£'
00

0 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

av
in

g
s

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

ci
al

 C
ar

e

A
ll 

C
lie

nt
 G

ro
up

s
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 S

up
po

rt
in

g 
P

eo
pl

e 
G

ra
nt

 th
ro

ug
h 

ef
fic

ie
nc

ie
s,

 s
er

vi
ce

 r
ed

es
ig

n 
an

d 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

th
e 

m
os

t v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e

(1
,8

00
)

A
ll 

C
lie

nt
 G

ro
up

s
S

m
ar

te
r 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t

(3
50

)

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

R
ed

es
ig

ni
ng

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 b
et

te
r 

va
lu

e
(1

,0
00

)

O
ld

er
 P

eo
pl

e
N

H
S

 in
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
da

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r 
ol

de
r 

pe
op

le
(3

00
)

P
hy

si
ca

l D
is

ab
ili

tie
s

In
de

pe
nd

en
t L

iv
in

g 
T

ea
m

 a
t S

ou
th

w
ar

k 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

C
en

tr
e 

to
 b

ui
ld

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 
sk

ill
s

(2
00

)

Le
ar

ni
ng

 D
is

ab
ili

tie
s

R
e-

de
si

gn
 tr

an
si

tio
ns

 s
er

vi
ce

 to
 w

or
k 

m
or

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
w

ith
 y

ou
ng

 d
is

ab
le

d 
pe

op
le

 
m

ov
in

g 
in

to
 a

du
lth

oo
d

(1
50

)

O
ld

er
 P

eo
pl

e,
 P

hy
si

ca
l D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 D

is
ab

ili
tie

s
P

ro
vi

de
 c

om
m

un
ity

 b
as

ed
 s

up
po

rt
 to

 r
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r 

hi
gh

 c
os

t c
ar

e 
ho

m
e 

pl
ac

em
en

ts
(9

65
)

A
ll 

C
lie

nt
 G

ro
up

s
W

or
kf

or
ce

 r
ed

es
ig

n 
re

su
lti

ng
 fr

om
 th

e 
re

al
ig

nm
en

t o
f a

du
lt 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

te
am

s 
to

 
m

ee
t p

er
so

na
lis

at
io

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
(3

00
)

A
ll 

C
lie

nt
 G

ro
up

s
Im

pr
ov

in
g 

fin
an

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
s

(5
0)

A
ll 

C
lie

nt
 G

ro
up

s
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 w

ee
kl

y 
re

ve
nu

e 
co

st
s 

re
su

lti
ng

 fr
om

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ca

pi
ta

l b
uy

-o
ut

 o
f c

ar
e 

ho
m

e 
pr

op
er

tie
s

(9
30

)

T
o

ta
l A

d
u

lt
 S

o
ci

al
 C

ar
e

(6
,0

45
)

52



E
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

es
 a

n
d

 im
p

ro
ve

d
 u

se
 o

f 
re

so
u

rc
es

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 B

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

20
13

/1
4

£'
00

0 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

av
in

g
s

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

an
d

 L
ei

su
re

P
ub

lic
 R

ea
lm

R
et

ur
n 

of
 b

ud
ge

t r
eq

ui
re

d 
in

 2
01

2/
13

 fo
r 

ris
k 

on
 p

ar
ki

ng
 in

co
m

e 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

w
hi

ch
 is

 
no

 lo
ng

er
 r

eq
ui

re
d.

 T
hi

s 
ris

k 
bu

dg
et

 is
 r

et
ur

ne
d 

to
 b

al
an

ce
s 

in
 2

01
2/

13
 a

nd
 

re
po

rt
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f r

ev
en

ue
 m

on
ito

rin
g.

(5
00

)

P
ub

lic
 R

ea
lm

R
ed

uc
ed

 c
os

ts
 th

ro
ug

h 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t o
f n

ew
 p

ar
ki

ng
 e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t c

on
tr

ac
t a

nd
 

pr
od

uc
tiv

ity
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
(6

00
)

P
ub

lic
 R

ea
lm

R
ed

uc
ed

 c
os

ts
 th

ro
ug

h 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t o
f n

ew
 H

ig
hw

ay
s 

T
er

m
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

(2
00

)

P
ub

lic
 R

ea
lm

R
ed

uc
tio

ns
 in

 G
ro

un
ds

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 c
on

tr
ac

to
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

(2
0)

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 S
er

vi
ce

s
R

es
tr

uc
tu

re
 D

iv
is

io
na

l M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 S

up
po

rt
 

(3
5)

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 S
er

vi
ce

s
E

ffi
ci

en
cy

 s
av

in
gs

 fr
om

 th
e 

re
fu

se
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
 a

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 r

ol
l o

ut
 o

f 
w

ee
kl

y 
fo

od
 w

as
te

 c
ol

le
ct

io
ns

 w
he

re
 fe

as
ib

le
 a

nd
 s

ta
ge

d 
in

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 fo
rt

ni
gh

tly
 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
of

 d
ry

 r
ec

yc
la

bl
es

.

(1
15

)

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y
M

or
e 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 c
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

of
 d

ru
gs

 a
nd

 a
lc

oh
ol

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
(3

00
)

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y
C

om
bi

ne
 a

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
di

vi
si

on
 a

nd
 r

em
ov

e 
1 

po
st

(4
0)

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y
R

eo
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
of

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 &

 T
ra

di
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
w

or
k

(2
0)

C
LL

L
T

ak
e 

th
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 o

f b
rin

gi
ng

 p
ub

lic
 h

ea
lth

 fu
nc

tio
ns

 in
to

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l t

o 
su

pp
or

t 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 w
el

lb
ei

ng
 a

sp
ec

ts
 o

f c
om

m
un

ity
 s

po
rt

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ea

lth
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e

(1
00

)

C
LL

L
Im

pl
em

en
t f

in
al

 s
ta

ge
s 

of
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f L
ib

ra
ry

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 T

he
 fu

tu
re

 s
iz

e 
an

d 
sh

ap
e 

of
 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

w
as

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

a 
co

m
pl

et
e 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
th

at
 to

ok
 

pl
ac

e 
in

 2
01

1/
12

. N
o 

lib
ra

ry
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 w
ill

 c
lo

se
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 th
e 

re
vi

ew
.

(1
05

)

53



E
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

es
 a

n
d

 im
p

ro
ve

d
 u

se
 o

f 
re

so
u

rc
es

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 B

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

20
13

/1
4

£'
00

0 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

av
in

g
s

C
LL

L
R

es
tr

uc
tu

re
 d

iv
is

io
na

l s
up

po
rt

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
(5

0)

C
LL

L
C

on
tr

ac
t s

av
in

gs
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Le
is

ur
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
(4

90
)

T
o

ta
l E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
an

d
 L

ei
su

re
(2

,5
75

)

H
o

u
si

n
g

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s

C
om

m
un

ity
 E

ng
ag

em
en

t
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

to
 th

e 
Lo

nd
on

 C
ou

nc
ils

 G
ra

nt
 s

ch
em

e
(1

05
)

C
om

m
un

ity
 E

ng
ag

em
en

t
R

at
io

na
lis

at
io

n 
of

 c
om

m
un

ity
 s

up
po

rt
 g

ra
nt

s
(6

0)

S
pe

ci
al

is
t H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
S

up
po

rt
ed

 H
ou

si
ng

F
ul

l r
es

et
tle

m
en

t t
ea

m
 in

 g
en

er
al

 fu
nd

 -
 r

ed
ire

ct
 p

ar
t o

f w
or

k 
to

 h
om

el
es

s 
pr

ev
en

tio
n

(5
0)

S
pe

ci
al

is
t H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
T

em
po

ra
ry

 A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n

R
at

io
na

lis
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

re
du

ce
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

su
pp

or
t a

nd
 p

la
ce

m
en

t 
su

pp
or

t
(1

0)

S
pe

ci
al

is
t H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
T

em
po

ra
ry

 A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n

O
ffi

ce
 e

xp
en

se
s 

- 
fu

rn
itu

re
 &

 s
ta

tio
ne

ry
(5

)

C
us

to
m

er
 E

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
- 

O
ld

er
 

P
er

so
ns

S
M

A
R

T
 (

in
co

rp
or

at
in

g 
te

le
ca

re
) 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t e

ffi
ci

en
ci

es
(3

0)

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

- 
H

ou
si

ng
 R

en
ew

al
A

da
pt

at
io

ns
 r

ep
ai

rs
 b

ud
ge

t f
or

 p
riv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 u

se
rs

 v
ol

um
e 

ef
fic

ie
nc

ie
s

(1
5)

T
o

ta
l H

o
u

si
n

g
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s
(2

75
)

54



E
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

es
 a

n
d

 im
p

ro
ve

d
 u

se
 o

f 
re

so
u

rc
es

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 B

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

20
13

/1
4

£'
00

0 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

av
in

g
s

C
h

ie
f 

E
xe

cu
ti

ve

D
ire

ct
or

 a
nd

 B
us

in
es

s 
S

up
po

rt
 

O
n-

go
in

g 
re

vi
ew

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 e
ffi

ci
en

ci
es

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ta
l 

re
st

ru
ct

ur
e,

 m
od

er
ni

sa
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
an

d 
sh

ar
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ac

ro
ss

 fu
nc

tio
n.

(4
0)

P
la

nn
in

g 
&

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 -

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 

P
la

nn
in

g
S

av
in

gs
 a

re
 to

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

a 
re

st
ru

ct
ur

in
g 

of
 th

e 
P

la
nn

in
g 

D
iv

is
io

n.
 W

hi
le

 
de

ta
ils

 h
av

e 
no

t b
ee

n 
fin

al
is

ed
 a

nd
 a

re
 s

til
l s

ub
je

ct
 to

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 s
ta

ff 
an

d 
tr

ad
e 

un
io

ns
, t

he
y 

ar
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 in

vo
lv

e 
th

e 
de

le
tio

n 
of

 a
 fu

rt
he

r 
th

re
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

os
ts

 to
ge

th
er

 w
ith

 a
 r

at
io

na
lis

at
io

n 
in

 th
e 

w
ay

 in
 w

hi
ch

 a
dm

in
 a

nd
 

su
pp

or
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

or
ga

ni
se

d.

(7
0)

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
na

l s
ta

ff 
th

ro
ug

h 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

of
 s

el
f-

se
rv

ic
e/

ef
fic

ie
nt

 p
ro

ce
ss

. 
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 d

ire
ct

 s
ta

ffi
ng

 s
up

po
rt

. T
he

se
 r

ed
uc

tio
ns

 e
xe

m
pl

ify
 th

e 
se

co
nd

 a
nd

 
th

ird
 s

ta
ge

s 
of

 th
e 

H
R

 s
ha

re
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 r
ev

ie
w

 w
hi

ch
 w

as
 fi

rs
t i

m
pl

em
en

te
d 

in
 A

pr
il 

20
09

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 th

e 
m

ov
e 

to
 T

oo
le

y 
S

tr
ee

t. 
 T

he
 s

ha
re

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 r

ev
ie

w
 w

ill
 

le
ad

 to
 th

e 
co

ns
ol

id
at

io
n 

of
 H

R
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

fr
om

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
ed

 
pr

oc
es

se
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 IT
, t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y.

  

(2
10

)

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

tr
at

eg
y

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f s

tr
uc

tu
re

, s
ta

ffi
ng

 le
ve

ls
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
 c

os
ts

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

di
vi

si
on

.  
T

hi
s 

w
ou

ld
 in

cl
ud

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

th
e 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 b
ud

ge
t, 

re
vi

ew
in

g 
su

bs
cr

ip
tio

ns
 to

 
ex

te
rn

al
 p

ol
ic

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 m

in
im

is
in

g 
al

l s
ta

tio
ne

ry
, s

of
tw

ar
e 

an
d 

pr
in

tin
g 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

.

(6
0)

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

S
av

in
gs

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 th
e 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
sh

ar
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

.
(5

0)

T
o

ta
l C

h
ie

f 
E

xe
cu

ti
ve

(4
30

)

55



E
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

es
 a

n
d

 im
p

ro
ve

d
 u

se
 o

f 
re

so
u

rc
es

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 B

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

20
13

/1
4

£'
00

0 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

av
in

g
s

F
in

an
ce

 a
n

d
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

&
 D

at
a 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
D

iv
is

io
n

T
he

 n
ew

 IT
 M

an
ag

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
 c

on
tr

ac
t i

s 
du

e 
to

 c
om

m
en

ce
 o

n 
1s

t F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

13
 

an
d 

th
e 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 s

av
in

gs
 w

ill
 th

er
ef

or
e 

be
 r

ed
uc

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t y

ea
r.

  T
hi

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
of

f s
et

 b
y 

an
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 s
av

in
gs

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 b
rin

gi
ng

 fo
rw

ar
d 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

ch
an

ge
s 

an
d 

ra
tio

na
lis

at
io

n.
 

(1
,5

90
)

F
in

an
ci

al
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e
G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
ap

po
in

te
d 

as
 e

xt
er

na
l a

ud
ito

r 
fr

om
 1

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

 fo
r 

at
 le

as
t 5

 
ye

ar
s.

 A
ud

it 
fe

es
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 b

e 
£3

14
k 

p.
a.

 (
co

m
pa

re
d 

w
ith

 £
52

3k
 p

.a
. i

n 
20

11
/1

2)
 

an
d 

£4
8k

 p
.a

. f
or

 g
ra

nt
 fe

es
 (

co
m

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 £

10
0k

 p
.a

. i
n 

20
11

/1
2)

. H
ow

ev
er

, 
w

or
k 

ar
is

in
g 

fr
om

 o
bj

ec
tio

ns
 to

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 w
ill

 r
es

ul
t i

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l c

os
ts

 -
 d

iff
ic

ul
t 

to
 p

re
di

ct
 w

ith
 a

cc
ur

ac
y 

(in
 2

01
1/

12
 th

ey
 to

ta
lle

d 
£3

9k
).

 A
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 m

ay
 r

es
ul

t i
n 

fu
rt

he
r 

sa
vi

ng
s,

 b
ut

 th
es

e 
ar

e 
no

t y
et

 k
no

w
n 

or
 c

er
ta

in
.

(1
10

)

C
or

p.
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

C
os

t o
f n

ew
 T

oo
le

y 
S

tr
ee

t F
M

 c
on

tr
ac

t i
s 

se
t t

o 
be

 a
pp

ro
x 

£3
00

k 
le

ss
 th

an
 c

ur
re

nt
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
t a

nd
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

so
m

e 
va

ria
bl

e 
el

em
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ac

t t
ha

t c
ou

ld
 

de
liv

er
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 s
av

in
gs

. T
he

re
 is

 a
ls

o 
th

e 
fu

ll 
ye

ar
 e

ffe
ct

 o
f s

ta
ffi

ng
 s

av
in

gs
. 7

5%
 

of
 F

M
 b

ud
ge

ts
 a

re
 fi

xe
d 

an
d 

no
n 

ne
go

tia
bl

e 
e.

g.
 T

oo
le

y 
S

tr
ee

t r
en

t a
nd

 N
N

D
R

, 
co

re
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l b
ui

ld
in

g 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

rin
g 

fe
nc

ed
 b

ud
ge

ts
. T

he
re

 r
em

ai
n 

so
m

e 
lim

ite
d 

op
tio

ns
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 s
av

in
gs

 fr
om

 th
e 

re
pa

irs
 a

nd
 p

la
nn

ed
 p

re
ve

nt
at

iv
e 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 b
ud

ge
t b

ut
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
an

d 
H

&
S

 r
is

ks
 a

tta
ch

ed
.

(7
80

)

D
ep

ut
y 

F
in

an
ce

 D
ire

ct
or

S
av

in
gs

 o
f £

37
7k

 r
ep

re
se

nt
s 

th
e 

lo
ss

 o
f a

ro
un

d 
10

 p
os

ts
 (

de
pe

nd
in

g 
on

 g
ra

de
).

 
F

ur
th

er
 a

ct
io

n 
on

 a
 r

es
tr

uc
tu

re
d 

an
d 

re
du

ce
d 

fin
an

ce
 fu

nc
tio

n,
 ta

ki
ng

 a
cc

ou
nt

 o
f 

co
rp

or
at

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

, w
ith

 a
 c

om
m

en
su

ra
te

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 s
up

po
rt

 to
 s

er
vi

ce
 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ts

 is
 n

ee
de

d.
 A

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f n

on
-s

ta
ffi

ng
 b

ud
ge

ts
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
w

ill
 

al
so

 b
e 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
.

(3
77

)

56



E
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

es
 a

n
d

 im
p

ro
ve

d
 u

se
 o

f 
re

so
u

rc
es

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 B

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

20
13

/1
4

£'
00

0 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

av
in

g
s

D
ep

ut
y 

F
in

an
ce

 D
ire

ct
or

 -
  A

ud
it 

&
 

A
nt

i F
ra

ud
O

rig
in

al
 s

av
in

gs
 e

st
im

at
es

 w
er

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
D

W
P

's
 p

ro
po

sa
l f

or
 th

e 
si

ng
le

 fr
au

d 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

se
rv

ic
e,

 w
hi

ch
 is

 n
ot

 h
ap

pe
ni

ng
 a

t t
hi

s 
tim

e.
  S

av
in

gs
 o

f £
17

0k
 h

av
e 

be
en

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
fr

om
 th

e 
F

ra
ud

 C
on

tr
ac

t (
£1

0k
),

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
co

nt
ra

ct
 a

nd
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 in
ce

nt
iv

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
(£

35
k)

 a
nd

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 in

co
m

e 
of

 £
12

5k
 fr

om
 

P
ro

ce
ed

s 
of

 C
rim

e 
w

or
k 

an
d 

A
dm

in
 P

en
al

tie
s

(2
00

)

A
F

D
 F

in
an

ci
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s
R

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 p
os

ts
 a

nd
 r

ed
uc

e 
ru

nn
in

g 
co

st
s 

in
 th

e 
F

in
an

ce
 

T
ra

ns
ac

tio
na

l S
ha

re
d 

S
er

vi
ce

 (
F

T
S

S
) 

du
e 

to
 m

or
e 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 w
ay

s 
of

 w
or

ki
ng

. 
D

el
et

e 
ha

lf 
a 

po
st

 in
 F

T
S

S
 (

£1
7k

).

(4
0)

R
ev

en
ue

s 
an

d 
B

en
ef

its
S

av
in

gs
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

st
af

fin
g 

re
du

ct
io

ns
 (

le
ss

 C
T

/N
N

D
R

 in
sp

ec
to

rs
).

 R
is

k 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
ea

rs
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 s
ch

em
e 

in
 A

pr
il 

20
13

 
an

d 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f c

us
to

m
er

 c
on

ta
ct

/w
or

kl
oa

d.
 

(3
95

)

M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 C

IP
F

A
 tr

ai
ne

es
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

fr
om

 9
 to

 3
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
tr

ai
ne

e 
po

st
s,

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
in

 p
ar

t 
th

ro
ug

h 
co

ns
ol

id
at

io
n 

of
 tr

ai
ne

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 w

ith
in

 e
xi

st
in

g 
es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t w

he
re

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

.

(7
5)

Le
ga

l S
er

vi
ce

s
Le

ga
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

a 
ne

w
 s

tr
uc

tu
re

 in
 M

ay
 2

01
2 

de
liv

er
in

g 
a 

sa
vi

ng
 o

f 
£6

20
k.

 S
av

in
gs

 ta
rg

et
s 

to
 e

nd
 2

01
4 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ac

hi
ev

ed
.

(2
00

)

F
in

an
ce

 a
n

d
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s

(3
,7

67
)

C
or

po
ra

te
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f d
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l a
nd

 c
or

po
ra

te
 m

an
ag

em
en

t s
tr

uc
tu

re
s 

by
 D

ep
ut

y 
C

hi
ef

 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

(5
00

)

C
or

po
ra

te
S

av
in

gs
 a

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 th

e 
ac

qu
is

iti
on

 o
f T

oo
le

y 
S

tr
ee

t -
 to

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nn

ua
lly

(1
,5

00
)

T
o

ta
l C

o
rp

o
ra

te
(2

,0
00

)

T
o

ta
l e

ff
ic

ie
n

ci
es

 a
n

d
 im

p
ro

ve
d

 u
se

 o
f 

re
so

u
rc

es
(1

8,
68

7)

57



In
co

m
e 

G
en

er
at

io
n

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 C

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

20
13

/1
4

£'
00

0 

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

an
d

 L
ei

su
re

P
ub

lic
 R

ea
lm

In
cr

ea
se

 C
em

et
er

y 
an

d 
C

re
m

at
or

iu
m

 fe
es

 a
nd

 c
ha

rg
es

 to
 In

ne
r 

Lo
nd

on
 A

ve
ra

ge
.

(8
0)

P
ub

lic
 R

ea
lm

In
cr

ea
se

d 
in

co
m

e 
fr

om
 s

po
rt

s 
bo

ok
in

gs
 in

 p
ar

ks
(2

0)

T
o

ta
l E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
an

d
 L

ei
su

re
(1

00
)

C
h

ie
f 

E
xe

cu
ti

ve

P
ro

pe
rt

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
M

an
ag

ed
 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
H

ol
di

ng
 

A
cc

ou
nt

 a
nd

 In
du

st
ria

l P
ro

pe
rt

ie
s

In
cr

ea
se

d 
in

co
m

e 
du

e 
to

 r
en

t r
ev

ie
w

s 
an

d 
le

as
e 

re
ne

w
al

s 
(5

0)

T
o

ta
l C

h
ie

f 
E

xe
cu

ti
ve

(5
0)

T
o

ta
l I

n
co

m
e 

G
en

er
at

io
n

(1
50

)

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

av
in

g
s

58



S
av

in
g

s 
im

p
ac

ti
n

g
 o

n
 s

er
vi

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

20
13

/1
4

£'
00

0 

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
er

vi
ce

s

E
du

ca
tio

n 
A

 1
2%

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

E
IG

 fu
nd

ed
 C

hi
ld

re
ns

 C
en

tr
es

 b
ud

ge
ts

 a
nd

 c
om

m
is

si
on

in
g.

(4
00

)

E
du

ca
tio

n
S

ec
on

d 
ph

as
e 

in
 r

es
tr

uc
tu

rin
g 

th
e 

E
IG

 fu
nd

ed
 C

on
ne

xi
on

s 
S

er
vi

ce
 to

 r
ef

le
ct

 L
A

's
 

re
vi

se
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s.

(8
00

)

E
du

ca
tio

n 
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
E

IG
 fu

nd
ed

 E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 a
dv

is
er

s 
te

am
; a

nd
 P

V
I w

or
kf

or
ce

 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 b

ud
ge

t; 
a 

co
re

 s
er

vi
ce

 w
ill

 s
til

l o
pe

ra
te

 in
 a

 m
or

e 
ta

rg
et

ed
 w

ay
 fo

cu
ss

ed
 o

n 
ac

cr
ed

ite
d 

qu
al

ifi
ca

tio
ns

.

(5
00

)

S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g
R

ev
ie

w
in

g 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 S

LA
M

 "
ad

di
tio

na
l" 

co
nt

ra
ct

s 
fu

nd
ed

 fr
om

 E
IG

. 
(1

00
)

E
du

ca
tio

n
F

in
al

 s
ta

ge
s 

of
 p

la
nn

ed
 Y

ou
th

 T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e;

 o
ng

oi
ng

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

in
 c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 (

E
IG

)
(2

50
)

E
du

at
io

n
E

IG
 fu

nd
ed

 B
oo

ks
ta

rt
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
re

du
ct

io
n;

 s
er

vi
ce

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
 w

ith
 r

ed
uc

ed
 

ac
tiv

ity
; t

ar
ge

te
d 

fo
r 

m
os

t v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

ch
ild

re
n.

(2
20

)

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e

In
cr

ea
se

d 
us

e 
of

 p
er

so
na

lis
ed

 b
ud

ge
ts

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

ho
rt

 b
re

ak
s 

fo
r 

fa
m

ili
es

 w
ith

 
ch

ild
re

n 
w

ith
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s;
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 fu
nd

ed
 fr

om
 E

IG
.

(2
00

)

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e

C
on

tin
ui

ng
 tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
of

 C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

T
ea

m
s.

 (
P

ar
t E

IG
)

(3
50

)

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

av
in

g
s

59



S
av

in
g

s 
im

p
ac

ti
n

g
 o

n
 s

er
vi

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

20
13

/1
4

£'
00

0 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

av
in

g
s

S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g
P

ar
en

tin
g 

co
ur

se
s 

fu
nd

ed
 b

y 
E

IG
, t

o 
be

 fu
nd

ed
 d

ire
ct

ly
 b

y 
C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
C

en
tr

es
 a

nd
 

sc
ho

ol
s.

 
(5

0)

S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

E
IG

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

 th
e 

co
rp

or
at

e 
ad

vo
ca

cy
 

se
rv

ic
e.

(3
0)

E
du

ca
tio

n
R

ec
on

fig
ur

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

ea
rly

 y
ea

rs
 c

en
tr

es
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

m
od

el
(5

00
)

E
du

ca
tio

n
F

in
al

 s
ta

ge
s 

of
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

ba
ck

 o
ffi

ce
 fu

nc
tio

ns
 w

ith
 th

e 
tr

an
sf

er
 o

f t
he

 A
fte

r 
S

ch
oo

ls
 

S
er

vi
ce

 to
 S

ch
oo

ls
 a

nd
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f p
la

y 
se

rv
ic

es
.

(1
00

)

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 A
ge

nc
y 

S
pe

nd
 in

 S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s.

(3
00

)

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e

R
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 In
de

pe
nd

en
t F

os
te

r 
A

ge
nc

ie
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 fo
st

er
 c

ar
er

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h.

(2
50

)

T
o

ta
l C

h
ild

re
n

's
 S

er
vi

ce
s

(4
,0

50
)

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

ci
al

 C
ar

e

Le
ar

ni
ng

 D
is

ab
ili

tie
s

R
ed

es
ig

ni
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 
pe

rs
on

al
 b

ud
ge

ts
(1

,7
00

)

T
o

ta
l A

d
u

lt
 S

o
ci

al
 C

ar
e

(1
,7

00
)

60



S
av

in
g

s 
im

p
ac

ti
n

g
 o

n
 s

er
vi

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

20
13

/1
4

£'
00

0 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

av
in

g
s

H
o

u
si

n
g

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s

C
om

m
un

ity
 E

ng
ag

em
en

t
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 a

dv
ic

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
on

 r
e-

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t o

f c
on

tr
ac

t
(5

5)

C
us

to
m

er
 E

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
- 

H
ou

si
ng

 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t &
 S

up
po

rt
Le

ga
l b

ud
ge

t f
or

 s
ec

tio
n 

20
4 

&
 ju

di
ci

al
 r

ev
ie

w
s 

- 
de

m
an

d-
dr

iv
en

 S
LA

(1
5)

C
us

to
m

er
 E

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
- 

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s
E

xt
er

na
l p

ro
vi

de
rs

 -
 c

es
sa

tio
n 

of
 G

LA
-f

un
de

d 
pr

oj
ec

t o
n 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s 
pr

ev
en

tio
n

(1
00

)

C
us

to
m

er
 E

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
- 

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s
R

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 r

at
io

na
lis

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

P
riv

at
e 

T
en

an
cy

 T
ea

m
 -

 a
dd

 to
 h

om
el

es
s 

re
fe

rr
al

s
(7

0)

S
pe

ci
al

is
t H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
T

em
po

ra
ry

 A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 b
ed

 &
 b

re
ak

fa
st

 c
os

ts
 b

y 
us

e 
of

 o
th

er
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

pr
ov

is
io

n
(3

0)

T
o

ta
l H

o
u

si
n

g
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s
(2

70
)

C
h

ie
f 

E
xe

cu
ti

ve

E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t &

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

S
av

in
gs

 r
es

ul
tin

g 
fr

om
 r

e-
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
of

 s
ta

ffi
ng

 
(4

0)

T
o

ta
l C

h
ie

f 
E

xe
cu

ti
ve

(4
0)

T
o

ta
l s

av
in

g
s 

im
p

ac
ti

n
g

 o
n

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y
(6

,0
60

)

61



R
ev

er
sa

l o
f 

o
n

e-
 o

ff
 it

em
s 

fr
o

m
 2

01
2/

13
  

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 E

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

20
13

/1
4

£'
00

0

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

an
d

 L
ei

su
re

C
LL

L 
- 

C
ul

tu
re

R
ev

er
sa

l o
f o

ne
 o

ff 
bu

dg
et

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 in

 2
01

2/
13

 fo
r 

K
in

gs
w

oo
d 

H
ou

se
 fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 
st

ud
y 

w
hi

ch
 is

 n
ow

 c
om

pl
et

e.
 T

ot
al

 p
ro

je
ct

 c
os

t £
50

k 
w

ith
 £

5k
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

fr
om

 
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

S
ec

tio
n

(4
5)

C
LL

L 
- 

C
ul

tu
re

R
ev

er
sa

l o
f o

ne
 o

ff 
bu

dg
et

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 in

 2
01

2/
13

 fo
r 

ad
di

tio
na

l u
na

vo
id

ab
le

 c
os

ts
 

to
 E

&
L 

se
rv

ic
es

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

5 
w

ee
ks

 o
f t

he
 O

ly
m

pi
cs

 (
£3

0k
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

fo
r 

20
11

/1
2)

. 
(4

44
)

C
LL

L 
- 

Le
is

ur
e

R
ev

er
sa

l o
f 2

01
2/

13
 s

av
in

g 
(r

en
ta

l o
f M

el
lis

h 
F

ie
ld

s)
 d

ue
 to

 r
ev

is
ed

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t w

ith
 

B
ac

on
's

 C
ol

le
ge

.
20

T
o

ta
l E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
an

d
 L

ei
su

re
(4

69
)

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 B
u

d
g

et
s

C
or

po
ra

te
A

dj
us

tm
en

t f
or

 c
om

m
un

ity
 r

es
to

ra
tio

n 
fu

nd
 w

hi
ch

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 in

 2
01

2/
13

(1
,0

00
)

C
or

po
ra

te
F

in
al

 a
dj

us
tm

en
t o

f £
1.

5m
 v

ol
un

ta
ry

 s
ec

to
r 

tr
an

si
tio

n 
fu

nd
 s

et
 u

p 
or

ig
in

al
ly

 fo
r 

2 
ye

ar
s 

in
 2

01
1/

12
.  

(n
ot

e:
 o

f t
he

 £
1.

5m
 to

ta
l, 

£9
00

k 
ha

s 
be

en
 c

om
m

itt
ed

 to
 d

at
e,

 
le

av
in

g 
£6

00
k 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

in
 2

01
3/

14
)

(5
00

)

T
o

ta
l C

o
rp

o
ra

te
(1

,5
00

)

T
o

ta
l O

n
e 

- 
o

ff
 r

ev
er

sa
ls

(1
,9

69
)

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
it

m
en

ts

62



APPENDIX F  
 
Progress report on the Community Restoration Fund and Youth Fund 
 
Background 
 

1. The Community Restoration Fund (CRF) was announced, as part of the 
February 2012 budget setting process, in response to the civil unrest 
experienced in areas of Southwark in August 2011. It is a one off annual fund 
(2012-2013) and aims to restore community pride and deliver longer term 
solutions to support business growth and young people across the borough. 

 
2. The Youth Fund was announced as part of the February 2011 budget setting 

process. It is a 3 year (2011/2012-2013/2014) programme established in 
response to rising numbers of young people claiming out of work benefits, 
increased university tuition fees and the withdrawal of the national Education 
Maintenance Allowance scheme.  It aims to help young people in Southwark 
improve their long term employment prospects. 

 
3. A joint Advisory Board currently manages the delivery of these funding 

streams, chaired by the Strategic Director of Finance and Corporate Services. 
 

4. This report is intended to provide an update on progress on the delivery of the 
CRF and Youth Fund.   

 
Progress to date - Community Restoration Fund (CRF) 

 
5. There are two elements to the CRF: supporting young people and supporting 

businesses. 
 

6. The objectives of the youth element of the CRF are: 
 

• To invest in increased positive opportunities for young people with the aim of 
giving young people more things to do; 

• To provide opportunities which prevent or intervene to divert the small 
number of young people who are at risk of making poor life choices, including 
criminal activity, and support a pathway to positive activities within the 
community. 
 

7. The objectives of the business element of the CRF are: 
 

• To place thriving high streets and town centres at the centre of local 
communities that attract increased footfall and economic activity from across 
Southwark’s diverse communities;  

• To ensure businesses are more able to adapt and innovate in response to 
regeneration and changing local economic circumstances; 

• To get businesses to work together collaboratively to share ideas and 
resources and achieve increased economic growth in their area. 
  

8. Overall, the CRF has been successful in developing and maintaining 6 area 
specific business networks across the borough. It has supported young 
people to start their own business and has engaged young people in positive 
activities, diverting them from criminal activities. It has provided access to 
information advice and guidance through the Youth Buses service and 

63



summer activities through ‘pop-up’ programmes. 
 
9.  Key activities and outcomes delivered through the CRF to date include: 
 
• A pop-up shop project, delivered by Creation Trust, delivering business start-

up support to those interested in becoming self-employed  
• Sustaining low numbers of people not in education, employment and training 

(NEET) in the borough 
• More young people engaged in enterprise development through the "App 

project" and the "Mind your own Business" programme. 
• More provision available for young people through Community Council Youth 

Grants 
• Greater interaction between businesses in local areas such as Camberwell, 

Tower Bridge and Peckham 
• Business surveys conducted to gain better insight into business needs in 

different localities 
• Improved communication channels through the development of new business 

network websites in Camberwell, Bermondsey, Walworth and Peckham 
• Greater community engagement in the delivery of projects and events such 

as local young people running Reprezent’s Talking Shop Radio show and 
local communities engaged in a range of festive and other themed markets 

• Development of a business improvement district in Bermondsey 
• Improved perception of the council by local business. 

 
10.  The CRF performance summary to date is: 
 

 Spend to 
date  

Outcomes achieved Performance summary 

Supporting 
Young 
People  

£450,000  More YP engaged in 
positive activities. 
 
Greater sense of 
community 
engagement in 
project development 
and implementation. 
 
Young people 
supported to start 
their own businesses  
 
Increased access to 
further education, 
training and 
employment  
 

Community Council Grants: 100k funding 
made available between Community 
Councils for small projects to deliver 
improved outcomes for young people. 
Approximately 100 applications for funding 
have been received; projects will start in 
April 2013. 
   
Youth Buses – Buses in various locations 
throughout the borough focusing on hot spot 
areas as identified by Southwark Anti-Social 
Behaviour Unit and the Police. 
 
Mobile delivery has also been extended with 
the purchase of Mobile Recording/Film 
studio called 'The Mix Bus' ensuring the 
service offer can be extended. 
 
Buses have also been used at various 
events promoting youth service activity and 
are working directly after school closure time 
in identified areas. 
 
Pop up youth clubs - 148 individual young 
people attended the two pop up projects 
with in excess of 800 visits to the projects 
during the summer period. 
 

64



Various activities were in place including film 
clubs, CV writing and life skills projects. The 
pop up clubs helped young people gain 
access to College and access to 
employment opportunities. 
 
‘Mind your own Business’ Business 
Bursaries scheme - 40 applications 
received in first funding round.  13 business 
ideas selected by the panel to go forward to 
next round. These 13 will work with London 
Youth Support Trust to produce a business 
plan. First grants will be allocated in 
February 2013 and second round of funding 
will take place in March 2013. 
 
 
  

Supporting 
Business 
Growth 

£199,330 Identifiable business 
networks established 
across the borough. 
 
Increased interaction 
between business 
network and the 
Council. 
 
Improvements made 
to key town centres 
and high streets 

32 people to date have completed their retail 
training programme and delivered 2 Pop-UP 
Shops in Walworth; 2 people have gone on 
to start their own business.  
6 business networks have been established 
and developed across the borough  
More businesses are actively engaged and 
have signed up to the newly developed 
business networks 
More interaction between local businesses 
and young people 
Approximately 10 community events and 
markets have taken place to date 

 
Progress to date - Youth Fund  
 

11. The Youth Fund was put in place in 2011/12 for three years with the key 
objective of providing support and assistance to improve the life chances of 
some of the most vulnerable young people in the borough.  In particular the 
fund intended to support activities that helped to improve the educational 
outcomes of young people and help support them access local job 
opportunities.  
 

12. On 27th July 2011 the youth fund was formally agreed through an IDM 
allocating £3,175,000 over a three year period. 
  

13. The fund is currently delivered through 3 strands:  
 

• the Southwark Scholarship Scheme delivers financial support to fund 
university study for some of the most vulnerable young people in the borough; 

• the Southwark Educational Maintenance Supplement (SEMS) delivers 
financial assistance for young people aged 16-18 in learning;   

• the Southwark Employment Training Scheme (SETS) delivers employment 
support for young people aged 16-24 leaving education.  

 
 
 
 
 

65



Southwark Scholarship Scheme 
 

14. To date 13 scholarship beneficiaries have received financial support to fund 
their university study fees.  

  
15. The subjects of study that the 13 scholarship beneficiaries are attending is as 

follows:  
 

• Accounting and Finance,  
• Economics,  
• Mathematics,  
• Sociology,  
• Law,  
• Sports Science,  
• Computer Systems and Networking,  
• Civil Engineering,  
• Criminology and Psychosocial Studies,  
• Sociology,  
• Business and Marketing and  
• Biomedical Science. 

 
16. The scholarship scheme has a total budget allocation of £400k over the 

current lifetime of the programme.  
17. The budget report proposes that resources be provided to extend the youth 

fund for a further three years until 2016/17. This will provide assurance for the 
future delivery of the scholarship scheme. 

 
 
Southwark Educational Maintenance Supplement (SEMS) 
 

18. The government abolished the Education Maintenance Allowance (EMA) on 
the grounds that it did not provide value for money.  This meant that from 
January 2011 no new learners were eligible for EMA, although those already 
in receipt continued to receive reduced support until the end of that academic 
year. The scheme cost £560m per annum in England.  Qualitative research 
for the government found that EMAs had limited effect on keeping learners in 
education.  When recipients of EMA were asked what they would do in the 
absence of EMA only 12% said they would not be in education.  The 
government therefore interpreted that 88% of students receiving EMAs would 
be in education even without it.   

 
19. In Southwark in 2010/11 there were over 10,000 16-18 residents in 

Southwark the majority of who attended schools and colleges outside 
Southwark.  There were 3,729 Southwark residents receiving EMAs at 
schools and colleges in and out of Southwark (i.e. approaching 40% of 
Southwark’s 16-18 year olds residents).  By contrast the Youth Fund 
Southwark Educational Maintenance Supplement (SEMS) in 2012/13 only 
reached about 900 students.  This reflects the much more restrictive criteria 
used for eligibility in SEMS. EMA was available to students from households 
earning up to £30,810 pa whereas SEMS sets an income limit of £16,190 (in 
line with Free Schools Meals eligibility criteria).  Also in 2012/13 EMAs were 
still available to some students and they were therefore not supported by 
SEMS 

 

66



20. SEMS was not conceived as a replacement for EMAs. The cost of EMAs to 
Southwark students in 2010/11 was between £3m-£4m but the budget for 
SEMS was just £600,000.  It was obvious therefore that SEMS could not 
match the scale and reach of EMAs in Southwark but was intended as part of 
a package to promote opportunities for young people through the Youth Fund. 
The average amount paid out by EMA to learners in Southwark was about 
£1000 whereas SEMS was only able to pay £262 per learner. EMA was also 
paid directly into the learner’s bank account while SEMS is paid to providers 
based on data they provide about the number of eligible learners. 

 
21. Many providers also provide additional support to students in need using 

money left over from the national 16-18 bursary fund after they have met the 
needs of those entitled to £1200 from this fund (care leavers, disabled 
students and 16-18 year olds receiving income support).  Providers also add 
money from their own budgets to compensate for the end of EMA.  This can 
amount to hundreds of pounds and so is more significant than SEMS. 
Nevertheless SEMS has been a vital addition for many students and a survey 
done by email and phone found that students regarded it as having enabled 
them to stay on in education.  

 
Southwark Employment Training Scheme (SETS) 

 
22. There are several factors that contribute to continuing youth unemployment.  

These include: young people are less likely to have work experience; young 
people lack specific skills; young people don’t have access to adequate 
support networks and employers; young people aren’t yet familiar with the 
‘world of work’ and often struggle to navigate the local employment support 
system.  

 
23. Although London remains a supplier of jobs, competition to secure these jobs 

continues to increase. An increase in demand for high skilled jobs at one end 
and more low level service sector jobs at the other means the labour market 
may be ‘hollowing out’ with more competition for lower level jobs.  This acts 
as a further barrier to employment for young people, who then less prepared 
to compete for jobs in an open market.   
 

24. Recognising some of these issues, SETS aims to help young people gain 
access to available local employment opportunities and training.  

 
25. To date, SETS has supported 431 young people.  126 have gained work 

experience and 62 have secured employment.  Key observations from the 
delivery of the SETs include: 

 
• the spectrum of need of the young people on the programme is wide; 
• there is a large variation in the skills levels of the young people on the 

programme; 
• recent university graduates are struggling to secure employment; 
• there is lack of sector specific information about what jobs are available; 
• young people want help to navigate the local employment support system 

and work out what they want to do; 
• young people lack confidence and understanding of how to ‘sell their 

skills’ to employers;  
• young people benefit from having a mentor/advisor who can help them to 

realise their talents and ambitious. 

67



 
26. SETS has been able to help young people make the transition from education 

to employment by giving them access to opportunities in the labour market, 
building their employability skills and raising their confidence. It has proved 
challenging to secure evidence of sustainable job outcomes over 13-26 
weeks.  This may be because of a number of factors including: the entry level 
jobs available are short term; young people do not wish to continue to engage 
with providers following job entry; young people move into training/further 
education following a period of employment; providers need to improve their 
monitoring techniques.  

 
27. The majority of referrals for the SETS have been from Jobcentre Plus which 

suggests that this support has been successful in filling a gap that 
mainstream provision is not easily able to provide. 
 

28. It should be noted that during 2012/13 Red Kite Learning, one of the 
providers contracted to deliver the largest proportion of outputs through 
SETS, ceased operation. 
 

29. Overall, the youth fund performance summary to date is:  
 

 Total 
Budget 
allocation 
(2011-2014) 

Spend (or 
committed) 
to date  

Outcomes 
achieved 

Performance against 
key indicators to date 

SSS £ 400 000 £287,000 Talented YP given 
the opportunity to 
reach their learning 
potential 

13 students have been 
awarded a scholarship 
since the start of the 
programme.  
 
SSS aims to support 21 
students in total. 
 
Students from the following 
wards have gained 
scholarships: 
 
Cathedral (3 people) 
Faraday (2 people) 
Newington 
Peckham 
Rotherhithe 
College 
East Dulwich 
Grange 
Livesey 
 

SEMS £1,800,000 The total 
£300,000 
budget for 
2011-12 was 
allocated.   
 
For 2012-13 
the budget is 
£600,000 - to 
date 

Successful in 
ensuring young 
people in the 
borough remain in 
education.   
 
Helped to sustain 
Southwark’s NEET 
numbers at a low 
level – 495 NEET 

In 2011/12 the scheme 
supported 922 learners at 
33 providers inside and 
outside Southwark.   
 
In 2012/13 to date, the 
scheme is supporting 1280 
learners at 30 providers. 
 
A questionnaire has been 

68



£382,500 
has been 
allocated.   

16-18 year olds. sent to pupils who have 
benefited from the scheme 
103 (11% of the number of 
students funded) from 22 
providers have responded 
to date.  Survey findings 
show: 
     
- Travel, books and food 
were the most common 
uses of the funding;  
- All respondents said 
SEMS helped them stay in 
education; 
- Some students say it was 
"vital";  
- Others students felt the 
amount wasn’t enough.   
 

SETS £ 975,000 2011/12 
spend of 
£298,158. 
 
2012/13 
allocated 
spend to 
date is 
£165,133. 
 

Young people 
supported to 
increase their 
employability and 
compete in the 
labour market.  
 
 

Key outputs since October 
2011: 
 
Numbers supported: 475 
Work Placements: 146 
Entry to jobs: 65 
Jobs sustained for 13 
weeks: 22 
Jobs sustained for 26 
weeks: 8* 
 
 
*recorded for 3 projects 
delivering in 12/13 
 

 
Consultation  

 
30. The Youth Fund was established in response to high rates of youth 

unemployment in the borough and the impact of the removal of education 
maintenance allowances as part of the 2011/2012 budget which followed an 
extensive consultation. This included the Southwark Spending Challenge. 
This challenge involved seeking views from each Community Council and 
through meetings with key community groups. The consultation process 
began in September 2010 with Cabinet Members agreeing a set of budget 
principles and then visiting community councils, and other groups.  

 
31. The decision to establish the CRF followed the disturbances of August 2011.  

In the immediate aftermath of the disturbances the council held a series of 
‘community conversations’ where individuals and groups provided insight into 
the impact of the disturbances and what could be done to learn for the future. 
These highlighted that young people need and value opportunities to be part 
of their community and in the decisions that affect them.  

 
32. During January 2012, the Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Corporate 

Strategy held a series of meetings with key stakeholders, including local 
business leaders and business organisations, to discuss the development of 
the CRF. This helped to establish the scope of the fund and the process by 
which it would be distributed.  

69



 
33. The Southwark Youth Council were involved in developing the proposals for 

the supporting young people element of the CRF and supported the 
implementation of the projects supported through this fund. 

 
34. CRF projects have been presented to Community Council’s for discussion 

and the youth community councils are helping to determine funding 
allocations in their respective areas through the Community Council Youth 
Grant. 
 

Summary of funding  
 
35. The following funding allocations are in place for the youth element of the 

CRF: 
 

Project Amount awarded 
 

Community Council Youth Grants £100,000 
 

App centre £85,000 
 

Business start-up bursaries (Mind your 
own Business) 

£70,000  
 

Pop-up youth projects £62,200 
 

Youth Buses £180,000 
 

Total  £497,200 
 
36. The following funding allocations are in place for the business element of the 

CRF: 
 

Organisation Project Funding allocation 
Bermondsey Business 
Association 
 

Bermondsey BID £30,000 

Business Extra 
 

Walworth Town Team £100,000 

Camberwell Business 
Network 
 

Camberwell is Cool 
campaign 

£50,000 

Creation Trust 
 

Pop-Up Retail project £84,000 

Deli Felice (on behalf of 
Albion Street businesses) 
 

Albion Street Traders  £4,800 

Eclectic Productions Reprezent Radio’s 
Talking: Shop 

£31,430 

The Means 
 

Peckham Town Team £100,000 

Tower Tandoori (on behalf 
of Tower Bridge Road 
businesses) 
 

Tower Bridge Road 
Alliance 

£40,000 
 

Total   £440,340 

70



 
37. The following funding allocations are in place for the youth fund: 

 
 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Total 
Southwark 
Educational 
Maintenance 
Supplement 

£ 300,000 £ 600,000 £ 600,000 £ 300,000 £1,800,000 

Southwark 
Scholarship 
Scheme 

£ 50,000 £ 100,000 £ 150,000 £ 100,000 £ 400,000 

Southwark 
Employment 
Training 
Scheme 

£ 350,000 £ 325,000 £ 300,000   £ 975,000 

Total £ 700,000 £ 1,025,000 £ 1 050 000 £ 400 000 £ 3 175 000 
 
 
 
 
 
 

71



 

Item No.  
10. 

 

Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
12 February 2013 

Meeting Name: 
Cabinet 
 

Report title: 
 

Revenue Monitoring Report for Quarter 3, 2012/13, 
including Treasury Management 
 

Ward(s) or groups 
affected: 
 

All 

Cabinet Member: 
 
 

Councillor Richard Livingstone, Finance, Resources 
and Community Safety  

 
 
FOREWORD – COUNCILLOR RICHARD LIVINGSTONE, CABINET MEMBER FOR 
FINANCE, RESOURCES AND COMMUNITY SAFETY 
 
This report sets out the Council's financial position against its budgets for 2012/13 as 
at the end of December 2012, and asks Cabinet to agree the budget movements set 
out in Appendix A. 
 
On the general fund, overall departments are making the savings required for the year.  
There have been particular pressures on the Housing and Community Services 
department, Children's Services and the Chief Executive's Department but these have 
been balanced by significant further savings achieved by Adult Social Care and the 
Environment and Leisure Department.   
 
As in previous quarters, the planned savings from the Customer Services Centre have 
yet to be realised and appear unlikely to be until the service moves in-house next year. 
The Council's contingency budget will afford us the scope to deal with this issue and it 
is currently projected that £2.8m from this fund will be required. 
 
For the Housing Revenue Account, there is a favourable variance, mainly as a result 
of systematic improvements in contract management and cost control which continues 
to deliver greater value overall. This is in stark contrast to the deficit run on the HRA a 
few years ago.  The report also sets out future pressures on this budget that are likely 
to arise through government's welfare reform and the Council's re-housing 
programme. 
 
The report also identifies movements in the Council's reserves. 
 
The Collection Fund is projected to deliver a surplus this year, and improvement on 
the break-even position predicted in quarter 2.  This appears to be at least partly as a 
result of the work carried out to target single person discount fraud for council tax in 
the autumn.  This is welcome news given the particular challenges facing council tax 
collection in 2013/14 arising from government's abolition of Council Tax Benefit. 
 
On the Council's Treasury Management activity, the most significant transaction has 
been the purchase of 160 Tooley Street. The impact of this purchase is set out in the 
report and it is noted that savings are already being reported as a result of the 
acquisition. 
 

Agenda Item 10
72



 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1. That the cabinet notes: 
 

• the general fund outturn forecast for 2012/13 and the resultant forecast 
net movement in reserves; 

• the housing revenue account’s (HRA) forecast outturn for 2012/13 and 
resulting forecast movement in reserves; 

• the treasury management activity for the third quarter of 2012/13; 
 
2. That the cabinet notes the initial revenue savings arising from the Council’s 

purchase of 160 Tooley Street. 
 
3. That the cabinet notes the forecast Council Tax and Business Rates collection 

fund balance as at 31 March 2013. 
 
4. That the cabinet approves the general fund budget movements during quarter 

three that exceed £250k, as shown in Appendix A. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
General fund 
 
5. The purpose of this report is to provide a forecast for the end of the financial year 

2012/13. This is based on predictions made by service managers based on 
financial activity to date and anticipated commitments and income for their 
service. Work continues throughout the Council to ensure that a balanced 
position is achieved by the end of the year.  

 
6. The Council agreed a balanced general fund budget of £308.2m on 29 February 

2012 based on a nil council tax increase.  This budget was set in the context of 
further significant overall cuts in government funding and the identification of 
some 25% savings proposals over the three years from 2011/12 to 2013/14, to 
mitigate against the reduction in resources and to continue to fund the Council’s 
commitments in terms of services provided. 

 
7. In setting the budget the Council continues to strive for a Fairer Future for All in 

Southwark despite the challenges of the national financial climate.  Key elements 
of the 2012/13 budget included: 

 
• A further year's freeze in Council Tax 
• The introduction of clear plans to ensure that the London Living Wage 

benefits not only directly employed staff but also those who work for the 
Council through employment agencies or through contractors 

• The establishment of a new Cleaner Greener Safer Revenue Fund for 
Community Councils to determine, devolving more decisions to a more 
local level 

• The establishment of a Community Restoration Fund to respond to the 
challenge of the August 2011 disorder events 

• The use of £4.4m from the Council's reserves to help with the pressures on 
the budget 

• Further rollout of the Free Healthy School Meals programme for primary 
schools to include years 2, 3 and 4 from September 2012, in addition to the 

73



 

coverage of Reception and Year 1 classes 
• Further reduction in Meals on Wheels prices 
• Continuing the Voluntary Sector Transition Fund scheme established in 

2011.  
 

8. The Council also approved budget decisions including agreed budget reductions 
of some £28m and approved commitments of £10.2m within general fund for 
2012/13. Performance on achieving these savings is closely monitored and 
details are provided in paragraphs 48 to 52 below.  

 
9. The Council Plan placed local needs and accountability as the drivers of 

performance improvement, and in an environment of significantly reduced 
funding, the Council has to change in fundamental ways.  There are a number of 
transformation projects underway, and work continues to identify further ways of 
transforming the delivery of services.  These transformation or invest to save 
projects may be funded from on-going positive variances or previously created 
earmarked reserves which were established to pump prime initiatives. 
 

Housing revenue account 
 
10. Cabinet set tenants’ rents and service charges on 24 January 2012 in line with 

the formula used in previous years.  The budget included a £6.4m savings target 
for 2012/13.  The starting point of this process was to listen to residents’ 
concerns about the services they wish to protect, and identify the potential for 
better value for money and more efficient ways of working. 

 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION  

 
Current forecast position: General fund budget monitor for quarter three 
 
11. Table 1 below shows the current forecast outturn position for quarter three by 

department. These estimates are based on nine months’ experience and reflect 
the impact of stringent management action implemented by all strategic directors 
to ensure that they deliver their services within budget and to meet other targets 
as agreed through the policy and resources strategy in February 2012 by council 
assembly.  Progress for each department is shown in paragraphs 16 to 36 
below. 

 
12. At the start of this quarter, following top level management restructuring, 

children’s services and adult social care have been merged under one strategic 
director. However for consistency with earlier monitoring reports, the two 
services continue to be shown separately in the table below. This position will be 
amended for 2013/14. 
 

74



 

Table 1: General fund forecast outturn position for 2012/13 as at 31 
December 2012 

General fund 

2012/13 
Original 
budget   

Budget 
movements 

2012/13 
revised 
budget  

2012/13 
forecast 
outturn  

Variance 
- over / 
(under)   

Variance  
at Q2 
2012/13 
- over / 
(under) 

   £'000   £'000   £'000   £'000   £'000     £'000  

               

Children's services 85,766 80 85,846 86,146 300   0 

Adult social care 107,718 (990) 106,728 105,942 (786)   (775) 

Environment and leisure 70,412 2,049 72,461 72,156 (305)   (74) 

Housing and community services 44,065 (1,938) 42,127 42,612 485   704 

Chief executive's department 19,007 2,034 21,041 21,152 111   (68) 

Finance and corporate services 41,483 (1,318) 40,165 40,170 5   4 

Customer services centre  (3,000) 0 (3,000) 0 3,000   3,000 

Support cost recharges  (59,308) 1,069 (58,239) (58,239) 0   0 

Total general fund services 306,143 986 307,129 309,939 2,810   2,791 

Contingency 5,500 0 5,500 0 (5,500)   (5,500) 
Appropriations to/(from) reserves 
(see Table 4) (3,446) (986) (4,432) (4,432) 0   0 

General fund total 308,197 0 308,197 305,507 (2,690)   (2,709) 
 Note:  Explanations of budget movements for quarter 3 which exceed £250k are provided in Appendix A. 
 

13. As previously reported at quarters one and two, the general fund forecast 
includes estimates of one off re-organisation and redundancy costs that the 
Council expects to incur as it continues to put into action plans necessary to 
deliver the ongoing savings identified within the budget.  At the close of 2011/12 
the Council was able to contribute £5.4m from contingency to reserves.  This will 
be used as the first call for supporting the 2012/13 revenue budget which 
includes a planned £4.4m contribution from reserves. The balance will be used 
to replenish reserves, some of which are held to support the ongoing redesign of 
services and invest to save projects to make the Council fit for the future and to 
sustain regeneration and development projects where costs may be of a one off 
nature and less easy to predict. 

 
14. As shown in Table 1, within services there is a forecast adverse variance of 

£2.8m based on the information available by the end of December.  However 
with the planned contribution from reserves and availability of the contingency 
budget of £5.5m, there is an overall favourable variance of £2.7m projected for 
the general fund by the end of 2012/13. 

 
15. Table 1 includes net budget movements by department.  Detail for quarters one 

an two were provided in the July and November 2012 monitoring reports to 
cabinet. The quarter three movements are detailed in Appendix A.  

 
Children’s services  

 
16. Children’s services budgets are predicting a £300k adverse variance on a total 

budget of £85.8m, (compared with a zero variance at quarter two). 
 
17. Transformation and restructuring are still ongoing from the previous year. There 

are underlying cost pressures in specialist services being mitigated by 
favourable variances as described below: 

 

75



 

 
• Cost pressures within specialist services have risen to £1.4m in total, 

attributable to increasing numbers of children placed in independent 
fostering agencies (IFA) and financial aid to an increasing number of 
families that have “no recourse to public funds”. Management action 
being taken to address the IFA increase includes: recruiting more foster 
carers in Southwark to reduce dependence on IFAs and establishing a 
placements approval panel to ensure that all other possible alternatives 
are considered first. In addition, work is underway to establish a single 
service across children's and adults services and housing to efficiently 
manage "no recourse" families and ensure the families with a legitimate 
claim for support receive the support they need as quickly as possible. 
Further, officers are working with the UK Borders Agency to identify high 
cost "no resource" families to ensure they process their applications as 
quickly as possible.   

 
• This variance is mainly offset by favourable variances within Education, 

attributable to vacant posts and management action taken to accelerate 
the 2013/14 savings and to hold budgets to support the specialist 
services pressures.  

 
18. The 2012/13 savings targets of £6.174m are on track to be met.  
 
Schools budget 

 
19. The dedicated schools grant (DSG) - local authority budget is predicting a 

favourable variance of £300k compared to a favourable variance of £500k at 
quarter two.  Cost pressures are rising with an increased number of students 
with complex special educational needs being placed in out of borough special 
schools; this budget pressure has been offset by staffing vacancies, and under 
utilisation of school contingencies within the totality of the DSG budget.  

 
Adult social care 

 
20. Adult social care is forecasting a favourable variance of £786k at the end of 

quarter three, little changed from quarter two. This includes a prudent provision 
to meet costs associated with the transformation of adult care accommodation 
which will be funded through a combination of corporate resources and revenue.  
In addition an unbudgeted receipt from the NHS for winter pressure will be 
placed in reserves to ensure the resources are used effectively.   

 
21. As previously reported, the division is in the second year of a three year savings 

plan of £27m with the 2011/12 target of £7.7m having been largely delivered. 
The 2012/13 target is £10.3m with the latest projections indicating pressures of 
£0.5m in Mental Health detailed later in this report. To mitigate against these 
pressures, management are implementing compensating savings in a number of 
areas including continuing the momentum of re-ablement benefits and improving 
the procurement process. 

 
22. As well as managing savings pressures, demand in high cost and high needs 

care arrangements within the physical disability services is evident, for example 
in spot placements and also difficult to budget for costs in no recourse to public 
funds which are all being addressed by management.  

76



 

 
Environment and leisure 
 
23. The department is forecasting a favourable variance of £305k for the year 

compared to a £74k favourable variance position reported at end of the second 
quarter.  

 
24. The variance now reported is after returning £500k budget allocated to fund 

pressures in the parking income, identified in 2012/13, subject to six months 
review and setting up £900k as capital reserve for parking related infrastructure 
investments. At the review it was clear that changes to legal regime and the 
contractors performance, combined with a mild winter has led to a rebound in 
parking income.  

 
25. The latest estimates shows that £144k funding allocated for additional costs 

during Olympics period was not required. This variance is included in the 
projection. Although there are a number of pressures in the department, these 
are being closely monitored and the department is expecting to contain them 
within the existing budgets.   

 
26. It is assumed that one off early retirement and redundancy costs of £774k 

(previous estimate was £400k at end of quarter two) incurred this year will be 
funded from the modernisation reserve. At the moment this funding means that 
the department is able to forecast a favourable variance at year end. However in 
the event that this variance remains unchanged, it is likely that the call on 
reserves will be reduced by £305k and the department report a neutral/ 
breakeven final outturn position. 

 
Housing and community services (H&CS) 

 
27. The position at quarter three remains slightly over budget, albeit this shows 

improvement over previous reports. Projected spending within the customer 
experience division has reduced as cost profiles/ trends and commitments 
become clearer. The forecast currently assumes a release of earmarked 
reserves of £232k comprising £174k redundancy and £58k community 
engagement (referred to below). 

 
28. As previously reported, following the breakup of the communities, law & 

governance department (CLG), community engagement transferred to housing 
mid-year and merged with resident involvement to form a separate division 
within the newly named housing & community services department. The 
application of savings targets following the reconfiguration of community councils 
during 2011/12 has created some residual budget pressure that cannot be 
contained within budget but will be covered by corporate reserves specifically 
earmarked for this purpose. In addition, registrars and coroners have also 
recently transferred into the H&CS department under the customer experience 
division. Despite some initial budget pressure, this activity is forecast to be 
neutral by year-end.  

 
29. The move to bring the customer service centre in-house from June 2013 

represents a very challenging target given the scale of the operation, but 
provides the opportunity to reconfigure and improve customer access and 
service delivery and drive out substantial savings over the medium term by 
moving towards more cost effective transaction routes and operational 
efficiencies. In the short-term however, costs are forecast to exceed budget in 

77



 

2012/13 as we transition to the new arrangements, albeit the forecast is lower 
than at quarter two. The forecast includes all scheduled contract payments to 
Vangent agreed as part of the termination agreement, subject to them hitting a 
series of performance milestones. Transition costs relating to the development 
and implementation of the new customer relationship management (CRM) 
system and infrastructure upgrades will be held separately from the routine 
contract operating account and met from corporate resources earmarked for this 
purpose. 

 
30. Following further restructuring, the community housing services division has 

been disbanded and the functions formerly undertaken have been subsumed 
within the specialist housing services and customer experience divisions (with 
the exception of functions that currently remain within the housing general fund 
pending transfer to corporate strategy during quarter four). Budgets have been 
realigned and consolidated and are reflected for the first time in the quarter three 
monitor, which renders direct comparison with previous monitors at a divisional 
level difficult. By far the greatest financial risk for the Council is the cost of 
temporary accommodation provision, particularly bed & breakfast. Whilst 
Southwark ranks highly in terms of homeless prevention, the demand-led nature 
places a disproportionate financial burden on the budget, requiring stringent 
monitoring and control and diversion into more financially neutral forms of 
accommodation, i.e. estate voids and hostels in the HRA.  

 
31. The forecast shows some budget pressure across the activity as a whole at 

quarter three, including around £60k of redundancies, which will be a call on 
corporate reserves.  Looking forward, the impending welfare reforms and 
housing benefit changes will have a detrimental impact on the Council’s ability to 
prevent homelessness as use of the private rented sector becomes less 
affordable and the cost of private sector leasing (PSL) provision will no longer be 
cost neutral. The extent of this is difficult to predict at this stage, but will be built 
into base budgets for 2013/14 as required.  

 
Chief executive’s department  

 
32. The Chief Executive’s department is forecasting an overall adverse variance of 

£111k after the release of earmarked reserves for regeneration projects. The 
revenue monitor also takes into account the 2012/13 base budget savings of 
£1.3m which are being projected as fully achievable. Management action will 
continue with a view to delivering the budget on target by the end of the financial 
year. 

 
Finance and corporate services 
 
33. Finance and corporate services continues to forecast a small adverse variance 

this quarter as it did at quarter two although management action continues to 
ensure that the services are delivered within budget. 

 
34. The department is undergoing a fundamental restructure including, further 

reviews of the provision of IT services, further re-organisations of staffing 
structures across the finance and legal services divisions, and a review of major 
corporate facilities management contracts. 

 
35. Savings of £3m were allocated this year and are expected to be met. Where this 

is not possible, substitution options will be found to ensure the overall target will 
be achieved. 

78



 

 
36. The purchase of the Council’s head offices at 160 Tooley Street is expected to 

deliver additional savings this financial year of £750k. These initial savings will 
be set aside to fund future invest to save opportunities or other initiatives 
approved by Cabinet. The 2013/14 budget report will include full year budget 
savings moving forward subject to necessary accounting treatment and 
regulation. 

 
Customer services centre savings 
 
37. As stated in paragraph 29 and previously reported, the contract with the external 

provider of customer services will cease in June 2013. This means that the 
profile for the achievement of savings will not be delivered as planned. However, 
as was the case in 2011/12 and previously reported, this year’s savings target 
will be managed corporately. 

 
Contingency 
 
38. The 2012/13 budget includes £5.5m for contingency. This budget is held to meet 

unforeseen costs that may arise during the year within departments that strategic 
directors are unable to contain. It also provides a buffer in the event of any of the 
significant savings targets not being achieved (e.g. CSC savings that cannot be 
delivered before June 2013). As at quarter one and two, the overall projection 
assumes that the contingency budget of £5.5m will be used to address cost 
pressures identified. Where contingency is not required, it will be returned to 
balances to mitigate future budget risks or earmarked to support future corporate 
priorities. 

 
Housing revenue account (HRA) 
 
39. Spending on landlord responsibilities for the management, maintenance and 

improvement of the housing stock continues apace. There is constant spending 
pressure in the system, but systematic improvements in contract management 
and cost control over high volume, high value budgets such as repairs, 
engineering and heating continues to deliver greater value overall and has 
contributed significantly to the efficiency savings programme delivered over the 
last two years. There are also a number of potential and known variances 
against the base budget and planned reserve movements occurring during 
2012/13, which are reported here for the first time as cost profiles/ trends and 
commitments become clearer.  

79



 

 
Table 2: HRA forecast outturn position for 2012/13 as at quarter 3 (31 
December 2012) 

  Net Expenditure   
  Full Year 

Budget 
Forecast 
Outturn 

Forecast 
Variance Revised t 

Variances 
reported at 
Q2 * 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Operations (167,577) (167,532) 45 (300) 
Maintenance & Compliance  44,039 45,359 1,320 700 
Major Works  849 855 6 0 
Specialist Housing Services (32,972) (33,163) (191) (900) 
Strategic Services (SDoF&CS) 121,922 118,335 (3,587) (170) 
Customer Experience 1,924 1,864 (60) 100 
Community Engagement 1,864 1,726 (138) (100) 
Regeneration Initiatives (CE) 1,551 1,366 (185) (200) 
Heating Account 12,198 10,698 (1,500) 0 
Direct Revenue Funding of Capital 12,727 12,727 0 0 

Total (3,475) (7,765) (4,290) (870) 
         
Appropriations to /(from) Reserves 3,475 7,765 4,290 870 

         
Total HRA 

0 0 0 0 
* Note: Quarter two variances have been revised due to restructuring. 

 
40. With the introduction of self-financing from April 2012, the income stream has 

assumed paramount importance in terms of the HRA business plan. Income 
collection performance (for rent and tenant service charges) continues to show 
gradual improvement month on month, despite the generally weak economic 
conditions, but remains below the management target for mainstream tenanted 
stock, including former tenant arrears. Conversely, the rental stream (gross rent 
debit minus voids) has shown better than expected performance as stock/ void 
losses are lower than estimated, which mitigates the position to some extent. 
The HRA holds specific revenue provisions to meet any shortfall arising from 
non-collection and stock loss and this can be contained within budget in 
2012/13. As we move into 2013/14, the risk for collection performance increases 
as the impact of welfare reforms (benefit caps and universal credit) come into 
play. The extent of this is difficult to predict at this stage as it depends on a 
number of factors, but has been recognised and forms an integral part of budget 
planning for next year.  

 
41. The garage portfolio has for some time been neglected and under-utilised with a 

high volume of unlettable voids. However, it is a valuable income generating 
asset managed properly and since transferring to special housing services 
during 2011, investment in the garage stock has delivered nearly 400 units back 
into use and is expected to exceed 500 by year-end. This is an ‘invest to save’ 
opportunity as there remains significant scope to maximise the income potential 
even further through greater investment.  

 
42. Estimated billing for revenue service charges is £15.5m to date against the 

£15.8m budget, including freeholders and 2011/12 account actualisations 
processed during the third quarter. Key work streams of the Leasehold Action 
Plan have been finalised which will provide greater transparency and contribute 

80



 

to full cost recovery over time. Combined collection performance for capital and 
revenue service charges at quarter three is above target at £12.2m (including 
Major Works loans), against the full-year cash target of £24m. Capital service 
charge billing to leaseholders is inextricably linked to the housing investment 
programme (HIP) and delivery of the works programme each year. Any 
departure from the anticipated spend profile impacts on the revenue income 
assumptions built into the base budget and consequently the revenue 
contribution to the HIP. Expectations at this point are that this will exceed the 
budgeted target of £6.5m, based on the programmed works on, or starting on 
site during 2012/13.  

 
43. The strategic services activity comprises all departmental overheads and non-

operational functions within the HRA, specifically debt financing, revenue 
contributions to the HIP and corporate and shared service functions provided to 
the HRA. There are a number of known and expected variances across major 
budget heads comprising debt refinancing/ major project costs and general non-
earmarked provisions, reserves and carry forward resources. Spend on the latter 
is estimated at £3.7m comprising specific projects and revenue cost pressures of 
a one-off or time limited nature during 2012/13, of which £2.3m is for a 
programme of electrical safety works, emergency lighting and ventilation & 
ductwork. Large-scale housing regeneration commitments continue to place an 
increasing financial and operational requirement on the HRA. Base budget 
provision is maintained to meet such expenditure, albeit the scale of activity and 
cost vary year on year. Commitments arising in the current year in this area are 
below expectations with the under-spending contributing to the overall HRA 
outturn position and positive movement in reserves.  

 
44. Following further restructuring, the community housing services division has 

been disbanded and the functions formerly undertaken have been subsumed 
within the specialist housing services and customer experience divisions. 
Budgets have been realigned and consolidated and are reflected for the first time 
in the quarter three monitor, which renders direct comparison with previous 
monitors at a divisional level difficult. The primary area of risk for the Council 
remains in relation to temporary accommodation; whilst the statutory 
requirement falls to the general fund (bed & breakfast and private sector 
leasing), and HRA provision through the use of estate voids and hostels, which 
is designed to be cost neutral and is used to mitigate some of the cost pressure 
on the homelessness budget in the general fund. The availability of estate void 
properties (primarily on the Aylesbury) is key to achieving this in line with the 
planned regeneration programme.  

 
45. Notwithstanding the huge investment needs of the housing stock and the 

Council’s ambitious investment plans for regeneration over the coming years, 
there are a number of other external factors affecting the HRA and the Council’s 
wider general fund, such as welfare reforms and universal credit.  The 
introduction of housing benefit under-occupation criteria (commonly referred to 
as the bedroom tax) and direct payment of benefits contribute to a position of 
great uncertainty over the Council’s resources moving into 2013/14. Whilst the 
effects of these have been assessed, in so far as that is possible given the 
vagaries of central government direction, it is essential that the Council takes 
appropriate measures to mitigate the heightened risk through the base budget 
and prudent application of reserves.  

81



 

 
46. The Council’s medium term resource strategy (MTRS) stipulates the requirement 

to maintain reserves and balances at a level sufficient to manage potential risks 
and opportunities. Previous reports have indicated the level of HRA reserves 
were considered to be below the optimum level commensurate with the size of 
Southwark’s combined HRA and HIP, and required corrective action. As part of 
2011/12 budget setting, a base budget contribution to reserves was established 
in addition to any one-off operating surplus generated in year. It is currently 
anticipated that reserves will increase by £7.8m in total, £4.3m higher than 
budgeted for the reasons set out. This arises on the ring-fenced district heating 
account, major projects and other central budget contingencies held against 
financial risks.  

 
47. At 31 March 2012 reserves stood at £27.5m, of which £10.7m (around 39%) is 

deemed to be uncommitted. Whilst this represents good progress towards 
restoring balances to a more prudent and sustainable level, from a base budget 
perspective there is still a way to go and it is one of the strategic aims 
underpinning the HRA Business Plan and remains within the HRA budget plan 
going forward into 2013/14. 

 
Implementation of the 2012/13 budget decisions including agreed budget 
reductions, savings and efficiencies 

 
48. The Council identified £35m of budget reductions, including savings and 

efficiencies for the general fund and housing revenue accounts as part of the 
2012/13 budgets.  At quarter three, there is a projected savings shortfall of 
£750k overall after taking into account compensating and windfall savings as 
shown in Table 3.  

 
Table 3: Forecast projection of savings agreed for 2012/13 as at Quarter 3 

  

Budgeted 
2012/13 
savings 

Forecast 
full year 
2012/13 
savings 
at Q1 

Compensati
ng / other 
savings 

forecast full 
year 2012/13 

at Q3 

Variance 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Children's Services (6,174) (6,174) 0 0 
Adult social care (10,295) (9,743) (552) 0 
Environment and Leisure (4,990) (4,990) 0 0 
Housing and Community 
Services (594) (594) 0 0 
Finance and corporate services (3,077) (3,077) (750) (750) 
Chief executive (1,277) (1,277) 0 0 
Corporate (2,000) (500) 0 1,500 
Total General Fund (28,407) (26,355) (1,302) 750 
HRA (6,397) (6,397) 0 0 
Total Savings (34,804) (32,752) (1,302) 750 

Note: details of the Council’s savings plans can be found in the budget papers agreed by Council on 
29 February 2012 

 
49. As shown in the table above, the majority of the savings agreed by the Council in 

setting the 2012/13 budget are forecast to be achieved. 
 
50. The key difference from earlier monitoring reports is the additional saving of 

82



 

£750k forecast to be achieved this year as a result of the Council being able to 
purchase its main head office at 160 Tooley Street. 

 
51. There is a £552k variance in adult social care. This relates to pressures around 

unachieved Mental Health re-design savings brought forward from the prior year.  
Work is ongoing to re design mental health services in association with South 
London & Maudsley Trust (SLaM) to mitigate against these pressures. 

 
52. The £1.5m corporate savings relates to the customer services savings built into 

the Vangent contract, that will not now be achieved as planned following the 
mutual agreement to terminate the contract in June 2013. 

 
General fund reserves 

 
53. The Council retains a level of earmarked reserves and these are reported each 

year within the annual statement of accounts. These reserves are maintained to 
finance calls for expenditure for items that are difficult to predict and that are not 
included in revenue budgets or within the capital programme. They relate 
especially to invest to save opportunities that form part of the modernisation 
agenda and expected to deliver future ongoing revenue savings. They are also 
held for investment in regeneration and development where spend may be 
subject to unpredictable market and other influences. 

 
54. Where a department identifies a need for additional funding, there is a robust 

process for seeking support from reserves. The department must demonstrate 
that they are unable to contain the identified additional pressure within their 
existing budget. Cabinet will be asked to approve this funding support where the 
amount is £250k or above. 

 
55. As the year progresses, departments will naturally be in a better position to more 

accurately forecast their outturn position. This will allow for any unfavourable 
variances to be offset by favourable ones at departmental level, before the need 
to call on reserves.  

 
56. The budget approved by council for 2012/13 included a planned release of 

reserve of £4.4m. This call on reserve provided some flexibility in terms of 
budget setting and the profile of savings that the Council identified in the Policy 
and Resources Strategy 2011-14.  It is assumed in this quarter three report that 
this call on reserves will have to be made in full. However in the event that the 
contingency budget is not fully utilised, any unused contingency will be used first 
to bridge any remaining funding gap. 

 
57. The 2012/13 budget also includes a planned contribution to reserves of £1m to 

support the ongoing regeneration and development agenda within the borough. 
 
58. The tables in Appendix B summarise the projected movements in reserves.  This 

shows that at quarter three, the forecast is for a net call on general fund reserves 
of £4.6m, the detail of which is contained in Table 4 below.  

 

83



 

 
Table 4: Detail of reserve movements 
Detail of reserves movements forecast £'000 £'000 

General fund services outturn variance  2,810   
Contingency (5,500)   
General Fund Total  (as per Table 1)   (2,690) 
Forecast appropriation (to)/ from reserves      
    Related to services 1,217   
    Planned contribution to reserves to support the Aylesbury project (1,000)   
    Planned use of reserves to underwrite base budget 4,446   
    Dedicated schools grant  (300)   
    Technical accounting purposes 69   
Total forecast appropriation (to)/ from reserves (as per Table 1)   4,432 
   
Expected appropriation (to)/ from reserves for capital purposes   2,888 
Total forecast movement in reserves   4,630 

 
59. The technical movement in reserves relate to a significant contribution to 

reserves for 160 Tooley Street of £2.3m previously reported, plus a further £709k 
following the purchase of the building in December 2012. Both these movements 
are for accounting reasons related to the original re-profiling of the rental charge 
to an average rent over five years taking into account an initial rent free period.  
For similar accounting reasons there is also a release from reserves for Queens 
Road of £337k. 

 
60. There is also a significant contribution from reserves of £2.8m in respect of the 

smoothing of the waste PFI unitary charge. This contribution from reserves 
relates to the longer term (25 year) life cycle cost of the project. 

 
Housing revenue account (HRA) reserves 

 
61. The ring-fenced nature of the HRA requires that deficits/surpluses are carried 

forward between years, thereby giving rise to fluctuations in the level of reserves. 
Previous reports have indicated that the level of reserves were considered to be 
below the optimum level commensurate with the size of Southwark’s combined 
revenue and capital programmes and represented a financial risk. As part of the 
HRA medium term resource strategy, there is a commitment to make planned 
contributions from revenue, in addition to any one-off operating surplus 
generated in year. At 31 March 2012 reserves increased by £6.9m to £27.5m 
(from £20.6m), of which around 61% are committed. This represents good 
progress towards restoring balances to a more prudent and sustainable level. 
 

Collection fund / Council tax and business rates collection 
 

62. Based on Month 9 data, the collection fund balance at 31 March 2013 is forecast 
to be a surplus of £1.203m (£900k Southwark, £303k GLA). At quarter two, the 
collection fund was forecast to break-even at year-end. However it was noted 
that unusually, in September there was a reduction in the value of both 
exemptions and discounts awarded. It was not known at that stage whether this 
was going to be a one-off event, or part of an ongoing trend, and because of this, 
it was not reflected in the forecast at that time.  

 
63. There continue to be a number of factors that make it extremely difficult to 

provide an accurate forecast, but the sensitivity analysis applied suggests that a 

84



 

surplus is now most likely. 
 
64. The main areas of uncertainty are as follows: 
 

• a large increase of £1.7m in the billing amount during 2012/13. It is not 
known whether the rate of increase will continue through to the year end.  
For the purposes of this monitor, no further increase in the billing amount 
has been assumed.  Any actual increase that may arise will, therefore, lead 
to an increase in the surplus on the collection fund. 

 
• a reduction in exemptions awarded, particularly to students as a result of 

detailed case reviews.  Student exemptions are the most volatile and so it 
is difficult to assess what impact this might have on the usual increase in 
exemptions that occurs during the final months of the financial year.  In 
recent years, exemptions have typically been approximately 5.6% of the 
council tax income due, but will almost certainly be lower this year and our 
best estimate is 5.45%. 

 
• the impact of a reduction of £1.2m in single person discounts on the 

collection rate. The reduction in single person discounts will mean more 
money needs to be collected, but it is not certain how much the additional 
£1.2m will actually be collected and how much will need to be provided for 
as bad debt and ultimately written off.  In preparing this estimate, it has 
been assumed that 50% will be collected. 

 
65. The other area of uncertainty is the bad debt provision, and this is largely 

because the arrears at year-end are difficult to forecast.  Based on Month 9 data 
and trend analysis, and assuming no further write-off of debt, the arrears at year 
end are expected to be in the region of £27.2m.  Ordinarily, this would give rise 
to a bad debt provision of around £21.6m, or 79% of arrears.  However, the 
reduction in single person discounts is expected to have an adverse impact on 
the collection of arrears and for the purposes of this monitor it has been 
assumed that only 50% of this income will be collected.  This will increase the 
bad debt provision to £22.2m, which is 81% of expected arrears. 

 
Treasury management  

 
66. Treasury management relates to cash and debt management activities. The 

cash invested at 31 December 2012 stands at £188.6m and is managed by and 
an in-house operation and two investment firms Aberdeen Asset Managers and 
AllianceBernstein. In the interest of capital preservation and prudence the cash 
is held in short term deposits or certificates of deposits with major high rated 
banks or building societies, large money market funds,  treasury bills and bonds 
issued by the UK Treasury or supranational bodies (e.g. the European 
Investment Bank (EIB), and the International Bank for Reconstruction & 
Development (the World Bank)).  

85



 

 
67. The counterparties across which the cash is held is set out in the table below.   
 

Exposure £m                                    FUND 

COUNTERPARTY Aberdeen
Alliance 

Bernstein In-House £m Long Short Support Sovereign
Sovereign 
Rating

Credit Industriel et Commercial 3.5              -              -            3.5       A+ F1+ 1 FRANCE AAA
Société Générale -              1.0              -            1.0       A+ F1+ 1 FRANCE AAA

BNP (Banque Nationale de Paris) PARIBAS 3.5              1.0              -            4.5       A+ F1+ 1 FRANCE AAA
DEUTSCHE BK 3.5              1.0              -            4.5       A+ F1+ 1 GERMANY AAA
LANDESBK BADEN WERTMBG -              1.0              -            1.0       A+ F1+ 1 GERMANY AAA
DZ BANK 3.5              -              -            3.5       A+ F1+ 1 GERMANY AAA
GLOBAL TREASURY FUNDS-MMF -              -              2.1             2.1       AAA GLOBAL Money Fund
ABN AMRO BANK 3.5              1.0              -            4.5       A+ F1+ 1 NETHERLANDS AAA
ING BK 3.4              1.0              -            4.4       A+ F1+ 1 NETHERLANDS AAA
RABOBANK -              0.5              -            0.5       AA F1+ 1 NETHERLANDS AAA
EUROPEAN INVESTMENT BANK 10.4            7.1              -            17.5     AAA F1+ SUPRANATIONAL AAA
International Bank for Reconstruction and 
Development (IBRD) 3.5              6.9              -            10.4     AAA F1+ SUPRANATIONAL AAA
UBS 3.5              -              -            3.5       A F1 1 SWITZERLAND AAA
BARCLAYS BANK 5.0              1.0              15.0           21.0     A F1 1 UK AAA
LLOYDS TSB / BANK of SCOTLAND 3.5              -              15.1           18.6     A F1 1 UK AAA
NATIONWIDE BUILDING SOCIETY 3.0              1.0              15.0           19.0     A+ F1 1 UK AAA
RBS/NATWEST -              -              41.0           41.0     A F1 1 UK AAA
SANTANDER UK -              -              -            -       A F1 1 UK AAA
UK TREASURY -              27.6            -            27.6     AAA F1+ UK AAA
Bank of New York Mellon - CASH 0.4              0.1              -            0.5       AA- F1+ 1 US AAA
Total £m 50.2            50.2            88.2           188.6   

EXPOSURE - Dec 2012 COUNTERPARTY AND RATINGS
Fitch Ratings

 
 
68. In December 2012 the Council replaced its leasehold interest in its headquarters 

at 160 Tooley Street with freehold. The acquisition was paid for by reducing 
sums held in investments (including sums managed externally) and it was more 
efficient to do that than borrow at current rates. (Investments yield around 
0.80%, reflecting monetary easing by major central banks, whilst long term 40 
year funding ranges between 3.80% and 4.20%). The cash remaining after the 
purchase is paid for is sufficient to meet working capital and spending plans and 
should further sums be needed in the future it may be accessed through 
wholesale markets at rates which are close to prevailing investment rates.  

 
69. Council debt outstanding to fund past capital expenditure is all from the Public 

Works Loans Board (PWLB). No new loans were taken over the quarter and the 
sum outstanding at the end of December 2012 was £562.5m. From April 2012 
the loans are disaggregated between the HRA and the General Fund. £451m of 
the debt is attributable to the HRA, reflecting past investment in housing, and the 
remainder falls as General Fund debt. The years in which the loans fall for 
repayment is set out below and on maturity may be refinanced with new loans 
from the PWLB or the market.    

 
 

86



 

   

Maturity Profile Long Term PWLB Debt at 31 Dec 2012

-

10

20

30

40

50

60

12
/13

14
/15

16
/17

18
/19

20
/21

22
/23

24
/25

26
/27

28
/29

30
/31

32
/33

34
/35

36
/37

38
/39

40
/41

42
/43

44
/45

46
/47

48
/49

50
/51

52
/53

54
/55

56
/57

58
/59

£m

General Fund
HRA

      
 
Community impact statement 
 
70. This report monitors expenditure on council services, compared to the planned 

budget agreed in February 2012.  Although this report has been judged to have 
no or a very small impact on local people and communities, the projected 
expenditure it is reporting reflects plans designed to have an impact on local 
people and communities, which will have been considered at the time the 
services and programmes were agreed.  It is important that resources are 
efficiently and effectively utilised to support the Council’s policies and objectives. 

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
Background Papers Held At Contact 
2011/12 Revenue monitoring outturn 
report. The document is available on 
this web page: 
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/d
ocuments/s30289/Report%20Revenu
e%20Outturn%20Report%20201112
%20including%20Treasury%20Mana
gement.pdf  
 
2012/13 Revenue monitoring quarter 
two report. The document is available 
on this web page: 
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/d
ocuments/s33181/Report%20Revenu
e%20Monitoring%20Report%20for%
20Quarter%202%20201213%20inclu
ding%20Treasury%20Management.p
df 
 

Council Offices, 
160 Tooley Street, 
London SE1 2QH 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Council Offices, 
 
160 Tooley Street 
London SE1 2QH 
 
 
 

 

Vernon Smith 
020 7525 7355 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Vernon Smith 
020 7525 7355 

 
 
 

87



 

APPENDICES 
 

No. Title 
Appendix A Budget movements to be approved, £250k and above and 

movements to be noted 
Appendix B Summary of projected movements in reserves in 2012/13 

 
 
 
AUDIT TRAIL 
 

Cabinet member Councillor Richard Livingstone. Finance, Resources and 
Community Safety 

Lead officer Duncan Whitfield, Strategic Director of Finance and Corporate 
Services 

Report author Jennifer Seeley, Deputy Finance Director 
Version Final  
Dated 31 January 2013 

Key Decision? No 
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 
MEMBER 
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included 

 
Director of Legal Services No No 
Strategic Director of Finance and 
Corporate Services Yes Yes 

Cabinet Member Yes Yes 
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 31 January 2013 
 

88



 
 

APPENDIX A  
 
 
BUDGET MOVEMENTS TO BE APPROVED, £250K AND ABOVE AND MOVEMENTS 

TO BE NOTED 
 
 
Budget movements to be approved 
 
Department 
from 

Amount 
£000 

Department 
to 

Amount 
£000 

Reason 

Housing and 
community 
services (3,204) 

Finance and 
corporate 
services 3,204 

Customer service budget transfer to 
revenue and benefits - Full Year 

Appropriations (1,539) 

Finance and 
corporate 
services 1,539 

Release of reserves to meet 
shortfall in insurance costs 

Finance and 
corporate 
resources (1,335) 

Housing and 
community 
services 1,335 

Customer service budget transfer 
from revenue and benefits - Part 
Year 

Adult social 
care (1,091) Appropriations 1,091 

NHS winter pressure monies 
received taken to reserves 

Finance and 
corporate 
services (822) 

Environment 
and leisure 822 Allocation of low pay supplement 

Appropriations (774) 
Environment 
and leisure 774 Re-organisation costs 

Finance and 
corporate 
services (750) Appropriations 750 Tooley Street savings  
Finance and 
corporate 
services (709) 

Appropriations 
- technical 709 

Technical adjustment in relation to 
the Tooley Street rental smoothing 

Environment 
and leisure (600) SCR income 600 Allocation of low pay supplement 

Environment 
and leisure (587) 

Finance and 
corporate 
services 587 

Centralisation of the former 
unfunded liabilities budget -  
pensions 

Appropriations (470) Children's 470 
Release of reserve to fund a 
condition survey  

Appropriations (440) 
Chief 
Executives 440 Camberwell library - design fees 

Chief 
Executives (410) 

Finance and 
corporate 
services 410 Top management savings 

Environment 
and leisure (400) Appropriations 400 

Increase in the contribution to 
reserves to fund future capital 
projects 

Chief 
Executives (331) Appropriations 331 

Release of reserve to meet shortfall 
in campaigns budget no longer 
required. 

 
 
 
 

89



 
Budget movements to be noted 
 
Department 
from 

Amount 
£000 

Department 
to 

Amount 
£000 

Reason 

Adult social 
care (247) 

Finance and 
corporate 
services 247 

Centralisation of the former 
unfunded liabilities budget -  
pensions 

Housing and 
community 
services (245) 

Environment 
and leisure 245 

Transfer of private sector renewal 
budgets  

Chief 
Executives (236) Appropriations 236 

To reverse the planned contribution 
from reserves to meet the cost of 
the corporate programming unit  

Appropriations (233) 

Finance and 
corporate 
services 233 

Release of reserve to meet ICT 
project costs  

Finance and 
corporate 
services (174) 

Chief 
Executives 174 

Transfer of corporate programming 
unit 

Housing and 
community 
services (130) 

Chief 
Executives 130 

Transfer of members support 
budget 

Finance and 
corporate 
resources (130) 

Chief 
Executives 130 

Remove an income budget 
following the disposal of Coburg 
House 

Housing and 
community 
services  (127) 

Finance and 
corporate 
services 127 

Centralisation of the former 
unfunded liabilities budget -  
pensions 

Appropriations (120) Children's 120 
Release of reserve to fund social 
care projects  

Appropriations (114) 

Housing and 
community 
services 114 

Increase in reorganisation costs 
within housing services 

Housing and 
community 
services (91) Appropriations 91 

Reduction in the release of reserve 
for community engagement 

Appropriations (85) 
Chief 
Executives 85 Harmsworth Quays 

Appropriations (82) 
Environment 
and leisure 82 

Release of revenue grants taken to 
reserves 

Appropriations (77) 
Chief 
Executives 77 

Release of reserve to meet re-
organisation and redundancy costs 

Appropriations (72) 
Chief 
Executives 72 

Increase in release of reserve for 
Canada Water and Bermondsey 
Spa 

Finance and 
corporate 
services (69) Children's 69 Allocation of low pay supplement 

Chief 
Executives (42) Children's 42 

Transfer of a project assistant post 
from corporate programming unit to 
children's services IT 

Appropriations (40) 
Environment 
and leisure 40 

Release of reserve to meet the cost 
of landscaping around Henry Moore 
sculpture 

Appropriations (40) 
Chief 
Executives 40 

Release of reserve in respect of 
Inner London Retail Environment  

90



Department 
from 

Amount 
£000 

Department 
to 

Amount 
£000 

Reason 

Appropriations (13) 

Finance and 
corporate 
services 13 

Increase in release of reserves to 
meet re-organisation costs 

Finance and 
corporate 
services (12) 

Adult social 
care 12 Allocation of low pay supplement 

Finance and 
corporate 
services (10) 

Chief 
Executives 10 Allocation of low pay supplement 

Chief 
Executives (9) Appropriations 9 

Reduction in the release of reserves 
to correct the legal services budget  

Finance and 
corporate 
services (6) 

Housing and 
community 
services 6 Allocation of low pay supplement 

Chief 
Executives (2) 

Finance and 
corporate 
services 2 

Centralisation of the former 
unfunded liabilities budget -  
pensions 

 
 
 
 

91



 
 

 
APPENDIX B  

 
 

SUMMARY OF PROJECTED MOVEMENTS IN RESERVES IN 2012/13 
 
 

  

2012/13 
opening 
balance  

Change 
in 

reserves 

Release 
of reserve 
for capital   

Total 
movement 

in 
reserves  

2012/13 
closing 
balance 

General Fund reserves £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

General fund earmarked - revenue (50,922) 7,204  7,204 (43,718) 
General fund earmarked - capital (26,167) (5,162) 1,592 (3,570) (29,737) 
DSG reserve (7,363) (300) 1,296 996 (6,367) 
Total general fund reserves (84,452) 1,742 2,888 4,630 (79,822) 
      
      

  

2012/13 
opening 
balance  

Projected 
change 

in 
reserves 

2012/13 
closing 
balance 

  
HRA reserves £'000 £'000 £'000   
HRA earmarked (27,487) (7,765) (35,252)   
Total housing revenue account (27,487) (7,765) (35,252)   
 
 
 
 

92



 

 
1 

  

 
Item No.  

11. 
 

Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
12 February 2013  
 

Meeting Name: 
Cabinet 
 

Report title: 
 

Quarterly Capital Monitoring Report Quarter 3   
 

Ward(s) or groups 
affected: 
 

All 

Cabinet Member: 
 
 

Councillor Richard Livingstone, Finance, Resources 
and Community Safety 
 

 
 
FOREWORD - COUNCILLOR RICHARD LIVINGSTONE, CABINET MEMBER FOR 
FINANCE, RESOURCES AND COMMUNITY SAFETY 
 
This report sets out the projected expenditure of the council on its capital programme 
for the current year and asks the Cabinet to agree the funded variations set out in 
Appendix C. 
 
Whilst the general fund capital budget for the current year was established on the 
basis that programme slippage was probable, further work is needed to ensure that 
delivery is timely.  The figures suggest a significant improvement since quarter 2, but 
this is in part because of the new inclusion of the purchase of 160 Tooley Street within 
the totals. 
 
As the report shows, most of the slippage to date is within children's services and the 
Southwark Schools for the Future programme, principally as a consequence of delays 
in work on primary schools.  Another cause has been that anticipated expenditure on a 
number of projects will be less than the budgets set for them, demonstrating that the 
council is working hard to deliver value for money. 
 
On the anticipated expenditure on the Housing Improvement Programme, the gap with 
the budget is smaller as a result of Housing Department proactively ensuring that 
programme delays are offset by bringing other future programmes forward.  The 
slippage of £10.9m will be picked up in 2013/14 to ensure that the Warm, Dry and Safe 
commitment is delivered in a timely fashion.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 11
93



 

 
2 

  

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

That cabinet: 
 

1. Note the general fund capital programme 2012/13–2021/22 as at Quarter 3 
2012/13, as detailed in Appendix A and D. 

 
2. Note the housing investment programme 2012/13–2021/22 at Quarter 3 2012/13 

as detailed in Appendix B. 
 
3. Agree the virements and funded variations for Quarter 3 2012/13 as detailed in 

Appendix C. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
4. On 25 September 2012 the cabinet approved a refresh of the 10 year capital 

programme for the period 2012/13 – 2021/22, approving a total general fund 
programme of £387.2m, including £59.8m of new departmental bids and noting 
the Housing Investment Programme forecast of £398m.  

 
5. In addition to the other recommendations at Quarter 2, the capital monitor report 

at Quarter 2 also instructed strategic directors to work with project managers and 
finance colleagues to ensure that forecasts for project activity are as robust as 
possible for each department moving toward the year end financial position for 
2012/13. 

 
6. On 11 December 2012, the cabinet approved the acquisition of the freehold 

interest of the council building at 160 Tooley Street and this is reflected in the 
budget variation in Appendix C. 

 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
General fund capital spend 

 
7. The Quarter 2 2012/13 capital monitoring report indicated that expenditure of 

£36.4m had been incurred on the general fund capital programme against a 
budget of £138.7m for the year. This represents spend of 26.2% to budget and 
just over a quarter of the overall budget for the year at that point. The Quarter 2 
report also projected an underspend of £32.5m, at that point, against the budget 
of £138.7m for the year. 

 
8. The Q3 monitoring report indicates expenditure of £237.4m incurred at the end 

of Q3 against a budget of £318.5m showing a 74.5% spend against budget at 
that point. However, the Q3 position includes the budget for the acquisition of the 
freehold interest of 160 Tooley Street approved by cabinet on 11th December 
2012. The full expenditure relating to this budget was incurred by the council in 
December 2012, following cabinet approval of 11 December 2012. Therefore, in 
order to avoid distortions in the analysis, this needs to be taken into account 
when reviewing the spend profile of capital schemes against budgets for the 
year. The revised analysis excluding the budget and spend figure for 160 Tooley 
Street indicates spend of 42.1% against budgets at Q3.  

94



 

 
3 

  

 
9. A forecast outturn of £277.4m, with positive variance of £41m has been 

predicted to the end of the financial year. This represents a forecast spend of 
87% against budgets or 70.6% when excluding the budgets and spend figures 
for 160 Tooley Street. 

 
10. The significant increase of £179.8m in budgets since Q2 relates primarily to the 

acquisition of the Council building at 160 Tooley St. Other budget increases 
include increases in 2012/13 DfE grant of £1.1m and £500k grant allocation on 
environmental works.  

 
Housing Investment Programme spend 
 
11. Although reporting quarterly and annually at the same time as the General Fund, 

the Housing Investment Programme was presented to cabinet in October 2011. 
It showed the principal aims of delivering warm, dry and safe homes across the 
borough and investing in the regeneration of estates, as well as the required 
landlord obligations. 

 
12. The monitoring position for Q2 2012/13 on the programme indicated spend to 

date of £25.3m against a budget of £89.3m for the year, reflecting spend of 
28.3% against budget.  

 
13. At Q3 2012/13, the monitoring position indicates spend to date of £45.9m 

representing spend of 49.6% against the total budget for the year. 
 
14. The monitor is also projecting a forecast spend of £81.6m with a positive 

variance of £10.8m for the year, representing spend of 88.2% against the total 
budget of £92.5m for the year. 

  
Capital resources 
 
15. The council is able to access a number of resources to fund capital expenditure 

which have been set out below: 
 

• capital receipts from disposal of property  
• grants  
• external contributions  
• section 106 funding  
• housing major repairs allowance 
• contributions from revenue 
• contributions from reserves  
• internal borrowing 
• external borrowing 
 

16. The decision to acquire the freehold interest in 160 Tooley Street in December 
2012 has been financed through "internal borrowing".  Internal borrowing uses 
cash currently in hand to defer or avoid taking on new external debt.  Cash in 
hand arises from the funds set aside as the council’s reserves and balances, and 
ordinarily these funds are invested until such time as the reserves and balances 
are required to be used.  The projected cash balances at the year end of 31 
March 2013 were sufficient to acquire 160 Tooley St, meet all spending plans 
and also maintain operational cashflow liquidity without the need for external 

95



 

 
4 

  

borrowing.  The council's cash balances will be monitored very closely against 
the need for any external borrowing into the future.  Full details of the business 
case and the financial implications are included in the cabinet report of 11 
December 2012.  

 
17. The capital programme is influenced by resource timing and availability. Over the 

life of the programme all commitments must be met from anticipated resources. 
The final funding requirement will be based on the final actual expenditure, and 
will seek to maximise the use of grants and other funding sources, prior to the 
use of capital receipts.  Based on the experience of brought forward and receipts 
to date, and with best estimates of further receipts, there is a possibility of a 
shortfall in receipts in the general fund capital programme.  However this is more 
than matched by receipts which are surplus to this year's anticipated 
requirements in the housing investment programme.  If this is still the position at 
the end of the year, there is scope to fund any gap by reallocating receipts on a 
short term basis.  Therefore, this report does not show any variance on the 
financing for 2012/13.  Regular monitoring and formal reporting regulates the 
programme and mitigates cash flow and funding risks and officers undertake 
regular reviews as part of the process for preparing monthly and quarterly 
monitors to assess income to date, forecasts and changes.  

 
18. Each department forecasts its programme as accurately as possible to minimise 

the need for re-profiling. Where this does occur, the requirement is flagged as 
early as possible. Given the general complexity of capital projects, it is common 
to see some variation in the profile of the actual programme against the forecast. 
The impact of this is mitigated through regular formal monitoring, departmental 
reviews and access to a resource base wide enough to cope with change.  

 
19. In developing and managing its capital programme the council has to maintain 

clear control on the selection and use of resources to finance capital 
expenditure. Strategies for investments, borrowing and treasury management 
facilitate this control and assist the council to have clear strategic direction on its 
use of resources, to identify new resources or to make changes to the use of 
resources at an organisational level as projects complete or new projects 
appear.   

 
Section 106 and Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
 
20. The council can enter into a Section 106 (S106) agreement, otherwise known as 

a planning obligation, with a developer where it is necessary to provide 
contributions to offset the deemed negative impacts caused by construction and 
development. Contribution requirements can take several forms and range from 
provision of affordable homes and new open space to funding of school places 
or community facilities. Depending on the agreement, developers may deliver 
works directly or choose to make payments to the council to undertake work.  

 
21. Use of S106 funding has been forecast in the programme, which is provided 

through existing balances and new funds anticipated from future agreements. 
Some changes to the use of S106 planning obligations are anticipated resulting 
from the adoption of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) regime and the 
council is proposing to update its S106 planning obligations statutory planning 
document to the same timescale as development and adoption of the CIL.  

 

96



 

 
5 

  

22. The CIL is a levy which local authorities can choose to charge on new 
developments occurring in their area, with the funds raised being used to deliver 
infrastructure required by the council, local community and neighbourhoods. Use 
of the levy as a potential funding source for capital schemes was outlined in a 
report considered by cabinet on 17 July 2012.  

 
23. A preliminary draft charging schedule was developed for this report and the 

council is undertaking consultation on this as the year progresses.  The capital 
programme will be subject to future refresh and pending finalisation of the 
charging schedule for CIL this may be used to support appropriate schemes.  

 
New Homes Bonus  
 
24. The New Homes Bonus (NHB) is intended to reward local authorities and 

communities where growth in housing stock occurs. The allocation formula 
matches the level of council tax paid on each new home for six years, with an 
additional £350 per affordable unit. The grant is not ring-fenced so no restrictions 
apply to its use.  

 
25. Payments for NHB amounted to £2.5m in 2011/12, of which £1.5m was allocated 

to fund revenue expenditure, with the balance earmarked to fund capital 
expenditure. This was in accordance with a cabinet decision of 21 June 2011 
that all NHB resources not committed to the revenue budget should be allocated 
to corporate resources to fund future capital expenditure.  

 
26. The same level of revenue commitment was at that time assumed in forecasts 

for future years to 2016/17 and the balance allocated to capital. This resulted in 
totals of £9.0m, £41.7m and £3.6m being forecast to fund revenue, capital 
general fund and capital housing expenditure respectively.  

 
27. There are changes expected in the financing arrangement for the New Bonus 

Scheme in 2013/14 and this will be reviewed as part of the 2013/14 and future 
revenue budget setting process. 

 
Contributions from earmarked reserves 
 
28. Reserves are funds set aside from under spends or planned budget 

contributions, to meet contractual commitments or future expenditure plans 
which may include risks or liabilities that arising at a later date. Three reserves 
which have relevance for funding the capital programme are outlined below. 

 
29. The modernisation reserve supports one-off expenditure or multi-year projects 

designed to modernise and further improve the operational efficiency of 
Southwark’s service provision. The use of the reserve is subject to a protocol 
listing admissible items in accordance with the council’s Medium Term 
Resources Strategy. 

 
30. The regeneration and development reserve funds one-off expenditure and multi-

year projects delivering regeneration and development across the borough. 
Relevant projects include the Aylesbury Estate Regeneration, Canada Water, 
and Elephant & Castle Regeneration.  

 
31. In 2011/12 the council established a compliance and planned preventative 

97



 

 
6 

  

maintenance reserve which may be used to support activities upgrading the 
wider council estate in line with legislative and/or preventative maintenance 
requirements. The reserve could for example be used to support the 
implementation of a maintenance programme in specific parts of the council’s 
operational estate. Use of the reserve would need to be requested through 
appropriate approval channels, such as via cabinet, and it is likely that works 
would be programmed over more than one year, or relate to more than one site.  

 
Capital receipts 
 
32. The council operates a ten-year disposals programme. Planned disposals 

generate capital receipts which the council can use as a funding source to 
finance capital expenditure.  

 
33. Capital receipts are categorised as Housing or General Fund depending on the 

nature of the asset giving rise to the receipt. Certain receipts arising from right to 
buy sales are also generated within the housing disposals programme and are 
subject to pooling arrangements with government, so that the council can repay 
housing debt.  

 
34. The annual receipts forecast to 2021/22 is between £30 - £40m per annum 

generated by disposals from both general fund and housing. The new capital 
bids in the refreshed programme presented an anticipated additional call of 
around £45m on capital receipts, to be funded over the life of the programme.   

 
35. In the event that in-year funding generated by disposals is insufficient to meet 

the level of expenditure alternative short term sources of funding may need to be 
accessed or projects deferred or re-profiled. Short term sources of funding 
include use of earmarked reserves and/or accelerating the disposals 
programme. 

 
Capital grants 
 
36. The council uses a range of capital grants to fund capital expenditure. These 

grants tend to be programme or project specific since each has grant 
requirements of some form and the largest areas of grant use often correspond 
to the largest and most complex projects. The Southwark Schools for the Future 
(SSF) programme has the highest grant use on a single scheme with around 
£82m of grant funding over the remainder of the capital programme.  

 
37. Grants may be provided as a sole funding source, or as one of several funding 

sources depending on project requirements. In each case grant funding 
conditions of some form should be met to demonstrate that grants have been 
applied for the purposes given and audit trails are maintained.   

 
Resourcing to Quarter 3 2012/13 
 
38. As at the end of Quarter 3 2012/13 £27.5m had been received from Housing  

receipts and 2.7m on General Fund receipts  
 
39. At the end of Quarter 3 2012/13, £38.4m grant had been received including 

£27.6m of education use grants and £9.8m secured through S106 agreements.  
 

98



 

 
7 

  

40. Much of the council’s capital programme is supported by its disposals of property 
which form a significant part of corporate resources over the life of the 
programme. At Q3 2012/13 the budgeted positions on the general fund and 
housing investment programmes were £16.9m and £45m respectively. The 
disposals programme is subject to ongoing review by officers to mitigate the risk 
of funding unavailability due to timings or amounts received in year. Where 
pressure arises alternative short term sources of funding will be sought using the 
range outlined above.  

  
41. The above resources will be monitored and applied as appropriate to schemes in 

2012/13. 
 
Programme position at Quarter 3 2012/13 
 
42. Attached at Appendix A is a summary of the general fund programme position as 

at Quarter 3 of 2012/13. This shows a total expenditure budget of £578m 
budgeted over the programme.  

 
43. Attached at Appendix B is a summary of the housing investment programme 

position as at Quarter 3 of 2012/13. This shows a total expenditure budget of 
£402.7m over the programme.  

 
44. Appendix C shows the budget virements and variations arising in quarter 3 of 

2012/13.  
 
45. Appendix D shows a more detailed view of the general fund programme to 

enable spend and forecast on individual projects or groups of projects to be 
seen.  

 
46. This programme position will continue to be monitored and reviewed over the 

remainder of the financial year and the final outturn position will be reported to 
cabinet. 

 
Departmental updates 
 
Children’s services  
 
47. The revised capital programme at Quarter 3 2012/13 is increased from £80m at 

Quarter 2 to £81.2m.  The increase is for 2012/13 DfE grant for early education 
for two-year-olds announced in November 2012. The forecast outturn at Quarter 
3 is £9.7m which is reduced by £1.2m from Quarter 2.   

 
48. The two main changes from the quarter two forecast are for £600k each being 

reprofiled from 2012/13 to 2013/14 for Southwark Park Primary School and 
Lyndhurst Primary school.   

 
49. For Southwark Park Primary school the contract award was originally 

programmed for autumn 2012. However, the earliest this will occur is now in 
February 2013.  Should contract award not be achieved by the end of March 
2013 then a further £1.5m expenditure will be reprofiled for future years. The 
contract award for Lyndhurst Primary School has similarly been put back to the 
summer of 2013.  

 

99



 

 
8 

  

50. There continues to be pressure for primary school places in Southwark. 
Following the provision of 300 temporary places in September 2012, a further 
programme of over 200 temporary places for September 2013 has been agreed. 
This totals £2.5m and includes £2m of existing resources delegated from cabinet 
on 20 November 2012 and the remainder from existing delegated resources for 
temporary expansion. The permanent expansions at Haymerle and St Anthony’s 
for new places in 2013 are progressing.  

 
51. Following an announcement by the DfE the 2013/14 allocation of funding for 

basic needs grant (for expansion) and maintenance grant (for planned renewal 
works) was deferred to the end of January 2013.  Once the available external 
resources becomes known then a programme of additional permanent places 
which has been informed by capacity surveys of all primary schools can be 
progressed with more certainty. 

 
Southwark Schools for the Future 
 
52. The SSF Quarter 2 forecast for 2012/13 was £39.8m. This has been reduced 

£39.3m for Quarter 3.  
 
53. The main reason for the reduced forecast is that £600k ICT expenditure for 

Sacred Heart and New School Aylesbury has been put back to 2014 from the 
current year.  This is so that both schools will benefit from refreshed ICT when 
Sacred Heart vacate the New School Aylesbury site for their new PFI premises.  
A further £100k potential VAT liability on ICT equipment for voluntary aided 
schools has been reprofiled to 2013/14. 

 
54. This has been offset by agreed settlements for council retained risks for 

asbestos at St Michaels and St Thomas the Apostle College of £200k. 
 
55. The final phase two for the PFI school at St Thomas the Apostle College 

completed in November 2012.  
 
56. In December 2012 the phase 3c for SILS KS3/4 contract was awarded for 

construction start in the Spring 2014. 
 
Adult social care  
 
57. The main focus of the Adult Social Care (formerly Health and Community 

Services) capital programme is investment in the infrastructure necessary to 
support the delivery of services to improve the health and well being of local 
people. A summary of the activity in 2012/13 thus far is given in the following 
paragraphs. 

 
58. In 2012/13, Southwark Resource Centre has an agreed budget of £358k and is 

forecast to cover a 5% contract retention fee, some post completion works and 
equipment costs. The project is currently forecast to show a final under spend of 
£73k.  

 
59. The agreed budget for Department of Health Capital Grant (“adult personal 

social services capital allocation”) for 2012/13 is £1.620m. This includes a 
carried forward balance of £780k from prior years. The grant is earmarked for 
various day services projects including major refurbishment works. The 

100



 

 
9 

  

programme is currently forecast to under spend by £980k, which will be 
reprofiled into the 2013/14 financial year due to delays in commissioning planned 
capital works on various projects e.g. day centres . 

 
60. There is a rolled forward residue from 2011/12 single capital pot mental health 

grant of £19k. This is being forecast to be fully utilised in 2012/13. 
 
61. All other projects in the current programme have successfully been completed. 
 
62. A capital budget of £7m was agreed in the autumn capital refresh to meet costs 

associated with the transformation of adult care accommodation which will be 
funded through a combination of corporate resources and revenue.  

 
63. A capital budget of £1.2m addressing capital maintenance issues on care homes 

currently operated by Odyssey Care was also approved and it is anticipated that 
this will be funded using £800k of corporate resources and the remaining £400k 
from external grant sourced by the department. 

 
64. A capital budget of £2m for a centre of excellence in the borough aiming to 

provide specialist care and support for older residents with dementia was 
approved by cabinet and it is expected that this will be funded from reserves and 
revenue. 

 
65. The total capital budgets for the department, including the above budgets 

approved as part of the capital refresh process in the autumn of 2012, now 
stands at £12.1m to 2021/22, with an allocation of £1.9m for 2012/13, and the 
balances re-profiled to subsequent financial years. It is anticipated that the 
2012/13 budget will under spend by £1m reflecting the final position expected on 
the Southwark Resource Centre project and the re-profiled or rolled forward 
major modernisation works on various adult day centres.  

 
Environment and leisure 
 
66. Environment and leisure department’s latest approved capital budget for 2012/13 

is £23.6m against the projected spends of £19.8m, giving an overall favourable 
variance of £3.8m to be carried forward into 2013/14. 

 
67. Total approved E&L capital programme and projected spend for 10 years from 

2012/13-2021/22 is £104m. 
 
Sustainable services 
 

68. The Integrated Waste Management facility and its associated works (site 
remediation, access road etc) are now complete. Issues remaining to be 
resolved and for which the council has responsibility are planning related costs 
which may be payable to planning and highway authorities (LBS and TfL).  Most 
of these items are conditional on the results of a number of road traffic surveys. 

 
69. In respect of the Southwark Heat Network from South East London Combined 

Heat and Power (SELCHP) project, there has been a substantial amount of 
progress and the contract should be signed in February 2013 and plans continue 
to be for the heat network to be fully operational in late 2013. 

 

101



 

 
10 

  

Public realm 
 

70. The Non Principal Road (NPR) Programme is forecast to achieve a full spend.   
 
71. There is a need for urgent bridge strengthening and retaining wall works to be 

undertaken in 2012/13. The Division has bid for and received a grant allocation 
of £509k from London Bridges Engineering Group (LoBEG) for the year 2013/14. 
It is proposed to fund the urgent works from the 2012/13 NPR allocation with a 
balancing payment of £509k back into the 2013/14 allocation. 

 
72. Cleaner Greener Safer (CGS) forecast end of year spend is reduced to £2.6m 

compared to previous projection of £3m. This is due to: a number of projects 
being delivered under budget; delays in the receipt of some external grants and; 
delays in delivery of grant funded projects.  

 
73. The Southbank Accessibility project was successfully brought in significantly 

under budget generating savings of £303k.  This project was funded by external 
grant from GLA and the budget will now be reduced to reflect project completion. 
Officers are in discussion with the GLA to agree any additional works outside 
original project scope which may be funded from the underspend.  

 
74. The Connect 2 project will conclude in the last quarter of 2012/13.  This is the 

successful culmination of a project that has been planned for many years and 
the council has worked successfully with Sustrans, BIG lottery and local 
community groups to deliver this significant transport and regeneration project, 
the centrepiece of which is a new pedestrian and cycle bridge across 
Rotherhithe New Road improving access to South Bermondsey station, which 
replaces a redundant railway bridge that had been derelict for many years. 

 
75. The street lighting capital works for 20122013/13 will be fully achieved resulting 

in the replacement of 210 columns which had failed the structural testing 
programme. This year’s programme is the first year where an independent 
connection provider has been used leading to much reduced programming time 
and highway occupancy coupled with savings of over 20% in connection costs 

 
76. Phase 1 of the long awaited Burgess Park Revitalisation project was completed 

in July 2012. With an initial budget of £6m secured through the Mayor of 
London’s Priority Parks Programme (£2m) and the Aylesbury NDC (£4m) the 
project aimed to achieve a number of key objectives: landscaping; new 
entrances and pathways; increased biodiversity; a new play area for over 5s; 
and new trees. The project has been a resounding success with positive 
feedback from stakeholders, the wider community and increased usage. The 
remaining funds in this phase are reprofiled to spend in 2013/14 and represent 
the retention payments on the project due next year and the £200k allocated for 
the borehole. Options for the borehole are being considered in discussion with 
the Environment Agency. 

 
77. The work does not stop here with future phases of the project being planned and 

reviewed. The new BMX track in Burgess Park received planning permission in 
March 2012 with most of the expenditure funded from external sources. The 
project is due for completion in the summer of 2013.  

 
78. On Honor Oak Remediation project, only £25k of the total budget of £745k will 

102



 

 
11 

  

be used before 31 March 2013. The remaining funds in this project are allocated 
to an access road between the Cemetery and Crematorium (£100k) and the 
remediation of area Z in Camberwell Old Cemetery. This site requires faculty 
permission to enable further investigation work which will lead to remediation 
work taking place in 2013/14.  

 
Culture, libraries, learning & leisure 
 
79. Dulwich Leisure Centre and Camberwell Leisure Centre phase 2 works are now 

completed. There was an additional cost of £232k on the Dulwich Leisure 
Centre, however, this will be offset with a projected favourable variance on the 
Camberwell Leisure Centre phase 3 works which were completed in December 
2012 and are now open to the public.  

 
80. Work at Pynners Sports Ground involves rebuilding the pavilion that was 

destroyed by a fire a number of years ago. The project has slipped but is 
expected to be completed by the end of the current financial year 2012/13. 

 
81. The Thomas Calton Centre forecast of £153k for refurbishment is still expected 

to be spent in 12/13. 
 
82. Olympic Legacy Fund - The capital programme was a provision of £2m over 2 

years for the Southwark 2012 Olympic capital legacy fund with an objective to 
invest in capital projects that support a lasting Olympic and Paralympic legacy in 
Southwark from the 2012 games, improving access to and increasing 
participation in physical activity and encouraging the development of the Olympic 
values in the borough’s communities. Due to a re-profiling of the Olympic Legacy 
Fund for 2012/13, some of the project spend will now occur in 2013/14 (£335k) 
as a result of the size of some of the projects being larger than previously 
anticipated and also due to some of the projects attracting external funding as a 
result of the Olympic Legacy funding being in place. To date the projects have 
collectively attracted a further £847k worth of funding with the potential to attract 
further funding in the pipeline.  

 
83. Implementation of RFID equipment (Radio Frequency Identification) at 

Dulwich will be completed by March 2013 and other two libraries (Newington and 
Camberwell) are planned to be installed in 2013/14 onwards. Implementation of 
RFID at Peckham was completed and became available to residents on 1 
October 2012.  

 
Community safety & enforcement 
 
84. CCTV Digital Upgrade – The first contract let through the framework agreement 

for the digital upgrade at the CCTV monitoring suite at Southwark police station 
is now completed. The contractor, QSG met each milestone and delivered a 
project to an excellent standard and on budget.  The housing refresh programme 
and parking enforcement upgrades are a continuation of key elements contained 
within the framework agreement. 

   
85. This phase of the project is designed to link the housing estate cameras and 

parking camera networks to the control suite.  The project is ready to commence 
and expected to be completed by 31 March 2014.  

 

103



 

 
12 

  

86. Work has already commenced on the Aylesbury Estate which includes the 
installation of 4 re-deployable CCTV cameras in the Thurlow/Kinglake Street 
area. These cameras will be fully operational by the end of January with 
connection to the new digital CCTV control room.  The infrastructure will form 
part of the wider CCTV service for the area. 

 
Finance and corporate services 
 
87. The capital programme of this department focuses on two key areas: information 

technology infrastructure projects and premises improvements to council 
buildings. 

 
88. The total value of the capital budget for the department over the 2012/13-

2021/22 period is £201.3m and includes funding confirmed since Q2 report was 
presented to Cabinet, of an additional budget of £178.1m. 

 
89. The budget for 2012/13 is £180.4m with expenditure of £180.1m recorded at the 

end of quarter 3. This expenditure is largely due to costs associated with the 
acquisition of the office building at 160 Tooley Street. 

 
90. This recent acquisition now gives the council increased scope as freeholder to 

consider targeted investment in works to the building that will increase the 
utilisation of the building both to improve service delivery and offer increased 
community use of facilities where possible. 

91. The procurement of a new Facilities Management (FM) services supplier has 
been approved by cabinet with the 5 year contract commencing on 1 February 
2013.   

  
92. To address the future FM capital requirements of the council’s operational 

estate, a bid of £10.25m was approved by cabinet in the capital programme 
refresh. This reflects the anticipated cost of undertaking a co-ordinated PPM and 
compliance programme on council property fabric and services from 2013/14. 
The work follows an earlier phase where the council undertook DDA work to its 
front-line premises. It is anticipated that this work will be funded through a 
combination of corporate resources and reserves. 

 
93. The council is engaging a new Information Technology Managed Service 

supplier early in 2013 which will be delivering a series of core enabling projects 
to modernise provision of IT services in the council. £5m was included in the 
refreshed programme, with spend anticipated to start in 2013/14 and funded by 
corporate resources 

 
 Chief executive’s department 
 

94. The total value of the capital budget for the department over the 2012/13-
2021/22 period is £70.1m. Over the same 10-year period, the department is 
currently forecasting an expenditure of £69.7m against a budget of £70.1m. The 
positive variance of approximately £400k is largely due to projected underspend 
on Canada Water development projects.  

 
95. In 2012/13, the forecast expenditure of £22.4m against a budget of £28.7m 

creates a projected underspend of £6.3m. This positive variance is a result of 

104



 

 
13 

  

rigorous and robust review of planned expenditure and the subsequent re-
profiling of some projects into future years. This review is on-going to ensure the 
forecasts are as accurate, robust and close to outturn position as possible in line 
with Q2 capital report recommendation to Strategic Directors. 

 
96. As reported to Cabinet in Q2, following the appointment of the Chief Executive 

and re-organisation of the council structure, there are now four main project 
areas, namely planning, framework & implementation, regeneration and other 
regeneration projects.  

 
97. The planning division has a total budget of £8.2m with forecast expenditure of 

£3.4m in 2012/13 and £4.8m in 2013/14 The budget is largely funded by TfL to 
deliver transport improvement programme which is the three year plan contained 
within the borough's transport plan. Key projects include delivery of improvement 
works in various locations across the borough including Peckham, East 
Walworth, Forest Hill, and Paxton Green amongst others. This will deliver 
improvements to bus journey time, road safety, improved access to town centres 
and aide the promotion of sustainable and active modes of transport.  

 
98. In addition to transport improvement programme, two major schemes are also 

funded, public realm and access improvements to Queens Road Peckham 
station (totalling £335k) to provide a new forecourt and support the creation of a 
new entrance and the introduction of lifts. Following community consultation and 
preparation of transport models, scheme development has commenced on the 
Camberwell town centre as part of the Revitalise Camberwell programme 
(totalling £585k). Scheme consultation is scheduled for early 2013.   

 
99. A further £471k is available for principal road renewal in Eveline Road and 

Hawkstone Road and there is £100k of discretionary funding for improvements 
including installation of Trixi mirrors, local transport initiatives and road safety 
review at Townley Road.  

 
100. Framework & Implementation, now part of planning, has a budget of £6.4m and 

forecasting expenditure of £4m in 2012/13 and £2.4m in 2013/14. A number of 
schemes are currently on site including the public realm improvements at Great 
Suffolk Street, the construction of a green roofed extension to the Flat Iron 
Square cafe (both funded by a £300,000 grant from the GLA) and the Dog and 
Pot public art project on the corner of Blackfriars Road and Union Street to 
commemorate Dickens bi-centennial.  

 
101. With regard to Improving Local Retail Environments programme (ILRE), the 

remaining seven sites have also been delivered and are close to completion. 
These are the 3 parades in Jamaica Road, the 2 parades in Southampton Way 
(designed to complement the public realm improvements completed in 2011/12) 
Rotherhithe New Road and Lordship Lane. Additional works have also been 
programmed for Herne Hill, The Blue and Peckham Park Road. 

 
102. The regeneration division is responsible for the delivery of some key/high profile 

projects such as Office Accommodation Programme, the construction of a new 
£20m leisure centre at Elephant & Castle, and Gateway to Peckham project 
amongst others. The Gateway to Peckham project was recently awarded a grant 
of £5.25m by GLA with the grant agreement signed off by both parties in 
December 2012. 

105



 

 
14 

  

 
103. The combined budget for regeneration division/other regeneration projects is 

£55.4m with forecast expenditure of £15m for 2012/13 and £40.1m for 2013/14 
to 2015/16. 

 
104. Works have commenced at Queens Road Block C (QR3) with completion 

programmed for April 2013. The 11 Market Place development has completed. 
 
105. Buildings at 17 and 19 Spa Road have both been fully decommissioned and the 

disposals have been completed 
 
106. The department is on course to deliver various projects aimed at improving road 

safety, encourage greener and sustainable modes of transportation in the 
borough as well as supporting commercial viability of local shopping areas. This 
is additional to major regeneration projects at Aylesbury, Elephant & Castle and 
Canada Water. 

 
Housing general fund 
 
107. The housing general fund capital programme represents investment in housing 

in the borough which is not directly focused on council properties. It comprises 
four main areas of activity. 

 
108. The housing renewal programme allows assistance to a wider section of the 

community, subject to financial status, than existing council aid provision solely 
for the over 65s and individuals with medical needs. It is mainly funded from 
corporate resources but also attracts government grant for disabled facilities, for 
which an additional £100k has been made available by DCLG for the current 
year since last reported. Other external funding comes from the GLA, including 
in connection with Southwark’s low carbon zone project, one of only 10 within 
the London area. 

 
109. Following recent changes in responsibility for the delivery of projects in the East 

Peckham and Nunhead renewal area programme, expenditure profiles have 
been reviewed with approximately £500k deferred to 2013/14. The group repairs 
scheme is now spending well, requiring approximately £200k to be brought 
forward from next year for these works replacing energy inefficient components, 
providing insulation and working to retrofit "green" energy products, and so 
contributing to CO2 emission targets.  

 
110. The Burnhill Close travellers’ site scheme shows increased costs which will 

require a small budget virement within the overall travellers sites programme, 
subject to approval of a gateway 3 report. The Springtide travellers’ site project, 
the final site in this programme, has now received gateway 1 approval and the 
profile of expenditure has been updated accordingly, moving approximately 
£300k into future years. 

 
111. The affordable housing fund programme, supporting new build social housing by 

registered providers and funded through S106 developer contributions, has no 
planned expenditure this year. The existing scheme started last year at Ivydale 
Road and the balance of the approved funding is due on completion in 2013/14. 

 
112. The full HGF programme budget agreed for 2012/13 onward was £27.6m, 

106



 

 
15 

  

including the agreed growth bid for renewal grants including disabled facilities 
grants (DFG). Against the revised budget of £5.3m for 2012/13 (including the 
additional grant referred to above) expenditure to the third quarter was £2.2m, 
with a revised outturn forecast of £4.8m. The majority of expenditure to date is in 
respect of DFG grants, for which demand remains consistently high and which 
formed a substantial part of the bid, and group repairs. 

 
Housing investment programme 
 
113. The Housing Investment Programme report to cabinet on 18 October 2011 

confirmed detail of the housing investment programme (HIP), the resources 
available and how these would be used to provide warm, dry and safe homes 
across the borough. It also reported the approach to be taken for additional 
works on high investment needs estates, which has since been reported to 
cabinet in more detail. The format of the HIP summary for this year has been 
revised to better reflect the programme in its agreed form. 

 
114. The programme budget contained in the 2011/12 outturn report was £432.9m 

over the life of the five-year programme. The addition of £15.2m reflecting the 
budgeted cost of demolishing the Heygate Estate and £300k additional 
resources received for the adaptations programme produced a revised total 
budget of £448.4m, which when adjusted to allow for the roll forward of budgets 
at the end of 2011/12 gave a budget of £396.2m for the remaining four years of 
the approved programme. The Housing Investment Board has agreed to 
increases in this four-year budget by bringing forward HIP resources from future 
years for fire safety works (£4.5m) and Aylesbury planned preventative 
maintenance (ppm) works (£1.7m), and an increase of £300k in the allocation to 
meet the final costs of the digital switchover programme, giving an overall budget 
of £402.8m. 

 
115. Capital expenditure to the third quarter of 2012/13 was £46m with a revised 

outturn forecast of £81.7m. The most significant proportion of this expenditure 
was within the Warm, Dry and Safe (WDS) programme, which in respect of 
decent homes performance has contributed to an increase in decency level of 
2.3% (858 properties) since the start of the year. Following difficulties with one of 
the partnering contracts, revised notices of proposals have now been issued, 
and with agreed maximum prices now being obtained for further works packages 
the rate of expenditure has increased in delivering the WDS programme. With 
heating works brought forward to offset the reprofiling of major works, forecasts 
for the WDS programme have reduced by approximately £1.6m for 2012/13. 

 
116. Outside of the WDS programme the reduction in spend forecast is most 

noticeable in the reprofiling of regeneration schemes at the Heygate and 
Aylesbury estates, where the deferral of leasehold acquisitions ensures 
residents are able to remain in their homes for as long as possible. 

 
117. Forecast expenditure for the 4 year period totals £402.4m, against the agreed 

budget of £402.8m, maintaining a fully funded programme. The financing of this 
expenditure has been adjusted to reflect confirmation of government backlog 
grant funding at £15m for 2013/14 and £50m for 2014/15. This funding will be 
required to meet the costs of works packages under the partnering contracts, 
which exceed the original estimates which were based on stock condition 
information. These increased costs to date are covered by the use of 

107



 

 
16 

  

contingency provisions within the programme, but as the programme moves 
forward will require significant additional funding. This requirement will be 
included in a separate report to cabinet on the ongoing HIP. 

 
Community impact statement 

 
118. This report describes the current and forecast position of the capital programme 

for the next ten years.  The projected expenditure reflects plans designed to 
have a beneficial impact on local people and communities, which will be 
considered at the time the services and programmes are agreed.  It is important 
that resources are used efficiently and effectively to support the council’s policies 
and objectives. 

 
119. Each project within the capital programme will be considered with regard to its 

impact on age, disability, faith/religion, gender, race and ethnicity and sexual 
orientation. 

 
120. The council’s capital programme is designed to deliver projects of value to local 

people. 
 

Resource implications 
 
121. This report forms part of the council’s budget framework.  It outlines the current 

position on the capital programme and identifies potential new projects to be 
included in it. 

 
122. The resources supporting programme delivery are identified on a project by 

project basis. Staffing resources are generally contained within the council’s 
current establishments and where additional or specialist resources are needed 
these will be the subject of separate reports.  

 
Legal implications 
 
123. The legal implications of this report are identified in the concurrent report of the 

Director of Legal Services. 
 
Financial implications 
 
124. This report fully explores the financial implications of the capital programme at 

Q3 of 2012/13.  The report presents a capital programme over 10 years where 
predicted resources are sufficient to meet anticipated spend. 

 
Consultation  
 
125. Consultation on the overall programme has not taken place.  However, each of 

the individual projects is subject to such consultation as may be required or 
desirable when developed.  Some projects may require more extensive 
consultation than others, for example projects with an impact on the public realm. 
Projects funded by grant or s106 may require consultation as a condition of 
funding. 

108



 

 
17 

  

 
SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS 
 
Director of Legal Services  
 
126. The council has a duty to maintain a balanced budget throughout the year and, 

accordingly, members are required to regularly monitor the council's financial 
position.  Section 28 of the Local Government Act 2003 imposes a duty on the 
council to monitor its budgets throughout the financial year, using the same 
figures for reserves as were used in the original budget calculations.  The council 
must take necessary appropriate action to deal with any deterioration in the 
financial position revealed by the review. 

 
127. The Capital Programme satisfies the council’s duty under the Local Government 

Act 1999 which requires it to make arrangement to secure the continuous 
improvement in the way its functions are exercised, by having regards to the 
combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Background Papers Held At Contact 
None   
 
 
APPENDICES 
 

No. Title 
Appendix A General Fund Capital Programme Summary – 2012/13 at Quarter 3 
Appendix B Housing Investment Programme Summary – 2012/13 at Quarter 3 
Appendix C Funded Virements and Variations for Approval 2012/13 at Quarter 3 
Appendix D General Fund Capital Programme Detail 
 

109



 

 
18 

  

 
AUDIT TRAIL 
 
Cabinet Member 

 
Councillor Richard Livingstone, Finance, Resources and 
Community Safety 

Lead Officer Duncan Whitfield, Strategic Director of Finance and Corporate 
Services 

Report Author Jay Nair, Departmental Finance Manager 
Version Final 
Dated 31 January 2013 

Key Decision? Yes 
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 

MEMBER 
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included 

Director of Legal Services Yes Yes 
Strategic Director of Finance 
and Corporate Services 

N/a N/a 

Cabinet Member  Yes Yes 
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 31 January 2013 
 

110



General Fund Capital Programme Summary - 2012/13 at Quarter 3       APPENDIX A  
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

Department

Budget Spend to date Forecast Variance Budget Forecast Variance Budget Forecast Variance Total 
Budget @ 
01/04/2012

Total 
Forecast

Total 
Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Children's Services 31,275 5,743 9,768 (21,507) 19,946 40,449 20,503 29,979 30,983 1,004 81,200 81,200 0
Southwark Schools for the Future 47,166 28,318 39,316 (7,850) 8,508 7,276 (1,232) 25,981 35,063 9,082 81,655 81,655 0
Finance and Corporate Services 180,455 180,118 180,455 0 3,713 4,713 1,000 17,160 16,160 (1,000) 201,328 201,328 0
Environment 23,581 10,182 19,712 (3,869) 14,640 19,239 4,599 65,780 65,050 (730) 104,001 104,001 0
Adult Social Care 1,998 90 945 (1,053) 10,200 10,200 0 0 0 0 12,198 11,145 (1,053)
Housing General Fund 5,309 2,159 4,817 (492) 5,628 5,463 (165) 16,729 17,386 657 27,666 27,666 0
Chief Executive 28,787 10,786 22,408 (6,379) 30,351 33,441 3,090 10,994 13,922 2,928 70,132 69,771 (361)

TOTAL 318,571 237,396 277,421 (41,150) 92,986 120,781 27,795 166,623 178,564 11,941 578,180 576,766 (1,414)

FINANCED BY:
Corporate Resource Pool 16,900 21,156 24,442 7,542 29,507 29,507 0 136,808 126,314 (10,494) 183,215 180,263 (2,952)
Major Repairs Allowance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Supported Borrowing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reserves & Revenue 3,454 444 3,039 (415) 10,634 12,280 1,646 3,982 2,751 (1,231) 18,070 18,070 0
Capital Grants 91,676 36,930 61,235 (30,441) 24,178 45,621 21,443 58,780 66,842 8,062 174,634 173,698 (936)
Section 106 Funds 11,298 671 8,917 (2,381) 4,426 6,807 2,381 6,087 6,087 0 21,811 21,811 0
External Contributions 1,628 35 1,628 0 500 0 (500) 0 500 500 2,128 2,128 0
Internal Borrowing 178,160 178,160 178,160 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 178,160 178,160 0

TOTAL RESOURCES 303,116 237,396 277,421 (25,695) 69,245 94,215 24,970 205,657 202,494 (3,163) 578,018 574,130 (3,888)

Forecast variation (under)/over 15,455 0 0 (15,455) 23,741 26,566 2,825 (39,034) (23,930) 15,104 162 2,636 2,474

2012/13 2014/15+2013/14 Total Programme 2012/13-21/22

 

111



HRA Capital Programme Summary – 2012/13 at Quarter 3         

Page 1 of 2 

Programme
Budget Spend to date Forecast Variance Budget Forecast Variance 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Warm dry and safe
WDS carry-over schemes 2,210 2,173 2,572 362 115 222 107
WDS 2-year programme 15,310 8,968 16,461 1,151 19,354 21,251 1,897
WDS 2012 major works 9,628 317 4,228 (5,400) 8,943 19,734 10,791
WDS 2013 major works 4 32 69 65 33,261 30,008 (3,253)
WDS 2014 majjor works 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
WDS 2015 major works 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
WDS future major works 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
FRA works 19,487 9,739 17,343 (2,144) 1,582 2,764 1,182
M&E electrical 1,305 228 795 (510) 1,104 1,604 500
M&E heating 6,058 4,227 9,846 3,788 10,962 12,189 1,227
M&E lifts 1,975 1,911 2,718 743 1,373 1,800 427
WDS voids works 4,159 2,964 4,159 0 4,000 4,000 0
WDS Leathermarket JMB 1,441 897 1,437 (4) 1,100 1,081 (19)

HINE schemes
HINE WDS works 664 228 1,000 336 11,341 11,732 391
HINE additional works 0 0 0 0 2,420 2,420 0

Regeneration
Aylesbury Estate PPM works 5,855 2,725 4,863 (992) 3,390 3,976 586
Aylesbury Estate regeneration 7,697 1,279 4,697 (3,000) 14,650 12,668 (1,982)
Bermondsey Spa refurbishment 252 129 285 33 0 0 0
East Dulwich Estate 744 245 425 (319) 1,387 1,398 11
Elmington Estate 1,280 491 1,300 20 1,508 1,300 (208)
Heygate Estate 5,866 584 1,874 (3,992) 10,665 14,815 4,150
Hidden Homes 399 (16) 378 (21) 294 586 292
Hostels new build 200 219 250 50 2,800 2,750 (50)
Local authority new build 2,279 1,317 2,279 0 64 64 0
Misc regen, acquisitions and home loss 842 224 655 (187) 600 357 (243)

Other programmes
Adaptations 1,843 1,214 1,843 0 2,000 2,000 0
Affordable housing through commuted sums 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Cash incentive scheme 207 92 207 0 207 207 0
Digital switchover 1,534 1,223 1,534 0 0 0 0
Disposals costs 574 176 498 (76) 500 450 (50)
Energy 400 0 200 (200) 200 200 0
Environmental / play areas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Fire damage reinstatement 2,898 2,599 3,178 280 604 645 41
Group repairs 354 152 228 (126) 0 0 0
Hostels accommodation 1,054 80 778 (276) 1,114 1,161 47
Leasehold / freehold acquisitions 375 305 375 0 525 525 0
Major voids 988 66 527 (461) 1,000 1,000 0
Office accommodation 305 0 250 (55) 250 250 0
Scheme management costs 1,000 1,708 1,000 0 1,000 1,000 0
Security 302 24 304 2 3 0 (3)
Sheltered accommodation 3 3 47 44 0 0 0
T&RA halls 487 71 483 (4) 500 500 0

Adjustment - expenditure in revenue (7,395) (641) (7,395) 0 (7,395) (7,395) 0

TOTAL 92,584 45,953 81,691 (10,893) 131,421 147,262 15,841

FINANCED BY:

Corporate Resource Pool 0 0 0 0 5,857 5,857 0
Housing receipts 45,641 1,167 45,641 0 22,383 22,383 0
Major Repairs Allowance 44,873 42,084 44,873 0 45,488 45,488 0
Supported Borrowing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reserves & Revenue (12,776) 0 (23,737) (10,961) 42,219 58,062 15,843
Capital Grants 12,196 600 12,233 37 15,471 15,472 1
Section 106 Funds 50 50 50 0 0 0 0
External Contributions 2,600 2,052 2,631 31 3 0 (3)

TOTAL RESOURCES 92,584 45,953 81,691 (10,893) 131,421 147,262 15,841

Forecast variation (under)/over 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2012/13 2013/14

APPENDIX B

112



HRA Capital Programme Summary – 2012/13 at Quarter 3         

Page 2 of 2 

Programme
Budget Forecast Variance Total Budget @ 

01/04/2012
Total Forecast Total Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Warm dry and safe
WDS carry-over schemes 0 0 0 2,325 2,794 469
WDS 2-year programme 2,921 1,869 (1,052) 37,585 39,581 1,996
WDS 2012 major works 113 208 95 18,684 24,170 5,486
WDS 2013 major works 281 251 (30) 33,546 30,328 (3,218)
WDS 2014 majjor works 41,643 37,643 (4,000) 41,643 37,643 (4,000)
WDS 2015 major works 49,408 46,495 (2,913) 49,408 46,495 (2,913)
WDS future major works 0 0 0 0 0 0
FRA works 45 165 120 21,114 20,272 (842)
M&E electrical 5,400 5,400 0 7,809 7,799 (10)
M&E heating 14,425 13,707 (718) 31,445 35,742 4,297
M&E lifts 4,000 3,439 (561) 7,348 7,957 609
WDS voids works 8,000 8,000 0 16,159 16,159 0
WDS Leathermarket JMB 2,200 2,222 22 4,741 4,740 (1)

0
HINE schemes
HINE WDS works 13,642 11,040 (2,602) 25,647 23,772 (1,875)
HINE additional works 16,004 16,004 0 18,424 18,424 0

Regeneration
Aylesbury Estate PPM works 2,138 2,934 796 11,383 11,773 390
Aylesbury Estate regeneration 8,301 13,284 4,983 30,648 30,649 1
Bermondsey Spa refurbishment 0 0 0 252 285 33
East Dulwich Estate 50 50 0 2,181 1,873 (308)
Elmington Estate 3,520 3,708 188 6,308 6,308 0
Heygate Estate 3,317 4,028 711 19,848 20,717 869
Hidden Homes 592 300 (292) 1,285 1,264 (21)
Hostels new build 1,500 1,500 0 4,500 4,500 0
Local authority new build 0 0 0 2,343 2,343 0
Misc regen, acquisitions and home loss 400 400 0 1,842 1,412 (430)

0
Other programmes
Adaptations 4,000 4,000 0 7,843 7,843 0
Affordable housing through commuted sums 0 0 0 0 0 0
Cash incentive scheme 312 312 0 726 726 0
Digital switchover 0 0 0 1,534 1,534 0
Disposals costs 1,000 1,000 0 2,074 1,948 (126)
Energy 400 400 0 1,000 800 (200)
Environmental / play areas 0 0 0 0 0 0
Fire damage reinstatement 1,200 1,200 0 4,702 5,023 321
Group repairs 272 0 (272) 626 228 (398)
Hostels accommodation 1,800 2,029 229 3,968 3,968 0
Leasehold / freehold acquisitions 600 600 0 1,500 1,500 0
Major voids 2,000 2,000 0 3,988 3,527 (461)
Office accommodation 500 500 0 1,055 1,000 (55)
Scheme management costs 2,000 2,000 0 4,000 4,000 0
Security 300 300 0 605 604 (1)
Sheltered accommodation 306 268 (38) 309 315 6
T&RA halls 1,000 1,000 0 1,987 1,983 (4)

Adjustment - expenditure in revenue (14,828) (14,828) 0 (29,618) (29,618) 0

TOTAL 178,762 173,428 (5,334) 402,767 402,381 (386)

FINANCED BY:

Corporate Resource Pool 5,000 5,000 0 10,857 10,857 0
Housing receipts 60,583 60,583 0 128,607 128,607 0
Major Repairs Allowance 92,356 92,356 0 182,717 182,717 0
Supported Borrowing 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reserves & Revenue (31,512) (37,038) (5,526) (2,069) (2,713) (644)
Capital Grants 52,335 52,527 192 80,002 80,232 230
Section 106 Funds 0 0 0 50 50 0
External Contributions 0 0 0 2,603 2,631 28

TOTAL RESOURCES 178,762 173,428 (5,334) 402,767 402,381 (386)

Forecast variation (under)/over 0 0 0 0 0 0

2014/15+ Total Programme 2012/13-21/22

113



F
u

n
d

ed
 v

ir
em

en
ts

 a
n

d 
va

ri
at

io
n

s 
fo

r 
ap

p
ro

va
l  

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
ag

e 
1 

of
 3

 

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
S

ou
th

w
ar

k 
S

ch
oo

ls
 f

or
 t

he
 

Fu
tu

re

F
in

an
ce

 a
n

d 
C

or
po

ra
te

 
S

er
vi

ce
s

E
nv

ir
on

m
en

t
A

du
lt

 S
o

ci
al

 
C

ar
e

H
ou

si
ng

 
G

en
er

al
 F

u
nd

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

ti
ve

G
en

er
al

 F
un

d 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
To

ta
l

H
o

us
in

g 
In

ve
st

m
en

t 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e

To
ta

l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
ed

 
E

xp
en

di
tu

re

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

B
U

D
G

E
T 

A
S

 A
T 

20
11

/1
2 

O
U

TT
U

R
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

54
,1

25
81

,6
55

7,
91

9
90

,6
10

1,
99

5
27

,5
68

62
,9

58
32

6,
83

0
39

6,
19

3
72

3,
02

3

N
ew

 B
id

s 
ap

p
ro

ve
d

 a
t Q

1/
R

ef
re

sh
 r

ep
or

t

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s
16

,4
00

16
,4

00
16

,4
00

F
in

an
ce

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s

15
,2

49
15

,2
49

15
,2

49
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
12

,2
56

12
,2

56
12

,2
56

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e
10

,2
00

10
,2

00
10

,2
00

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e

5,
75

0
5,

75
0

5,
75

0

B
U

D
G

E
T 

A
S

 A
T 

20
12

/1
3 

Q
1/

R
E

FR
E

S
H

 R
E

P
O

R
T

70
,5

25
81

,6
55

23
,1

68
10

2,
86

6
12

,1
95

27
,5

68
68

,7
08

38
6,

68
5

39
6,

19
3

78
2,

87
8

C
H

A
N

G
E

S
 IN

 D
E

P
A

R
TM

E
N

TA
L 

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
IB

IL
IT

Y
0

R
E

S
TR

U
C

TU
R

E
D

 B
U

D
G

E
TS

70
,5

25
81

,6
55

23
,1

68
10

2,
86

6
12

,1
95

27
,5

68
68

,7
08

38
6,

68
5

39
6,

19
3

78
2,

87
8

Q
1 

- 
V

ir
em

en
ts

 a
lr

ea
d

y 
ap

pr
o

ve
d

In
te

gr
at

ed
 W

as
te

 S
ol

ut
io

ns
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e
(2

00
)

(2
00

)
(2

00
)

B
ur

ge
ss

 P
ar

k 
R

ev
ita

lis
at

io
n 

P
ro

je
ct

20
0

20
0

20
0

To
ta

l v
ir

em
en

ts
 a

pp
ro

ve
d

 a
t 

Q
tr

 1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

Q
2 

- 
V

ir
em

en
ts

 a
lr

ea
d

y 
ap

pr
o

ve
d

In
te

gr
at

ed
 W

as
te

 S
ol

ut
io

ns
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e
(4

00
)

(4
00

)
(4

00
)

B
ur

ge
ss

 P
ar

k 
R

ev
ita

lis
at

io
n 

P
ro

je
ct

40
0

40
0

40
0

P
ec

kh
am

 R
ye

 o
ne

 o
'c

lo
ck

 c
lu

b
(2

70
)

(2
70

)
(2

70
)

P
ec

kh
am

 R
ye

 o
ne

 o
'c

lo
ck

 c
lu

b
27

0
27

0
27

0
C

am
be

rw
el

l L
C

 
(1

9)
(1

9)
(1

9)
C

am
be

rw
el

l L
C

 -
 p

ha
se

 2
(2

13
)

(2
13

)
(2

13
)

D
ul

w
ic

h 
Le

is
ur

e 
C

en
tr

e
23

2
23

2
23

2
T

ho
m

as
 C

ar
lto

n 
C

en
tr

(7
3)

(7
3)

(7
3)

T
ho

m
as

 C
al

to
n 

C
en

tr
e 

re
fu

rb
is

hm
en

t
73

73
73

0
0

To
ta

l v
ir

em
en

ts
 t

o 
b

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 a

t 
Q

tr
 2

27
0

0
0

(2
70

)
0

0
0

0
0

0

Q
3 

- 
V

IR
E

M
E

N
TS

 R
E

Q
U

E
S

TE
D

 T
O

 B
E

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

0
0

To
ta

l v
ir

em
en

ts
 r

eq
ue

st
ed

 t
o 

be
 a

p
pr

ov
ed

 Q
tr

 3
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

TO
TA

L
 V

IR
E

M
E

N
TS

27
0

0
0

(2
70

)
0

0
0

0
0

0

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 C

114



F
u

n
d

ed
 v

ir
em

en
ts

 a
n

d 
va

ri
at

io
n

s 
fo

r 
ap

p
ro

va
l  

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
ag

e 
2 

of
 3

 

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
S

ou
th

w
ar

k 
S

ch
oo

ls
 f

or
 t

he
 

Fu
tu

re

F
in

an
ce

 a
n

d 
C

or
po

ra
te

 
S

er
vi

ce
s

E
nv

ir
on

m
en

t
A

du
lt

 S
o

ci
al

 
C

ar
e

H
ou

si
ng

 
G

en
er

al
 F

u
nd

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

ti
ve

G
en

er
al

 F
un

d 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
To

ta
l

H
o

us
in

g 
In

ve
st

m
en

t 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e

To
ta

l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
ed

 
E

xp
en

di
tu

re

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 F

U
N

D
E

D
 V

A
R

IA
TI

O
N

S

Q
1 

- 
V

ar
ia

tio
ns

 a
lr

ea
d

y 
ap

pr
o

ve
d

S
ou

th
ba

nk
 A

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

1
1

1
B

er
m

on
ds

ey
 C

G
S

5
5

5
R

ot
he

rh
ith

e 
C

G
S

7
7

7
C

am
be

rw
el

l C
G

S
 a

nd
 P

ar
ks

(5
)

(5
)

(5
)

P
ea

bo
dy

 S
qu

ar
e 

E
st

at
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

5
5

5
G

re
at

 S
uf

fo
lk

 S
tr

ee
t B

U
P

 P
ro

je
ct

20
20

20
N

un
he

ad
 O

ut
er

 L
on

do
n 

F
un

di
ng

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e

36
0

36
0

36
0

C
at

he
dr

al
 S

qu
ar

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
50

50
50

C
am

be
rw

el
l T

ow
n 

C
en

tr
e-

S
10

6
89

89
89

C
or

rid
or

s,
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s 
&

 S
up

po
rt

in
g 

M
ea

su
re

s
44

44
44

A
yl

es
bu

ry
 E

st
at

e 
P

P
M

 w
or

ks
1,

36
0

1,
36

0

To
ta

l a
p

pr
ov

ed
 a

t 
Q

tr
 1

0
0

0
8

0
0

56
8

57
6

1,
36

0
1,

93
6

Q
2 

- 
V

ar
ia

tio
ns

 a
p

pr
ov

ed

C
am

be
rw

el
l L

C
 -

 p
ha

se
 2

15
15

15
C

am
be

rw
el

l L
C

 -
 p

ha
se

 2
98

98
98

O
LF

 T
rin

ity
 C

ol
le

ge
 s

po
rt

s 
ar

ea
   

 
5

5
5

B
ur

ge
ss

 P
ar

k 
R

ev
ita

lis
at

io
n 

P
ro

je
ct

73
2

73
2

73
2

D
fE

 B
as

ic
 N

ee
ds

 2
01

2/
13

4,
91

9
4,

91
9

4,
91

9
D

fE
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 g

ra
nt

 2
01

2/
13

2,
71

9
2,

71
9

2,
71

9
D

fE
 A

dd
iti

on
al

 B
as

ic
 N

ee
ds

 2
01

2/
13

1,
59

2
1,

59
2

1,
59

2
C

or
rid

or
s,

 N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

&
 S

up
po

rt
in

g 
M

ea
su

re
s(

E
&

C
 T

ra
ve

l A
w

ar
en

es
s)

(5
0)

(5
0)

(5
0)

C
or

rid
or

s,
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s 
&

 S
up

po
rt

in
g 

M
ea

su
re

s(
O

ly
m

pi
c 

S
m

ar
te

r 
T

ra
ve

l)
(2

5)
(2

5)
(2

5)
C

or
rid

or
s,

 N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

&
 S

up
po

rt
in

g 
M

ea
su

re
s(

S
ur

ve
ys

)
(3

0)
(3

0)
(3

0)
C

or
rid

or
s,

 N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

&
 S

up
po

rt
in

g 
M

ea
su

re
s(

C
yc

le
 T

ra
in

in
g)

(1
56

)
(1

56
)

(1
56

)
C

or
rid

or
s,

 N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

&
 S

up
po

rt
in

g 
M

ea
su

re
s(

T
ra

ve
l A

w
ar

en
es

s,
 C

am
pa

ig
ns

 &
 E

ve
nt

s)
(4

0)
(4

0)
(4

0)
C

or
rid

or
s,

 N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

&
 S

up
po

rt
in

g 
M

ea
su

re
s(

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 m
od

es
 o

f T
ra

ve
l S

tr
at

eg
y)

(1
18

)
(1

18
)

(1
18

)
C

or
rid

or
s,

 N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

&
 S

up
po

rt
in

g 
M

ea
su

re
s(

R
oa

d 
S

af
et

y 
&

 Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
)

(7
7)

(7
7)

(7
7)

C
or

rid
or

s,
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s 
&

 S
up

po
rt

in
g 

M
ea

su
re

s(
T

ra
ve

l P
la

n 
S

up
po

rt
 &

 Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
)

(4
0)

(4
0)

(4
0)

Q
ue

en
s 

R
oa

d 
P

ec
kh

am
87

87
87

O
ffi

ce
 A

cc
om

od
at

io
n 

S
tr

at
eg

y
1,

20
0

1,
20

0
1,

20
0

A
du

lt 
P

S
S

 C
ap

ita
l A

llo
ca

tio
ns

3
3

3

To
ta

l a
p

pr
ov

ed
 a

t 
Q

tr
 2

9,
23

0
0

0
85

0
3

0
75

1
10

,8
34

0
10

,8
34

115



F
u

n
d

ed
 v

ir
em

en
ts

 a
n

d 
va

ri
at

io
n

s 
fo

r 
ap

p
ro

va
l  

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
ag

e 
3 

of
 3

 

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
S

ou
th

w
ar

k 
S

ch
oo

ls
 f

or
 t

he
 

Fu
tu

re

F
in

an
ce

 a
n

d 
C

or
po

ra
te

 
S

er
vi

ce
s

E
nv

ir
on

m
en

t
A

du
lt

 S
o

ci
al

 
C

ar
e

H
ou

si
ng

 
G

en
er

al
 F

u
nd

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

ti
ve

G
en

er
al

 F
un

d 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
To

ta
l

H
o

us
in

g 
In

ve
st

m
en

t 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e

To
ta

l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
ed

 
E

xp
en

di
tu

re

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 F

U
N

D
E

D
 V

A
R

IA
TI

O
N

S

Q
3 

- 
V

ar
ia

tio
ns

 t
o

 b
e 

ap
pr

o
ve

d

G
eo

rg
e 

M
at

he
rs

 R
oa

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
29

29
29

M
aj

or
 S

ch
em

es
26

6
26

6
26

6

C
am

be
rw

el
l L

C
 -

 p
ha

se
 2

37
37

37
N

P
R

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e

50
9

50
9

50
9

H
IA

 -
 D

F
G

 m
an

d 
(6

0%
 d

fg
)

98
98

98
A

cq
ui

si
tio

n 
of

 1
60

T
oo

le
y 

S
t

17
8,

16
0

17
8,

16
0

17
8,

16
0

D
fE

 T
w

o-
ye

ar
-o

ld
 g

ra
nt

 2
01

2/
13

1,
17

5
1,

17
5

1,
17

5
F

R
A

 w
or

ks
4,

54
5

4,
54

5
A

yl
es

bu
ry

 E
st

at
e 

P
P

M
 w

or
ks

36
9

36
9

D
ig

ita
l s

w
itc

ho
ve

r
30

0
30

0
C

or
rid

or
s,

 N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

&
 S

up
po

rt
in

g 
M

ea
su

re
s

(1
29

)
(1

29
)

(1
29

)
M

aj
or

 S
ch

em
es

(2
4)

(2
4)

(2
4)

Lo
ca

l T
ra

ns
po

rt
 F

un
di

ng
(3

7)
(3

7)
(3

7)
D

ul
w

ic
h 

C
G

S
1

1
1

To
ta

l t
o 

be
 a

pp
ro

ve
d

 Q
tr

 3
1,

17
5

0
17

8,
16

0
54

7
0

98
10

5
18

0,
08

5
5,

21
4

18
5,

29
9

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t 

V
ar

ia
ti

o
ns

10
,4

05
0

17
8,

16
0

1,
40

5
3

98
1,

42
4

19
1,

49
5

6,
57

4
19

8,
06

9

R
E

V
IS

E
D

 B
U

D
G

E
TS

81
,2

00
81

,6
55

20
1,

32
8

10
4,

00
1

12
,1

98
27

,6
66

70
,1

32
57

8,
18

0
40

2,
76

7
98

0,
94

7

V
A

R
IA

TI
O

N
S

 R
E

Q
U

E
S

TE
D

 T
O

 B
E

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

F
IN

A
N

C
E

D
 B

Y
:

C
ap

ita
l G

ra
nt

10
,4

05
66

6
3

98
(3

23
)

10
,8

49
10

,8
49

S
ec

tio
n 

10
6 

F
un

ds
(5

)
54

7
54

2
54

2
E

xt
er

na
l C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n

12
12

12
C

ap
ita

l R
ec

ei
pt

73
2

1,
20

0
1,

93
2

1,
93

2
R

es
er

ve
s 

&
 R

ev
en

ue
0

6,
57

4
6,

57
4

In
te

rn
al

 B
or

ro
w

in
g

17
8,

16
0

17
8,

16
0

0
17

8,
16

0

TO
TA

L
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

10
,4

05
0

17
8,

16
0

1,
40

5
3

98
1,

42
4

19
1,

49
5

6,
57

4
19

8,
06

9

116



General Fund Capital Programme Details  

Page 1 of 5 

Capital Programme 2012/13 - 2021/22

Description of Programme / Project 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15+ Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Kingswood House Refurbishment 0 0 250 250
Thomas Calton Centre refurbishment 153 480 0 633
Camberwell Leisure Centre 74 0 0 74
Camberwell Leisure Centre Phase 2 916 27 0 943
Dulwich Leisure Centre 324 0 0 324
Pynners Sports Ground reinstatement works 198 0 0 198
Leisure Centre health and safety essential works 79 0 0 79
Implementation of RFID at Peckham Library 152 0 0 152
Seven Islands Leisure Centre Refurbishment 0 0 8,000 8,000
Southwark Park Sports Complex OLF allocation 20 350 0 370
Other OLF Projects 1,146 0 0 1,146
RFIDs 148 101 124 373
Grove Vale Library 0 0 360 360
Canada Water Public Art 10 62 0 72
Peckham Pulse Option 1 &  2 50 916 1,400 2,366
Leisure centres Lifecycle maintenance 0 120 295 415
Community Safety 344 679 731 1,754
South Dock Marina new showers & lavatories 100 0 0 100
Parking contract upfront capital costs 0 1,100 0 1,100
Walworth Road 338 0 0 338
Street care - Non Principal Roads Programme 6,104 5,000 33,050 44,154
Street metal works - Lamp column replacement 629 500 4,000 5,129
Cemetery Short Term burial space 570 0 4,410 4,980
Burgess Park Revitalisation Project 2,152 0 0 2,152

Crematoria Lodges refurbishment
0 380 0 380

Other parks projects 1,390 75 0 1,465
Parking  -CPZ Reviews 73 81 0 154
Southbank accessibility improvements 2,303 0 0 2,303
Connect 2 600 0 0 600
Rye Lane improvements 189 0 0 189
Other public realm projects funded by S106 405 100 0 505

Cleaner Greener Safer programme
4,283 1,880 13,160 19,323

Integrated Waste Solutions Programme 400 2,789 0 3,189
Southwark Heat Network 311 0 0 311

Environment Total 23,581 14,640 65,780 104,001

Environment

APPENDIX D

117



General Fund Capital Programme Details  

Page 2 of 5 

Capital Programme 2012/13 - 2021/22

Description of Programme / Project 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15+ Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Information Services 995 136 1,548 2,679
Upgrade of IT infrastructure 0 1,000 4,000 5,000
Property Works Programme 372 0 450 822
Works to Council Buildings - DDA 283 422 912 1,617
Essential upgrade of Carefirst system 645 2,155 0 2,800
PPM & Compliance Programme 0 0 10,250 10,250
Acquisition of 160 Tooley st 178,160 0 0 178,160

Finance and Resources Total 180,455 3,713 17,160 201,328

Capital Programme 2012/13 - 2021/22

Description of Programme / Project 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15+ Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Borough & Bankside Streetscape Improvement 433 0 0 433

Bermondsey Streetscape Improvements
744 24 0 768

Framework & implementation
2,469 699 12 3,180

Improvements to Local Retail Environments
2,054 0 0 2,054

Planning and Transport
3,438 4,795 0 8,233

Canada Water Library 37 0 0 37
Canada Water Development 1,168 0 0 1,168
Bermondsey Spa Public Realm Improvements 1,054 0 0 1,054
Voluntary Sector Strategy 0 0 1,035 1,035
New Nunhead Community Centre 516 60 0 576
Other Regeneration Schemes 5,819 18,683 2,300 26,802
Peckham Rye Station 702 1,846 7,452 10,000
Office Accommodation Strategy 10,353 4,244 195 14,792

Chief Executive Total 28,787 30,351 10,994 70,132

Finance and Corporate Services

Chief Executive

118



General Fund Capital Programme Details  

Page 3 of 5 

Capital Programme 2012/13 - 2021/22

Description of Programme / Project 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15+ Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Children's Centres - All Phases 568 0 0 568
Planned maintenance schemes 1 0 0 1
Quick win schemes 480 0 0 480
Eveline Lowe Primary School 255 0 0 255
Southwark Park Primary 3,000 5,000 382 8,382
Michael Faraday 971 0 0 971
St Anthony's expansion and refurbishment 4,075 0 0 4,075
Haymerle  816 0 0 816
Cherry Garden Special School 0 5,327 7,100 12,427
Lynhurst expansion and refurbishment 731 3,469 1,300 5,500
Crampton additional places 813 0 0 813
Other primary projects 602 0 97 699
Youth Services Projects 585 0 0 585
Playbuilder schemes 14 0 0 14
Cator Street 148 0 0 148
Capital Works for Free Healthy School Meals 421 0 0 421
Camelot PF&M 200 0 0 200
Other grants projects 542 0 0 542
Goose Green primary school 450 0 0 450
Carbon Reduction Fund 325 0 0 325
Primary school expansions 407 0 0 407
Access fund 150 0 0 150
Plant fabric and modernisation 137 0 0 137
Snowsfield early years accommodation 76 0 0 76
Additional school places 0 5,000 10,000 15,000
Peckham One O'clock Club 270 500 0 770
Carbon Reduction in schools 250 250 0 500
Troubled Families 0 400 0 400
DfE Basic Needs and Maintenance Grants 2012/13 10,404 0 0 10,404
Other allocations 4,584 0 11,100 15,684

Children's Services Total 31,275 19,946 29,979 81,200

Children's Services

119



General Fund Capital Programme Details  

Page 4 of 5 

Capital Programme 2012/13 - 2021/22

Description of Programme / Project 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15+ Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Southwark Resource Centre 358 0 0 358
Smaller projects 20 0 0 20
Adult PSS Capital Allocations 1,620 0 0 1,620
Transformation of Adult Care Accommodation 0 7,000 0 7,000
Transformation of Learning Disability Care 0 1,200 0 1,200
Centre of Excellence 0 2,000 0 2,000

Health and Community Services Total 1,998 10,200 0 12,198

Capital Programme 2012/13 - 2021/22

Description of Programme / Project 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15+ Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Walworth Academy 843 0 0 843
Tuke Special School 240 0 0 240
St Michael's PFI 6 0 0 6
St Michaels and All Angels (SMAA) 18,763 1,279 5,600 25,642
Highshore (SMAA special school) 0 0 0 0
Spa school 0 0 0 0
St Thomas the Apostle college 80 0 0 80
New School Aylesbury 4,301 0 0 4,301
Rotherhithe (CW new school) 0 2,943 16,679 19,622
Notre Dame (VA) 2,653 884 0 3,537
Sacred Heart PFI 0 0 0 0

KS4 SILS

8,102 1,065 0 9,167

St Saviours and St Olaves 3,454 423 0 3,877

Bredinghurst / KS3 SILS
2,250 0 0 2,250

ICT 4,376 0 0 4,376
Contingency yet to be formally allocated 2,098 1,914 3,702 7,714

Southwark Schools for the Future Total 47,166 8,508 25,981 81,655

Adult Social Care

Southwark Schools for the Future

120



General Fund Capital Programme Details  

Page 5 of 5 

Capital Programme 2012/13 - 2021/22

Description of Programme / Project 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15+ Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

East Peckham and Nunhead Housing Renewal 1,003 1,552 1,077 3,632
Empty Homes Grant 521 0 0 521
Homes Improvement Grant 278 411 1,516 2,205
Homes Improvement Agency 1,457 1,302 10,244 13,003
Small works grants 78 71 527 676
Home repair loan 360 371 1,831 2,562
Home repair grant 223 178 1,047 1,448
Landlord grants 135 95 266 496
Southwark moving on grant 20 0 0 20
Renewal area solar heating 210 210 0 420
Bellenden 84 50 40 174
LCZ group repairs - private 610 200 181 991
Ilderton travellers site wall 0 300 0 300
Springtide travellers site 330 433 0 763
Burnhill Close travellers site refurbishment 0 0 0 0
Affordable Housing Fund 122-148 Ivydale 0 455 0 455

Housing General Fund Total 5,309 5,628 16,729 27,666

Capital Programme 2012/13 - 2021/22
2012/13 2013/14 2014/15+ Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Total Expenditure 318,571 92,986 166,623 578,180

Total Resources 303,116 69,245 205,657 578,018

Forecast variation (under)/over 15,455 23,741 (39,034) 162
Cumulative position 15,455 39,196 162

Housing General Fund

Total General Fund Programme

121



 
 
FOREWORD - COUNCILLOR RICHARD LIVINGSTONE, CABINET MEMBER FOR 
FINANCE, RESOURCES AND COMMUNITY SAFETY 
 
National Non Domestic Rates, known locally as Business Rates are collected from 
businesses in the borough by the council and paid into a central government pool and 
then redistributed to the council as part of the annual grant settlement. 
 
The council is responsible for collecting approximately £200m of national non domestic 
rates on behalf of the government and take appropriate enforcement action where 
needed to ensure that collection performance is high.  
 
Historically, collection rates have been high with an improved performance in 2011-12 
of 97.8%.  This demonstrates that the council is acting diligently and effectively in 
collecting the business rates for the government.  
 
However, there will be cases where businesses cease to trade due to becoming 
insolvent or dissolved where it has been decided it is not financially viable to continue 
to operate.  In a small number of cases the amount of rates will be considerable as 
they are calculated on the rateable value of the property occupied.  
 
The council will only consider writing off debt where it is deemed to be irrecoverable to 
collect.  The cost of business rates write offs is borne by the government and not the 
council or the taxpayers.  
     
RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
1. That Cabinet approval is given for write off of the debt of £98,031.81 for one 

debt (which includes seven accounts billed to the same ratepayer) which is 
irrecoverable. 

 
2. That Cabinet considers any further action they require on the write-off not 

agreed within this report. 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 

3. Under the council’s constitution write-off of debts above £5,000 but below 
£50,000 has been delegated to individual members within their own service 
area.  Debt write-off under £5,000 can be authorised by chief officers.  Write off 
of any debt over £50,000 must be referred to cabinet for authorisation. 

Item No.  
12. 

 

Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
12 February 2013  

Meeting Name: 
Cabinet  

Report title: 
 

Authorisation of Debt Write-offs over £50,000 for 
National Non Domestic Rates –  Revenues & 
Benefits Service  
 

Ward(s) or groups 
affected: 
 

All 

Cabinet Member: 
 

Councillor Richard Livingstone, Finance, Resources 
and Community Safety 
  

Agenda Item 12
122



 
4. There are a number of key reasons why the council may wish to write-off a debt.  

These are: 
 

i. The debt cannot be substantiated i.e. there is no documentary evidence 
that the debtor accepted the goods or services with the knowledge that a 
charge would be made. 

 
ii. The debt is uneconomic to collect i.e. the cost of collection, including 

substantiation, is greater than the value of the debt. 
 
iii. The debt is time barred, where the statute of limitation applies.  Generally 

this means that if a period of six years has elapsed since the debt was 
last demanded, the debt cannot be enforced by legal action. 

 
iv. The debtor cannot be found or communicated with despite all reasonable 

attempts to trace the debtor. 
 
v. The debtor is deceased and there is no likely settlement from the estate 

or next of kin. 
 
vi. Hardship, where permitted, (not hardship relief) on the grounds that 

recovery of the debt is likely to cause the debtor serious financial 
difficulty. 

 
vii. Insolvency where the organisation or person has gone into bankruptcy 

and there are no assets to claim against. 
 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION   
   
Policy implications 
 
5. The proposed write off set out in this report is recommended in accordance with 

the council’s agreed write off policies and procedures.  The reasons for the 
recommended write off are stated in the appendix attached. 

 
6. Appendix 1 includes a write-off for National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR).  The 

NNDR write-off has been recommended by the council’s NNDR business unit.  
In each case and where appropriate the business unit has attempted to trace 
account holders via a standard procedure as follows: - 

 
§ Interrogation of the NNDR database. 
§ Interrogation of the Document Imaging System 
§ Tracing letters issued to other local authorities and solicitors.  
§ Inspection of the domestic or business premises. 
§ Land Registry searches. 
§ Companies House searches 
§ Tracing letter to landlords or letting/managing agents & directors 
§ Letter sent to the Official Receiver for confirmation of any dividends to be 

paid 
§ Checks made with other Council Departments 

 
7. The NNDR business unit use a minimum of three tracing methods and conducts 

a 10 percent audit review of cases under £5,000 and a 50 percent audit review 

123



of cases £5,000 to £50,000 and 100 percent audit review on cases over 
£50,000 to ensure that the correct procedures have been adhered to.  

 
Community impact statement 
 
8. This decision has been judged to have no or very small impact on local people 

and communities. 
 

Resource implications 
 
9. The total Non Domestic Rates debt recommended for write off is £98,031.81 for 

£98,031.81 for one debt (which includes seven accounts billed to the same 
ratepayer) which is irrecoverable. This relates to a single company which is in 
liquidation.  

 
10. In the current economic climate, it is envisaged that a greater number of small 

and medium sized businesses will experience difficult trading conditions.  Whilst 
every effort will be made to provide support within the scope of the existing 
legislation, it is inevitable that there will be an increase in the number of 
businesses dissolved, put into administration or receivership or liquidated.  This, 
in turn, will lead to more cases being written off due to the business rates debts 
being irrecoverable.      

 
11. The above debt will be contained within the NNDR bad debt provisions. 
 
12. As per paragraph 3 the schedule of write-offs has been compiled in accordance 

with the council’s agreed policy and procedures.  
 
13. The debt is recommended for write-off, as it is considered irrecoverable or 

uneconomic to collect.  
 
14. The recommended write-off of £98,031.81 for National Non Domestic Rates will 

be contained within the council’s relevant bad debt provisions.  
 
SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS 
 
Director of Legal Services   
 
15. The report recommends that the debt set out in Appendix 1 to this report is written 

off in accordance with the council’s procedures on debt write-off.  
 

16. The approval of debt write-offs for sums over £50,000 is reserved to the cabinet for 
collective decision making.  This particular debt has arisen as a result of non 
payment of non domestic rates.   

 
17. The report sets out the circumstances whereby debts can lawfully be written off by 

the council and this includes cases where a company has been dissolved and 
there are no assets to claim against.  The company in appendix 1 is a company 
recently dissolved.  In such circumstances there are no means available to 
successfully pursue the debt.  

 
18. The Director of Legal Services agrees with the recommendation that this debt 

should be written off in accordance with procedure and is lawful. 

124



 
Strategic Director of Finance and Corporate Services (FIN0347) 

 
19. As per paragraph 3 the schedule of write-offs has been compiled in accordance 

with the council’s agreed policy and procedures.  
 

20. This report recommends the write off of one debt, falling within the range reserved 
for member decision.  This debt meets one or more of the criteria for write-off and 
the strategic director of finance and corporate services considers that it would be 
uneconomic to make any further attempt at recovery. 

 
21. The recommended write-off of £98,031.81 will be contained within the council’s 

bad debt provisions.  The amount will be met from the NNDR Rating Pool and 
the cost is not borne by the council or council taxpayers. 

 
22. As per paragraph 3 the schedule of write-offs has been compiled in accordance 

with the council’s agreed policy and procedures.  
 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Background Papers Held At Contact 
Notice of insolvency. This document 
is available on this web page: 
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ie
ListDocuments.aspx?CId=302&MId=
4251&Ver=4  
 

Revenues & Benefits  
1st Floor, Hub 3,  
160 Tooley Street, 
London SE1 2QH 

Norman Lockie 
020 7525 0928 

 
 
APPENDICES 
 
No. Title  
Appendix 1 Case details 
 

125



 
AUDIT TRAIL 
 
Cabinet Member Councillor Richard Livingstone, Finance, Resources and 

Community Safety 
Lead Officer Duncan Whitfield, Strategic Director of Finance and Corporate 

Services 
Report Author Norman Lockie, Operations Manager (Revenues)  

Version Final  
Dated 30 January 2013 

Key Decision? Yes 
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 

MEMBER 
Officer Title Comments 

Sought 
Comments 
included 

Strategic Director of Communities,  
Law and Governance 

Yes Yes 

Strategic Director of Finance and 
Corporate Services 

Yes Yes 

Cabinet Member  Yes Yes 
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 30 January 2013 
 
 
 

 

126



 
 
 
APPENDIX 1  

 
Case Details 

 
Name & address of 
ratepayer  

Amount Period of 
occupation 

Reason for 
write off 

Nice Business Park Ltd 
Unit 5 First Floor Sylvan 
Industrial Estate 
19-35 Sylvan Grove 
London SE15 1PD 

£1475.11 01/08/09-
17/05/10 

Liquidation – 
no dividend 
payable 
 

 
Statement of account 
 
Period Amount due Payments received Balance o/s 
 £  £  £ 
01/08/09-31/03/10  1226.98  0.00  1226.98 
01/04/10-17/05/10  248.13  0.00  248.13 
 
Total balance outstanding    £1475.11  
 
Notices issued: 
 
Date Details 
 
19/12/08 Bill for period 01/05/07-31/03/09 
19/01/09 Reminder notice 
06/03/09  Summons 
 
10/03/09 Bill for period 01/04/09-31/03/10 
16/04/09 Reminder 
25/06/09 Summons 
17/07/09 Liability order granted 
31/12/09 Revised bill following notification that property was the 

responsibility of Nice Group Ltd from 01/05/07-08/03/09 and was  
unoccupied between 09/03/09-31/07/09 

 
08/03/10 Bill for period 01/04/10-31/03/11 
18/05/10 Reminder 
28/10/10 Closing bill issued 
16/12/10 Reminder 
25/01/11 Summons 
17/02/11 Liability order granted 
 
 
 
 
 

127



 
Name & address of 
ratepayer  

Amount Period of 
occupation 

Reason for 
write off 

Nice Business Park Ltd 
Unit 4 First Floor Sylvan 
Industrial Estate 
19-35 Sylvan Grove 
London SE15 1PD 

£7984.00 01/08/09-
17/05/10 

Liquidation – 
no dividend 
payable 
 

 
Statement of account 
 
Period Amount due Payments received Balance o/s 
 £  £  £ 
01/08/09-31/03/10  6538.53  0.00 6538.53 
01/04/10-17/05/10  1445.47  0.00 1445.47  
 
Total balance outstanding    £7984.00  
 
Notices issued: 
 
Date Details 
 
19/12/08 Bill for period 01/05/07-31/03/09 
19/01/09 Reminder notice 
 
10/03/09 Bill for period 01/04/09-31/03/10 
16/04/09 Reminder 
02/06/09 Summons 
19/06/09 Liability order granted 
31/12/09 Revised bill following notification that property was the 

responsibility of Nice Group Ltd from 01/05/07-08/03/09 and was  
unoccupied between 09/03/09-31/07/09 

 
08/03/10 Bill for period 01/04/10-31/03/11 
16/04/10 Reminder 
28/05/10 Closing bill following vacation of property 
16/03/11 Reminder 
20/05/11 Summons 
15/06/11 Liability order granted 
 
 

128



 
Name & address of 
ratepayer  

Amount Period of 
occupation 

Reason for 
write off 

Nice Business Park Ltd 
Unit 3 Sylvan Industrial 
Estate 
19-35 Sylvan Grove 
London SE15 1PD 

£18,639.03 01/04/10-
04/04/12 

Liquidation – 
no dividend 
payable 
 

 
Statement of account 
 
Period Amount due Payments received Balance o/s 
 £  £  £ 
01/08/09-31/03/10               4278.30  0.00 4278.30 
01/04/10-31/03/11  6722.48  0.00  6722.48 
01/04/11-31/03/12  7550.72  0.00  7550.72 
01/04/12-04/04/12  87.53  0.00  87.53 
 
Total balance outstanding    £18,639.03  
 
Notices issued: 
 
Date Details 
 
13/08/10 Bill for period 01/08/09-31/03/11 
15/10/10 Reminder 
25/01/11 Summons 
16/02/11 Liability order granted 
 
08/03/11 Bill for period 01/04/11-31/03/12 
27/04/11 Reminder 
20/05/11 Summons 
15/06/11 Liability order granted 
 
08/03/12 Bill for period 01/04/12-31/03/13 
26/04/12 Reminder 
08/05/12 Closing bill following vacation of property 
 

129



 
Name & address of 
ratepayer  

Amount Period of 
occupation 

Reason for 
write off 

Nice Business Park Ltd 
Units 1 & 2 Sylvan 
Industrial Estate 
19-35 Sylvan Grove 
London SE15 1PD 

£39,852.67 01/08/09-
17/05/10 

Liquidation – 
no dividend 
payable 
 

 
Statement of account 
 
Period Amount due Payments received Balance o/s 
 £  £  £ 
01/08/09-31/03/10  9605.99  0.00  9605.99 
01/04/10-31/03/11  14,697.00  0.00  14,697.00 
01/04/11-31/03/12  15,371.50  0.00  15,371.50 
01/04/12-04/04/12  178.18  0.00  178.18 
 
Total balance outstanding    £39,852.67 
 
Notices issued: 
 
Date Details 
 
08/06/09 Bill for period 09/03/09-31/03/10 
19/08/09 Revised bill following notification that property was unoccupied 

between 09/03/09-31/07/09 
23/09/09 Reminder notice 
19/11/09  Summons 
11/12/09 Liability order granted 
 
08/03/10 Bill for period 01/04/10-31/03/11 
16/09/10 Reminder 
25/01/11 Summons 
17/02/11 Liability order granted 
 
08/03/11 Bill for period 01/04/11-31/03/12 
27/04/11 Reminder 
20/05/11 Summons 
15/06/11 Liability order granted 
 
12/03/12 Bill for period 01/04/12-31/03/13 
26/04/12 Reminder 
08/05/12 Closing bill following vacation of property

130



 
Name & address of 
ratepayer  

Amount Period of 
occupation 

Reason for 
write off 

Nice Business Park Ltd 
Unit 5 Ground Floor 
Sylvan Industrial Estate 
19-35 Sylvan Grove 
London SE15 1PD 

£7199.67 01/08/09-
04/04/12 

Liquidation – 
no dividend 
payable 
 

 
Statement of account 
 
Period Amount due Payments received Balance o/s 
 £  £  £ 
01/08/09-31/03/10  2313.51  0.00  2313.51 
01/04/10-31/03/11  2286.41  0.00  2286.41 
01/04/11-31/03/12  2567.70  0.00  2567.70 
01/04/12-04/04/12  32.05  0.00  32.05 
 
Total balance outstanding    £7199.67  
 
Notices issued: 
 
Date Details 
 
31/12/09 Bill for period 09/03/09-31/03/10 
20/01/10 Reminder notice 
 
08/03/10 Bill for period 01/04/10-31/03/11 
16/09/10 Reminder 
25/01/11 Summons 
17/02/11 Liability order granted 
 
08/03/11 Bill for period 01/04/11-31/03/12 
27/04/11 Reminder 
20/05/11 Summons 
15/06/11 Liability order granted 
 
12/03/12 Bill for period 01/04/12-31/03/13 
26/04/12 Reminder 
08/05/12 Closing bill following vacation of property 
 

131



 
Name & address of 
ratepayer  

Amount Period of 
occupation 

Reason for 
write off 

Nice Business Park Ltd 
Unit 4 Sylvan Industrial 
Estate 
19-35 Sylvan Grove 
London SE15 1PD 

£19,034.73 01/08/10-
04/04/12 

Liquidation – 
no dividend 
payable 
 

 
Statement of account 
 
Period Amount due Payments received Balance o/s 
 £  £  £ 
01/08/10-31/03/11  7317.72  0.00  7317.72 
01/04/11-31/03/12  11582.75  0.00 11582.75 
01/04/12-04/04/12  134.26  0.00  134.26 
 
Total balance outstanding    £19,034.73  
 
Notices issued: 
 
Date Details 
 
30/11/11 Bill for period 01/08/10-31/03/11 
15/12/11 Reminder notice 
20/01/12  Summons 
17/02/12 Liability order granted 
 
12/03/12 Bill for period 01/04/12-31/03/13 
26/04/12 Reminder 
08/05/12 Closing bill following vacation of property 
18/07/12 Reminder 

132



 
Name & address of 
ratepayer  

Amount Period of 
occupation 

Reason for 
write off 

Nice Business Park Ltd 
Unit 5 First Floor Sylvan 
Industrial Estate 
19-35 Sylvan Grove 
London SE15 1PD 

£3846.60 18/05/10-
04/04/12 

Liquidation – 
no dividend 
payable 
 

 
Statement of account 
 
Period Amount due Payments received Balance o/s 
 £  £  £ 
17/05/10-31/03/11  1678.84  0.00  1678.84 
01/04/11-31/03/12  2143.35  0.00  2143.35 
01/04/12-04/04/12  24.41  0.00  24.41 
 
Total balance outstanding    £3846.60  
 
Notices issued: 
 
Date Details 
 
09/08/12 Bill issued for period 18/05/10-04/04/12 (bill had previously been 

issued in directors name) 

133



Case history 
 
Nice Business Park Ltd purchased the lease of the property at 19-35 Sylvan 
Grove for occupation by Nice Group Ltd. Nice Group Ltd occupied the property 
until 9 March 2009, when they went in Administration. 
 
The property was then re-let as serviced office units by Nice Business Group Ltd, 
who due to the nature of the occupation were responsible for payment of the 
business rate liability. Rate demands were issued accordingly and when payment 
was not forthcoming, recovery action was taken and liability orders granted by 
the Magistrates Court.  
 
The case was passed to the Council’s bailiffs, but despite repeated visits to the 
property they were unable to obtain payment. The case was returned to the 
Council for further action to be taken, but before this could be taken the Company 
was placed into liquidation on 5 April 2012. 
 
The liquidators have provided a report detailing the history of the Company which 
states that the Company owe their bankers £2.97 million under a fixed charge on 
the property. The property has been valued at £1.75m, resulting in a deficit of 
£1.22 million. There will therefore be no dividend payable to unsecured creditors. 
The liquidators have confirmed that ownership of the property at 19-35 Sylvan 
Grove was transferred to a new company, Daisycharm Ltd, on 5 April 2012.  
 
 
 
  
 
 

134



 1 

 
Item No.  

13. 
 

Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
12 February 2013  
 

Meeting Name: 
Cabinet  
 

Report title: 
 

Leathermarket JMB – Partial Self-financing of the 
Housing Revenue Account 
 

Ward(s) or groups 
affected: 

Grange 

Cabinet Member: 
 
 

Councillor Ian Wingfield, Deputy Leader of the 
Council and Cabinet Member for Housing 
Management 
 

 
 
FOREWORD – COUNCILLOR IAN WINGFIELD, DEPUTY LEADER AND CABINET 
MEMBER FOR HOUSING MANAGEMENT 
 
The funding regime for local authority social housing changed fundamentally in April 
2012 with the commencement of self-financing, we now have greater security and 
freedom for planning longer-term and determining our financial priorities, which will be 
informed through consultation on the housing commission proposals. This involves 
engaging with residents; listening to their concerns and reflecting their aspirations and 
the council's desire to provide a level of service that we can jointly take pride in. 
 
It is with this in mind that this paper is placed before this meeting. As the Council 
enjoys a greater ability to determine its financial priorities so it is important to ensure 
that local communities can, where appropriate, enjoy the same level of control as to 
how funds are invested. 
 
Self-financing at a local level means that residents can contribute towards the future of 
their homes and communities. What is being proposed is an exciting initiative which 
puts Southwark firmly at the forefront of devolving control to local communities, 
enabling them to make real decisions on the matter that most concerns them, their 
homes.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
1. To note the progress made towards the innovative and ground breaking proposal 

to establish the first ‘self financing’ Tenant Management Organisation (TMO) in 
the country thereby increasing significantly the levels of empowerment of Council 
residents in this area.  

 
2. To agree to the implementation of this proposal from April 2013. 

 
3. To agree to the Council entering into a new Modular Management Agreement 

(MMA) with Leathermarket JMB that includes additional terms to enable the 
payment of an allowance to the JMB to equate to the sums levied by way of rent, 
service charge and garage rent and to agree robust monitoring mechanisms to 
ensure that public funds are protected.  

Agenda Item 13
135



 2 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
4. TMOs were first established under statute with the 1994 Right to Manage 

Regulations, introduced as part of the Leasehold Reform, Housing and Urban 
Development Act 1993, although Southwark has a history of supporting 
residents to form companies to provide housing services to their homes much 
older than this with the first group becoming established in 1982. However, 
traditional tenant management provides for the group to be paid an allowance, 
equivalent to the sum the Council would incur, to provide an agreed range of 
services. The essence of this proposal is to become the first local authority in the 
country to empower residents to take full control of the housing services to 
residents. 

 
5. The Leathermarket Joint Management Board (JMB) is a tenant managed 

organisation which currently provides a housing management service to 1476 
tenanted, leasehold and freehold properties on behalf of the Council. They do so 
under the Right to manage regulations 1994 and a management agreement 
dated 9th October 1996 (varied in May 2008 to allow direct employment of staff). 
The JMB is a company limited by guarantee controlled through a Board of 
Directors. The Directors are nominated by the five Tenant & Residents’ 
Associations within the area covered by the management agreement, and are 
endorsed at the Company’s Annual General Meeting. The JMB is a highly 
efficient and effective organisation which has high levels of governance and a 
long track record of providing both responsive services and stock investment 
programmes. 

 
6. In September 2010 the JMB approached the Council with a proposal to ‘ring-

fence’ the rental income generated from the area managed by the JMB in order 
that they may better manage and maintain the stock designated to them under 
the terms of the management agreement and to allow the full implementation of 
a 30 year asset management strategy. This will devolve control to residents of 
the JMB to a far higher level than any other TMO in the country whilst allowing 
the Council to retain ownership of the stock. Such a development will enhance 
the co-operative principles under which the JMB were founded, by allowing 
residents to take greater control over their future.  

 
7. An interim report was made in February 2011 and the following recommendation 

was agreed – “That a detailed financial appraisal be undertaken of the 
implications (both to the council and the JMB) of ring fencing Leather market’s 
income stream to the TMO.  This appraisal to be completed within the next six 
months so that, if agreed, the ring fencing would be implemented in 2011/12.” 

 
8. The JMB undertook a continuation ballot in October 2011, as required under the 

terms of their management agreement, whereby all residents are given the 
opportunity to state whether or not they wish for the JMB to continue managing 
their homes. The results of the ballot were extremely positive with the JMB 
achieving an overall vote in favour from 90.9% of residents on a 67.8% turnout. 
All recommendations within this report were subject to a successful vote in 
favour of the JMBs continued management. The level of support shown for the 
JMB gives them a very strong mandate to continue delivering housing services. 

 
9. A further report was made to Cabinet in May 2012 providing details of the 

proposal and recommending a period of shadowing during the financial year 
2012-13 to assess the impact on the HRA, development of a new form of 

136



 3 

management agreement based on the format provided for TMOs under the Right 
to Manage regulations and the future work required to develop this proposal 
towards implementation. 

 
Current environment 
 
10. There has been little change in the current environment from that reported to 

Cabinet in May 2012. At that time it was stated that this proposal should be 
viewed as part of the current political context both within Southwark and 
nationally. The range of new rights for communities and groups of residents 
introduced by the current coalition government in its legislative programme, 
included: 

 
• the Localism Act 2011 which includes 

− The Community Right to Challenge 
− The Community Right to Bid for assets with community value 
− Neighbourhood forums 

• Health and Social Care Bill 2011, and  
• Academies Act 2010.  
 

The overall aim being to reduce the role of the public sector as a direct service 
provider and to increase the diversity of provision through the increased use of 
private, voluntary and community sectors.  

 
11. In addition the Open Public Services White Paper in July 2011 outlined the 

governments aim to ”make a dramatic difference by treating citizens as grown-ups 
– by giving them greater choice and control; genuine information on outcomes; and a 
stronger role for their communities.” One of the main tenets of the proposed 
reform is to decentralise services to the lowest appropriate level which this 
proposal meets emphatically. 

 
12. Specifically within the social housing sector proposals for new regulations on 

‘community led’ stock transfer were published for consultation on 15 March 2012 
with the aim of reducing the ability of local authorities to prevent transfer of its 
housing stock to community owned companies. The way forward on this route 
forward however remains unclear.  

 
13. In August 2012 revised Right to Manage regulations were published by 

Government with the intention of reducing the time taken to development TMOs 
and to encourage the formation of more TMOs nationally. Southwark is an 
acknowledged leader in the field of tenant management with officers regularly 
meeting with officers at the Department of Communities and Local Government 
to advise on developments in this area. Southwark has recently developed 
guidance for local authority landlords on the implementation of the Right to 
Manage and provides support and assistance to other local authorities in this 
field of work. 

 
14. It is against this background that the current unique and ground breaking 

proposal for the Leathermarket JMB has been developed. As previously stated, 
Southwark has long been recognised as being at the forefront of the 
development of tenant management nationally and this proposal reinforces this 
standing. Officers of the Tenant Management Initiative team (TMI) within the 
Specialist Housing Services Division have worked closely with the Directors of 
the Leathermarket JMB over the past 2 years to develop this proposal to the 

137



 4 

current position. 
 
15. The JMB have specifically rejected the option of a community led stock transfer 

as there is no demand for a stock transfer from residents within the JMB area. 
However, there is no doubt that they have sufficient resources and are of 
sufficient size to undertake such a transfer should this view change. A ballot of 
three TMO managed estates1 within the neighbouring borough of Lambeth 
resulted in a positive result last year and the resulting community owned 
organisation, LATMOS, assumed ownership of the estates in April 2012. The 
ability to undertake ‘self-financing’ therefore meets the aims of the JMB and 
ensures that the estates under their management remain under Council 
ownership. In taking this step a new ‘Southwark’ model is developed to meet the 
needs and aspirations of local residents. 

 
16. Officers met with representatives from the Department of Communities and 

Local Government (DCLG) and the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) on 
19 November 2012 and both organisations expressed their support for this 
model as it is proposed. DCLG are keen for a template to be established to allow 
other TMOs to use this vehicle as a means to deliver greater local control for 
TMOs who have ‘grown up’ and for whom the parameters allowed under the 
Right to Manage have become restrictive.  Southwark have been requested to 
develop a new template management agreement for other groups considering 
this proposal and will provide a detailed guide for other groups to follow. 

 
17. At a local level a the report submitted by the Housing Commission makes 

favourable reference to the development of self-financing TMOs on a number of 
occasions, citing “...a more devolved housing management structure based in 
part on the new self-financing tenant management organisations (TMOs) model”  
as a means of improving both performance and customer care for residents in 
the borough. This is certainly justified given the results of both the STATUS 
surveys in 2010 and equivalent in 2012 and the Continuation ballot of JMB 
residents in 2011. 

 
18. To support this a Standardised Tenant satisfaction Survey (STATUS) conducted 

for TMO residents in 2010 showed that TMOs deliver satisfaction levels far in 
excess of those being achieved by Southwark managed stock. This survey 
showed that satisfaction with the TMOs as a manager satisfaction levels were 
23% (14 percentage points) higher than the comparable Southwark performance 
in 2008 (76% compared to 62%). This has been achieved at no additional 
expense to the council as a review of TMO allowances completed in late 2011 
showed that TMO allowances were approximately 2% less than that being spent 
by area teams in providing a similar range of services. These results were 
reinforced in November 2012 when the results of the satisfaction survey 
conducted by the Housing and Community Services Department showed a 
similar result. Satisfaction with the Council as a landlord was 63% whilst TMOs 
achieved a satisfaction level of 76%.  

 
19. Achievement of this level of satisfaction ranks TMOs in Southwark amongst the 

best performing Councils in London. 
 
20. The re-financing of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) has provided the 

council with additional freedoms to explore the possibilities of achieving the 
delivery of a housing service in a different way. The removal of a national HRA 

                                                 
1 Lambeth Alliance of Tenant Management Organisations (LATMOS) 

138



 5 

enables Southwark to further empower local residents to shape and deliver local 
housing services. The report from the independent Housing Commission 
underlines the role that self-financing for TMOs in Southwark can play in 
achieving the Fairer Future objectives. 

 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
21. The current proposal is to increase the allowances paid to the JMB to equate to 

the income generated through rent and service charge within its area less the 
cost of retained services and the debt apportioned to these properties.  This will 
have the effect of making the JMB financially self-contained and not wholly 
reliant on allowances paid to it under the terms of the current management 
agreement which has led to dispute and disagreement in the past. As the council 
will need to fund its management, major repair costs and debt repayment from 
the income generated from rents under the HRA reforms, so will the JMB under 
the self-financing initiative.  

 
22. There are significant advantages to the Council in agreeing to this proposal: 
 

• It will give a major boost to the cause of resident control and enable the 
JMB to implement its Asset Management Strategy, the objective of which 
is to maintain and improve the stock in the JMB area over a 30-year 
period. The strands of the strategy are: 
i. Deliver the warm, dray and safe programme 
ii. Address health and safety issues, especially with regard to the 

risk of fire 
iii. Progress from reactive to planned replacement of building 

components 
iv. Address residents’ aspirations for a modern and secure home and 

environment. 
• Responsibility for the achievement of the Decent Homes Standard (and 

the maintenance thereof for 30 years) will be passed to the JMB 
• Current debts on the property will be paid by the JMB. These are 

estimated to be £15.71m from April 2013. 
• Retention of the housing stock by the Council. There are no proposals for 

any transfer of assets to the JMB at present. 
• Continued access to JMB managed stock for the allocation of tenancies. 

 
23. The JMB originally estimated that approximately £16m needs to be invested in 

the housing stock under its control in order bring it up to an acceptable standard 
to residents. The level of decency achieved in the JMB managed stock is 
expected to reach 79% by the end of the current financial year. This compares to 
a decency level of approximately 60% in the rest of the housing stock, which is 
expected to reach the warm, safe and dry standard at the end of the five year 
investment programme in 2015/16.The figures do not include any future 
investment needs arising as components require replacement over the life of the 
business plan and the JMB have prepared a full 30 year business plan which 
has been externally validated. The Business Plan estimates that the investment 
needed to reach and maintain the decent homes standard for 30 years is 
approximately £69m. The JMB estimate that self-financing will enable them to 
undertake this level of investment and repay the outstanding debt on the stock. 

 
24. The JMB has worked effectively with the Council over a number of years to 

strengthen its management of finances, and the delivery of major and responsive 

139



 6 

repairs. Officers are satisfied that the JMB now has the directors, management 
and staff capability to take on greater financial responsibility. The proposed JMB 
self financing will have the added bonus of simplifying the financial interface 
between the Council and JMB, which has proved contentious in the past. As part 
of the agreement the JMB and Council a rigorous audit process will be specified 
and enhanced levels of monitoring will be established over and above that in 
place for other TMOs in Southwark.  

 
25. This is an innovative model which gives residents greater control and has 

attracted interest on a national level in its potential to deliver a far greater level of 
tenant empowerment without the contentious issue of stock transfer. It should be 
noted that: 

 
• Tenants remain secure tenants of the Council.  
• Tenancy conditions and rent levels will be the same as other Council 

tenants.  
• No money has to be diverted from asset management to pay for tenant 

advisors, financiers, lawyers and consultants.   
• As tenants are not losing their security of tenure or legal relationship with 

the Council there is no requirement for a ballot. 
• The Council retains it nomination rights to all new tenancies. 

  
26. Officers of the JMB, Tenant Management Initiative team and the Finance & 

Resources Department have worked closely with officers of the JMB since April 
2011 to ascertain the potential impact on the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
should the proposals proceed. This work has incorporated the following 
elements: 

 
• Detailed calculations into the separation of the JMB account from the 

Council’s HRA. 
• The JMB to put additional financial structures and contractual 

arrangements in place to manage this level of financial independence. 
• A planned change to the HRA to take place. 
• Parallel work with the Council regarding the HRA review proposed by 

government. 
• A period of shadowing in 2012/13 to assess the impact of self-financing 

on the councils ability to manage and maintain the rest of the housing 
stock in Southwark. 

 
JMB income under self-financing 
 
27. The report in May 2012 outlined the various affects that self-financing would 

have on both the JMB income and expenditure and these are addressed again in 
the following paragraphs. 

 
Rent income 

28. In terms of the annual income to the JMB this assumes a rent collection rate of 
98% of rent due in the current year and allowing a loss due to voids/bad debts of 
only 2%. This may be an ambitious target given the forthcoming welfare reforms 
in 2012/13. Similarly, the 100% collection targets for garage rents and store 
sheds may also not be achieved. This represents a risk for the JMB to consider 
in their financial planning. In the current financial year the JMB have achieved a 
rent collection rate of 100.92% for the first six months. 

 

140



 7 

Service charge income 
29. The leasehold service charge collection element is included as this currently 

contributes towards the services provided in the JMB area for both JMB and 
retained service provision. The JMB have asked the Council to continue to 
calculate invoice and collect the service charges for the JMB area and a Service 
Level Agreement (SLA) is being developed to enable this. 
 

Additional revenue income 
30. The Council receives revenue income from various advertising and 

communications sites across the borough and has previously operated an 
agreement whereby such income is targeted at the estates which generate the 
income for the benefit of local residents. The JMB currently benefits from this 
agreement due to various communication installations situated across the 
housing stock under its management. It is proposed that the JMB continue to 
receive the income from these installations. However, under the proposed new 
financing regime it is appropriate that an agreement is reached over the ability of 
the council to access any revenue generated by council officers. 

 
31. In predicting the future income of the JMB over 30 years and inflation rate of 

2.6% has been used for 2013/14 and 2.5% p.a. thereafter. A methodology of the 
current rent plus inflation (Retail Price Index) at 2.5%, plus half of one percent 
plus two pounds per week has been assumed throughout the life of the business 
plan.  

 
32. Consideration has been given in the Business Plan to decline in tenanted stock 

numbers due to the Right to Buy (RTB) and a figure of approximately 2.6 units 
per annum has been used.  

 
33. Leasehold service charge income has been factored into the income received by 

the JMB and is estimated at approximately £0.5m per annum for the early years 
of the Business Plan. It is estimated that leaseholder contribution to the overall 
investment over 30 years will be in the region of £11m in total. 
 

Expenditure 
 

Office rental 
34. No charge is currently levied against the JMB for the rental cost of their offices. 

Under the formula used to calculate the allowances paid to TMOs such costs are 
met in full and therefore the net benefit to the Council is nil. Under the proposed 
change office costs would form part of the re-chargeable services to be met from 
the JMB income and the office has therefore been assessed as to the likely sum 
the Council could expect to receive if it were let commercially. Discussions are 
continuing with the JMB in this area as the JMB feel that a commercial rent 
should not be used given the nature of community activities undertaken by the 
organisation. Consideration is currently being given to a lease arrangement 
whereby full repairing liability is devolved to the JMB for the structure in return for 
a lower rental charge. 

 
Retained Council services 

35. Since Cabinet considered the paper presented to the May meeting further work 
has been undertaken to identify and apportion correctly the services to be 
retained by the Council. These services have been broken down into three 
groups: 

 
• Compulsory (e.g. rent setting, housing options etc) 

141



 8 

• Discretionary (e.g. tenants fund, etc.) 
• Overheads (e.g. SLAs, complaints service etc). 

 
The net effect of these charges are nil in the short term but the JMB may 
decide to assume greater responsibility for some aspects of the identified 
functions resulting in a lower payment to the council. This is true for all TMOs 
who have the right to take on additional functions as the organisations develop 
greater experience and capacity. 

 
Debt repayment 

36. The impact of reforms of the HRA with regard to housing debt levels from April 
2012 will see the debt per tenanted property in Southwark fall to an estimated 
£14,809. This will result in a total debt for the JMB managed area of 
approximately £15.77m. An annual repayment figure has been calculated using 
a consolidated interest rate of 6.9% per annum and assuming a 30 year capital 
repayment period. No provision has been made within the figures for the JMB to 
access future council borrowing for investment purposes.  

 
Minimisation of Risk 

37. It is not intended that this change will result in ring-fencing of the rental income to 
its greatest extent which would result in the Council losing ownership of rent and 
service charge proceeds to the JMB thereby reducing headline income. In the 
medium term the Council has a need to refinance expiring loans as well as it 
being possible that additional borrowing could be undertaken for capital 
expenditure. The need to re-finance to reduce current repayment costs was 
highlighted by the Housing Commission report. Loans can be provided by the 
Public Works Loan Board or from the bonds market. For the latter the Council 
would need a credit rating and the security of the HRA’s rent income stream will 
be an important influence in that. 

 
38. In order to avoid the Council seeming to lose some of its rent proceeds, it is 

proposed that the JMB in future receive an allowance according to a calculation 
starting with a rent element. The JMB would also be responsible for financing 
capital expenditure at the level of the depreciation charge to revenue – a 
notification arrangement would be required to record expenditure as authority 
capital in order to access the depreciation financing from its interim resting place 
in Major Repairs Reserve.  

 
39. Any agreement would probably need to be for a time-limited period, e.g. five 

years, with either side also able to give notice each year. The format of the new 
management agreement will utilise the modular format, as approved for TMOs, 
but with additional clauses taken from the approved format for ALMO 
agreements, which again have already received consent from government.  It 
was previously thought that there may need to be a separate section of the 
agreement to cover other sources of capital funding, e.g. access to Decent 
Homes backlog grant and responsibility to raise capital receipts but this is no 
longer the case given the progress made by the JMB towards achieving the 
decent home standard.  

 
40. The timing of the request coincided with the start of whole HRA self-financing in 

April 2012. Authorities will no longer receive subsidy and will be settled with a 
debt level considered to be affordable over 30 years, taking into account the 
annual surplus of income over expenditure for the dwelling stock. The debt level 
for Southwark has been calculated at £14,809 per property. However, debt 
charges on this may be difficult to afford in early years as rents are well below 

142



 9 

target and hence below the level they will be towards the middle and end of the 
30 year calculation period. The Business Plan prepared by the JMB, and 
independently validated, makes provision for repayment of both interest and 
capital over a 30 year period. This may provide additional income for the Council 
in the short term as there are no plans to make any capital repayment in the 
initial years of the Council’s own self-financing arrangements. 

 
41. The overall HRA position settled on the authority at the start of self-financing is a 

loss before savings measures, turning round to a gain in subsequent years due 
to increasing rent income. As the proposal ring-fences part of the HRA, the 
situation for the JMB would be similar to that of Southwark’s HRA overall, i.e. 
effectively part of the HRA’s initial loss and eventual gain transfers to the JMB, 
who would find difficulty in breaking even without cost reductions in early years. 
This might limit initially the amount of investment funding able to provide via 
depreciation charges to revenue. Subsequently, as the position improves the 
wider HRA would not benefit from future rent surpluses on the Leathermarket 
stock.   

 
42. In May 2012 Cabinet were advised that before deciding on the changes 

proposed, the following effects needed consideration; 
 

a) transfer of control over rent proceeds and likely long-term annual 
surpluses relating to the Leathermarket stock to the JMB and effect on 
control over these as investment resources; 
-  the council needs to be satisfied that it is extending financial 

arrangements and responsibilities to a viable body that will act 
responsibly.  

-  the Council needs to be satisfied that JMB control of their part of the 
HRA and any future surpluses does not disadvantage the remaining 
HRA. The JMB have stated that they are prepared to enter into 
appropriate agreements with the council as to the future use of any 
surpluses recognising the potential need of the wider HRA if 
excessive levels of surpluses are accrued. They have also stated 
their intention to seek to develop vacant land within their estates to 
provide new social housing units for the benefit of Southwark 
residents 

 
b)   Transfer of long –term investment responsibilities 

-   the Council needs to be satisfied that the JMB is able to plan and 
manage large-scale contracts. To address this, the JMB have 
engaged appropriate consultants to work with them to develop 
known investment needs and to prepare a 30 year investment 
programme which will ensure that the needs of the estate are met 
over this period. This has been independently verified. 

 
 c) Complex arrangements involved in a new management agreement, 

including loan repayment and capital financing conditions and the need 
for the Council to continue to account for Leathermarket rent and capital 
expenditure. 
-   the Council needs to be satisfied that any complexities arising from 

the new arrangements are able to be managed and are justified by 
other benefits. This will be addressed through the treatment of 
rental income in the same manner as is currently the case and 
adjusting the allowances paid to the JMB to reflect the rental 
income. 

143



 10 

 
43. In terms of viability, the JMB has few assets and is largely dependent on 

allowance income. However, the proposed allowance arrangements should 
provide adequate cash flow and enable it to keep costs within its income.  

 
44. In terms of acting responsibly, the JMB operates with full-time staff overseen by 

a Board dependent on local voluntary input. There is a risk of the Board 
becoming indurate and of misappropriation, mitigated by the Council’s Tenant 
Management Initiatives Team undertaking monitoring and the JMB being subject 
to external annual accounts audit and the Council’s internal audit. Although there 
is a reduced level of financial sanction that could be applied by the Council in the 
short-term if the JMB delayed settling billing transactions, the proposal for the 
Home Ownership team within Specialist Housing Services to continue to 
undertake the collection of service charges will mean that the option of set-off 
under the terms of the management agreement will remain.  

 
45. The partial self-financing proposal is expected to result in increasing surpluses 

being generated for the JMB as rents rise and in initial years there should be 
enough investment need in the JMB stock to take up the surpluses. 
Subsequently surpluses which would otherwise be available to the HRA for 
borough-wide use would be under the control of the JMB. The JMB might have a 
number of options for using surpluses, e.g. replacing or improving stock, new 
build or additional debt repayment. However, options for the JMB might be 
narrower than if the Council had control, e.g. it has far fewer housing powers and 
local land for new build might be limited or expensive, and may follow different 
priorities. The JMB might wish to further add to surpluses by reducing payments 
to the Council for central services, creating difficulties for the Council as it may 
have fixed costs or staffing responsibilities.  

 
46. The Business Plan prepared by the JMB indicates that surpluses would begin to 

accrue until year 12 (2024/15) of the programme and would eventually reach 
approximately £30m by the end of the 30 year period. It is proposed that during 
the early years of this project officer’s work with the JMB to establish a 
partnership for the use of surpluses to generate additional social housing within 
the JMB area.  

 
Resources  
 
47. The aim of the self-financing initiative is that there should be a nil cost to the 

Council in all areas. The JMB will continue to contribute to services funded 
through the HRA e.g. street wardens.  In terms of the resources required to 
monitor and manage the requirements of the management agreement, this will 
be met through the existing resources of the TMI team in Specialist Housing 
Services. It is not anticipated that the devolvement of additional responsibilities 
to the JMB will resulted in additional cost to the Council. 

 
48. The HRA budget for 2013/14 was agreed by Cabinet on 29 January 2013 but it 

has not yet been possible to complete the apportionment to the JMB of central 
HRA service costs for that year, nor a final depreciation charge under new 
arrangements. Work is continuing to finalise these figures, which will affect the 
council services recharge to the JMB in 2013/14 and its average expected 
capital programme. For 2012/13, the shadow operating period, a broad 
comparison with the allowance is shown in the provisional figures below. Thus 
the shadow operation is broadly neutral. Future variances in allowance would 
relate to the JMB properties and not affect the wider HRA. 

144



 11 

 
2012/13 allowance  2.3m 
  
Shadow allowance  
Rent and service charges element  6.5m 
Council services deduction (1.4m) 
Debt charge contribution (1.2m) 
Depreciation/ Capital Expenditure (1.6m) 
Net shadow allowance 2.3m 

 
Consultation  

 
49. The JMB is a resident led organisation and these proposals have emanated from 

within their governance structure of five TRAs nominating directors for the main 
JMB board. Door step conversations were held about the self financing 
proposals during the continuation ballot in late 2011. In this formal ballot of all 
residents they achieved a 68% turnout (1195 votes cast) with 92% of eligible 
votes in favour of the continuation of the JMB in managing their homes and 88% 
of eligible votes stating that they provided a satisfactory housing service to 
residents. 

 
50. Since this time most work has been conducted through the JMB board as a 

result of the shadowing arrangement approved by Cabinet in May 2012. A well 
attended AGM in October 2012, with over 50 residents present, saw 
overwhelming support for the proposal and the following consultations have 
been undertaken by the JMB: 2011/12 performance report to JMB members; 
2012 leaseholder meeting;  Verbal update reports to the JMBs 5 TRA’s  at their 
monthly meetings and AGM; Coverage in May 2012 in Southwark News/ South 
London Press and SE1 free sheet/ web site. 

 
51. In addition the Council and the JMB jointly commissioned PPCR to undertake a 

doorstep survey of residents in January 2013 to gauge both awareness and 
support for the proposals. The Homes and Communities Agency and DCLG 
have confirmed that they do not require a formal ballot on the proposal but wish 
to ensure that residents are supportive of the proposal. The results of this survey 
are attached at Appendix 1 to this report. It is very encouraging to note that there 
is widespread support with little active opposition to the proposal. 
Understandably a number of residents are non-committal at this stage. 

 
52. PPCR are a consultancy specialising in the involvement of communities to help 

give local people more control over their homes, neighbourhoods and services 
they receive. Their focus was twofold: 

 
• The increase the membership of the TRAs within the area of the JMB; and 
• To gauge awareness levels of the current proposals and the support within 

the communities concerned. 
 
53. All residents have received written information on the proposals and were invited 

to a drop-in session at the JMB offices on 10 January 2013. Both council officers 
and JMB resident directors were present to answer enquiries from residents.  
The findings from the drop-in session are appended to this report at Appendix 2. 

 
54. A paper on this proposal was presented to meetings of the Home Owners 

Council and Tenants Council in January 2013 where it was received and noted. 

145



 12 

No substantive issues were raised 
 
Community impact statement 
 
55. The introduction of this initiative will impact on all residents within the area of 

benefit of the Leathermarket JMB. Through the reversal of the way in which the 
financing of the JMB is undertaken much greater control and accountability will 
be devolved to a local level. There will be an associated increase in the levels of 
financial control in order to enable the JMB to deliver the investment programme 
and debt repayment. 

 
56. The JMB is a not for profit company which was established explicitly to promote 

the involvement of local people in the delivery of services. Through their 
governance structure they actively involve local people in the decision making 
process. Thy engage widely within the local community and bring together 
residents of Southwark’s housing stock on housing and other issues of shared or 
mutual interest.  

 
57. Consideration has been given to the public sector equality duty and the 

increased level of responsibility being devolved to the JMB will not negatively 
impact on this duty. All JMB managed homes will remain councils tenancies and 
all allocations to JMB homes remain the responsibility of the Council and 
therefore will be unaffected by this change. The JMB have a published equality 
policy and procedure which is monitored on an annual basis by the council.  

 
58. This proposal is expected to have a neutral impact on Council tenants in 

Southwark. 
 
59. The increased level of financial control devolved to the JMB will not impact on 

other council residents in the borough as the proposal will also see a 
commensurate increase in the devolved level of financial commitments to the 
JMB from the council. In the early years of the proposal this will effectively mirror 
the increased levels of income to the JMB. Over the course of the 30 year 
business plan it is expected that there will be increased levels of finance, over 
and above that required for investment purposes, available to the JMB. Although 
the Council has not undertaken a business planning process to this level of 
detail, the expectation of achieving warm, safe and dry standards by 2015 would 
enable a reasonable expectation that it too would achieve income levels in 
excess of the investment demands made upon its resources.  

 
60. The impact of the Council response to the independent Housing Commission 

report on the future use of rental income is not yet known and has therefore not 
been considered as part of this proposal. The JMB have, however, already 
drawn up outline proposals to invest surpluses over and above the investment 
needs in the provision of additional social housing units within their area of 
benefit. Any such properties so developed would be made available to the 
Council to meet local housing demand. 

 
Next Steps 
 
61. In order to progress this proposals, and to ensure that there are adequate 

safeguards in place for the Council, it is proposed that the following steps be 
taken; 

 

146



 13 

• Development of a ‘hybrid’ management agreement, based on the 
Modular Management Agreement for the Right to Manage and the 
standard agreement for ALMOs 

• Implementation of the new financing of the JMB from April 2013. 
 
62. A draft management agreement has been prepared by officers within the TMI 

team and Legal Services as outlined above together with the required Schedules 
and Annexes containing the supporting documentation as required by 
government for this type of agreement. 

 
Conclusion 
 
63. This is an exciting and innovative proposal to devolve greater control and 

empowerment to residents of Southwark which will act as a national template 
and allow a TMO to have an income equating to the rent and service charges 
generated from the stock. In return, to agree an undertaking to make debt 
repayments as well as providing all stock maintenance and investment within 
their area of benefit. Central government have expressed their support for this 
model and see it as benefitting other resident led organisations across the 
country. 

 
64. The development of this proposal is in accordance with the Housing Department 

Business Plan (objective 7 - Involve tenants and leaseholders in the 
improvement of service delivery) and the Six Corporate Strategic Principles 
(Transforming public services through the sharing of service delivery with local 
organisations). 

 
SUPPLEMENTARY COMMENTS FROM OTHER OFFICERS 
 
Director of Legal Services 
 
65. Section 27 of the Housing Act 1985 enables a local housing authority to delegate 

its housing management responsibilities to another, with the approval of the 
Secretary of State. Regulations require local housing authorities to cooperate 
and enter into management agreements with tenant management organisations 
(TMOs). Where a management agreement is entered into, the council remains 
the landlord of the tenants of the dwellings concerned and the council’s legal 
obligations as a local housing authority and landlord are generally unaffected. 

 
66. As indicated in the report, the council's housing management responsibilities in 

respect of 1476 tenanted, leasehold and freehold properties were delegated to 
the Leathermarket Joint Management Board (JMB) under a management 
agreement in 1996. The management agreement that is currently in place 
follows the standard Modular Management Agreement for Tenant Management 
Organisations that received general approval from the Secretary of State.  

 
67. The report seeks cabinet agreement to the council entering into a new 

management agreement that includes additional terms that will enable 
Leathermarket JMB to become 'self financing'. As these additional terms depart 
from the standard Modular Management Agreement options covered by the 
general approval, the new management agreement will require the specific 
approval of the Secretary of State prior to it being agreed. 

 
68. The report indicates that officers do not consider the recommendations will have 

147



 14 

an impact on residents outside of those within the JMB area. Cabinet members 
are referred to paragraphs 49 - 54 of the report that set out the consultation that 
has taken place with affected tenants. Cabinet members must conscientiously 
take into account the outcome of consultation when taking a decision on the 
recommendations in this report. 

 
69. Cabinet members attention is also drawn to the Public Sector Equality Duty in 

section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. The PSED requires the council to consider 
all individuals when carrying out any of their functions. It requires the council to 
have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, harassment, 
victimisation or other prohibited conduct; advance equality of opportunity and 
foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and those who do not share it. The relevant characteristics are 
age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or 
belief, sex and sexual orientation. The duty also applies to marriage and civil 
partnership but only in relation to the elimination of discrimination strand. The 
report sets out consideration that has been given to the PSED in the community 
impact statement from paragraph 55. 

 
70. Advice is being sought from Legal Services as to the terms of the new 

management agreement and in relation to the approval of the same by the 
Secretary of State. 

 
71. The decision to agree to the council entering into a new Modular Management 

Agreement (MMA) with Leathermarket JMB may be taken by the cabinet 
pursuant to its powers under Part 3C of the constitution.        

 
Strategic Director of Finance and Corporate Services 
 
72. The strategic director notes the proposal to base the JMB’s allowance on the 

proceeds of rental income less the cost of council’s services less contribution to 
self-financing debt charges. This should broadly equate to the resources needed 
to meet the JMB’s costs, as provided up to now in its revenue and capital 
allowances. Future variations in allowance would relate to the JMB properties 
and not affect the wider HRA. 

 
73. The strategic director also notes the risk management arrangements discussed 

in paragraphs 37 - 46 and in particular the proposals for the council to retain 
ownership of rent proceeds, although forming a main element of the allowance, 
and to time-limit the agreement, with notice able to be given within the 
agreement period. 

 

148



 15 

 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Background Papers Held At Contact 
Report to Cabinet 15 May 2012. The 
document is available on this web 
page: 
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/i
eListDocuments.aspx?CId=302&MId
=3823&Ver=4 

Home Ownership Team 
160 Tooley Street 
London SE1 2QH 

Martin Green 
020 7525 1418 

 
 
APPENDICES 
 

No: Title  
Appendix 1 Results of PPCR Doorstep Survey  
Appendix 2 Resident Drop-In Event  
 
 
AUDIT TRAIL 
 
Cabinet Member 

 
Councillor Ian Wingfield, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for 
Housing Management 

Lead Officer Martin Green, Head of Home Ownership 
Report Authors Lee Page, Manager, Tenant Management Initiatives  

Version Final 
Dated 12 February 2013 

Key Decision? No 
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 

MEMBER 
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included 

Director of Legal Services Yes Yes 
Strategic Director of Finance 
and Corporate Services  

Yes Yes 

Cabinet Member  Yes Yes 
Date report sent to Constitutional Team 31 January 2013 
 
 
 
 
 

149



 
 
APPENDIX 1 

 
Results of PPCR Doorstep Survey 

 
In January 2013 PPCR issued a questionnaire to all residents of the JMB 
area. The questionnaire was jointly prepared by the Council and the JMB and 
sought residents’ views on the proposed self-financing initiative. 
 
A letter from the Council explaining the issue of self-financing was delivered 
to each JMB home and followed a fact sheet distributed by the JMB in 
December 2012. 
 
Specifically residents were provided with a brief reminder of what self-
financing is and were asked whether or not they thought it was a good idea. 
 
Residents were further provided with the JMBs top 5 priorities, as agreed by 
their Board of Directors and asked if they agreed with these and, if not, what 
they wished to see made a priority. 
 
A total of 440 questionnaires have been completed to date giving a response 
rate of 31.42%. this is sufficient to ensure a confidence level of 95% with a 
confidence interval of +/-3.87%. 
 
Overall results from the questionnaire were very encouraging. In response to 
the question ‘Do you think self-financing is a good idea?’, 55% of residents 
were in favour 9% actively against it.  
 
Q15. Do you think Self-Financing is a good idea? 
Base: 440   

   
Yes 55% 240 
No 9% 39 
Don't know 37% 161 
 
The remaining 36% replied ‘Don’t Know’. Of those who responded ‘Don’t 
Know’ (161 in total) 74 provided reasons for their view. The most common 
reason given for holding this opinion was that they lacked 
knowledge/information (58%) with a further 15% stating that the JMB ‘Have 
no track record’ of delivering the additional services.  
 
Don't know Base: 74 responses   
Q-Code Breakdown Number % 

1 Lack of Knowledge/Information 43 58% 
2 Lack of skills/goverance 6 8% 
3 Economic Climate/Risky 4 5% 
4 Not sure 6 8% 
5 No track record 11 15% 
6 Does not like change 1 1% 

150



Don't know Base: 74 responses   
Q-Code Breakdown Number % 

7 N/A 3 4% 
  74 100% 

Of those who were against the proposal (39 in total), 30 residents expressed 
the reasons for holding this view with 12 (40% of those expressing a reason) 
stating that they were concerned about governance/transparency and a 
further 11 (37%) stating that they were concerned about the delivery of 
services. 
 
No Base: 30 responses   
Q-Code Breakdown Number % 

1 Concerned about Governance/Tranparency 12 40% 
2 Concerned about Service Delivery 11 37% 
3 Does not like change 5 17% 
4 Not Applicable 2 7% 
  30 100% 

 
Finally, of those expressing a reason for supporting the proposal (183 in total) 
the greatest response was the wish for greater autonomy (49%) with 
anticipated service improvements being given as a reason by a further 21% of 
those expressing support for the proposal. 
 
Yes Base: 183 Responses   
Q-Code Breakdown Number % 

1 Greater autonomy 89 49% 
2 Greater autonomy/transparency 3 2% 
3 Yes, but concerned about distribution of 

funds 
1 1% 

4 Yes, but concerned about risk/self-financing 1 1% 
5 Good for community 22 12% 
6 Service improvement 38 21% 
7 Residents have their say 8 4% 
8 Good idea 15 8% 
9 Want to see change 5 3% 
10 N/A 1 1% 
  183 100% 

 
 
 
 
 

151



 1 

 
 
APPENDIX 2 

 
Resident Drop-In Event  

 
On 10th January 2013 residents managed by the Leathermarket JMB were 
invited to a drop-in session at the offices of the JMB in Leathermarket Street. 
The event was held to provide residents with an opportunity to meet the 
Directors of the JMB, JMB staff and officers of Southwark Council in order to 
learn more about the proposed ‘self-financing’ initiative of the JMB. 
 
The event was conducted in an informal environment although the TMI 
Manager and the JMB Manager did speak to a number of small groups to 
explain in some detail what was being proposed. 
 
The event was hosted between 15.30 and 20.00 in order to allow as wide a 
range of residents as possible to call in. 
 
In all a total of 56 residents took the opportunity to attend.  
 
In a simultaneous event residents of Simla House and Burwash House were 
invited to a drop-in event to consider options available to them as part of a 
block investment programme. The JMB used this opportunity to also speak to 
them about the self-financing proposal.  
 
A total of 18 residents attended this event. 
 
A number of residents contacted the JMB to express their interest in learning 
more about the self-financing proposal but were unable to attend the drop-in 
session.  
 
A total of 59 residents received email briefings on the proposal.  
 
During the course of the drop-in there was overall support for the proposal with 
an acknowledgment of the associated risk to the JMB. Support for the work of 
the JMB was unanimous although residents were not requested to make any 
formal returns at this time they were asked to pilot the draft questionnaire that 
would be completed by residents over the next three weeks. 
 
All residents were provided with contact details of JMB and Council officers in 
order to make their views known. 
 

152



1 

 
Item No.  

14. 
 

Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
12 February 2013 
 

Meeting Name: 
Cabinet  
 

Report title: 
 

Progress Report on Abbeyfield Estate Regeneration 
Scheme and Update on Delivery of Four Squares 
Estate and Hawkstone Estate   
works 
 

Ward(s) or groups 
affected: 
 

Rotherhithe Ward 

Cabinet Member: 
 
 

Councillor Ian Wingfield, Deputy Leader and Cabinet 
Member for Housing Management and Councillor 
Fiona Colley, Regeneration and Corporate Strategy 
 

 
 

FOREWORD - COUNCILLOR IAN WINGFIELD, DEPUTY LEADER AND CABINET 
MEMBER FOR HOUSING MANAGEMENT AND COUNCILLOR FIONA COLLEY, 
CABINET MEMBER FOR REGENERATION AND CORPORATE STRATEGY 
 
We would like to thank the residents who have joined the newly established Resident 
Project Group for their interest, and the council looks forward to working with them in 
progressing this ambitious project.  The Cabinet will continue to oversee the ongoing 
processes and progress of the project to ensure commitments are honoured and that a 
robust communication strategy is in place to keep residents and stakeholders involved.  For 
Maydew House, the sooner we have an empty block to begin the works; the sooner tenants 
who wish to return to the block can do so. We are confident that this project will deliver the 
agreed outcomes and look forward to the regeneration of the estate. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
That for Abbeyfield Estate the cabinet:  
 
1. Notes the progress made on achieving vacant possession of Maydew House 

residents. 
 
2. Notes the outcome of the option-to-return expression of interest. 
 
3. Notes the procurement plan and milestones outlined in paragraph 19. 
 
4. Notes the proposed programme for the identification of voids for sale outlined in 

paragraph 20. 
 
5. Notes the preparations and progress towards the refurbishment of Maydew 

House, Damory House and Thaxted Court. 
 
6. Notes the issuing of Ground 10 notices as part of the Notice of Seeking 

Possession process as outlined in paragraph15. 
 
7. Notes the council is taking active steps to secure the making of a Compulsory 

Purchase Order. 
 

Agenda Item 14
153



2 

And in addition, the cabinet: 
 
8. Notes the update on the progress of the Hawkstone and Four Squares estates. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9. The cabinet considered an update report on the regeneration of the Abbeyfield 

Estate: Maydew House, Damory House and Thaxted Court on 17 July 2012 and 
the following decisions were agreed:  

 
• That it be noted that Maydew House tenants who have been rehoused 

since 9 August 2010 and who qualify for the option to return can choose 
which flat they return to from the flats available for letting following 
refurbishment. 

• That a separate report seeking to make a compulsory purchase order for 
the acquisition of all interests not within the council’s ownership be brought 
to cabinet at a later date. 

• That the proposed development process including identification of void 
properties for sale, with a concentration in the top eight floors be noted. 

• That a later procurement for the consultants and contractor to deliver the 
enhanced refurbishment works as outlined in paragraph 44 of the report 
(dated 17 July 2012) be noted. 

• That arrangements for a concierge service on completion of the works 
programme be worked up separately from the other schemes in the 
borough in the light of the specific requirements pertaining at Abbeyfield 
Estate. 

• That the position for rent charges at Maydew House after refurbishment 
works are complete be agreed. 

• That the implications of the implementation of the Southwark Heat Network 
proposals on the estate be noted. 

• That the impact of the capital works service charges to leaseholders and 
the annual service charges to all residents be noted. 

• That the arrangements for ongoing consultation with residents and the 
Bede Centre be noted. 

• That an update report be received in six months on all high investment 
need estates within Southwark, including Abbeyfield. 

 
10. The same cabinet received update reports on the Four Squares and Hawkstone 

estates. Update information on both estates is included within this report, any 
future updates will be made via the routine Major Works programmes report to 
cabinet.  

 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
Progress since last report 
 
Vacant possession 
 
11. The rehousing of Maydew secure tenants began in September 2010 and is 

continuing. Initially, there were 94 tenants, and 5 leaseholders, residing in the 
block which by March 2012 had been reduced to 34 tenants and 2 leaseholders. 
The council has since rehoused a further 17 tenants, resulting in 17 tenants and 
2 leaseholders still in situ.  

 

154



3 

12. Of the 75 tenants that have been rehoused, 1% have relocated to SE5, 2% have 
relocated to SE24, 5% have relocated to SE17, 17% have relocated to SE15, 
24% have relocated to SE1 and 49% have relocated to SE16. 

 
13. All Maydew House current and previous tenants were written to with the decision 

of the July cabinet and were reminded to complete an expression of interest form 
if they wished to return to the block.  In total, tenants have been given three 
opportunities to express their interest in returning to the block. The results of the 
consultation are as follows: 

 
Table 1 

No of forms sent out 71 
No of forms returned 33 
  
No of tenants who do not wish to return to the block 9 
No of tenants who wish to return to the block 24 
  
No of tenants who wish to return to their original flat 18 
No of tenants who do not wish to return to their original flat 6 

 
14. Analysis shows that overall there was a 46% response rate from the residents. 

Of the 33 forms returned, 27% of residents do not wish to return to the block, 
73% of residents expressed an interest in returning to the block.  75% of 
residents returning to the block would like to return to their original flat. Returning 
to an original flat has not been offered as a right, although interest has been 
sought. The implication of the home loss payment has been explained; home 
loss can only be paid to a tenant who does not return to their original flat. 

 
15. In order to achieve vacant possession by March 2014, as identified in the 

September 2012 cabinet report, it may be necessary to use the appropriate legal 
process to secure possession of those properties still occupied. In the case of 
secure tenants this would be possession proceedings under Ground 10 of 
Schedule 2 to the Housing Act 1985 which requires service on tenants of a 
Notice of Seeking Possession. It is planned to serve the remaining tenants with a 
Notice of Seeking Possession during February 2013 to allow sufficient time for 
legal and associated processes to be taken forward should they be necessary to 
meet the vacant possession timetable. This is standard procedure in 
regeneration rehousing schemes and enables the council to make direct offers to 
tenants and hold suitable properties for those who it has not been possible to 
rehouse.   

 
16. Cabinet approved an application for a Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) on 25 

September 2012. Efforts to acquire the remaining 2 leasehold interests by 
negotiation will continue, although agreement has not yet been reached with 
either party.  

 
17. Legal advice from Counsel has been sought, along with internal legal advice, on 

which CPO powers should be applied. Once position is clarified, the council will 
undertake the steps detailed in the September 2012 report, from referencing the 
properties included and resolving the planning and finance for the scheme 
through to making and confirming the order.  

 
 
 

155



4 

Resident consultation  
 
18. The Abbeyfield Resident Steering Group (RSG) was dissolved in June 2012 

following the decision on the preferred option on the future of the estate. A 
Resident Project Group (RPG) was established to oversee the works 
programme. The group comprises of tenants and leaseholders from Damory 
House and Thaxted Court, along with tenants who have expressed an interest in 
returning to Maydew House on completion of the works. The group will meet 
regularly during the works and representatives of the group will be invited to get 
involved in the procurement of the contractor/consultants where applicable. 
Representatives of the group will also be invited to attend site meetings on an ad 
hoc basis. The first meeting of the Resident Project Group took place on 24 
January 2013. 

 
Works programme 
 
19. A Gateway 1 for the design and technical advisors was approved by the strategic 

director of housing and community services on 9 October 2012. The advisors will 
work on the outline design and planning. Another EU tender will be necessary for 
the design and build contract. It is anticipated that the design and technical 
advisors will be in place by July 2013 for approximately 12 months prior to the 
appointment of the contractor in the summer of 2014. 

 
20. Criteria for the identification of the voids to be refurbished for sale will be 

developed by 2013/14 in consultation with the Resident Project Group. A final 
schedule of voids for sale will be in place prior to the procurement for the 
construction works. Their refurbishment specification will be agreed by 2013/14 
for inclusion in the tender brief for the building contractor. A marketing strategy 
will be in place by 2014/15.  

 
Concierge service 
 
21. Currently, the concierge service in Maydew House serves Damory House, 

Thaxted Court and Bradley House. While the concierge is based at Maydew 
House, they carry out other duties such as CCTV monitoring which also covers 
Bradley House.  Their role also includes providing security cover for Damory 
House, Thaxted Court and Bradley House through patrol and conducting health 
and safety checks, etc. As part of the borough wide consultation exercise, 
residents of Damory House, Thaxted Court and Bradley House (leaseholders 
only) were consulted.  

 
22. The analysis provided by BNP Paribas and referred to in the July cabinet report  

showed that a concierge service was an essential factor in the valuation and 
marketing of the voids for sale. It is assumed that a concierge type service will be 
incorporated in the refurbishment scheme. As such, clear specifications for the 
service need to be developed. Council officers have approached housing 
associations and local authorities who operate a similar scheme as a starting 
point in developing the best service for Maydew House and the rest of the estate. 

 
23. The Abbeyfield Estate has additional considerations due to the regeneration 

scheme and following agreement of the specification of works, further 
consultation will take place in February/March on the concierge service with 
residents of the low rise blocks and those who have expressed an interest in 
returning to Maydew House. 

 

156



5 

 
 
Four Squares Estate  
 
24. Internal refurbishment works to council tenanted dwellings commenced on 7 

January 2013 and is programmed to complete by 3 February 2014. 
 
25. There are four programmed open day meetings on the estate in January 2013 to 

aid the design work and decisions on window configurations and stair tower 
works. Planning approval is programmed to be sought in February 2013, with 
works commencing summer 2013. 

 
26. Formal leasehold consultation has commenced on Marden security works, the 

anticipated commencement for these works (subject to conclusion of the notice 
of intent process) is March 2013. 

 
27. Formal approval of award of the Layard lift project will take place by the end of 

January 2013 and works are programmed to commence April 2013. 
 
Hawkstone Estate 
 
28. Works commenced on John Kennedy House refurbishment on 7 January 2013 

and are due for completion by 20 December 2013. 
 
29. Design work for the low-rise has been completed following the open day in late 

2012 and will formally be presented to the project team for final sign off on 21 
January 2013 with planning approval being sought in February 2013 and all 
parties working towards commencing works in early summer 2013. The 
complexity of the asbestos removal on this project requires an extended contract 
period and completion is estimated by October 2014.  

 
Policy implications 
 
30. The combination of refurbishment, environmental works and mixed tenure 

accommodation will enable regeneration to be delivered to the Abbeyfield Estate 
area. Rehousing policy is being adhered to, along with contract and procurement 
policies in relation to the works progammes.  

 
Community impact statement  
 
31. Maydew House tenants of a 1 and 2 bed need, regardless of age, disability, 

faith/religion, gender, race and ethnicity and sexual orientation were offered the 
option to return to the block on completion of works. There is a strong sense of 
community on the estate that returning residents are keen to continue and 
uphold upon their return.  

 
32. There will be a need to reinstate a concierge service once works are complete 

and tenants of the low rise blocks will be consulted on whether this service will 
be extended to them and the likely impact on their service charges. 
 

33. The Bede Centre will be consulted as an interested stakeholder via the Resident 
Project Group forum.  

 
 
 

157



6 

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS 
 
Director of Legal Services 
 
34.   This report asks cabinet to note progress on the Abbeyfield Estate Regeneration 

report since the update report presented to cabinet on 17 July. There are no 
particular legal issues arising from the report at this stage.  

 
Strategic Director of Finance and Corporate Services (FC/13/001) 
 
35. The strategic director of finance and corporate services notes the progress made 

to date. Although there are no new financial implications identified in this report 
there will need to be continued close monitoring of progress to ensure costs 
are contained within available resources.  Approvals for work outlined in 
paragraphs 19, 20, 26, 27 and 29 will be brought forward according to the 
council’s usual protocols. 

 
Head of Specialist Housing Services  
 
36. Much of the work proposed is service chargeable, so the council will be required 

to carry out statutory consultation with leaseholders on the Abbeyfield estate 
under section 20 of the landlord and tenant act 1985 (as amended).  As it is 
proposed to tender for this work separately there will need to be a two stage 
consultation process, each including a 30 day observation period.  The first 
stage, the notice of intention, will need to be carried out prior to placing the OJEU 
notice, and the second stage, the notice of proposal, will need to be carried out 
post tender but prior to making the decision to enter into the contract. 

 
37. The council recognises that some leaseholders may have difficulty in paying 

large major works service charge bills.  A number of payment options are 
available to leaseholders, dependant on their particular circumstances and staff 
within Home Ownership Services are available to discuss these with 
leaseholders on an individual basis. 

 
38. Leaseholders are charged the actual cost of providing the concierge system, as 

part of their annual service charges.  Any changes to the service must be clearly 
recorded and costs identified so that accurate service charges can be 
constructed. 

 
39. The management of garages now falls within the remit of the Specialist Housing 

Services Division (SHS).  The garages under Maydew are in dire need of 
security and refurbishment work as they are currently not in a lettable condition.  
There will be a requirement for available parking on the estate and the 
refurbished garages will be easily let.  The garages under Maydew are 
vulnerable to vandalism, fly-tipping and other security hazards.  This means that 
not only is there a loss of income on the garages but there are on-going costs of 
security and clearance and potential health and safety risks to current residents 
of the block. 

 
40. As per paragraph 16, SHS notes that neither of the last two leasehold interests 

have been re-purchased and that the council has in the interim obtained cabinet 
approval to seek a CPO if necessary.  Neither of the leaseholders has made an 
application to the council for assistance to find a new home, although that option 
remains available to them. 

 

158



7 

41. Home Ownership Services has carried out the relevant statutory consultation 
under the Act with the leaseholders of Marden and Layard Squares, and with the 
leaseholders of John Kennedy House.  The consultation period for the Layard lift 
project has been closed, with all observations having been given due regard.  
The consultation period on the Marden security package is still open, and 
observations received are being duly considered and given a full response.  The 
estimated service charges for the two Four Squares packages will be billed in 
March 2014.  The statutory consultation with the leaseholders of John Kennedy 
House was successfully completed with all observations being given due regard.  
The estimated service charges to the leaseholders for this package of works are 
due to be billed in March 2013. 

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Background Papers Held At Contact 
Abbeyfield Estate: Maydew 
House, Thaxted Court and 
Damory House Options Appraisal 
20 March 2012 Cabinet Report. 
The document is available on this 
web page:  
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.u
k/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=302
&MId=3821&Ver=4 
 
Abbeyfield Estate: Regeneration 
Project Update 17 July 2012 
Cabinet Report. 
The document is available on this 
web page:  
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.u
k/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=302
&MId=4245&Ver=4 

Housing Regeneration 
Initiatives/ Estate 
Regeneration Team 
160 Tooley Street 
London SE1 2QH 
 
 
 
 
 
Housing Regeneration 
Initiatives/ Estate 
Regeneration Team 
160 Tooley Street 
London SE1 2QH 

Diana Hall 
020 7525 7724 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Diana Hall 
020 7525 7724 

 
 
APPENDICES 
 

No. Title 
None  
 

159



8 

 
AUDIT TRAIL 
 
Cabinet Member 

 
Councillor Ian Wingfield, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member 
for Housing Management  and Councillor Fiona Colley, 
Regeneration and Corporate Strategy 

Lead Officer Eleanor Kelly, Chief Executive 
Report Author Diana Hall, Project Co-ordinator 

Version Final  
Dated 31 January 2013 

Key Decision? No 
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 

MEMBER 
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments 

included 
Director of Legal Services  Yes Yes 
Strategic Director of Finance and 
Corporate Services 

Yes Yes 

Head of Specialist Housing 
Services 

Yes Yes 

Cabinet Member Yes Yes 
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team   31 January 2013 
 

160



 1 

Item No.  
15. 

Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
12 February 2013 

Meeting Name: 
Cabinet 
 

Report title: 
 

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Draft Charging 
Schedule 
 

Ward(s) or groups 
affected: 
 

All 
 

Cabinet Member: 
 

Councillor Fiona Colley, Regeneration and Corporate 
Strategy   
 

 
 
FOREWORD – COUNCILLOR FIONA COLLEY, CABINET MEMBER FOR 
REGENERATION AND CORPORATE STRATEGY  
 
The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a new levy that local authorities can 
choose to charge on new developments in their area. The money can be used to 
support development by funding infrastructure that the council, local community and 
neighbourhoods want.  The benefits are increased certainty for the funding and 
delivery of infrastructure, increased certainty for developers and increased 
transparency for local people. 
 
Southwark's proposed Draft CIL Charging Schedule provides potential developers with 
a clear schedule of contributions that are required for each type of development across 
the various parts of the borough.  The rates have been viability tested to ensure that 
the aspirations of Southwark's development plan are not affect by the rates.  CIL 
income will provide the council with money to invest in local and strategic infrastructure 
across the borough to support growth. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That cabinet  
 
1. Agree to publish and invite representations on the community infrastructure levy 

(CIL) draft charging schedule (Appendix A) and the draft “Regulation 123 List” 
(Appendix B). 

 
2. Note the draft infrastructure delivery plan (Appendix C), the equalities analysis 

(Appendix D), the consultation plan (Appendix E) and consultation report 
(Appendix F).  
 

3. Approve the submission of the community infrastructure levy (CIL) draft charging 
schedule to the Planning Inspectorate for an examination-in-public, provided no 
substantive changes are necessary following consultation. 

 
4. Delegate the approval of any minor amendments resulting from consultation on 

the community infrastructure levy (CIL) draft charging schedule and the draft 
“Regulation 123 List” to the Director of Planning in consultation with the cabinet 
Member for Regeneration and Corporate Strategy.  

Agenda Item 15
161



 2 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
5. The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a new levy that local authorities can 

choose to charge on new developments in their area. The money can be used to 
support development by funding infrastructure that the council, local community 
and neighbourhoods want. The benefits are increased certainty for the funding 
and delivery of infrastructure, increased certainty for developers and increased 
transparency for local people. 

 
6. The Planning Act 2008 provides that London borough councils are charging 

authorities for the purposes of the Community Infrastructure Regulations 2010. If 
intending to apply the levy, charging authorities must produce a document called 
a charging schedule which sets out the rate for their levy. These rates must be 
supported by an evidence base including:  

 
• An up-to-date development plan 
• The area’s infrastructure needs 
• An overall assessment of the economic viability of new development 

 
7. Once adopted, the levy is a mandatory charge levied on most new developments 

that involve an increase of 100sqm or more of additional floorspace or that 
involve the creation of a new residential unit. The charging authority can set one 
standard rate or it can set specific rates for different areas and types of 
development. In setting rates, a charging authority is required to strike a 
reasonable balance between the need to finance infrastructure from CIL against 
the impact of CIL on the economic viability of development across its area. The 
charging rates and zones which Southwark is proposing are set out in Appendix 
A.  

 
8. Some developments are exempt from paying the levy. These are developments 

of affordable housing and developments by charities of buildings used for 
charitable purposes. 

 
9. It should be noted that in London’s case, the Mayor is also a charging authority. 

The Mayor has introduced a CIL to fund Crossrail. The Mayor’s levy is £35 per 
square metre, with a limited number of exceptions. Southwark collects this levy 
on behalf of the Mayor.  

 
10. S106 planning obligations will continue to play a part in delivering local site 

specific improvements such as public realm or transport, which are needed to 
make the particular development acceptable in planning terms. From time to 
time there will be site specific considerations or particular planning policy 
requirements which dictate provision or re-provision as a direct result of a 
specific development. In these cases, mitigation will not amount to strategic 
infrastructure of the sort specified on the Regulation 123 list. For example, if 
there is a loss of a sports field or a health facility because of a particular scheme, 
this will require site specific mitigation and may be dealt with by 106 obligations.  
Affordable housing will also continue to be delivered through s106 planning 
obligations. 

 
11. However, from April 2014 or the adoption of a CIL Charging Schedule, planning 

obligations will no longer be used as the basis for a tariff to fund infrastructure. 
Local authorities will not be able to pool more than 5 obligations to fund a single 
item of infrastructure. Currently, the council uses standard charges set out in its 

162



 3 

s106 Planning Obligations SPD to pool contributions for infrastructure such as 
new schools places, strategic transport infrastructure, open space, leisure 
facilities and health facilities. From April 2014, the fact that the council will not be 
able to pool more than 5 obligations will place restrictions on this approach. The 
council must bring a CIL into effect before this date if development is to continue 
to contribute to strategic infrastructure which is needed to promote growth and 
development in its area.  

 
12. The council is proposing to update its s106 Planning Obligations SPD in 2013. 

The revised s106 Planning Obligations SPD would supersede the existing SPD 
and provide detailed guidance on the use of planning obligations alongside CIL.  

 
13. The purpose of CIL is to help fund infrastructure which supports growth in the 

borough. Infrastructure is defined in the Regulations to include: roads and other 
transport facilities, flood defences, schools and other educational facilities, 
medical facilities, sporting and recreational facilities and open spaces. 

 
14. In conjunction with preparing a CIL charging schedule, charging authorities 

should also prepare an infrastructure plan setting out strategic infrastructure 
required to support growth over the period of the council’s local plan (in 
Southwark’s case the core strategy period of 2011-2026). Southwark’s draft 
infrastructure plan (IP) is set out in Appendix C. The infrastructure plan is part of 
the evidence base needed to help justify levying a CIL. The infrastructure set out 
in the IP is not an exhaustive list. It is intended to be a living document which can 
be updated regularly. Omission of infrastructure items from the list would not 
preclude such items being funded in the future through CIL. Nor does the IP 
commit the council to spending the amounts set out in the plan.  

 
15. At the point that the council adopts its CIL, it must publish a “Regulation 123 

List”. This list (which refers to Regulation 123 of the CIL Regulations 2010) sets 
out what the council intends to fund using CIL. If an infrastructure item is 
included on the Regulation 123 list, the council would not be able to seek s106 
planning obligations for that item, once CIL has been adopted. After CIL has 
been adopted, the Regulation 123 List can be amended, subject to appropriate 
local consultation. 

 
16. Because the purpose of CIL is to support growth rather than mitigate impacts of 

specific developments, it can be used more strategically than s106 contributions. 
A protocol for governing expenditure will be prepared in due course. 

 
17. Under the Localism Act, the council must indentify a ‘meaningful proportion’ of 

Southwark CIL that will be spent in the local area to ensure that those people 
affected by development see some of the benefit. This allocation would be made 
using the community infrastructure project list (CIPL) which may be based on a 
recently revised project bank list. This would be updated every year with 
consultation with the community councils and planning committee to ensure it 
reflects local needs. The definition of a local area would also be subject to 
consultation. The government has recently confirmed that the “meaningful 
proportion” will comprise 25% of CIL funding in areas where there is an adopted 
neighbourhood plan in place and 15% elsewhere.  

 
18. This is the second stage of preparation of the CIL charging schedule. The first 

stage comprised consultation on the preliminary draft charging schedule which 
took place between 10 July and 17 October 2012. All comments received on the 
preliminary draft charging schedule have been considered and taken into 

163



 4 

account in preparing the draft charging schedule.   
 
19. Following consultation on the draft charging schedule, it is anticipated that the 

document will be submitted to the Planning Inspectorate for an examination in 
public in summer 2013. Subject to receiving a favorable report from the planning 
inspector, the council expects to adopt the CIL charging schedule by the end of 
2013.  

 
CONSULTATION  
 
20. The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 and our Statement of 

Community Involvement (SCI) 2007 set out consultation requirements for 
planning documents.  

 
21. In compliance with the SCI, the council consulted on the preliminary draft 

charging schedule for a period of 14 weeks, which included 6 weeks of formal 
consultation between 5 September and 17 October 2012. As well as making the 
document available on the web and in local libraries, the council notified around 
3000 consultees in the Planning Policy database. The document was publicised 
at all the community councils between June and October 2012 and an event was 
held on 19 September 2012 with developers to raise awareness about CIL.  

 
22. In preparing the preliminary draft CIL it should be noted that Southwark 

cooperated with a range of organisations, including the GLA and TfL, particularly 
in preparing the Infrastructure Plan. Infrastructure items such as the 
improvements to the Northern line ticket hall and Elephant and Castle northern 
roundabout reflect this joint working. Further details of engagement which has 
taken place are set out in the Consultation Report (appendix F). 

 
23. In all 273 representations were made by 39 objectors. The main areas of 

concern are summarised below: 
 

• The proposed charges may make development unviable, particularly for the 
strategic sites within the opportunity areas and growth areas in the 
borough. These areas should be assessed separately.  

• Zones 1, 2 and 3 should be amalgamated and the proposed charge for 
those areas dropped to £250 sqm. The CIL in these areas should be 
phased in over time. 

• Canada Water should be included in zone 2 and the proposed residential 
charge increased to £400. 

• The proposed charges may compromise the provision of affordable 
housing. 

• The assumptions used to prepare the site viability appraisals, such as the 
figures used for the existing use land values, the premiums, profit margins, 
professional fees, sales values were questioned.  

• It is unclear whether non-residential s106 planning obligations have been 
taken into account in undertaking the viability appraisals. 

• The Regulations do not allow authorities to distinguish between uses on the 
basis of size. Therefore the proposed charges for retail uses are not 
compliant with the Regulations.  

• Affordable retail space is a not a distinguishable type of retail space. The 
proposed retail charges may breach state aid guidelines.  

• In terms of use, there is no distinction between a private health facility and 
a public health facility, or a private school and a state school. The 

164



 5 

Regulations do not allow authorities to vary levies on the basis of a funding 
mechanism. 

• It is unclear whether the proposed charge for student accommodation takes 
into account the lower rents charged by universities. Student 
accommodation provided by universities should qualify for relief as 
development by charitable institutions. 

• The proposed rate for offices and for “other uses” is not justified by 
evidence. Facilities provided by the police and fire brigade should be nil 
rated. 

• It is not clear how the proposed charging zones were derived. They should 
be more aligned to planning policy area designations, such as the Elephant 
and Castle Opportunity Area and Canada Water Action Area.  

• The council should set out a policy on installments and include more detail 
on the process for reviewing CIL.  

• With regard to the supporting Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) document, 
some respondents suggested there needed to be additional reference to 
specific items of infrastructure or the removal of some items, taking care 
that CIL is spent on genuine infrastructure projects that support the planned 
growth. TfL requested the inclusion of public realm improvements on 
Blackfriars Road. 

 
24. A table of all comments received and the council’s responses is provided in the 

consultation report in Appendix F. The council is now proposing to consult on the 
draft charging schedule over 4 weeks (19 February – 19 March 2012). This 
complies with the statutory timeframe set out in the CIL Regulations. Including 
consultation at preliminary draft stage, the council will have consulted for 18 
weeks in all, which complies with the SCI. The council will make the document 
available on the web and in local libraries, place an advertisement in the press 
and notify consultees in the Planning Policy mailing list. A detailed consultation 
plan is provided in Appendix E. 

 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
25. The CIL regulations specify that in setting their levies charging authorities must 

strike a balance between the desirability of securing funding for infrastructure 
and the potential effects, taken as a whole, of the imposition of CIL on the 
economic viability of development across their areas.  Levies must also take into 
account the requirement to pay the Mayoral CIL and should also consider 
impacts on planning policies, including the requirement to provide affordable 
housing.  

 
26. The CIL levy rates and charging zones proposed by the council have been 

informed by an economic viability appraisal encompassing a series of viability 
appraisals of sites around the borough. The number of proposed zones and their 
locations reflect broad value ranges. Since the preliminary draft CIL was 
consulted on, the council have retested the viability of a number of sites to 
ensure that future likely s106 requirements, including the Mayor’s Crossrail s106 
requirement are taken into account appropriately and to ensure that impacts on 
hotel uses, retail uses and leisure uses have been adequately tested. 

 
27. Officers are recommending to make no changes to the charges for residential 

floorspace which were previously proposed in the preliminary draft charging 
schedule. The three residential charges which are proposed are: £400 per 
square metre (p/sqm) in the north of the borough (north of Union Street, 

165



 6 

Snowsfields and Jamaica Road), £250 p/sqm in areas around Elephant and 
Castle, Bermondsey Spa, Canada Water, Camberwell, Nunhead, East Dulwich 
and Dulwich and £50 p/sqm around the Aylesbury estate, Burgess Park, 
Peckham and Old Kent Road. The boundaries of the residential zones have 
been informed by post code data on house prices which show average value 
bands and broad geographical breaks between areas.  

 
28. The charge for zone 3, which includes Elephant and Castle is both viable and 

consistent with the s106 tariff level agreed in the Elephant and Castle 
supplementary planning document 2012 (the CIL, when brought into effect, will 
replace the Elephant and Castle SPD tariffs).  

 
29. These CIL rates for residential development are comparable with those 

boroughs which have published rates. Wandsworth is proposing a rate of £250 
p/sqm  across the borough, with a £575 p/sqm charge in Vauxhall and Nine Elms 
(which has a lower affordable housing requirement), Hammersmith and Fulham 
is proposing charges ranging between £100 p/sqm and £400 p/sqm, Islington is 
proposing a charge of £300 p/sqm, Lambeth is proposing charges between £50 
p/sqm and £369 p/sqm and Camden is proposing charges of between £150 
p/sqm and £500 p/sqm.   

 
30. In response to consultation, several objectors stated that zones 1 and 2 should 

be amalgamated into zone 3 and the proposed charge for those areas dropped 
to £250 p/sqm. Others stated that a charge of £250 p/sqm would render 
development unviable or place affordable housing provision at risk and that 
consequently CIL should be phased in over a number of years. One 
representation requested that Canada Water be included in the £400 p/sqm 
zone. Officers consider that the zonal charges are justified. The average 
maximum viable CIL that could be charged in zones 1 and 2 was about 50% 
higher than could be charged at Canada Water and 80% higher than could be 
charged at Elephant and Castle. There is a noticeable change of values in areas 
around Bankside, London Bridge, Shad Thames, Riverside ward north of 
Jamaica Road and Rotherhithe village which are close to the River Thames and 
which benefit from good public transport access. 

 
31. The CIL Regulations do not allow authorities to phase in a CIL levy. Local 

authorities can review their CILs, although each review would be subject to two 
stages of consultation and an examination in public, which in all would take 
about 18-24 months. The majority of the residential developments tested were 
viable developments and would support the proposed CIL charges. Moreover, 
the proposed CIL charges are comfortably below the maximum viable charges. 
Those developments tested which were found to be currently unviable, would 
remain unviable irrespective of CIL. Inevitably in the first year or two of 
operation, there may be some sites where levels of affordable housing are 
impacted, while the market absorbs the new charge. Generally however, the 
outcome of the appraisals provides confidence that the proposed residential 
charges will not jeopardise development or impede the council’s regeneration 
efforts.   

 
32. The council is not proposing to change the charges for either student housing or 

for hotels. Student housing would be charged at the same rate as residential 
development. Student accommodation provided directly by universities and 
which is used for charitable purposes may qualify for relief from CIL. The charge 
for hotels is varied between the north of the borough (north of Union Street) and 
the remainder of the borough. This reflects differences in viability which in turn is 

166



 7 

borne out by the geographic concentration of hotel development in recent years. 
 
33. The council is proposing to amend the charge for office space in CIL zone 1 by 

reducing the levy from £100 p/sqm to £70 p/sqm. This change is proposed 
following retesting of office sites to incorporate the tariff for the Mayor’s Crossrail 
s106 and a reassessment of costs and capital yields. Outside CIL zone 1, the 
council is not proposing to amend the nil charge which was consulted on at the 
preliminary draft stage. The appraisals suggested that office developments 
outside the CIL zone 1 are largely unviable at current values. Similarly, the 
appraisals suggested that industrial and warehousing developments are largely 
unviable and therefore a CIL levy of £0 p/sqm for these uses is justifiable.  

 
34. Most boroughs have differentiated rates for office space. The charge proposed in 

zone 1 in Southwark is similar to the rates proposed by most other boroughs in 
their main office areas. These include: Islington (£150 p/sqm); Barnet (£135 
p/sqm); Tower Hamlets (£125 p/sqm); Lambeth (£125 p/sqm); Croydon; (£125 
p/sqm); Wandsworth (£100 p/sqm); Hammersmith and Fulham (£80 p/sqm); 
Camden (£45 p/sqm); Brent (£40 p/sqm); Hillingdon (£35 p/sqm); Richmond 
(£25 p/sqm); and Newham, Sutton, Lewisham, Harrow, Merton and Haringey 
(£0).  

 
35. The preliminary draft schedule sought to apply three charges for retail space: £0 

p/sqm for space below 280sqm, £125 p/sqm for space between 280sqm and 
2,500sqm and £250 p/sqm for space larger than 2,500sqm. Several objectors 
noted that the CIL Regulations do not allow authorities to distinguish solely by 
floorspace size. The council is therefore proposing to make the schedule more 
robust by providing a more detailed description of those uses which would attract 
the higher charge of £250 p/sqm, namely supermarkets and shopping centres 
which have on-site parking facilities. The higher charge is justified on the basis of 
increased viability of these types of development. All other retail space would 
have a charge of £125 p/sqm. Of the sites tested, all of the 17 viable 
developments should be able to pay this charge and on that basis, the proposed 
charged should not put development at risk.  

 
36. It is proposed that the nil charge for affordable retail space proposed in the 

preliminary draft schedule is deleted on the basis while the affordability of the 
space affects viability, it is not in itself a distinct type of retail provision. 
Affordable retail space is only a requirement in large retail developments at 
Elephant and Castle. The testing indicated that any costs associated with 
affordable space should be absorbed within the overall retail element of the 
development and therefore this change should not put such development at risk. 

 
37. No changes are proposed to the nil charge proposed for public libraries. The 

preliminary draft schedule sought to make distinct charges for health and 
education floorspace which is predominantly publically funded. Several objectors 
however raised an objection that the CIL Regulations 2010 only allow authorities 
to distinguish between uses and not on the basis of funding sources. Having 
considered the issue, the council is proposing to apply a nil charge to all 
education and health floorspace.  

 
38. The preliminary draft charging schedule also sought to exempt public sports 

facilities. As in the case of health and education space, on reflection officers do 
not consider that the CIL Regulations would allow this. Most other facilities, 
cinemas, bingo halls, sports facilities etc, replace existing space and provided 
the existing space had been in use, would not be CIL liable.  Where some 

167



 8 

additional floorspace is provided, the appraisals suggest that a modest levy 
would not impact significantly on viability. To reflect this situation, the council is 
proposing to reduce the CIL charge for “all other uses” from £50 p/sqm to £30 
p/sqm  

 
39. Using the council’s development capacity assessment, it is estimated that CIL 

could generate around £7m-£8m per year (at today’s prices). The council has 
made an assessment of infrastructure required to support growth over this 
period. Sources of committed funding to support infrastructure have also been 
identified. Inevitably, there is more certainty over funding sources for projects to 
be delivered in the short term and much less certainty over mid and longer term 
projects. Following consultation, several adjustments have been made to the 
infrastructure plan to update it. The infrastructure plan is a living document and 
can be updated regularly. CIL would play an important role in contributing to the 
infrastructure requirement, although would not be sufficient to cover the cost 
entirely and the council will continue to need to explore other sources of funding 
to deliver all the infrastructure set out in the infrastructure plan. The CIL 
regulations allow up to 5% of CIL generated to be used to monitor and 
administer the charge. As with s106 planning obligations, once the CIL is 
brought into effect the council will monitor funding generated and publish regular 
monitoring reports on the website. 

 
40. Statutory guidance issued by the government on 14 December 2012 indicates 

that charging authorities should also make a draft Regulation 123 List available 
for the examination in public. Southwark’s draft list (Appendix B) contains those 
projects from the Infrastructure Plan which could be funded only by CIL and not, 
once CIL is adopted, by s106 planning obligations. Projects not referred to on list 
could be funded by either CIL or planning obligations. However, it is anticipated 
that s106 planning obligations would only be used to pay for site specific 
infrastructure, such as an access road, improvements to the public realm around 
the site or instances where a developer were not able to meet planning policy 
requirements for on-site infrastructure, such as children’s play space or amenity 
space. The government’s December 2012 CIL guidance advises that charging 
authorities should be as clear as possible about what will be funded by CIL to 
avoid a scenario where a developer is charged twice for the same piece of 
infrastructure, once through CIL and again through s106 obligations. 

 
41. Overall it is considered that the proposed levy represent an appropriate balance 

between generating funding to secure provision of infrastructure and ensuring 
that CIL does not put development and regeneration in the borough at risk.  

 
Community impact statement 
 
42. An equalities analysis was undertaken as part of the preparation of the CIL 

preliminary draft charging schedule. This has been updated to reflect the 
changes proposed in the draft schedule. The equalities analysis considered the 
potential impacts arising as a result of the boundaries of the charging zones and 
the different levels of charge that would be applicable to different types of 
development within these zones. In accordance with the Equality Act 2010, the 
analysis considers the potential impacts of the charging schedule on those 
groups identified within the Act as having protected characteristics. The main 
issues are summarised below.   

 
43. The range of CIL charges proposed and the boundaries of the charging zones 

are considered to give rise to limited impacts on the individual groups that are 

168



 9 

identified in the Equality Act. The imposition of a CIL charge could have potential 
impacts on small businesses in some parts of the borough, which could impact 
on a range of groups including BME communities. We propose to adopt a nil 
charge for office floorspace in all areas except for the commercial areas 
adjoining the river. As well as benefitting new businesses directly, this approach 
will ensure that CIL does not act as a barrier to job creation or as a disincentive 
to provide local services, which are important to those with reduced mobility, 
such as older people, disabled people and those who are pregnant or have 
young children. 

 
44. While the nil charge for small shops is deleted, the testing of sites showed that a 

modest charge, which is comparable to charges in the s106 Planning Obligations 
SPD, would not impede such development. 

 
45. There is a small risk that CIL will drive up values which will make it harder to 

access housing which is affordable. However, the proposed charging schedule 
has been informed by viability appraisals and the level of CIL reflects existing 
values and is not reliant on any increase in values. Moreover, we have also set 
the level of CIL significantly below the maximum level which could be charged 
which will help mitigate impacts on land values.  

 
46. The proposed lower tariff in the centre of the borough acknowledges the need for 

new and improved infrastructure, but also aims to ensure that CIL does not 
hinder regeneration attempts, for instance in Peckham and at the Aylesbury 
Estate. Ultimately, CIL is a mechanism intended to raise money to fund 
infrastructure that will contribute to sustainable development in the borough. In 
this sense, the adoption of CIL should have an overall positive impact on the 
various equalities groups. More specific impacts may arise depending on the 
types of infrastructure that are ultimately funded through CIL, but such issues are 
not broached as part of the charging schedule and will be considered in due 
course in the context of decisions concerning expenditure. 

 
Sustainability appraisal 
 
47. The Core Strategy 2011 was subject to a sustainability appraisal incorporating a 

strategic environmental assessment to ensure that principles of sustainable 
development were thoroughly considered. The Southwark CIL is an extension of 
the spatial vision and policies set out in the Core Strategy and should not raise 
additional implications for sustainable development objectives which have not 
been previously considered. CLG guidance on Charge setting and charging 
schedule procedures, 2010, states that because CILs are short financial 
documents, separate sustainability appraisal for CILs is not required.  

 
Financial implications 
 
48. In the first year of operation a Southwark CIL it is expected to secure about £7-

8m which is broadly comparable to the non-affordable housing S106 income for 
2011. There is a time delay in securing either S106 or CIL actual income, but CIL 
will replace the majority but not all S106 income over time. We expect the CIL 
income to increase overtime as house prices and viability improves. The 
expenditure of CIL income is far less restrictive than S106 funding and allows the 
council to apply it for infrastructure that supports growth in the borough.  

 

169



 10 

49. The proposed Southwark CIL is a direct response to previous changes in 
legalisation prevent using S106 tariffs (such as the current S106 toolkit and E&C 
tariff) from April 2014.   

 
50. Costs associated with both managing, monitoring and establishing Southwark 

CIL can be recouped from up to 5% of any CIL income. 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS 

Director of Legal Services  

51. The Planning Act 2008 (PA 2008) introduced a discretionary planning charge 
known as the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). The statutory framework for 
CIL is set out in sections 205-225 and further detail is provided under a number 
of regulations, most notably, the CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended). In 
December 2012, the Secretary of State also issued statutory guidance under 
Section 221 of the PA 2008 entitled “Community Infrastructure Levy: Guidance”.  
The Guidance is relevant to those draft charging schedules which at the date of 
publication were not submitted for examination.   

 
52. CIL is a charge paid by owners and developers on new buildings over a certain 

size. The charge is designed to help fund local infrastructure as identified in a 
local planning authority’s development plan and can only be spent on 
‘infrastructure’. Infrastructure is defined in the PA 2008 (s216) as including a 
wide range of facilities such as roads/transport facilities, open space and 
schools. It does not currently include affordable housing, although the 
government is yet to announce its decision after consulting on the possibility of 
funding affordable housing from CIL.  

 
53. CIL is payable to a ‘charging authority’ which in London means London 

Boroughs. If the Council intends to apply the levy, it must prepare a charging 
schedule that sets out the CIL rates in their area (section 211(1), PA 2008). The 
charging schedule becomes part of the Local Development Framework (i.e. the 
planning documents taken into account in making planning decisions). The 
Charging Schedule sets out the rates for CIL in the Council’s area and the rate 
must be expressed as pounds per square metre of development (regulation 
12(2)(b), CIL Regulations 2010). The charge is levied on the net internal area of 
development (regulation 40(5), CIL Regulations 2010). By virtue of regulation 13, 
CIL Regulations 2010, charging authorities are able to charge different rates  
either on a geographical basis or by reference to the intended use of the 
development but subject to justification with reference to the overall viability of 
development within their areas.  The Guidance clarifies that charging authorities 
‘differential rates’ with reference to intended uses and that use for the purposes 
of the CIL Regulations is not tied to classes within the Use Classes Order 1987 
(albeit that may be a useful reference). There is currently no power to charge 
rates based on the uplift in land values caused by the grant of planning 
permission. 

 
54. Section 211 of the PA 2008 deals with the crucial matter of what should inform 

preparation of charging schedules. The Charging Schedule must take into 
account all of the following considerations: -  

 
a) The total cost of infrastructure requiring funding from CIL; 
b) Other sources of funding available; and  
c) The potential effect of CIL on the viability of development of the area. 

170



 11 

 
To that end, the schedule must be informed by ‘appropriate available evidence’ 
regarding viability (section 211(7A) PA 2008). The legislation thus seeks to 
ensure that charging schedules are not merely a list of infrastructure items 
needed to support development, but are the result of balancing the desirability of 
funding such infrastructure from CIL against the potential effects of the charge on 
the economic viability of development in the authority’s area (Reg 14, CIL 2010). 
The regulations set out other costs to be factored in, such as administrative 
expenses and Mayoral CIL.   Indeed, the council’s viability study methodology 
factors in Mayoral CIL, the provision of affordable housing and other relevant 
financial requirements. 

 
55. Government guidance stresses the desirability of evidence on infrastructure 

needs being drawn directly from the infrastructure planning that underpins their 
development plans. If the development plan infrastructure planning is weak or 
needs updating, the guidance suggests that the charging authority ‘undertake 
some additional bespoke infrastructure planning to identify its infrastructure 
funding gap. This work may be limited to those projects requiring funding from 
CIL, rather than covering all the potential infrastructure projects for the area’. In 
order to demonstrate the soundness of the infrastructure planning that underpins 
their charging schedules, several charging authorities have published 
‘infrastructure plans’ or similar documents. Although not specified in the 
legislation, such evidence is necessary to discharge the statutory requirement of 
weighing viability with infrastructure need and to be accepted by the independent 
examiner who eventually approves the charging schedule for adoption.  

 
56. Overall, the Infrastructure Plan is based on the infrastructure needs identified by 

the council and with reference to a professional viability appraisal as to the 
impact of CIL on development in the council’s area.  The viability study supports 
the terms and rates on which the levy has been prepared. Moreover, the council 
has up to date local development plan (comprising its Core Strategy Southwark 
Plan and relevant Area Action Plans or Supplementary Planning Documents) 
that underpins and informs the Infrastructure Plan. 

 
57. There is no legislation on how long a charging schedule should apply once 

adopted. Nor is there any duty in the PA 2008 or the CIL Regulations 2010 (as 
amended) for the schedule to be reviewed. However, government guidance 
strongly encourages charging authorities to keep their charging schedule and 
Regulation 123 lists under review. Should the Charging Schedule be reviewed, 
the charging authority must follow the same process of consultation, examination 
and approval as for the initial schedule. 

 
58. In view of the need to keep development viability and indeed infrastructure 

provision up to date over the Charging schedule’s lifetime until 2023, it is 
advisable for the council to monitor and review the Charging Schedule at 
appropriate intervals, probably as part of the Authority’s Monitoring Report.  

 
Relationship with section 106 Agreements 

 
59. Regulation 122 and 123 impose limitations on the use of planning obligations, 

such that “a planning obligation may not constitute a reason for granting planning 
permission for the development to the extent that the obligation provides for the 
funding or provision of relevant infrastructure”.  Effectively, where a charging 
authority has published a list of infrastructure projects that it intends to fund 
through CIL, such projects cannot be funded by way of planning obligations. The 

171



 12 

language of the regulation implies the production of a Regulation 123 
infrastructure list is a matter for the charging authority’s discretion. However, the 
Guidance (paragraphs 86-91) strongly suggests that a charging authority should 
submit a Regulation 123 list along with its draft charging schedule.  Accordingly, 
it is noted that as well as preparing an up to date Infrastructure Plan that 
identifies a non-exhaustive list of infrastructure intended to be funded by CIL, the 
council has also prepared a Regulation 123 list for submission with its draft 
charging schedule.  Notwithstanding this list, it is noted that where site specific 
considerations or particular policy planning requirements provision or re-
provision of items of mitigation as a direct impact of a proposed development, 
such items will not constitute strategic infrastructure.  The report at paragraph 10 
gives the example of a sports field or facility lost as a result of development 
which may necessitate obligations compliant with Reg 122 and 123, although, at 
strategic level health related infrastructure may be covered by CIL. 

 
60. CIL does not completely replace section 106 Agreements. Where an authority 

introduces CIL, they could not use a section 106 Agreement to deal with the 
same matters and Section 106 would be scaled back to site specific matters 
directly related to the development.  On the other hand, CIL does not cover 
affordable housing, so this in particular will continue to be secured via s.106. 
Authorities who do not introduce CIL can still use s.106 to fund site-specific 
infrastructure needs arising from particular developments. However, an 
authority's ability to use more than five separate planning obligations to pool 
contributions towards a common piece of infrastructure will be phased out 
effective from April 2014 (Reg 123).  

Consultation on Preliminary Charging Schedule 

61. The council has consulted on its proposed CIL rates, i.e. the preliminary draft 
charging schedule, before finalising its current draft charging schedule (pursuant 
to section 211(7), PA 2008 and regulation 15, CIL Regulations 2010). In 
preparing the draft charging schedule, the council has had regard to and 
evaluated consultation responses in formulating its draft charging schedule.   

 
62. In addition, the council has had regard to the general duty - introduced by 

Section 110 of the Localism Act 2011 (by way of amendment to Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004) - to cooperate with other prescribed bodies in 
respect of strategic planning matters which may impact sustainable 
development.  Although it may be arguable that this duty (which is directed at 
local planning authorities), does not strictly apply to the process of preparing 
charging schedules, taking a purposive approach the council has opted to 
cooperate with a range of organisations including the GLA and TfL among 
others.  

 
63. Following consultation on the preliminary charging schedule, the council is now 

intending to publish and submit for examination its draft charging schedule 
pursuant to Regulations 16 / 17 and Section 212 of the PA 2008. The 
independent examiner will hear representations, and decide to approve the 
charging schedule, approve it with modifications or reject it. (section 212A(2), PA 
2008).   

 
64. The Regulations require a period of 4 weeks for representations, however, the 

Guidance emphasises that 6 weeks is good practice.  The council ordinarily 
allows for 6 weeks of formal consultation on planning related documents under 
its Statement of Community Involvement.  Whilst the SCI does not deal 

172



 13 

specifically with CIL, given that the charging schedule will also form part of the 
Local Development Framework, similar standards are advisable. Accordingly, 
the draft Schedule will be published for 6 weeks during which representations 
can be made. 

 
Equality impact assessment  

 
65. The Equality Act 2010 introduced a single public sector equality duty (PSED). 

This duty requires the council to have due regard in our decision making 
processes to the need to: 

 
(a) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation or other prohibited 

conduct; 
(b) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 

protected characteristic and those who do not   
(c) Foster good relations between those who share a relevant characteristic 

and those that do not share it. 
 

The relevant protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, 
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation. The 
PSED also applies to marriage and civil partnership, but only in relation to (a) 
above.  

 
66. The council has discretion as to whom it wishes to consult regarding the 

preliminary draft charging schedule. The council proposes consulting a broad 
range of groups and has made every effort to be inclusive. Therefore, the 
statutory equalities duties are satisfied. 

 
67. CIL has the potential to impact unequally on persons having one or more 

protected characteristic. The council will need to monitor the impact of CIL. 
Although there will not be any effective method of analysing the characteristics of 
persons paying CIL, the overall effect will be evident. 

 
68.  There has been compliance with the council’s Approach to Equalities as well as 

the public sector equality duty as contained within section 149 of the Equality Act 
2010.  All six equality strands have been duly considered and assessed, this is 
evidenced in the Equalities Assessment (EA).  

 
Human rights considerations 

 
69. CIL potentially engages certain human rights under the Human Rights Act 2008 

(the HRA).  The HRA prohibits unlawful interference by public bodies with 
conventions rights. The term ‘engage’ simply means that human rights may be 
affected or relevant.  In the case of CIL, a number of rights are potentially 
engaged: -  

 
• The right to a fair trial (Article 6) – giving rise to the need to ensure 

proper consultation and effective engagement of the public in the process; 
• The right to respect for private and family life (Article 8) – for instance 

the setting of CIL tariffs could impact on viability of housing provision or re-
provision.  Other considerations may include impacts on amenities or the 
quality of life of individuals based on CIL being too prohibitive; 

• Article 1, Protocol 1 (Protection of Property) – this right prohibits 
interference with individuals’ right to peaceful enjoyment of existing and 

173



 14 

future property / homes.  It could be engaged, for instance, if CIL makes 
future development unviable; 

• Part II Protocol 1 Article 2 Right to Education – this is an absolute right 
enshrining the rights of parents’ to ensure that their children are not denied 
suitable education.  This will be a relevant consideration in terms of 
ensuring sufficient educational infrastructure is funded by CIL. 

 
70. It is important to note that few rights are absolute in the sense that they cannot 

be interfered with under any circumstances.  ‘Qualified’ rights, including the 
Article 6, Article 8 and Protocol 1 rights, can be interfered with or limited in 
certain circumstances.  The extent of legitimate interference is subject to the 
principle of proportionality whereby a balance must be struck between the 
legitimate aims to be achieved by a local planning authority in the policy making 
process against potential interference with individual human rights.   

 
71. Before making their decision members are advised to have regard to human 

rights considerations and strive to strike a fair balance between the legitimate 
aims of setting CIL for the benefit of the community against potential interference 
with individual rights.  

 
72. At this stage it is not considered that the proposal to consult on or implement CIL 

would constitute unlawful interference with human rights. Indeed, CIL has the 
legitimate aim of securing the infrastructure necessary for development growth 
provided for in the development plan and mitigation of its impacts. 

 
Decision-making 

 
73. The legislation on CIL does not prescribe decision making in respect of a 

charging schedule. Neither are the Local Government (Functions and 
Responsibilities Act) England Regulations 2010 amended to deal with CIL, 
suffice it to say that CIL is a planning policy function.  The only relevant 
requirement within the CIL Regs is that the charging schedule, once approved by 
the Examiner, should be approved by a resolution of the full council of the 
charging authority (PA 2008, s.213(2)).  

 
74. As noted earlier, CIL is to be a part of the Local Development Framework and 

can be considered analogous to other LDF documents such as Development 
Plan Documents (DPDs).  Under Part 3(C) of the Constitution, the cabinet 
collectively has responsibility for the council’s policy framework (function 3), its 
finances (function 7) and approval of preferred options (effectively advanced 
drafts of) development plan documents (function 20).  In any event, cabinet has 
power under Article 6 of the council’s Constitution (‘the Constitution’) to carry out 
all of the local authority’s functions which are not the responsibility of any other 
part of the council.   

 
75. Therefore, it is considered appropriate to follow the decision making pattern used 

for DPDs and similar documents.  It is recommended that members of cabinet 
may collectively approve the draft charging schedule for publication and 
submission to an examiner having regard to the contents of this report and the 
accompanying documents: the draft charging schedule the viability appraisal, 
infrastructure plan and Regulation 123 list. 

174



 15 

 
Strategic Director of Finance and Corporate Services (FC/13/104) 
 
76. The strategic director of finance and corporate services notes the 

recommendations in this report. 
 
77. Currently, the council uses standard charges set out in its s106 Planning 

Obligations SPD to pool contributions for infrastructure such as new schools 
places, strategic transport infrastructure, open space, leisure facilities and health 
facilities. However, from April 2014 or the adoption of a CIL Charging Schedule 
the council will not be able to pool more than 5 obligations to fund a single item 
of infrastructure.  

 
78. The use of s106 funding has been forecast in the council’s 10 year capital 

programme, using existing balances and new funds anticipated from future 
agreements.  Use of CIL as a potential funding source for capital schemes was 
outlined in a report considered by cabinet on 17 July 2012.  The capital 
programme will be subject to future refresh and depending on the final charging 
schedule for CIL this may be used to support appropriate capital programme 
schemes.  

 
79. The income projections outlined in this report are indicative only and a full 

financial analysis of projected costs and income streams attributable to the 
operation of the levy should be undertaken prior to its formal introduction, and 
kept under review as part of normal budget and resource monitoring. 

 
80. Officer time to effect the recommendations will be contained within existing 

budgeted revenue resources and any significant additional costs from any 
specific proposals arising from the consultation or any queries will be subject to 
the council’s usual approval arrangements.  

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
Background paper Held at Contact 
Statement of Community Involvement 
2008 (available on the council’s 
website) 
 

Council Offices, 
160 Tooley Street, 
London SE1 2QH 

Sandra Warren 
0207 525 5471 

CIL viability study 2013 update 
(available on the council’s website) 
 

As above Sandra Warren 
0207 525 5471 

 

175



 16 

 
APPENDICES 
 
No. Title 
Appendix A Community infrastructure levy (CIL) draft charging schedule  
Appendix B Draft Regulation 123 list  
Appendix C Infrastructure Plan (available on the website) 
Appendix D Equality Analysis (available on the website) 
Appendix E Consultation Plan (available on the website) 
Appendix F Consultation Report (available on the website) 
 
 
AUDIT TRAIL 
 
Cabinet Member Councillor Fiona Colley, Cabinet Member for Regeneration and 

Corporate Strategy  
Lead Officer Eleanor Kelly, Deputy Chief Executive 

Report Author Tim Cutts, Team Leader, Planning Policy  
Version Final 
Dated 1 February 2013 

Key Decision? No 
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 

MEMBER 
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments 

included 
Director of Legal Services  Yes Yes 
Strategic Director of Finance and 
Corporate Services 

Yes Yes 

Cabinet Member  Yes Yes 
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 1 February 2013 
 

 
 

176



Planning Act 2008 
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010

London Borough of Southwark 
Draft Community Infrastructure Levy 
Charging Schedule (February 2013) 

No. Title 
Appendix A Community infrastructure levy (CIL) draft charging schedule 

(available with the report) 
Appendix B Draft Regulation 123 list (available with the report) 
Appendix C Infrastructure Plan (available on the website) 
Appendix D Equalities Analysis (available on the website) 
Appendix E Consultation Plan (available on the website) 
Appendix F Consultation Report (available on the website) 

APPENDIX A

177



Planning Act 2008 
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010

London Borough of Southwark 
Draft Community Infrastructure Levy 
Charging Schedule (February 2013) 

The London Borough of Southwark is a charging authority for the purposes of Part 11 
of the Planning Act 2008 and may therefore charge the Community Infrastructure 
Levy in respect of development in the London Borough of Southwark. 

The rate at which CIL will be charged shall be: 

Development type Zone ����

CIL Rate      
£ per 
sq.m. 

Office  Zone 1 £70 

  Zones 2-4 £0 

Hotel  Zone 1 £250 

  Zones 2-4 £125 

Residential and student housing Zones 1-2 £400 
  Zone 3 £250 
  Zone 4 £50 
Destination superstores / supermarkets / shopping 
centres / malls �������� Zones 1-4 £250 
All other retail (A1 – A5 & Sui Generis uses akin to retail)
������������ Zones 1-4 £125 

Industrial and warehousing  Zones 1-4 £0 

Public libraries Zones 1-4 £0 

Health Zones 1-4 £0 

Education  Zones 1-4 £0 

All other uses  Zones 1-4 £30 

����These zones are shown in the CIL Zones Map 2013 below.  
�������� Destination superstores/supermarkets for weekly food shopping needs, which can include non-food floor space 
as part of the overall mix of the unit, with car parking provision.  
Shopping centres/shopping malls are shopping destinations which comprise one or more buildings providing a range 
of services including shops, cafes and restaurants, connected by pedestrian walkways and with car parking 
provision. 
������������ Sui generis akin to retail includes petrol filling stations; shops selling and/or displaying motor vehicles; retail 
warehouse clubs. 

As per Regulation 14 of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as 
amended 2011 and 2012), the Council is designated the collecting authority for the 
Mayor of London in Southwark. This requires a current charge of £ 35 per square 
metre to be levied in addition to the amounts specified above. 

The amount to be charged for each development will be calculated in accordance 
with Regulation 40 of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as 
amended 2011 and 2012). For the purposes of the formulae in paragraph 5 of 
Regulation 40 the relevant rate (R) is the rate for each charging zone shown in the 
charging schedule above.   

178



CIL will be applied on the chargeable floor space of all new development apart from 
that exempt under Part 2 and Part 6 of the Community Infrastructure Levy 
Regulations 2010 (as amended by the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 
2011 and 2012). The exemptions from the CIL rates are:  

• The gross internal area of a new buildings or extensions to buildings will be 
less than 100 square metres (other than where the development will 
comprise one or more dwelling); 

• A building into which people do not normally go;  
• A building into which people go only intermittently for the purpose of 

maintaining or inspecting machinery; or  
• A building for which planning permission was granted for a limited period; 
• Development by charities of their own land to be used wholly or mainly for 

their charitable purposes; 
• Social Housing. 

Statement of Statutory Compliance 

The Charging Schedule has been approved and published in accordance with the 
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended 2011 and 2012) and 
Part 11 of the Planning Act 2008 as amended.  

In setting the levy rates, the Council has struck an appropriate balance between;  
a) the desirability of funding from CIL in whole or in part the estimated cost of 
infrastructure required to support the development of its area, taking into account 
other actual and expected sources of funding, and  
b) the potential effects, taken as a whole, of the imposition of CIL on the economic 
viability of development across its area. 

This Charging Schedule was approved by the Council on (date to be inserted 
following examination)  

This Charging Schedule will come into effect on (date to be inserted following the 
examination and approval) 

179



180



C
IL

 Z
on

es
 M

ap
 2

01
3 

(in
se

t s
ho

w
in

g 
zo

ne
s 

1 
an

d 
2)

181



C
IL

 Z
on

es
 M

ap
 2

01
2 

(in
se

t s
ho

w
in

g 
zo

ne
 4

) 

182



APPENDIX B 
 
 

CIL Draft Regulation 123 list 
 
 
No. Title 

Appendix A Community infrastructure levy (CIL) draft charging schedule 
(available with the report) 

Appendix B Draft Regulation 123 list (available with the report) 
Appendix C Infrastructure Plan (available on the website) 
Appendix D Equalities Analysis (available on the website) 
Appendix E Consultation Plan (available on the website) 
Appendix F Consultation Report (available on the website) 

183



CIL Draft Regulation 1231 list   
 
Transport: 
Elephant & Castle underground stations (not including land) 
Peckham Rye station and forecourt 
Queens Road Peckham station and forecourt (not including land) 
Cycle routes (not including land and development specific signage) 
Elephant and Castle northern roundabout pedestrian and cycle 
improvements. 
Camberwell Green town centre improvements to pedestrian crossings, signals 
and pavements 
Lower Road (Canada Water AAP) removal of the gyratory (not including land) 
Rotherhithe pedestrian and cycling improvements 
 
Open Space:  
Improvements to District Parks (Burgess Park, Peckham Rye, Dulwich Park 
and Southwark Park). 
 
Education: 
Existing primary school expansion (not land) 
Secondary school provision /expansion (not land), 
 
Health: 
All with the exception of sites where there is a planning requirement to re-
provide a health use. 
 
Libraries: All with the exception of sites where there is a planning 
requirement to re-provide a library. 
 
Sports: 
Elephant and Castle new leisure centre 
Refurbishment of Seven Islands leisure centre 
Refurbish tracks at Southwark Park 
Improvements to St Paul’s sports ground 
Improvements to Homestall Road playing field 
Greendale playing field improvements 
 
Other: 
Canada Water district heating/CHP (not including land or connection costs) 
 
Cemeteries (not including land) 
 
Storm water storage areas: Dulwich, Peckham Rye, Camberwell and North 
Peckham 

                                                 
1 Refers to Regulation 123 of the Community Infrastructure Regulations 2010 (as amended 
2011 and 2012) 

184



 

 
 

1 

  

Item No.  
16. 

 

Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
12 February 2013 
 

Meeting Name: 
Cabinet 
 

Report title: 
 

Establishment of Public Health Leadership and 
Commissioning in Southwark Council 
 

Ward(s) or groups 
affected: 
 

All wards 

Cabinet Member: 
 

Councillor Catherine McDonald, Health and Adult 
Social Care 
 

 
 
FOREWORD – COUNCILLOR CATHERINE MCDONALD, CABINET MEMBER FOR 
HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE 
 
On 1 April 2013, local authorities take on responsibility for public health.  This presents 
huge opportunities to tackle some of the borough’s public health issues, and improve 
the health and wellbeing of our citizens.  In our borough up to 600 people die early 
each year of preventable illnesses and the life expectancy of our least affluent citizens 
is around a decade less than that of our most affluent citizens. 
 
Our vision is to work with our citizens to significantly improve public health – by 
tackling health challenges and reducing health inequalities.  We want our borough to 
be a place with healthy communities.  We want Southwark’s citizens to live healthy 
lives for as long as possible; and for our children and young people to grow up to be 
healthy, happy and productive members of our economies and communities. 
 
Already, much of the council’s work has a positive impact on public health.  In taking 
on the responsibility for public health, we will seize the opportunity to embed public 
health considerations in everything we do across the council.  We want to make use of 
all our policy levers to improve public health, for example through our policies in 
regeneration, housing, planning, children’s services, leisure, adult social care, the 
wider environment and economy. 
 
We recognise that to achieve our vision we need to go beyond borough boundaries. 
We recently took the decision to jointly appoint a specialist public health service, and a 
shared Director of Public Health, with Lambeth, to harness the collective resources of 
both boroughs to tackle the common health challenges we face.  We look forward to 
formally welcoming the public health team into the local authority.  
 
We will use the combined experience and expertise of our two boroughs’ public health 
professionals, joining together with existing local authority officers, to deliver change 
that will have a lasting impact on people, families and communities across all of 
Lambeth and Southwark.  We will also work collaboratively with partners – for example 
through the Health and Wellbeing Board. 
 
In taking on responsibility for public health from April, we will place democratic 
decision-making at the centre of how we determine local public health choices. This is 
hugely important. It provides our communities with the chance to directly shape, and 
hold us to account in, how we embed public health into our service delivery. 

 

Agenda Item 16
185



 

 
 

2 

  

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the cabinet: 
 
1. Notes that the local authority will take on public health accountabilities and 

responsibilities from April 2013. 
 
2. Notes the appointment on 3 September 2012 of a joint Director of Public Health 

for Southwark and Lambeth, in line with the Southwark Cabinet’s decision of 17 
July 2012. 

 
3. Notes the NHS consultation with public health staff on the operating model for a 

shared specialist team for Southwark and Lambeth.   
 
4. Agree the approach to commissioning sexual health services (paragraphs 43 to 

52), alcohol and substance misuse treatment services (paragraphs 53 to 59), 
children’s commissioning (paragraphs 60 to 63) and health promotion and 
prevention (paragraphs 64 to 65). 

 
5. Agree to delegate authority for the final sign-off on the NHS’ contract transfer 

scheme and staff transfer scheme to the Strategic Director of Children’s and 
Adults’ Services and the Strategic Director of Finance and Corporate Services. 

 
6. Agree to delegate authority to the Strategic Director of Children’s and Adults’ 

Services after consultation with the Strategic Director of Finance and Corporate 
Services on:  

 
i. the agreement with the local Clinical Commissioning Group referred to in 

paragraph [71] 
ii. the tri-borough agreement referred to in paragraph [70] 
iii. the shared service agreement referred to in paragraph [69] and any other 

ancillary agreements. 
 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
Public health in Southwark 

 
7. Southwark is a borough of contrasts when it comes to key measures of public 

health.  On the one hand, the borough's residents are living longer than ever 
before (with an increase in the average life expectancy in Southwark since 1991 
of 5.2 years for women and 6.6 years for men), smoking rates are falling and 
there has been a reduction in the number of deaths from heart disease in recent 
years.   
 

8. On the other hand, the borough faces some of the most challenging public health 
issues in London and in the country. Despite increases in life expectancy overall, 
average life expectancy for men is still lower than the national average, and the 
difference in life expectancy between our most affluent and least affluent citizens 
is around 10 years for men and around 9 years for women. National survey data 
(2006) shows that 13% of the borough’s population is obese and 37% is 
overweight.  

 
9. Southwark has high levels of cardiovascular disease, stroke and diabetes. There 

were 4,818 hospital admissions in Southwark in 2011-2012 related to alcohol. 

186



 

 
 

3 

  

Alcohol was a factor in 3101 recorded crimes (including domestic violence) 
between April 2009 and September 2010.  Early deaths from smoking are high 
with around 33% of males compared to around 14% of females.  When 
compared to rest of England, Southwark has a higher number of residents living 
with HIV.    

 
10. The statistics paint a picture of much achieved but also much to deliver. Public 

health in Southwark is about more than health provision. It is also about the 
wider determinants that impact on people’s lives - the economy and jobs that 
people have access to, the homes they live in and the places they work. 

 
11. Public health means people having a good quality of life and being active and 

healthy citizens, for as long as possible, so they are able to make a positive 
contribution to the borough.   

 
12. For the council, and other public sector partners, this means ensuring public 

health is embedded in all that we do. This means putting public health at the 
centre of our decision-making when thinking about how services are provided, to 
who and to what quality.   

 
13. The council is already delivering a number of key promises, through the council 

plan, that will help improve public health.  These include making all council 
homes warm, dry and safe by 2015/16, delivering improvements to Burgess 
Park, bringing the benefits of regeneration to local communities through 
ambitious plans for the transformation of the Elephant and Castle and 
introducing free healthy school meals for all primary schools.  The council have 
also recently agreed a new economic well-being strategy which is about 
supporting economic growth and helping people into work and the positive health 
impacts that can bring.  This demonstrates the importance that the council 
places on wanting to keep people as healthy as possible for as long as possible. 

 
14. Equally, there are many benefits from delivering good public health in terms of 

the council's other areas of work. For example by reducing alcohol misuse or 
drug dependency this may decrease crime more generally across the borough, 
making the borough a safer and healthier.    
 

15. Southwark has a long history of effective partnership working on public health.  
In 2003 the council established a joint director of health and social care, one of 
the first of its kind established in the country.  The joint team went on to develop 
and deliver some pioneering and innovative services, for example the Carelink 
child and adolescent mental health team which is embedded in the services  for 
children who are looked-after. The council now has an opportunity to build upon 
this shared history as it takes on direct responsibility for delivering public health 
from April 2013.  
 

16. By bringing the public health service into the remit of the council, there is a huge 
opportunity to deliver step change and transformation in the way we tackle 
health challenges. We want to ensure people stay as healthy as possible for as 
long as possible so they avoid the negative impact that poor and ill health can 
have.   
 

17. This is a huge opportunity because we are combining the talents of the public 
health service profession with the experience and delivery of council officers who 
work across a range of services (from parks through to community safety, 
children’s and adults’ services, planning, regeneration and housing).   

187



 

 
 

4 

  

 
18. We need to seize this opportunity with urgency to make Southwark an even 

healthier place as quickly as possible.  By bringing public health under the remit 
of the council elected members will be able to have a better understanding of the 
key factors that influence people's health and well-being.  They will also be able 
to make decisions based on expert advice to achieve real and lasting change. 
 

19. Our vision is to significantly improve the public health of the citizens in our 
boroughs by tackling health challenges and reducing health inequalities. We 
want to improve life expectancy and ensure that people have the best health for 
as many years of their lives as possible.  We also want people to have access to 
information to support them and their families' well-being.   

 
20. We recognise that to achieve our vision we need to go beyond borough 

boundaries. We want to use the combined experience and expertise of our two 
boroughs’ public health professionals joining together with existing local authority 
officers, to deliver change that will have a lasting impact on people, families and 
communities across all of Lambeth and Southwark. Having a specialist public 
health team and wider commissioned public health services will broaden the 
impact of public health leadership.  

 
21. Working in partnership will be fundamental to achieve our vision for improved 

public health, particularly as public sector resources continue to be squeezed.  
This will require us to work with the health sector, GPs, the voluntary and 
community sector and the wider community to focus on the areas where we feel 
we can make the most positive impact.   

 
22. As a member of the Department of Health’s Early Implementers Network, 

Southwark committed to establish a shadow Health and Wellbeing Board in April 
2012.  This was a year prior to the Board becoming a statutory committee of the 
council (see report on “Establishing Southwark’s Health and Wellbeing Board as 
a Committee of the Council” elsewhere on this cabinet meeting’s agenda).  
Through the partnership work of the health and well-being board, the council will 
be able to have a deeper understanding of public health challenges in the 
borough.  It will be able to more directly influence a broad range of bodies (such 
as GPs, Clinical Commissioning Groups and local hospitals) and services that 
impact on people’s health and wellbeing in the borough. 

 
Director of Public Health 
 
23. The Director of the Public Health (DPH) will be the person who elected members 

and senior officers look to for leadership, expertise and advice on a range of 
issues.  The DPH will provide the expert understanding of the factors that 
determine health and ill health, how to change behaviour and promote both 
health and wellbeing in ways that reduce inequalities in health. 
 

24. The DPH will be responsible for providing leadership, expertise and advice on a 
range of issues, from outbreaks of disease and emergency preparedness 
through to improving local people’s health and concerns around access to health 
services.  Core statutory responsibilities of the DPH include public health 
leadership across the local system, plans to protect local population health, 
statutory annual reporting on local population health, advice to NHS 
commissioners on local population health and a role in emergency preparedness 
for threats to local public health. 

 

188



 

 
 

5 

  

25. In partnership with local authority colleagues, such as the strategic director of 
children’s and adults’ services, the DPH will tackle the causes of ill health in the 
borough and work to reduce health inequalities, particularly for the most 
vulnerable communities in the borough. 

 
26. At the most strategic level, the DPH will be an active member of both Lambeth 

and Southwark’s health and wellbeing boards, advising on, and contributing to, 
the development of joint strategic needs assessments and joint health and 
wellbeing strategies.  

 
27. It will also be important that the DPH and the specialist public health team work 

with local authority colleagues within the council’s overall commissioning cycle. 
This work will include: using the joint strategic needs assessment to inform 
strategic planning and review service provision; identifying vulnerable groups 
and assessing and analysing the effectiveness of access arrangements; 
investigating differential take up of services; and monitoring and evaluating the 
impact of commissioned services in terms of closing the health inequalities gap.  

 
28. The DPH will also have a key role in protecting the local population from risks to 

public health, again working in partnership with local organisations, groups and 
stakeholders. 

 
Specialist public health team  
 
29. In July 2012, the cabinets of both Lambeth and Southwark Council approved a 

plan to create a specialist public health team across Lambeth and Southwark, 
located in and employed by Southwark, and to appoint a joint Director of Public 
Health.  
 

30. There are a number of benefits to pursuing a partnership approach and creating 
a specialist public health team that supports both councils.  A shared team will 
allow both boroughs to share expertise, knowledge and approaches to 
identifying and tackling the root causes of inequality in health outcomes in both 
boroughs. The specialist team will help develop public health capacity across 
both councils and partner organisations in both boroughs. The specialist public 
health team will provide a strong, expert bridge between the health needs of the 
population of Lambeth and Southwark and the council services upon which they 
rely. 

 
31. The specialist public health team will be focused not just on the present, but also 

on the future of both councils and their residents, improving the wellbeing of our 
populations and preventing ill health. The team will achieve this through the 
application of their public health expertise, and through a strong commitment to 
partnership working, communication and continuous learning. 

 
32. The specialist public health team will support the Director of Public Health to 

discharge their core responsibilities for public health on behalf of Lambeth and 
Southwark. An operating model and draft structure for the specialist team was 
published as a consultation by the NHS with their staff on 22 January 2013. The 
consultation ends on 21 February 2013.  Following the consultation and 
implementation of the new structure these staff will formally transfer from the 
NHS to Southwark Council on 1 April 2013. 

 
33. The model for the specialist public health team is based on delivery across three 

domains: health intelligence and analysis; health protection; and, health 

189



 

 
 

6 

  

improvement, including partnership work and public health input to 
commissioning.  

 
34. The principles of the specialist team will be to: 
 

• work in partnership to improve health and reduce health inequalities 
• understand local health needs  
• ensure parity in providing expert advice and support to both councils 
• work with local communities 
• advocate for health in the borough 
• support prioritisation of public health initiatives 
• have an evidence-based approach to policy making 
• bring a public health perspective to all local authority commissioning 
 

35. As the specialist service is embedded in the council's way of working and 
operations there will be opportunities to review and consider how resources are 
best deployed to achieve the vision for improved public health across Lambeth 
and Southwark.   

 
Approaches to commissioned services 
 
36. The Health and Social Care Act 2012 has set out a number of areas for 

mandatory and discretionary commissioned services which will transfer from the 
responsibility and management of the local NHS to the local authority from April 
2013. These are highlighted at Appendix 1. 
 

37. The local authority is working closely with the local NHS to ensure that the 
transfer of services does not adversely affect service users or the performance 
of these services. Every opportunity to align these services with those of the 
local authority, and for improvement of services is being taken.   
 

38. The mandatory services transferring to the local authority are: 
 

• comprehensive sexual health services; 
• the National Child Measurement Programme; and  
• NHS Health Check assessments. 
 
In future years, elements of children and young people’s commissioning may be 
mandated.  

 
39. A wide range of discretionary service areas will become the responsibility of the 

council from 1 April 2013. Provision of these services should be locally 
determined, guided by the local joint health and wellbeing strategy, local joint 
strategic needs assessment and Public Health Outcomes Framework. Provision 
and levels of provision for these services may also be mandated by the 
Secretary of State in further legislation. The local NHS has identified relevant 
services which are currently provided locally, and identified the transferring 
resources. In Southwark, these services include;  
 

• sexual health services in addition to those mandated above 
• drug and alcohol misuse treatment services; 
• children and young people’s health services, and 
• health promotion and prevention services. 
 

190



 

 
 

7 

  

40. The formal transfer scheme is yet to be published, however, the local authority 
and local NHS have worked closely together to identify the relevant 
commissioned services for transfer. This is in line with national legislation and 
policy guidance. The local authority and local NHS have identified the scope for 
each of these services and the current strategic, governance, management and 
resource arrangements.  

 
41. At the direction of chief officers from the local authority and local NHS, senior 

commissioners from the local authority and local NHS have worked together to 
identify possible approaches to the commissioning of each of these service 
areas through the transfer and stabilisation of these services, and plan to review 
these for the medium to longer term. These approaches are set out here for 
each of the areas under consideration. Plans for transfer have focused on 
providing a steady-state transition for the first year to minimise the risk of 
disruption to services. Once services have been transferred safely, the council 
plans to review how each of these services is commissioned, on a phased basis, 
working in partnership with the NHS, partners and stakeholders.  

 
42. Commissioning activity will be located across a number of areas in the council 

which reflects the importance of a cross-council approach to leadership on public 
health.  This will involve the Strategic Director of Children’s and Adults’ Services, 
the Director of Public Health and the councils’ senior leadership team working 
together in partnership to deliver the vision.  Specific accountabilities will be 
reviewed and clarified as public health is embedded within council services and 
the government finalises expectations on public health provision in local 
authorities. 

 
Comprehensive sexual health services 
 
43. Improving sexual health is important in Southwark, where for example HIV 

prevalence rates are amongst the highest in the UK and over twice the London 
average. 
 

44. The level of teenage conceptions in the borough has fallen steadily over the past 
ten years, but is still high. 

 
45. To tackle these challenges Southwark PCT has worked in partnership with 

Lambeth and Lewisham PCTs for six years to jointly commission sexual health 
and HIV services across the three boroughs. The Sexual Health Commissioning 
team has developed knowledge and expertise in this specialist area and has 
historically provided a responsive and high quality service across the three 
boroughs.  The joint team has a track record in pioneering service 
developments, for example introducing voluntary HIV testing at registration with 
a GP and training pharmacists to provide over the counter emergency 
contraception.  

 
46. The legislation sets out that the local authority will become responsible for 

commissioning comprehensive open-access and confidential contraception and 
sexually transmitted infections (STIs) testing and treatment services, for the 
benefit of all persons of all ages present in the area. 
 

47. In Southwark these services are currently commissioned by the NHS through a 
range of public, private and voluntary sector providers, through contractual and 
supplementary arrangements to the value of £7.803M.  
 

191



 

 
 

8 

  

48. Sexual health services currently provided include: reproductive sexual health; 
STI testing and treatment through genitourinary medicine services at local 
hospitals; post-exposure prophylactic treatment for HIV; young person’s sexual 
health; community contraceptive services, and local sexual health promotion and 
prevention work. 
 

49. The NHS will retain responsibility for some sexual health services, which will 
include contraceptive provision that is part of existing GP contracts, termination 
of pregnancy and vasectomy services, HIV treatment and sexual assault referral 
centres. The local authority will continue to work closely with the NHS to ensure 
that the range of sexual health services provided in the area is appropriate, that 
transitions between services for people accessing those services work well and 
overall resources are used most effectively. 
 

50. Southwark, Lambeth and Lewisham have similar populations with similar needs 
and existing sexual health challenges. The pattern of health provision across the 
three boroughs means that residents from all three boroughs currently access 
health provision from largely the same sites and services. We recognize the 
benefits the primary care trusts have gained through commissioning sexual 
health services via a tri-borough commissioning team. 

 
51. The proposed commissioning approach for sexual health is therefore to maintain 

and formalise the existing arrangement of a tri-borough commissioning team 
covering Lambeth, Southwark and Lewisham, with the team hosted by Lambeth 
Council. The scope of the team would include sexual health services which the 
local NHS will be responsible for commissioning, alongside the local authority 
commissioned services. If agreed by Southwark’s cabinet, the decision to 
proceed with a tri-borough service will be ratified by Lambeth’s cabinet on 4 
March 2013. 

 
52. The formal and final transfer scheme for contracts will be published on the 28 

March 2013, and officers expect it to match the current identified contracts.  
 

Substance misuse (drug and alcohol) treatment services 
 

53. The local authority currently commissions substance misuse treatment and 
ancillary services jointly with the Primary Care Trust through Southwark’s Drug 
and Alcohol Treatment Board. The DAAT Board is chaired by the Strategic 
Director for Environment and Leisure and is a statutory body formed under the 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998. It reports to the Safer Southwark Partnership. It is 
responsible for overseeing the commissioning and management of substance 
misuse treatment services within the Borough. 

 
54. Under the new arrangements, the majority of currently commissioned services 

within the health service will become the responsibility of the local authority. 
These jointly commissioned services are wide ranging. They include early 
intervention and prevention services, treatment for addictions including complex 
care, inpatient treatment and crisis management.  

 
55. In addition keywork, referral and treatment are provided for clients from the 

criminal justice sector including the courts, prisons and the police service on 
arrest. The current contract value of transferring services is £8.131M. 
 

56. Tackling both drug and alcohol misuse is a key issue for Southwark as the  
negative impacts directly affect long term health outcomes, crime, domestic 

192



 

 
 

9 

  

violence, gang and weapon violence, families, and the night time economy.  
Alcohol and substance misuse is a key factor in the lives of some of Southwark’s 
most troubled families.  Good clinical treatment and care has been shown to help 
reduce these impacts significantly. Integrated commissioning across funding 
streams will enable the development of more services that intervene early to 
support and challenge parents to keep their children safe from harm and raise 
them successfully.   

 
57. Successive Governments have produced national drug and alcohol strategies 

which look to local authorities to provide leadership in their local delivery and 
implementation. Key parts of that delivery include: 

 
• Effective prevention and early intervention services including those for 

young people; 
• High quality treatment and care which is recovery oriented with the overall    

aim that individuals will be helped to recover to integrate fully back into 
society. 

 
These are areas which have significant cross-cutting effects and impacts for 
families and communities as well as a significant impact on the physical and 
mental health and wellbeing of individuals and communities. 
 

58. The prevention and reduction of alcohol misuse has been identified as one of the 
shadow health and wellbeing priority areas. The new Southwark Alcohol strategy 
2013-16 has been presented to the shadow Health and Wellbeing Board (15 
January 2013).  It is a multi-agency strategy which aims: 

 
“to work in partnership to promote recovery, and protect individuals, families and 
our communities form the harm caused by alcohol misuse in Southwark”  

 
59. Senior local authority commissioners currently work with NHS commissioners 

and the DAAT team which sits within community safety, who currently co-
commission the treatment and associated services relating to substance misuse. 
The bulk of the current commissioning is managed by the NHS team which has 
been identified for transfer. The proposed commissioning approach for alcohol 
and substance misuse in Southwark would be to join together the DAAT team in 
one location and so establish a substance misuse commissioning team in the 
Community Safety and Enforcement division. This will build on the already 
strong relationship established between this team and the Health and Wellbeing 
board, and will include public health leadership, to ensure the current benefits of 
close links and working between this commissioning area and the rest of the 
health system is maintained.   

 
Children and young people’s commissioning 
 
60. It is crucial to ensure children get the best start in life. Taking better care of 

children’s early health and development can improve educational attainment and 
reduce the risk of poor health outcomes in later childhood and through into adult 
life.   

 
61. Childhood obesity in Southwark remains a significant concern, with the highest 

prevalence in the country at age eleven. The council is introducing universal free 
healthy school meals in primary schools to help tackle obesity by ensuring that 
all children have access to at least one healthy meal a day during term time.  
The new approach to public health will provide robust opportunities to work in 

193



 

 
 

10 

  

new ways across the system with children’s services colleagues, schools and 
partners from the community and voluntary sector to challenge and review 
existing approaches and determine local strategies together.   

 
62. Commissioned services for young people that are due to transfer in April 2013 

mainly comprise of school nursing services and the National Child Measurement 
Programme. The school nursing services, healthy start vitamins and healthy 
school programme contract value is £1.513M. The local authority’s 
responsibilities for children and young people’s commissioning will increase from 
2015 as the government has set out that they anticipate the transfer of 
responsibility for children’s commissioning from 0-5 which would include the 
health visiting service.  
 

63. The proposed approach for this area is to explore joint commissioning 
arrangements with Southwark CCG in 2013/14 to deliver this service through the 
existing community health contract.  In parallel a joint review by the council, the 
CCG and other key stakeholders (including headteachers and Children’s Centre 
Managers) will draw on expertise from the public health team and include the 
outcomes of the single service reviews currently in progress to develop options 
for commissioning arrangements for 2014 onwards. The review should report no 
later than autumn 2013. 

 
Health promotion commissioning 
 
64. Health Promotion and commissioned services include a range of programmes to 

promote healthy weight and encourage smoking cessation. The current contract 
value is £0.928M. 

 
65. The proposed approach for this area in 2013/14 is to continue to deliver some 

health promotion services directly, transferring current staff into the shared 
service.  This is a different approach to Lambeth where these services are 
commissioned from Guys and St Thomas’s Trust.  Over this year we will review 
opportunities to jointly commission these services with Lambeth, testing the 
market and bringing forward proposals for 2014/15 and beyond no later than 
Autumn  2013. 

 
Public health funding and resources implications 
 
66. The Department of Health has set out that Southwark Council’s ring-fenced grant 

allocation for the delivery of public health services in 2013/14 is £21,809,000. 
The allocation is set 5.4% above the baseline given for the cost of public health 
services. The detailed scope of the local authority’s responsibilities within that 
funding has yet to be finalised by government. 

 
Governance arrangements 

 
67. The cabinet member for health and adult social care is publicly accountable for 

the delivery of public health leadership in Southwark, who in turn will hold the 
council's senior leadership to account for delivery including the Director of Public 
Health, Director of Children and Adults Service and other relevant officers.  The 
more detailed governance and accountability arrangements will be developed 
once the council takes on formal responsibility for public health delivery from 
April 2013. 
 

194



 

 
 

11 

  

68. At an officer level the Director of Public Health for Lambeth and Southwark 
reports to the Chief Executives of both Lambeth and Southwark for delivery of 
public health leadership and advice for both areas This includes the delivery of 
the local authorities’ statutory public health functions, including an annual report 
on population health. The Director for Public Health will be a statutory member of 
both Health and Wellbeing Boards of Southwark and Lambeth. 

 
69. More specifically there will be a detailed legal agreement in place between the 

two authorities with regards the specialist service.  
 
70. Arrangements for the joint sexual health commissioning team will be set out in 

detail in an agreement between Lambeth, Southwark and Lewisham Councils 
and relevant Clinical Commissioning Groups. 

 
71. Arrangements for areas of joint working and commissioning with the NHS will be 

set out in a legal agreement between the council and the local Clinical 
Commissioning Group. 

 
72. The budget for the grant allocation will be managed by the Strategic Director of 

Children’s and Adults’ Services. 
 

Transfer of contracts 
 

73. The transfer of contracts will require a mixed approach to governance and some 
phasing of new procurement for services.  

 
Transfer of staff 

 
74. The transfer of staff will be in line with the Transfer Scheme (yet to be published 

in finalised form) under the Health and Social Care Act 2012. The process for the 
identification of staff to transfer is set out within policy and legal frameworks. It 
will involve local “sender and receiver” meetings, to follow the consideration of 
responses on the current staff consultation on the specialist public health team 
structure. 

 
Evaluation and review 
 
75. The specialist public health service will be subject to evaluation and review 

following transfer to ensure the efficacy and affordability of the service. 
 
Policy considerations 
 
76. The Health and Social Care Act 2012 sets out new responsibilities for local 

authorities, to be responsible for public health commissioning and to appoint a 
local Director of Public Health to lead on public health and population healthcare 
issues across the local system. It sets out a duty for the authority to “take such 
steps as it considers appropriate for improving the health of the people in its 
area”.  
 

77. The Health and Social Care Act envisages a new role for local authorities in 
terms of health and wellbeing leadership. This new role was articulated in the 
2010 Marmot Review which set out the limitations in tackling health inequalities 
in the current system in which “the perception among agencies is that 
responsibility for the delivery of health improvement lies with the NHS”. The 

195



 

 
 

12 

  

Marmot review highlighted that local government and other organisations hold 
many of the levers that shape and can have an impact on health improvement.  

 
78. From April 2013 councils take on a new role across all four domains of public 

health, that is: health improvement, health protection, public healthcare and 
improving the wider determinants of health. The new role for local authorities will 
be to lead work to tackle health inequalities across the system, and to champion 
improvements in health and wellbeing outcomes for local populations. 

 
79. Following the transfer of public health accountabilities from the NHS, local 

authorities will receive a ring-fenced public health budget set by the Department 
of Health. Local authorities are expected to be guided by their local joint strategic 
needs assessment and health and wellbeing strategy, and the objectives within 
the national public health outcomes framework. There is an opportunity to align 
the objectives in the public health outcomes framework with related objectives in 
the adult social care outcomes framework.  

 
80. There are a number of mandatory commissioned services, for sexual health 

services, NHS Health Check assessments and the National Child Measurement 
Programme. Each local area is required to have a Director of Public Health, 
although this role can be shared between areas (as is proposed in Lambeth and 
Southwark), and the Director of Public Health will fulfil a number of statutory 
duties including providing professional public health expertise to both councils, 
clinical commissioning groups and health and wellbeing boards. 

 
Community impact statement 
 
81. The health and wellbeing of the local population is at the core of public health 

commissioning, the work of the Director of Public Health and the specialist public 
health team. The transition of public health from the NHS to local authorities, as 
set out in the Health and Social Care Act 2012, includes at its core the provision 
for local authorities to take on a new leadership role in terms of health 
improvement for local communities. The role of a shared Director of Public 
Health, in working with the council, NHS and other partners, is to help lead 
change across organisations, and to tackle health inequalities in both Lambeth 
and Southwark.  

 
82. The involvement of communities is a key part of the work of all parts of the 

health system, including through health and wellbeing boards of which the 
Director of Public Health is a member. The value of including the wider views of 
individuals and communities is critical to both understanding and tackling the 
health and wellbeing issues in both Lambeth and Southwark.  

 
83. The additional value brought by a specialist public health team across the two 

areas will be to work with communities across borough boundaries, and to help 
enable the combined efforts (including community knowledge and resources) to 
be brought to bear on health issues in both Lambeth and Southwark.  
 

84. A key initial principle of the transition will be that it is ‘steady-state’, so there will 
be minimal change to the services which are currently being provided to the 
community. This is due to the scale of change in the NHS and the complex 
nature of the commissioned services the local authority will be responsible for 
from 2013. 

 

196



 

 
 

13 

  

85. Engagement with the community and with people accessing commissioned 
public health services is a core principle within future commissioning strategies 
for the new public health services within the council. The impact of these 
services on the community, and the views of the local community about these 
services, will be a core element of any reviews of public health services over 
2013-14, in their first year of provision with the council.   

 
SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS 
 
Director of Legal Services 
 
86. The Cabinet is being asked to agree the approach to commissioning sexual 

health services, alcohol and substance misuse treatment services, children’s 
commissioning and health promotion and prevention.  Cabinet is also being 
asked to agree to delegate authority for the final sign-off on the NHS’ contract 
transfer scheme to the Strategic Director of Children’s and Adults’ Services and 
the Finance Director. 

 
87. There is no specific power which permits the council to enter into shared delivery 

models with another public authority. The legal powers are contained in a variety 
of legislation including sections 101 and 102 of the Local Government Act 
1972 (delegation of specific functions to another local authority) and the Local 
Authorities (Goods and Services) Act 1970 (providing services to other local 
authorities) . The combined effect of this legislation is to give local authorities the 
power work together to provide services usually provided by local authorities. 

 
88. It is proposed that the tri-borough sexual health commissioning team for 

Southwark, Lambeth and Lewisham, although serving all three boroughs, and 
the three local Clinical Commissioning Groups, will be based with Lambeth and 
be employees of Lambeth Council, with Southwark Council and Lewisham 
Council making a contribution to employment costs. It will be important that a 
written agreement is put in place between the three local authorities clearly 
setting out what Lambeth Council’s responsibilities as lead commissioner will be, 
what level of input Southwark Council will have in commissioning and managing 
the services, and how Lambeth will report back to its partners. The agreement 
should also detail the financial arrangements for transferring the relevant budget 
to Lambeth Council and how any over-spend or under-spend is dealt with. It will 
also be essential to include provisions setting out how the arrangement can be 
terminated and how any associated liabilities will be dealt with. 

 
89. It is proposed that the majority of the currently commissioned substance misuse 

(drug and alcohol) treatment services and that some of the health promotion 
services will become the responsibility of the local authority from April 2013. It 
has also been proposed that a steady-state transition is followed for the first year 
to minimise the risk of disruption to services.  

 
90. The relevant officers will need to ensure that any procurement processes or 

contract awards are carried out in line with the Council’s constitution and in 
particular its Contracts Standing Orders or that the relevant approvals are 
obtained where it is necessary to go outside of these, e.g. due to time 
constraints. It will also be necessary to consider whether there any unduly 
onerous obligations, unusual provisions or unacceptable omissions in existing 
arrangements with service providers that the council is not prepared to agree to 
for the transition period. 

 

197



 

 
 

14 

  

91. It is proposed that children’s and young people’s services as well as some block 
contracts and locally enhanced services dealing with substance misuse 
treatment will initially be commissioned though Southwark CCG. It is essential 
that an agreement is put in place with Southwark CCG covering the same issues 
as outlined above in relation to the tri-borough sexual health commissioning 
agreement. Consideration should also be given now to how block contracts 
might be disaggregated in the future if the commissioning strategy changes. 

 
92. The council will need to ensure that in all commissioning arrangements it is 

acting in compliance with the public sector equality duty stemming from the 
Equality Act 2010 and carries out the appropriate equality analyses when 
procuring services. 

 
93. The report sets out in paragraph 84 that there will be minimal change to the 

services which are currently being provided to the community on transition and 
that the council will engage with and assess the impact of future commissioning 
arrangements on the community. Carrying out appropriate equality analyses and 
engaging with the community when procuring services will ensure that the 
council is acting in compliance with the public sector equality duty. Equality 
analyses would inform the council of the impact that its decisions will have on the 
community and specifically on particular groups within the community who may 
be disproportionately affected. The council would then be able to take steps to 
lessen such impact, where appropriate 

 
94. As a steady state transition has been proposed, we understand that there should 

be minimal immediate impact on the community. However, this may change in 
the future if the commissioning strategy changes. 

 
95. The proposal for a Director of Public Health and specialist public health team, 

serving both Lambeth and Southwark, but based at Southwark and employed by 
Southwark Council was approved by Cabinet in July 2012 following legal advice 
on the same. Whilst it is not intended to repeat generally the advice given, it is 
important to re-state that an agreement will need to be put in place with Lambeth 
Council containing appropriate indemnity arrangements to ensure that any 
liabilities which might initially fall to Southwark as employer are ultimately 
apportioned between Lambeth and Southwark. The agreement should also 
contain provisions dealing with possible termination in the future. It is also 
recommended that indemnity protection be sought from the Department of 
Health or NHS with regard to liabilities arising from pre-transfer acts in relation to 
staff transferring into the shared service. 

 
Strategic Director of Finance and Corporate Services (FC/13/101) 
 
96. This report recommends that the cabinet notes matters pertaining to new public 

health accountabilities and responsibilities, and also seeks approval for an 
approach to commissioning various services. 

 
97. The Strategic Director of Finance and Corporate Services notes the funding and 

resource implications contained within the report.  The new public health 
responsibilities offer the council an opportunity to significantly improve public 
health by tackling health challenges and reducing health inequalities.  However, 
it is important that the risks of current contracts are quantified and that the total 
expenditure is managed within the budget being made available of £21.809m.   

 

198



 

 
 

15 

  

98. It is noted that officers are continuing to work with colleagues in the PCT, 
Department of Health and Lambeth Council to finalise indicative expenditure 
numbers subject to any changes in the proposed specialist team structure 
following consultation. 

 
Director of Human Resources 
 
99. Local authorities are set to receive, via a Transfer Scheme, public health 

functions and NHS employees as part of the overall reorganisation of health 
services and restructure of the health system (creation of Clinical Commissioning 
Groups, Public Health England etc).  As sender organisations NHS bodies have 
to operate according to the principles agreed with the NHS trade unions about 
the treatment of staff during reorganisations. In practice this means local 
authorities have to abide by some overall national decisions as the people 
transferring are NHS staff up to the point of transfer. 

 
100. The Department of Health and the LGA have agreed a process for local 

authorities as receiver organisations to follow whereby joint working groups 
collaborate on the functions transferring and identify the workforce to be named 
in the transfer scheme. The Department of Health and the LGA have agreed a 
process for local authorities as receiver organisations to follow, whereby joint 
working groups collaborate on the functions transferring and identify the 
workforce to be named in the transfer scheme. This will be written to ensure the 
protections offered by the Cabinet Office Statement of Practice (COSOP) 
January 2000 (Revised November 2007) applies. This will be important for staff 
as COSOP effectively means that staff will be treated no less favourably than if 
TUPE applied, in relation to protecting statutory continuity of employment, 
transferring on current terms and conditions, including any contractual 
redundancy or severance entitlements. National decisions have also been taken 
in relation to Pensions enabling transferring staff to remain in the NHS pension 
scheme. 

 
101. The HR arrangements for both sender and receiver organisations are complex 

and the NHS and council both have statutory and policy collective and individual 
consultation and information requirements.  

 
102. The council’s priority has been to work with NHS leads to ensure a smooth 

payroll and pensions transfer as staff will transfer irrespective of the operating 
model agreed. Due diligence around terms and conditions, employee rights and 
liabilities is now taking place, including the identification of any 'measures' 
proposed by the council. Southwark and Lambeth HR are working closely on all 
aspects of the HR aspects of the transfer. 

 
103. More broadly, staff transfer considerations will include how best to ensure the 

public health team embeds effectively into the local authority organisations, and 
that ways of working are harmonised effectively. 

 

199



 

 
 

16 

  

 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Background Papers Held At Contact 
Healthy lives, healthy people Department of Health 

 
www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publi
cationsandstatistics/Pub
lications/PublicationsPol
icyAndGuidance/DH_12
8120  

Public Health Outcomes Framework Department of Health http://www.dh.gov.uk/en
/Publicationsandstatistic
s/Publications/Publicatio
nsPolicyAndGuidance/D
H_132358  

Public Health Factsheets Department of Health www.healthandcare.dh.
gov.uk/public-health-
system/  

Southwark Council Cabinet paper, 17 
July 2012 

Council Offices, 
160 Tooley Street, 
London SE1 2QH 

http://moderngov.south
wark.gov.uk/documents/
s30448/Report%20Publi
c%20Health%20Shared
%20Service%20betwee
n%20Lambeth%20and
%20Southwark%20Cou
ncils.pdf 

 
 
APPENDICES 
 

No. Title 
Appendix 1 Local Authority Commissioning Public Health Responsibilities 

 

200



 

 
 

17 

  

 
AUDIT TRAIL 
 
Cabinet Member 

 
Councillor Catherine McDonald, Cabinet Member for Health and 
Adult Social Care 

Lead Officer Romi Bowen, Strategic Director of Children’s and Adults’ 
Services 

Report Author Kerry Crichlow, Director Strategy & Commissioning (Children’s 
and Adults’ Services) 
Stephen Gaskell, Head of Strategy and Partnerships 

Version Final 
Dated 1 February 2013 

Key Decision? Yes 
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 

MEMBER 
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments 

included 
Director of Legal Services  Yes Yes 
Strategic Director of Finance 
and Corporate Services 

Yes Yes 

Director of Human Resources  Yes Yes 
Cabinet Member  Yes Yes 
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 1 February 2013 
 

201



 

APPENDIX 1 
 
 
LOCAL AUTHORITY COMMISSIONING PUBLIC HEALTH RESPONSIBILITIES AS SET OUT IN 

THE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH GUIDANCE 
 
1. Public health services  
 

1.1. Local authority commissioning public health responsibilities were set out in the Department 
of Health’s public health: factsheet in December 2011. These were listed as: 

 
•••• Comprehensive sexual health services (outside of the GP contract) 
•••• Alcohol and drug misuse services 
•••• Public health services for children and young people aged 5  19 
•••• The National Child Measurement Programme 
•••• NHS Health Check assessments 
•••• Interventions to tackle obesity 
•••• Locally-led nutrition initiatives 
•••• Increasing levels of physical activity 
•••• Tobacco control and smoking cessation services 
•••• Behavioural and lifestyle campaigns to prevent cancer and long-term conditions 
•••• Population level interventions to reduce and prevent birth defects 
•••• Local initiatives on workplace health 
•••• Local initiatives to reduce excess deaths as a result of seasonal mortality 
•••• Local initiatives that reduce public health impacts of environmental risks 
•••• Public health aspects of local initiatives to tackle social exclusion 
•••• Public health aspects of promotion of community safety, violence prevention and 

response 
•••• Accidental injury prevention 
•••• Public mental health services 
•••• Dental public health services 
•••• The local authority role in dealing with health protection incidents, outbreaks and 

emergencies 
•••• Supporting, reviewing and challenging delivery of key funded and NHS delivered 

services such as immunisation and screening programmes 
 
1.2. Some of these services will be mandated. The commissioning of any of the other services 

will be discretionary, guided by the local Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA), the 
Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) and the Public Health Outcomes framework. 
The local authority is not limited to this list and will be able to commission a wider variety of 
services under the health improvement duty from the Health and Social Care Act 2012. 

 
1.3. The Department of Health has set out that accountability for public health commissioning 

of children’s health from 5 – 19 will be with the NHS Commissioning Board. However this 
will later transfer to be a local authority by 2015. 

 
1.4. Within sexual health services, termination of pregnancy services, HIV treatment, and 

sexual assault referral centres will be the responsibility of the NHS Commissioning Board. 
 

1.5.  Mandatory services and activities are to include: 
 

• Sexual Health Services 
• Ensuring health protection plans are in place through local resilience forums 
• Population healthcare advice to the NHS 
• Production of an annual public health report 
• National Child Measurement Programme 
• NHS Health Check Assessments 

202



 

 
1.6. Health protection plans will require the co-operation of multiple bodies across the area, but 

it will be the statutory responsibility of the local authority to lead them and ensure that they 
are in place. These will include aspects of advice and challenge on screening and 
immunisation programmes, although the immunisation and screening programmes will be 
delivered by the NHS Commissioning Board. 

 
More information at Department of Health Factsheet: 
 
http://healthandcare.dh.gov.uk/public-health-system/  

203



  

 
 
 

1 

  

 
Item No.  

17. 
 

Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
12 February 2013 
 

Meeting Name: 
Cabinet 
 

Report title: 
 

Establishing Southwark’s Health and Wellbeing 
Board as a Committee of the Council 
 

Ward(s) or groups 
affected: 
 

All Wards 

Cabinet Member: 
 

Councillor Peter John, Leader of the Council 
 

 
 

FOREWORD - COUNCILLOR PETER JOHN, LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 
 
Since last year Southwark's Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board has been meeting in 
order to prepare for April 1st 2013, when responsibility for public health will pass to us 
as the local authority.  Drawing its membership from the local Clinical Commissioning 
Group, the council, Police, Kings Health Partners and the voluntary sector, the Board 
has sought to determine the public health priorities for Southwark in the years ahead 
and bring a new shared approach to solving some of the public health problems which 
are too prevalent in our community. 
 
The potential impact of the changes in responsibility for public health is immense - and 
from the early work of Southwark's Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board I believe that 
it will be hugely positive.  The partnership working amongst the Board's members is 
already evident and there is a growing anticipation and impatience for change. 
 
The time has now come to establish Southwark's Health and Wellbeing Board as a 
committee of the council.  The proposals contained in this report represent the shared 
views and vision of all of the shadow board's membership. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the cabinet: 
 
1. Agree to recommend that council assembly establishes Southwark's Health and 

Wellbeing Board as a committee of the council from 1 April 2013 and agrees the 
membership of the board as set out in paragraph 25.  

 
2. Note that the terms of reference and procedural rules for the board will be 

agreed at council assembly following the publication of secondary legislation. 
 
3. Agree that the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy will be proposed by the 

Health and Wellbeing Board for approval by cabinet and the NHS Clinical 
Commissioning Group Governing Body. 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  

 
Health and Social Care Act 2012 

 
4. Southwark’s Health and Wellbeing Board offers the council an opportunity to 

make a significant contribution to improving the health of the people living and 

Agenda Item 17
204



  

 
 
 

2 

  

working in the borough. It is a new kind of partnership involving the council, 
health services and the wider voluntary and community sector that aims to focus 
on those things that each of these organisations cannot do alone. The new role 
for local authorities, as encapsulated in the establishment of Health and 
Wellbeing Boards, will be to work with the NHS and other key partners to 
champion improvements in the health and well-being of people in Southwark and 
reduce health inequalities.  

 
5. The Health and Social Care Act 2012 brought about significant reform of existing 

health structures. These changes included the transfer of public health 
accountabilities from the NHS to local authorities, the abolition of Primary Care 
Trusts (PCTs) and, in the place of PCTs, the establishment of GP-led Clinical 
Commissioning Groups (CCGs). It also established the creation of patient 
champion groups HealthWatch in place of Local Involvement Networks (LINks). 
These changes are due to be in place by 1 April 2013. 

 
6. As a member of the Department of Health’s Early Implementers Network, 

Southwark committed to establish a shadow Health and Wellbeing Board by 
April 2012, a year prior to the board gaining statutory powers. In its newly 
constituted role as a committee of the council from 1 April 2013, the board will be 
at the core of the council’s new role in championing improvements to the health 
and wellbeing of the local population, and leading the transformation of public 
health in Southwark. In this work, the fully constituted board will seek to tackle 
the health inequalities in the borough and build on the work that took place 
during the shadow year. The changes in the Health and Social Care Act provide 
an opportunity to deliver improved health outcomes, through closer working 
relationships between the council, local GPs and the health community,  

 
Planning Group and Southwark’s Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
7. Following the publication of the NHS White Paper in November 2010, the Leader 

of the council asked the cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social Care to 
oversee a programme of work to make preparations for the local implementation 
of the Health and Social Care Act. This included work to establish a shadow 
Health and Wellbeing Board for Southwark. A planning group was set up to bring 
together key players from across the borough including statutory members of the 
board to set out a clear direction for the establishment of a shadow Health and 
Wellbeing Board for Southwark. 

 
8. The planning group led work to consider the key health and wellbeing challenges 

in the borough. They also considered what values and core behaviours should 
be embedded at the heart of the new partnership, how the board would engage 
with other partners and residents in the course of its work and how it would 
operate within the partnership architecture and other organisational systems that 
already exist in Southwark. 

 
9. The planning group agreed a set of terms of reference for the shadow board and 

also proposed four priorities for them to focus on. These were 
 

• Prevention and reduction of alcohol-related misuse 
• Coping skills, resilience and mental wellbeing 
• Early intervention and families 
• Healthy weight and exercise. 

 

205



  

 
 
 

3 

  

10. It was also decided through the work of the planning group that the meetings of 
the shadow board would take place in public, with papers and minutes publically 
available. This ensured that the board was in line with the fairer future principles 
of being open and transparent and ensured that all groups and communities 
could have access to the discussions of the shadow board. The decision for 
Southwark’s shadow board to meet in public has meant that the board is well 
equipped to transition to being a committee of the council, which will also meet in 
public. 

 
11. Following the work of the planning group, the cabinet approved the 

establishment of Southwark’s Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board on the 17th 
April 2012. Through the decision, the non-statutory membership was agreed for 
a fixed term of one year during the existence of the shadow board. As the board 
did not hold any executive functions or any decision making powers in its 
shadow year, the board did not need a formal constitutional framework to be set 
up.  

 
12. Southwark’s Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board met for the first time on 10 

July 2012. At its first meeting the board agreed the four priorities which had been 
proposed by the planning group as areas where the board could work together to 
make an impact. Each priority area was given a ‘champion’ on the board and an 
officer lead to support the work. 

 
13. The shadow board has taken some significant steps towards bringing together 

the organisations that can have an impact on the health inequalities in 
Southwark in order to make a difference. Once the board is established as a 
committee of the council from April 2013, it will have a solid foundation to further 
build on this work and to continue to develop partnership working. 

 
Establishing the board as a committee of the council 
 
14. The Health and Social Care Act 2012 provides a basic, common framework for 

Health and Wellbeing Boards and specifically sets out that that the Health and 
Wellbeing Board must be established as a local authority committee. The board 
is to be treated as if appointed under section 102 of the Local Government Act 
1972.  

 
15. The government recognised however that Health and Wellbeing Boards are 

unusual in comparison to normal section 102 committees and is developing a set 
of technical regulations in this regard. The regulations will be able to disapply, or 
modify, any legislation relating to a section 102 committee that would otherwise 
apply to a Health and Wellbeing Board. Key aspects of the legislation being 
considered relate to political proportionality requirements, voting restrictions, 
conflicts of interest, appointment of sub-committees, and access to information 
provisions.  
 

16. The government set out its intentions regarding this in late 2012, though the full 
regulations, due to come into force on 1 April 2013, were still not available in 
time to be included in this report. It is however possible to proceed with this 
decision based on the primary legislation and other information available at the 
current time. Officers have also sought legal and constitutional advice to 
supplement the information currently available. The delay in releasing secondary 
legislation by government has meant that it has not been possible to draft terms 
of reference and procedural rules for this report. These will be included in the 

206



  

 
 
 

4 

  

report to council assembly. 
 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
Health and Wellbeing duties for the local authority 
 
17. The Health and Social Care Act 2012 states that the Health and Wellbeing Board 

will have various functions. These include those conferred on it directly, such as 
the duty to encourage integrated working. It also includes duties conferred jointly 
on the local authority and its partner Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) but 
which must be discharged by the board. These joint duties include the 
preparation and publication of Joint Strategic Needs Assessments (JSNAs) and 
Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategies (JHWSs).  

 
18. The government produced a consultation paper for the statutory guidance 

relating to the JSNA and the JHWS in July 2012. At the same point the 
Department for Health also collated all the Health and Wellbeing duties for the 
Local Authority, the CCG, the Health and Wellbeing Board, the Local 
Healthwatch and the NHS Commissioning Board and published them. 

 
19. The Health and Social Care Act 2012 requires the local authority to establish and 

participate in the Health and Wellbeing Board, and through the board, to: 
 

• Prepare and publish a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (“JSNA”) and a 
Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (“JHWS”) to meet the needs identified 
in the JSNA in relation to the local authority’s area.  

• Involve third parties in preparation of the JSNA and JHWS including the 
Local Healthwatch and people living or working in the area, having regard 
to guidance from Secretary of State.  

• Together with each of its partner clinical commissioning groups, to have 
regard to the JSNA and JHWS in the exercise of any function.  

• When developing the JHWS, consider extent to which needs could be met 
more effectively by making arrangements under National Health Service 
Act 2006, to pool health budgets. 

 
Governance 
 
20. This report seeks to clarify the governance of the Health and Wellbeing Board 

once it is established as a committee of the council from 1 April 2013. The 
government has recognised that challenges exist for local authorities to set up a 
Health and Wellbeing Board as a committee of the council and it is expected that 
they will aim to clarify this in the secondary legislation.  

 
21. The secondary legislation is expected to set out that there will be no prescription 

regarding political proportionality for Health and Wellbeing Boards. It is therefore 
proposed that this be reflected in Southwark with no stipulation regarding the 
political proportionality of the membership of the board. Beyond this the board 
will follow the current rules relating to committees of the council subject to the 
secondary legislation from government. The report to council assembly will 
include the terms of reference and procedural rules for the Health and Wellbeing 
Board. It has not been possible to include these in this report due to the absence 
of secondary legislation from government. 

 
22. Beyond the technical governance and constitutional arrangements, there is a 

207



  

 
 
 

5 

  

need to set out the way that the board will operate on a practical level. Current 
indications are that it will be for each Health and Wellbeing Board to determine 
how their decisions are made. If there is local discretion regarding this, it is 
proposed that the board collectively decide how decisions are taken. This will be 
set out in the procedural rules put before council assembly.  

 
Membership 
 
23. Health and Wellbeing Boards must include six statutory members which are: 
 

• at least one councillor, who will be (or be nominated by) the Leader 
• the director of adult social services of the local authority 
• the director of children’s services of the local authority 
• the director of public health of the local authority 
• a representative of Local HealthWatch 
• a representative of the Clinical Commissioning Group. 

 
24. The primary legislation states that beyond the statutory members, the board can 

also include (g) such other persons, or representatives of such other persons, as 
the local authority thinks appropriate. The board once constituted will have the 
power to appoint additional members as it sees fit. The local authority may also 
appoint such additional members as it sees fit (in consultation with the board if 
an appointment is made after the establishment of the board). 

 
25. The proposed membership of the board is: 
 

• The Leader of Southwark Council 
• The Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social Care 
• The Cabinet Member for Children’s Services 
• The Chief Executive of the Council 
• The Strategic Director of Children's and Adults’ Services 
• The Director of Public Health 
• Three representatives from the Clinical Commissioning Group 
• A representative of Southwark HealthWatch 
• A representative from King’s Health Partners 
• Southwark Borough Commander, Metropolitan Police Service 
• The Chief Executive of Community Action Southwark 

 
26. The membership will be reviewed annually at the Annual Meeting of council 

assembly from 2014 onwards. This will allow the membership to stay relevant to 
the work that the board chooses to focus on.  

 
27. All members of the Health and Wellbeing Board are subject to Southwark's Code 

of Conduct for elected members when acting as a member of the board and will 
be subject to declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests. As a consequence 
it is recommended that substitutes should not be permitted at meetings of the 
board from 1 April 2013. 

 
NHS Commissioning Board 
 
28. The NHS CB is a autonomous non-department public body which operates 

within the wider health and social care. It assumes its full responsibilities in April 
2013, on the dissolution of SHAs and PCTs. The board’s overarching role it to 

208



  

 
 
 

6 

  

ensure that the NHS delivers better outcomes for patients within its available 
resources, provide leadership for the NHS, commission services and champion 
patient and carer involvement.  

 
29. The board will: 
 

• assess, assure and hold CCGs to account for delivering their statutory 
responsibilities 

• commission certain primary services (e.g. dental, pharmaceutical) 
• commission specialised services (e.g. specialised cancer, haemophilia) 
• commission armed forces and offender health care 
• commission certain health services on behalf of Public Health England (e.g. 

screening and immunisation)  
 
30. The London region of the NHS CB will include one of 10 ‘enhanced’ Area 

Teams, with an estimated Budget of £4.2bn. 
 
31. In the Health and Social Care Act 2012 it sets out that the Health and Wellbeing 

Board has a duty to have regard to the NHS CB mandate in developing the 
JHWS and the JSNA. In light of this the NHS CB must appoint a representative 
to join the Health and Wellbeing Board for the purpose of participating in its 
preparation of the JSNA or the JHWS. In addition, If the Health and Wellbeing 
Board so requests, the NHS CB must appoint a representative to join the Health 
and Wellbeing Board for the purpose of participating in its consideration of the 
matter.  

 
32. Given the NHS CB’s remit around commissioning health services in Southwark it 

will be necessary for the board to consider how they engage with the NHS 
Commissioning Board from 1 April 2013. 

 
Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
 
33. Beyond the duties to prepare and publish the JHWS, there is no clear 

prescription for how the strategy should be signed off or by whom, which we are 
interpreting as maximum local discretion. As the strategy will affect the 
commissioning decisions of a number of organisations represented on the board, 
it is important that the Health and Wellbeing Board has significant input into the 
strategy. The board will be a useful forum for board in 'shaping' resource 
decisions and creating a space for influence over local spending plans. 

 
34. As such it is suggested that the board has the opportunity to support the  

development of the strategy and recommend the final version to be signed off by 
cabinet and the CCG Governing Body. Given the importance and wide-reaching 
nature of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy, it may be also be appropriate 
to take a report to council assembly on the strategy following the board’s 
recommendation. 

 
Executive functions and scrutiny 
 
35. The Health and Social Care Act 2012 enables the local authority to arrange for 

any of its functions to be exercised by the board should it so wish. The board will 
not have the power to perform any of the functions given to the Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee, and it will itself be subject to overview and scrutiny as a 
committee of the council. In addition members of scrutiny committees should not 

209



  

 
 
 

7 

  

be members of the Health and Wellbeing Board as this may create a conflict of 
interests. 

 
36. It will be for the Leader of the Council under the ‘Strong Leader’ model to decide, 

based on the work of the board through its first year of operation, whether any 
executive functions should be delegated to the board. Until such a decision is 
taken, the board will operate in accordance within the council’s existing decision-
making framework and normal council budget setting processes. 

 
Administration 
 
37. Following the establishment of the board as a committee of the council, the 

organisation and minuting of meetings will be the responsibility of the 
constitutional team. This will not require any additional resource from the council. 

 
38. In some cases it may be appropriate to establish working groups to support the 

work of the board. In order that they are able to accurately represent the views of 
the board at least one board member should be assigned as a ‘champion’ for 
each working group. At such meetings, the board ‘champion’ should attend in 
order to represent the views of the board. These sub-groups will be resourced by 
the relevant organisations on the board rather than via the constitutional team. 

 
Policy implications 
 
39. The local authority has a duty to have regard to relevant JSNA and JHWS in the 

exercise of all functions. Members of the Health and Wellbeing Board 
representing the local authority will need to take account of this when proposing 
the JHWS. Officers and members will also need to bear this in mind in their day 
to day roles. 

 
Community impact statement 

 
40. The health and wellbeing of the community is at the core of the work of the 

Health and Wellbeing Board.  
 
41. The involvement of communities will be a key part of the work of the Health and 

Wellbeing Board. The board has acknowledged that the value of including the 
wider views of individuals and communities will be critical to both understanding 
and tackling the health and wellbeing issues in Southwark.  

 
42. There are opportunities with the establishment of the Health and Wellbeing 

Board, for instance, with the greater involvement of GPs in partnership work. 
One opportunity is the local community knowledge and expertise that GPs will 
bring in working with the council and other organisations, including public health, 
to help improve the health and wellbeing of the people of Southwark. 

 
43. In consideration of any future guidance and an understanding of best practice 

from elsewhere, the council will work with the NHS and other partners in order to 
ensure that following the establishment of the statutory board in April 2013, that 
equalities and a respect for human rights are at the heart of the work of the 
shadow Health and Wellbeing Board, and that those people who have a stake in 
the health and wellbeing of Southwark have fair access to services and are free 
from discrimination.  

 

210



  

 
 
 

8 

  

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS 
 
Director of Legal Services 
 
44. The cabinet is being asked to recommend to council assembly that a Health and 

Wellbeing Board for Southwark be established as a committee of the council. 
This is a statutory duty on the authority set out in the Health and Social Care Act 
2012. 

 
45. The board will be made up, as a minimum, of:  
 

• one local elected representative  
• a representative of the local Healthwatch organisation  
• a representative of each local clinical commissioning group  
• the local authority director for adult social services  
• the local authority director for children’s services  
• the director of public health for the local authority 

 
46. The board once constituted will have the power to appoint additional members 

as it sees fit. The local authority may also appoint such additional members as it 
sees fit (in consultation with the board if an appointment is made after the 
establishment of the board). 

 
47. The Leader is being asked to appoint the councillor member or members to the 

Health and Wellbeing Board for a fixed-term until the Annual Meeting of Council 
Assembly in 2014, and then on an annual basis for each year after that. Should 
the Leader wish to he can delegate the selection of councillor members on the 
board to another Cabinet Member. The Leader can appoint himself to the board 
should he so wish.  

 
48. A Health and Wellbeing Board is to be a committee of the local authority which 

established it and, is to be treated as if it were a committee appointed by that 
authority under section 102 of the Local Government Act 1972. However 
secondary regulations are due to be produced in January 2013 which are likely 
to disapply rules relating to proportionality and voting rights and amend rules 
relating to disqualification from membership. 

 
49. The Health and Social Care Act 2012 requires the local authority to establish and 

participate in the Health and Wellbeing Board, and through the board, to: 
 
50. Prepare and publish a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (“JSNA”) and a Joint 

Health and Wellbeing Strategy (“JHWS”) to meet the needs identified in the 
JSNA in relation to the local authority’s area.  

 
51. Involve third parties in preparation of the JSNA and JHWS including the Local 

Healthwatch and people living or working in the area, having regard to guidance 
from Secretary of State.  

 
52. Together with each of its partner clinical commissioning groups, to have regard 

to the JSNA and JHWS in the exercise of any function.  
 
53. When developing the JHWS, consider extent to which needs could be met more 

effectively by making arrangements under National Health Service Act 2006, to 
pool health budgets. 

211



  

 
 
 

9 

  

 
54. The Health and Social Care Act 2012 requires the board to encourage integrated 

working, and in particular encourage the use of National Health Service Act 2006 
powers to pool health budgets. 

 
55. The Health and Social Care Act 2012 enables the local authority to arrange for 

any of its functions to be exercised by the board should it so wish. 
 
56. The Health and Social Care Act 2012 enables to board to arrange for health 

related service providers to work with the board and with each other. It also 
enables the board to give the local authority an opinion on whether the authority 
is discharging its duty to have regard to the JSNA and JHWS when exercising its 
functions. 

 
57. The board will not have the power to perform any of the functions given to the 

Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee, and it will itself be subject to overview 
and scrutiny as a committee of the council. In addition it is advised that members 
of scrutiny committees should not be members of the shadow or statutory Health 
and Wellbeing Board as their role would be conflicted. 

 
58. All members of the Health and Wellbeing Board are subject to Southwark's Code 

of Conduct for elected members when acting as a member of the board and will 
be subject to declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests. 

 
Strategic Director of Finance and Corporate Services (FC13/005) 
 
59. The establishment of the Health and Wellbeing Board can be implemented within 

existing budgets. The ongoing administration and minuting of the board will be 
undertaken by the constitutional team. 

 
60. As set out in the report, the board will operate in accordance within the council’s 

existing decision-making framework and normal council budget setting 
processes. A decision to exercise any further local authority functions by the 
Health and Wellbeing Board would therefore need to be taken by the appropriate 
decision-making body (e.g. cabinet or council assembly), and a further report 
would be required for this. 

 

212



  

 
 
 

10 

  

 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Background Papers Held At Contact 
Cabinet Report 17 April 2012 - 
Establishment of a Southwark Health 
and Wellbeing Board. This document 
is available at the following web 
page: 
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ie
ListDocuments.aspx?CId=302&MId=
3822&Ver=4 

Corporate Strategy, 
Chief Executive’s 
Department,  
160 Tooley Street, 
London SE1 2QH 

James Postgate, 
Principal Strategy 
Officer 
020 7525 7627 

Minutes of the Shadow Health and 
Wellbeing Board meetings. Available 
via this web link: 
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/downloa
ds/download/3111/shadow_health_a
nd_wellbeing_board 

Corporate Strategy, 
Chief Executive’s 
Department,  
160 Tooley Street, 
London SE1 2QH 

Will Palmer, 
Senior Strategy 
Officer 
020 7525 0698 

 
 
APPENDICES 
 

No. Title 
None  
 
 
AUDIT TRAIL 
 
Cabinet Member Councillor Peter John, Leader of the Council 

Lead Officer Eleanor Kelly, Chief Executive 
Report Author Will Palmer, Senior Strategy Officer 

Version Final  
Dated 31 January 2013 

Key Decision? No 
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 

MEMBER 
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included 

Director of Legal Services Yes Yes 
Strategic Director of Finance 
and Corporate Services 

Yes Yes 

Cabinet Member  Yes Yes 
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 31 January 2013 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

213



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally blank. 



  
CABINET AGENDA DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN) MUNICIPAL YEAR 2012/13 
 
NOTE:  Original held by Constitutional Team; all amendments/queries to  
  Paula Thornton/Everton Roberts Tel: 020 7525 4395/7221 
 
 
Name No of 

copies 
Name No of 

copies 
 
Cabinet Members 
 
Peter John 
Ian Wingfield 
Fiona Colley 
Dora Dixon-Fyle 
Barrie Hargrove 
Claire Hickson 
Richard Livingstone 
Catherine McDonald  
Veronica Ward 
 
Other Councillors 
 
Catherine Bowman 
Toby Eckersley 
Neil Coyle 
Gavin Edwards 
Dan Garfield 
David Hubber 
Lorraine Lauder 
David Noakes 
Paul Noblet 
The Right Revd Emmanuel Oyewole 
Mark Williams 
Andy Simmons 
Tim McNally 
Anood Al-Samerai 
 
 
Group Offices 
 
Chris Page, Cabinet Office 
Laura Kavanagh, Opposition Group Office 
 
Press 
 
Southwark News 
South London Press 
 
Members of Parliament 
 
Harriet Harman, MP 
Tessa Jowell, MP 
Simon Hughes, MP 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
 
 
 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
 
 
 
 
1 
1 
 
 
 
1  
1 
 
 
 
1 
1 
1 
 
 
 
 

 
Corporate Management Team 
 
Eleanor Kelly 
Romi Bowen 
Deborah Collins 
Gerri Scott 
Duncan Whitfield 
 
Officers 
 
Doreen Forrester-Brown 
Jennifer Seeley 
 
Trade Unions 
 
Roy Fielding, GMB 
Henry Mott, Unite 
Chris Cooper, Unison 
Neil Tasker, UCATT 
Michael Davern, NUT 
James Lewis, NASUWT 
Irene Bishop, ASCL 
 
Others 
 
Robin Campbell, Press Office 
Paula Thornton, Constitutional Officer  
 
 
Total: 
 
Dated:  30 January 2013 (pt) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
 
 
 
1 
1 
 
 
 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
 
 
 
1 
20 
 
 
66 
 
 

 


	Agenda
	6 Minutes
	8 Policy and Resources 2013/14 to 2015/16
	Appendix A: Committments and growth
	Appendix B: Efficiencies and Improved Use of Resources
	Appendix C: Income generation
	Appendix D: Savings impact on service delivery
	Appendix E:Reversal of one-off items from 2012/13
	Appendix F: Progress report on the community restoration fund and youth fund

	10 Revenue Monitoring Report Quarter 3,  2012/13 including Treasury Management
	Appendix A: Budget movements to be approved, £250k and above and movements to be noted
	Appendix B: Summary of projected movements

	11 Quarterly Capital Monitoring Report Quarter 3
	Appendix A: General fund capital programme summary
	Appendix B: Housing investment programme summary
	Appendix C: Funded virements and variations for approval
	Appendix D: General fund capital programme details

	12 Authorisation of Debt Write-offs over £50,000 for National Non Domestic Rates - Revenues and Benefits Service
	Appendix 1: Case details

	13 Leathermarket Joint Management Board - Self Financing of Housing Revenue Account
	Appendix 1: Results of survey
	Appendix 2: Resident drop in event

	14 Progress report on Abbeyfield Estate Regeneration scheme and update on delivery of Four Squares and Hawkstone Estate
	15 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Draft Charging Schedule
	Appendix A: Draft charging schedule
	Appendix B: Draft regulation 123 list

	16 Establishment of Public Health Leadership and Commissioning in Southwark Council
	Appendix 1: Local Authority Commissioning Public Health Responsibilities

	17 Establishing Southwark's Health and Wellbeing Board as a Committee of the Council
	
	CABINET OPEN AGENDA DISTRIBUTION LIST 2012-13_updated


